Public Document Pack

Cabinet
Date:
Time:

Thursday, 15 March 2012
6.15 pm

Venue:

Committee Room 1 - Wallasey Town Hall

Contact Officer:
Tel:
e-mail:
Website:

Andrew Mossop
0151 691 8501
andrewmossop@wirral.gov.uk
http://www.wirral.gov.uk

AGENDA
1.

MEMBERS' CODE OF CONDUCT - DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
The members of the Cabinet are invited to consider whether they have
a personal or prejudicial interest in connection with any of the items on
this agenda and, if so, to declare it and state the nature of such
interest.

2.

MINUTES
The minutes of the last meeting have been printed and published. Any
matters called in will be reported at the meeting.
RECOMMENDATION: That the minutes be approved and adopted.

FINANCE AND BEST VALUE AND SOCIAL CARE AND INCLUSION
3.

BUDGET PROJECTIONS 2013-15 (Pages 1 - 6)

4.

MOBILE TELECOMMUNICATIONS CONTRACT (Pages 7 - 10)

5.

BANK SIGNATORIES (Pages 11 - 14)

6.

ORACLE DATABASE SUPPORT (Pages 15 - 18)

PUBLIC HEALTH
7.

PUBLIC HEALTH TRANSITION (Pages 19 - 46)

FINANCE AND BEST VALUE AND SOCIAL CARE AND INCLUSION
8.

CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S OFFICE (Pages 47 - 56)

CHILDREN'S SERVICES AND LIFELONG LEARNING
9.

WIRRAL INTENSIVE
(Pages 57 - 76)

FAMILY

INTERVENTION

PROGRAMME

10.

EARLY INTERVENTION GRANT COMMISSIONING PLAN AND
ARRANGEMENTS FOR 2012/13 (Pages 77 - 82)

11.

VEHICLE PROCUREMENT (Pages 83 - 86)

CULTURE, TOURISM AND LEISURE
12.

NORTH WEST LIBRARY BOOKS PURCHASING CONSORTIUM CONTRACT EXTENSION (Pages 87 - 90)

13.

PARKS AND COUNTRYSIDE SERVICE MODERNISATION
PROJECT - PURCHASE OF SECOND HAND VEHICLES AND
EQUIPMENT (Pages 91 - 94)

STREETSCENE AND TRANSPORT SERVICES
14.

HIGHWAYS ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY INCLUDING THE
HIGHWAYS ASSET MANAGEMENT PLAN (HAMP) (Pages 95 - 196)

15.

LOCAL TRANSPORT CAPITAL FUNDING AND THE INTEGRATED
TRANSPORT BLOCK (ITB) PROGRAMME 2012/13 (Pages 197 226)

16.

STREETSCENE ENFORCEMENT POLICY REVIEW (Pages 227 290)

17.

PARKING POLICY REPORT ON PARKING ENFORCEMENT (Pages
291 - 328)

18.

BROMBOROUGH
STATION
FOOTBRIDGE
PARAPET
REPLACEMENT - CONTRACT VARIATION (Pages 329 - 332)

REGENERATION AND PLANNING STRATEGY
19.

SUPPORT FOR WIRRAL'S COASTAL RESORT TOWNS (Pages
333 - 344)

20.

PORTAS PILOTS BID FUNDING (Pages 345 - 352)

HOUSING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY
21.

HCA FUNDING FOR HOUSED SCHEME 2012/13 (Pages 353 - 358)

22.

VIREMENT FROM REGENERATION, HOUSING AND PLANNING
BUDGET TO ADULT SOCIAL SERVICES (Pages 359 - 364)

COMMUNITY AND CUSTOMER ENGAGEMENT
23.

VOLUNTARY SECTOR CONTRACTS: VOLUNTARY COMMUNITY
FAITH SECTOR SUPPORT AND GENERAL ADVICE SERVICE
(Pages 365 - 368)

CORPORATE RESOURCES
24.

NOCTORUM COMMUNITY CENTRE (Pages 369 - 374)

25.

NOMINATION OF MAYOR AND DEPUTY MAYOR 2012/13
The Cabinet is requested to make nominations for the positions of
Mayor and Deputy Mayor for the municipal year 2012/2013, which will
be submitted to the Annual Meeting of the Council.

26.

MASTERS
IN
BUSINESS
QUALIFICATION (Pages 375 - 382)

ADMINISTRATION

(MBA)

27.

ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS APPROVED BY THE CHAIR
(PART 1)
To consider any other business that the Chair accepts as being urgent.

28.

EXEMPT INFORMATION - EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND
PUBLIC
The following items contain exempt information.
RECOMMENDATION: That, under section 100 (A) (4) of the Local
Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting during
consideration of the following items of business on the grounds that
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined by
the relevant paragraphs of Part I of Schedule 12A (as amended) to
that Act. The Public Interest test has been applied and favours
exclusion.

29.

EXEMPT APPENDICES (Pages 383 - 386)
•

Exempt Appendix to agenda item 23
Voluntary Sector Contracts: Voluntary Community Faith
Sector Support and General Advice Service

•

Exempt Appendix to agenda item 26
Masters in Business Administration (MBA) Qualification
These appendices are exempt by virtue of paragraph 3 as they
contain commercially sensitive information.

STREETSCENE AND TRANSPORT SERVICES
30.

DELL UNDERPASS REFURBISHMENT - CONTRACT VARIATION
(Pages 387 - 390)
This report is exempt as it contains confidential and commercially
sensitive information relating to a contract.

31.

ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS APPROVED BY THE CHAIR
(PART 2)
To consider any other business that the Chair accepts as being urgent.

Agenda Item 3

WIRRAL COUNCIL
CABINET
15 MARCH 2012
SUBJECT
WARD/S AFFECTED
REPORT OF
RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO
HOLDER
KEY DECISION

BUDGET PROJECTIONS 2013-15
ALL
DIRECTOR OF FINANCE
COUNCILLOR JEFF GREEN
YES

1.0

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1

Following the agreement of the budget for 2012-13 at the Council meeting
on 1 March 2012, this report presents the projected budgets for 2013-15.

2.0

BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES

2.1

Assumptions Underpinning the Projections
a) Inflation - Provision is included for price inflation of 2% per annum with
income to increase by 3% per annum. Pay awards are assumed to
increase by 1% per annum as requested by the Government.
b) Capital Financing - Cabinet on 8 December 2011 agreed a capital
programme at an increased revenue cost of £1.4m per year.
c) Pension Fund - the increase arising from the actuarial valuation in March
2010 will increase the contribution by £0.3m in 2013-14. The revaluation
scheduled for March 2013 will be implemented from 2014.
d) Waste Disposal - Landfill Tax is increasing by £8 per ton per annum, an
increase of 50% between 2010-11 and 2014-15. The levy is assumed to
increase by £1.5m per annum.
e) Merseytravel - From 2013 the levy is assumed to increase by £1m per
annum.
f)

Schools - it is assumed that the Schools Budget will vary in line with the
Dedicated Schools grant.

g) Efficiency Investment - in order to continue to deliver efficiencies in
future years it will be necessary to continue to invest and therefore £2m
per annum has been provided.
l)

Other Unavoidable Growth - a number of items of unavoidable growth of
less than £0.2m will arise. These usually total about £1m per annum.

Page 1

2.2

Grant Negotiations

2.2.1.

The Spending Review 2011-15 incorporated four year projections for local
government expenditure. However the Local Government Finance
Settlement has only provided figures for 2011-13. Figures for 2013-15 will
be subject to the outcome of the Local Government Resource Review
(LGRR). Clearly this will have a major impact on the budget projections for
2013-15 included in the appendix.

2.2.2.

The Local Government Finance Bill was introduced to Parliament on 19
December 2011. The two major elements are the localisation of Business
Rates and Council Tax Benefits.

2.2.3.

H. M. Treasury (HMT) announced a Council Tax freeze grant for 2012-13
only equivalent to a 2.5% Council Tax increase, amounting to £3.3m for
Wirral.

2.2.4.

As part of the LGRR the Government proposes to reduce specific grants
from 2013. The pro-rata impact for Wirral could be a loss of £7m in 2013-14
and £23m in 2014-15. Details of which specific grants will be reduced will be
announced in spring 2012.

2.2.5.

During the course of this budgeting period the results of the Census 2011
will become available and will be incorporated into the grant distribution
formulae. The Office for National Statistics (ONS) has released the Mid
2010 estimated populations. The reduction for Wirral since the Census 2001
is greater than for any other metropolitan or unitary authority. If this is
confirmed in the Census 2011 then the reduction in grant receivable could
be significant. The ONS has confirmed that the analysis of the Census data
should be completed for incorporation into the Finance Settlement for
2013-14.

2.3

Other Legislative Issues

2.3.1

Pensions - The Independent Public Service Pensions Commission issued
final recommendations on 10 March 2011. The Pensions Committee is
being updated on progress with implementation now expected in 2014.

2.3.2

Welfare Reform Bill – Implementation of Universal Credit and a Local
Council Tax Benefit System is due to commence in 2013. The Local Council
Tax Benefit System will result in a reduction of grant of £3.2m.

2.3.3

Localism Act 2011 - Will require a local referendum if a proposed Council
Tax increase is considered to be excessive.

2.3.4

Council Tax Revaluation - This has been deferred until after 2015.

2.3.5.

Public Health - Responsibility for Public Health transfers to Local
Government in 2013. The budget to be transferred will not be issued until
December 2012. However, The Department of Health did issue an adjusted
current spend figure of £22.264m on 7 February 2012. Funding will probably
be by specific grant.

Page 2

2.4

Balances

2.4.1

The budget for 2012-13 includes balances of £18.4m.

2.4.2.

The budget for 2012-13 will utilise £9.6m of the balances.

2.4.3.
Opening balances 1 April 2012
Budgeted use in 2012-13
Projected balances 31 March 2013

£m
18.4
9.6
8.8

2.4.4.

The minimum recommended balances are £6.0m.

2.5.

Savings

2.5.1.

Cabinet on 21 February 2012 agreed an amended strategic change
programme. Substantial work is required to increase the size and scope of
this programme in order to deliver the savings required for 2013-15.

3.0

RELEVANT RISKS

3.1

For 2013-15 the Government proposes significant changes to the grant
distribution system which could cause major changes to these projections.

3.2

The Government has indicated that the austerity measures outlined in the
Spending Review for 2011-15 are now likely to continue beyond 2015.

4.0

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

4.1

All of these projections represent my assumptions of the most likely outcome
from a wide range of available options.

5.0

CONSULTATION

5.1

The Government is consulting on a number of issues which will impact on
the budget projections. I respond to all consultation exercises to try to
ensure the best outcome for Wirral.

6.0

IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS

6.1

There are no direct implications arising from this report.

7.0

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS – FINANCIAL

7.1

The assumptions outlined above are reflected in the budget projections in
the Appendix.

Page 3

8.0

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

8.1

There are none arising directly from this report.

9.0

EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

9.1

There are none arising directly from this report.

10.0

CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS

10.1

There are none arising directly from this report.

11.0

PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS

11.1

There are none arising directly from this report.

12.0

RECOMMENDATIONS

12.1

That the budget projections be regularly reviewed.

12.2

That the strategic change programme be enhanced.

13.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

13.1

Regular reporting of the projected financial prospects is a requirement of
good corporate and financial planning.

FNCE/45/12
REPORT AUTHOR:

Ian Coleman
Director of Finance
telephone: 0151 666 3056
email: iancoleman@wirral.gov.uk

APPENDICES
Budget Projections 2013-15
REFERENCE MATERIAL
Budget - HM Treasury - March 2011
Independent Public Service Pensions Commission Report - March 2011
Spending Review - HM Treasury - October 2010
Medium Term Financial Strategy 2012-15 - October 2011
Local Government Finance Settlement 2012-13 - DCLG - January 2012
Council Budget 2012-13 - March 2012
Autumn Statement – HM Treasury – November 2011.
SUBJECT HISTORY
Council Meeting
This report is revised for each meeting of the Cabinet.

Page 4

Date

APPENDIX
Wirral Council
Budget Projections 2013-15

Base Budget
Increased Requirements
Pay Inflation
Price Inflation
Capital Financing
Pension Fund
Waste Disposal
Merseytravel
Council Tax Benefit
Other Unavoidable Growth
Efficiency Investment
Specific Grant Reduction

Reduced Requirements
Income Inflation
Resources
Revenue Support Grant
Business Rates
Council Tax Grant
Local Services Support Grant
New Homes Bonus
Council Tax
Forecast Resources
Shortfall

Page 5

2013-14
£m
288.2

2014-15
£m
282.7

1.7
4.2
1.4
0.3
1.5
1.0
3.2
1.0
2.0
7.0
311.5

1.7
4.2
1.4
2.5
1.5
1.0
1.0
2.0
16.0
314.0

-1.0
310.5

-1.0
313.0

-0.5
145.2
3.3
0.8
1.0
132.9
282.7

-0.5
135.0
3.3
0.8
1.0
132.9
272.5

27.8

40.5

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6

Agenda Item 4
WIRRAL COUNCIL
CABINET
15 MARCH 2012
SUBJECT:

MOBILE TELEPHONE CONTRACT

WARD/S AFFECTED:

ALL

REPORT OF:

DIRECTOR OF FINANCE

RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO

COUNCILLOR JEFF GREEN

HOLDER:
KEY DECISION?

NO

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.1 The purpose of this report is to inform Members of a variation to the contract with
Vodafone for the provision of mobile telephones and data services. This variation was
accepted under delegated authority and will realise a saving to the Council of £67,500
per annum.
2.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES
2.1 The contract with Vodafone is provided via the Government Procurement Service
(GPS) framework contract for the provision of mobile communications to the UK public
sector. These frameworks have been subject to competition within the European
Union and as such comply with the requirements of European procurement law for
public services. The Government Procurement Service was established from the
Office of Government Commerce (OGC), with the objective of reducing the cost of
goods and services across the UK public sector by aggregating requirements and
increasing buying power.
2.2 Vodafone has recently reduced its tariffs within the GPS framework and it is this
variation to contract that has been accepted under delegation. Wirral currently has
2,100 active connections, which comprise a mix of mobile telephones, mobile
telephones with e-mail provision, mobile broadband devices and data only
connections. The current total annual cost is £218,500, which will reduce to £151,000
under the revised terms.
2.3 Work continues on revising the mobile telephone policy and centralising some of the
administrative processes, which includes the electronic processing of invoices and
automatic allocation of costs for each connection to the appropriate cost centre. A
further report will be submitted to Cabinet once these changes are finalised.
3.0 RELEVANT RISKS
3.1 That the use of mobile communications will significantly reduce over the two year
term. This is unlikely since the trend is towards more agile working, which will require
increased use of mobile communications.

Page 7

4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED
4.1 Re-tendering the contract via a competitive process within the GPS framework. This
was discounted since the suppliers tariffs are published to the public sector and
analysis indicated that Vodafone offered financially advantageous solutions. A further
consideration was the resource requirements to replace over 2,000 devices, the
infrastructure connecting them to public services and potential service disruption if
published telephone numbers needed to be changed.
5.0 CONSULTATION
5.1 The Procurement Unit has been involved in the process. European procurement law
and Contract Procedure Rules have been complied with.
6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS
6.1 There are no implications for voluntary, community or faith groups.
7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS
7.1 There is no corporate budget for mobile telephony. Each department is responsible for
funding service provision from within departmental budgets. The annual expenditure
is currently £218,500.
8.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
8.1 There are no legal implications.
9.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS
9.1 Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to equality?
Yes but since the proposal is a variation to an existing contract and does not impact
on equality relating to service delivery, the workforce, community or any other aspect
of equality, an EIA is not required.
10.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS
10.1 There are no carbon reduction or environmental implications.
11.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS
11.1 There are no planning or community safety implications.
12.0 RECOMMENDATION
12.1 That Members agree a two year extension to the Vodafone contract and associated
savings of £67, 500 per year.
13.0 REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION
13.1 The variation to contract was accepted to realise an annual saving to the Council of
£67,500.

Page 8

REPORT AUTHOR:

Geoff Paterson
Head of IT Services
telephone: (0151) 666 3029
email: geoffpaterson@wirral.gov.uk

APPENDICES
None
REFERENCE MATERIAL
None

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting

Date

Page 9

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10

Agenda Item 5
WIRRAL COUNCIL
CABINET
15 MARCH 2012
SUBJECT
BANK SIGNATORIES
WARD/S AFFECTED
ALL
REPORT OF
DIRECTOR OF FINANCE
RESPONSIBLE
PORTFOLIO COUNCILLOR JEFF GREEN
HOLDER
KEY DECISION
NO
1.0

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1.

This report seeks approval to amend the nominated personnel on the
existing bank mandates.

2.0.

BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES

2.1.

The Council currently operates bank accounts with:- National Westminster, Birkenhead (main accounts)
- Royal Bank of Scotland, Liverpool (Merseyside Pension Fund)
- Santander (income collection through Girobank)
- State Street (Merseyside Pension Fund international transactions).

2.2.

Transactions on these accounts have to be authorised by an approved
signatory, and in the main this is satisfied by cheques bearing the pre-printed
signature of the Director. Payments over £10,000 require a second
signature on the cheque. Other instructions to the Banks generally require
two signatures.

2.3.

Copies of the list of bank and cheque signatories are usually required by all
counterparties to money market transactions and often by counterparties to
leasing transactions.

2.4.

For the National Westminster and Santander accounts approval is requested
for the following signatories:Director of Finance
Deputy Director of Finance
Head of Financial Services
Head of Benefits, Revenues
And Customer Services
Head of IT Services
Chief Accountant
Chief Accountant

Ian E. Coleman
David L.H. Taylor-Smith
Thomas W. Sault
Malcolm J. Flanagan
Geoffrey W. Paterson
Peter J. Molyneux
Jenny Spick

Page 11

2.5.

For the Royal Bank of Scotland and State Street accounts approval is
requested for the following signatories:Director of Finance
Deputy Director of Finance
Head of Financial Services
Head of Benefits, Revenues
And Customer Services
Head of IT Services
Principal Pensions Officer
Operations Manager
Group Accountant
Members Services Manager
Members Services Manager

Ian E. Coleman
David L.H. Taylor-Smith
Thomas W. Sault
Malcolm J. Flanagan
Geoffrey W. Paterson
Yvonne M. Caddock
Guy W. Hayton
Donna S. Smith
Margaret M. Rourke
Susan J. Roberts

3.0 RELEVANT RISKS
3.1 There are none arising directly from this report.
4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED
4.1 No other options were considered.
5.0 CONSULTATION
5.1 No consultation has been undertaken.
6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS
6.1 There are no direct implications arising from this report.
7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS
7.1 There are none arising directly from this report.
8.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
8.1 There are none arising directly from this report.
9.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS
9.1 There are none arising directly from this report.
10.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS
10.1 There are none arising directly from this report.
11.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS
11.1 There are none arising directly from this report.

Page 12

12.0.

RECOMMENDATIONS

12.1.

That National Westminster and Santander be authorised to accept cheques
and other instructions on behalf of the Council signed in accordance with
existing mandates by the following:Director of Finance
Deputy Director of Finance
Head of Financial Services
Head of Benefits, Revenues
and Customer Services
Head of IT Services
Chief Accountant
Chief Accountant

12.2.

Ian E. Coleman
David L.H. Taylor-Smith
Thomas W. Sault
Malcolm J. Flanagan
Geoffrey W. Paterson
Peter J. Molyneux
Jenny Spick

That the Royal Bank of Scotland and State Street be authorised to accept
cheques and other instructions on behalf of the Council signed in
accordance with existing mandates by the following:Director of Finance
Deputy Director of Finance
Head of Financial Services
Head of Benefits, Revenues
And Customer Services
Head of IT Services
Principal Pensions Officer
Operations Manager
Group Accountant
Members Services Manager
Members Services Manager

Ian E. Coleman
David L.H. Taylor-Smith
Thomas W. Sault
Malcolm J. Flanagan
Geoffrey W. Paterson
Yvonne M. Caddock
Guy W. Hayton
Donna S. Smith
Margaret M. Rourke
Susan J. Roberts

13.0.

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

13.1.

To amend the bank signatories.

FNCE/44/12
REPORT AUTHOR:

Ian Coleman
Director of Finance
telephone: (0151 666 3056)
email: iancoleman@wirral.gov.uk

APPENDICES
None
REFERENCE MATERIAL
None.

Page 13

SUBJECT HISTORY
Council Meeting
Cabinet
Cabinet

Date
15 April 2010
17 March 2011

Page 14

Agenda Item 6
WIRRAL COUNCIL
CABINET
15 MARCH 2012
SUBJECT:

ORACLE DATABASE SUPPORT

WARD/S AFFECTED:

ALL

REPORT OF:

DIRECTOR OF FINANCE

RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO

COUNCILLOR JEFF GREEN

HOLDER:
KEY DECISION

NO

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek Members approval to extend the existing contract
for support of the Oracle e-Business Suite database for a further twelve months at a
cost of £48,300.
2.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES
2.1 The Oracle e-Business Suite provides computer applications that underpin the
following Council functions:
−
−
−
−
−
−

One Stop Shops
Call Centre
Financial ledger & cash management
Accounts payable
Accounts receivable
Procurement

2.2 If the applications are unavailable due to system failure or essential maintenance
these functions suffer severe disruption, affecting service delivery to the public and
internal administrative processes, therefore an external support contract is required
that will:
− Ensure a rapid recovery from systems failure.
− Provide the Database Support Team with a source of expert advice and guidance.
− Provide training and skills transfer to the Team to increase their knowledge and
expertise in the development, support and maintenance of the system.
As the Team experience increases they become less reliant on external support and
therefore there will be the potential to reduce the cost in future.
2.3 Tenders were invited for the provision of a database support contract during 2010 with
the anticipation of making a saving. Following evaluation of the responses the contract
was awarded to Oracle for a period of twelve months, from 1 April 2011 to 31 March
2012 at a cost of £48,300. The contract was awarded under delegation and funded
from the existing ICT budget. It should be noted that a saving of £43,000 was
achieved on this contract.

Page 15

2.4 During the last few months the Database Support Team, with assistance from Oracle
under the terms of the support contract, has started the migration of the system from
version 11 to version 12. This was a recommendation contained within the SOCITM
report on the Customer Relationship Management (CRM) system reported to Cabinet
on 23 June 2011. There are advantages to the Council in respect of the additional
functionality contained in the later release. Oracle will cease support for version 11 in
November 2013 and therefore the system must be migrated to version 12 by that date
to continue to receive support from the developers.
2.5 Re-tendering the contract at this stage will disrupt the above project and any new
supplier will have to spend considerable time familiarising themselves with the
Council's current configuration, plus work already completed on the migration, at the
Council's expense.
2.6 If Members approve the extension then, over the course of the contract extension, the
service requirements will be reviewed, taking account of the additional experience
gained by the Database Support Team, and tenders will be invited for a contract term
of three years.
3.0 RELEVANT RISKS
3.1 Key staff are lost from the Council or service provider.
4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED
4.1 Re-tendering the contract. This is not recommended due to the issues outlined above.
4.2 Allowing the contract to lapse and provide all support in-house, which would leave the
Council open to considerable risk to service delivery since the internal Database
Support Team does not have sufficient knowledge and experience to deal with every
eventuality.
5.0 CONSULTATION
5.1 The Procurement Unit has been consulted regarding the validity of extending the
contract. The advice received states that this can be done under clause 21.1.1 (ii) of
the Contract Procedure Rules.
6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS
6.1 There are no implications for voluntary, community or faith groups.
7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS
7.1 The contract will be funded from the existing ICT budget. There are no additional IT,
staffing or asset implications.

8.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
8.1 There are no legal implications.

Page 16

9.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS
9.1 Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to equality?
Yes but since the proposal does not impact on equality relating to service delivery, the
workforce, community or any other aspect of equality, an EIA is not required.
10.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS
10.1 There are no carbon reduction or environmental implications.
11.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS
11.1 There are no planning or community safety implications.
12.0 RECOMMENDATION
12.1 That Members approve the extension of the existing Oracle e-Business Suite
database support contract for twelve months from 1 April 2012.
13.0 REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION
13.1 Re-tendering the contract at this stage of the project to migrate the Oracle e-Business
system from release 11 to release 12 will disrupt the project and subject the Council to
additional costs since a new supplier will have to spend considerable time familiarising
themselves with the current system configuration and work already completed by
Oracle and the internal Database Support Team.

REPORT AUTHOR:

Geoff Paterson
Head of IT Services
telephone: (0151) 666 3029
email: geoffpaterson@wirral.gov.uk

APPENDICES
None
REFERENCE MATERIAL
None

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting

Date

Page 17

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18

Agenda Item 7
WIRRAL COUNCIL
CABINET 15TH MARCH 2012
SUBJECT:

PUBLIC HEALTH TRANSITION

WARD/S AFFECTED:

ALL

REPORT OF:

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

KEY DECISION

YES

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide The Cabinet with information regarding the
implications of the transfer of part of the current public health system into the local
authority in relation to roles and future structures.
While not currently a statutory duty, under the Health and Social Care Act, currently
making its way through Parliament, local authorities will be statutorily responsible will
be given new statutory duties across the three ‘domains’ of public health. These are:
•
•

•

Health improvement – including reducing lifestyle related ill-health and
inequalities in health, and addressing the underlying determinants of health
Health protection – including ensuring that comprehensive plans are in place
across the local authority, NHS and other agencies to respond to infectious
disease outbreaks and other public health emergencies
Health service improvement – by providing NHS Commissioners, including
Clinical Commissioning Groups, with expert advice and support to improve and
evaluate the quality and efficiency of health services.

In addition, each authority must, acting jointly with the Secretary of State for Health,
appoint an individual to have responsibility for its new public health functions, known
as the Director of Public Health.
2.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES
National guidance
2.1 A number of guidance documents have now been issued in relation to the reform of
the public health system. In particular,
•
•
•
•
•

The public health outcomes framework.
An operating model describing how PHE will work.
Further details about implementing public health in local government and the role
of the DPH.
Public health funding – establishing the baseline for expenditure.
An HR Concordat with local government on the transition process.

2.2 The HR Concordat was published on 17th November 2011 by the Local Government
Association and the Department of Health. The Concordat provides guiding principles
and Human Resource (HR) standards for the transfer of PCT public health
commissioning activity and functions (“senders”) to local authorities (“receivers”), and
a fair and consistent approach to managing the related detailed HR processes in a

Page 19

local context. The concordat also outlines the indicative timescales for change and
the obligations on NHS and local government employers and trade unions on
managing the change.
2.3 On 20th December the Department of Health published ‘The new public health
system’, which has a summary document supported by two short ‘fact-sheet’ style
documents on how Public Health will operate in Local Government (including the role
of the Director of Public Health [Appendix 1], and the Operating Model for Public
Health England. The details of the responsibilities that will transfer to the local
authority are given in Appendix 2.
2.4 Public Health Outcomes Framework was published in January 2012and sets the
context for the new system from local to national level. This identifies two overarching
outcomes and four domains of indicators where improvement is sought. A summary
of these is provided in the table below.
Public Health Outcomes Framework
Vision: To improve and protect the nation’s health and wellbeing, and improve the health
of the poorest, fastest
Outcome 1: Increased healthy life expectancy
Taking account of health quality as well as the length of life
(Note: this measure uses a self-reported health assessment, applied to life
Expectancy)
Outcome 2: Reduced differences in life expectancy and healthy life expectancy
between communities
Through greater improvements in more disadvantaged communities
(Note: these two measures would work as a package covering both morbidity and
mortality, addressing within-area differences and between area differences)
DOMAIN 1:
Improving the wider
determinants of health
Objective:
Improvements against
wider factors that
affect health and
wellbeing, and health
inequalities
(Indicators across the
life course)

DOMAIN 2:
Health improvement

DOMAIN 3:
Improving the wider
determinants of health

Objective:
People are helped to
live healthy lifestyles,
make healthy choices
and reduce health
inequalities

Objective:
The population’s
health is protected
from major incidents
and other threats while
reducing health
inequalities

(Indicators across the
life course)

(Indicators across the
life course)

DOMAIN 4:
Healthcare public
health and preventing
premature mortality
Objective:
Reduced numbers of
people living with
preventable ill health
and people dying
prematurely, while
reducing the gap
between communities
(Indicators across the
life course)

2.5 The baseline funding estimates for the new public health commissioning architecture
were published on 7 February 2012. This provides the funding estimate for 2012-13.
A further piece of work is being done by the Advisory Committee on Resource

Page 20

Allocation and how resources should be distributed in the long-term, but we have been
advised that this is unlikely to be available until December 2012. The document states
that ‘we would not expect the LA public health ring-fenced grants to fall in real terms
from the values in Annex A, other than in exceptional circumstances such as a gross
error or following a technical adjustment with major consequences for budgets, such
as significant adjustment for NHS income, a change in planned responsibilities, or a
large shift in the incentive payment for drugs treatment. In particular we may need to
do further work to confirm the adjustment we have made to take account of abortion,
sterilisation and vasectomy services initially being the responsibility of CCGs [Clinical
Commissioning Groups] rather than LAs.’ The baseline spend projected for 2012-13
for Wirral includes an uplift from the 2010 figures which it is based on, and for Wirral is
estimated to be £22,264,000. Our current contracts and services provided for those
areas which will transfer to local authority responsibility are within this figure.
Public Health Structure for Wirral

2.6

On 3 February 2012 a report providing an update on public health transition was
taken to and it was recommended that
•

the Chief Executive be instructed by to work with the Director of Public Health
to bring back a proposal to on the future structure and operation of public
health within the Council.

•

subject to the satisfactory outcome of consultation, the Chief Executive ensures
that a Memorandum of Understanding or other appropriate arrangements are
put In place to allow the public health function to operate in shadow form during
2012/13.

•

Cabinet endorses the membership and purpose for the Public Health Transition
Steering Group

These recommendations were approved by Cabinet.
2.7

This report considers the steps that need to be undertaken to ensure that an
appropriate structure is put in place to meet the local authority’s future
responsibilities, and to support the continued delivery of public health responsibilities
during transition.

2.8

The LGA, in collaboration with the Department of Health has issued guidance on
human resources issues associated with transition. This guidance notes that:
•

All matters relating to the statutory transfer of public health functions and any staff
transfers are of course subject to the passage of the Health and Social Care Bill
2011 and royal assent

•

Staff identified as working in the public health functions that will transfer to local
government on a statutory basis under the Health and Social Care Bill 2011 will do
so on a TUPE or TUPE-like basis under COSOP

•

Local authorities and PCTs are strongly encouraged to work together jointly with
relevant trade unions to prepare for the transfer

Page 21

•

Arrangements should be agreed locally to help transferring staff to engage more
closely with their eventual new employers in the transition year 2012-13

•

However, no staff should transfer employment in advance of the due date of 1st
April 2013 which is the date the statutory responsibilities transfer

•

Councils are strongly encouraged to implement best employment practice, taking
account of the need for future recruitment and retention of specialist public health
staff

2.9

The bullet points above are being taken into account by the human resources
workstream of the public health transition steering group.

2.10

A key element of transition planning will be to agree the functions and structure of
the public health resource within the local authority. It will be important to ensure
that this is done in a way that allows current public health responsibilities to be
delivered until they are taken into their future system-wide locations. For example,
the local DPH is still responsible for screening programmes until the NHS
Commissioning Board and Public Health England are formed and start to
commission them. Following that, the local responsibility will be to undertake
monitoring and assurance that local people are benefiting adequately from those
services.

2.11

It could be viewed that there are two main steps in agreeing a structure for the longterm.
(a)

Agreeing a structure that allows delivery of current responsibilities until formal
transition occurs in 2013 (or until the new arrangements for PHE and NHSCB
are in place)

(b)

Agreeing what functions will remain as a local responsibility, and how they will
be delivered from April 2013 onwards.

Issues which might arise:
2.12

The NHS is currently running a voluntary redundancy process. Public Health staff
may apply for this, and any agreement will need to be made on the assumption that
we do not need the post, or that we will restructure to manage the work.

2.13

PHE and the NHS Commissioning Board have not yet published their detailed local
structures. It is not clear whether specific roles would transfer into those structures
from a local level; although if this were to be the case the numbers of roles in those
organisations are likely to be small, and may be subject to competitive interview.

2.14

It is likely that more substantive arrangements will be required to be in place around
October 2012. This is as a result of Clinical Commissioning Groups being
authorised, NHSCB and PHE structures being defined, and the need for PCT
Cluster oversight being reduced. In other words, the majority of the reformed
system will be expected to be working in the six months before the formal transfer of
responsibilities proposed in the Health & Social Care Bill.

Page 22

Managing existing responsibilities
2.15

The structures attached to this report in Appendix 3 are the structures that are in
place now to meet the needs of the next 12 months, however, this may change
given 2.12 and 2.13 above. It would be expected that we would need to seek some
shared service arrangements to manage the work with a reduced capacity of staff.

2.16

The Shadow arrangement proposed in the Cabinet paper of 2nd February is intended
to enable public health staff to attend internal council meetings, understand council
systems and to undertake a process of induction. However, this is on the
understanding that the liability for those staff and budgets remains with the NHS until
the end of March 2013. It may be that this liability may be dealt with through a
secondment arrangement that could be put in place in October if the issue described
in point 3 above arises. This could only happen if the local authority was happy to
operate in this way.

Defining a future structure
2.17

There are significant opportunities arising from this reform which it would be valuable
to work on during the period from now to October. The role of the Director of Public
Health is defined by the guidance provided at Appendix 1, and the
functions/responsibilities of local authorities at Appendix 2.

2.18

The guidance issued on the new public health system states ‘While the organisation
and structures of individual local authorities is a matter for local leadership, we are
clear that these legal responsibilities should translate into the Director of Public
Health acting as the lead officer in a local authority for health and championing
health across the whole of the authority’s business. This means that we would
expect there to be direct accountability between the Director of Public Health and the
local authority Chief Executive for the exercise of the local authority’s public health
responsibilities and that they will have direct access to elected members.’

2.18

The work now required will be to (taking into consideration 2.12-2.14 above):
•
•
•

•
•

Review the public health outcomes and functions aligned to the local authority
Map existing resources within the public health function and across the authority
that link to these functions
Take into account how shared service models might be agreed or developed
between local authorities on specific areas where resources are scarce or
where there is value in a single approach.
Drafting of a structure that meets these needs and which can then be consulted
on
Undertake any required consultation (particularly with staff and staff-side
representatives).

3.0 RELEVANT RISKS
3.1 The risks are as described in the Cabinet report of 3rd February:
Risk
Potential Impact
Inadequate level of funding within local Cuts in services currently provided
public health ring-fence to support local

Page 23

public health functions
Failure
to
clarify
public
health
responsibilities and organisational roles
of the Local Authority, Public Health
England and the NHS at a local level
Public
health
responsibilities
not
embedded in all relevant parts of the new
local system

Duplication/lack of coordination, potential
to improve health outcomes is lost.

Prevention not incorporated into care
pathways
Unable to maximise improvement and
health inequality reduction opportunities.
New operating models do not provide for Unable to respond effectively to
adequate public health support for local major/public health incidents
health
emergency
preparedness,
resilience and response
Organisational barriers to access to Public health unable to access NHS data
information
for health improvement, health protection
and
healthcare
quality;
thereby
compromising the public health response
IM&T arrangements insufficient to Inability to measure impact, uptake and
support public health monitoring and outcomes.
service delivery
Local authority does not embed public Duplication/lack of coordination, potential
health action across all its functions
to improve health outcomes is lost.
4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED
4.1 This report sets out the steps to enable options to be considered.

5.0 CONSULTATION
5.1 Consultation on transition of staff
There will be a need to ensure meaningful consultation with staff affected by the
transfer of functions.
5.2 Commissioned public health activity
Depending on the local public health budget, and on policy decisions made within the
Council, there could be a need to consult. This could arise from a reduction in
investment available, or a change in focus responding to understanding of needs
through the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment.

6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS
6.1 (Are there opportunities to involve voluntary, community and faith organisations? Is
this report Compact compliant?)
7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS
7.1 The public health function currently commissions a significant amount of voluntary and
community sector activity. In 2010/11 this amounted to £3.7 million of investment.

Page 24

There is an opportunity to ensure that this commissioning is integrated into any
approach to commissioning from the VCF sector by the local authority.

8.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
8.1 The local authority will be given statutory duties under the Health and Social Care Act
(subject to Parliament). It has been indicated that, subject to the successful passage
of the Bill the role of the Director of Public Health will be a statutory one, and that
guidance would be issued describing this statutory role in the same way as guidance
is produced for Directors of Adult Social Services and Directors of Children’s Services.
9.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS
9.1 Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to equality?
An impact review will need to be done in more detail since there is clearly potential for
a workforce impact. An initial assessment is attached.
10.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS
10.1 n/a

11.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS
11.1 n/a

12.0 RECOMMENDATION/S
12.1

That the cabinet note the report.

12.2

That The Director of public Health reports directly to the Chief Executive on a
shadow basis for 2012/13

12.3

That the additional skills and resources within the public health directorate, including
the public health intelligence team are seen as a welcome addition to the Council
workforce.

12.4

That the steps described in 2.18 are supported to allow for transition planning to take
place on the basis of the reporting structure directly to the Chief Executive.

13.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S
13.1 There are clear opportunities to create a robust structure for delivering public health
functions, and to support the local authority in delivering its role as a public health
organisation. These will be enhanced as further information becomes available on
public health system reform, and assessment of internal opportunities is undertaken.

Page 25

REPORT AUTHOR:

Fiona Johnstone
Director of Public Health
telephone: (0151) 651 3914
email: fiona.johnstone@wirral.nhs.uk

APPENDICES
Appendix 1: Role of the Director of Public Health
Appendix 2: Local Authority Commissioning Responsibilities
Appendix 3: Current public health structure

REFERENCE MATERIAL

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting

Date

Cabinet Report

3 February 2012

Cabinet Report

3 October 2011

Health & Wellbeing OSC

13 September 2011

Cabinet Report

17 March 2011

Health & Wellbeing OSC

18 January 2011

Page 26

[Appendices 1 and 2 are taken directly from the document ‘Public Health in Local
Government: Factsheets’ issued by the Department of Health in December 2011]
Appendix 1
The role of the Director of Public Health
In taking forward their leadership role for public health local authorities will rely heavily on
the Director of Public Health and the specialist public health resources he or she has at
their command. Indeed the Health and Social Care Bill makes clear that the Director of
Public Health is responsible for exercising the local authority’s new public health functions.
We have highlighted the duty on each unitary and upper tier authority to take such steps as
it considers appropriate for improving the health of the people in its area.
The Health and Social Care Bill makes clear that each authority must, acting jointly with the
Secretary of State for Health, appoint an individual to have responsibility for its new public
health functions, known as the Director of Public Health. That individual could be shared
with another local authority, where that makes sense (for example, where the senior
management team is shared across more than one authority and the authorities are
geographically contiguous). Below we cover key aspects of the function and scope of the
role of Director of Public Health.
Appointments
We are working with local government and public health stakeholders to produce guidance,
which will cover:
• appointments to existing Director of Public Health vacancies in a way that ensures they
are fit for purpose for the future
• managing the transition of Director of Public Health posts to local government during
2012/13
• a process for local authorities and Public Health England (in the Secretary of State’s
behalf), acting jointly, to appoint new Directors of Public Health from 1 April 2013.
The guidance will build on the existing joint appointments process for Directors of Public
Health and be consistent with Faculty of Public Health standards, including the use of
appointments advisory committees and faculty assessors, and best practice in local
government recruitment.
This will ensure Directors of Public Health in local government have the necessary
technical, professional and strategic leadership skills to promote, improve and protect
health and provide high-level, credible, peer-to-peer advice to the NHS about public health
in relation to health services.
Reporting arrangements
We promised in Healthy Lives, Healthy People: update and way forward to discuss with
stakeholders how best to ensure that that the Director of Public Health has an appropriate

Page 27

status within the local authority, in line with the position of the Directors of Children’s
Services and Adult Social Services.
We have consulted local government and public health interests, and intend to bring
forward amendments to the Health and Social Care Bill to reflect our desired policy
position. Subject to Parliament, we will add Directors of Public Health to the list of statutory
chief officers in the Local Government and Housing Act 1989.
After Royal Assent, we intend to issue statutory guidance on the responsibilities of the
Directors of Public Health, in the same way that guidance is currently issued for Directors of
Children’s Services and Directors of Adult Services.
While the organisation and structures of individual local authorities is a matter for local
leadership, we are clear that these legal responsibilities should translate into the Director of
Public Health acting as the lead officer in a local authority for health and championing
health across the whole of the authority’s business.
This means that we would expect there to be direct accountability between the Director of
Public Health and the local authority Chief Executive for the exercise of the local authority’s
public health responsibilities and that they will have direct access to elected members.
Responsibilities
The Director of Public Health as a public health specialist will be responsible for all the new
public health functions of local authorities, including any conferred on local authorities by
regulation. The Health and Social Care Bill will in addition make it a statutory requirement
for the Director of Public Health to produce an annual report on the health of the local
population, and for the local authority to publish it. Directors of Public Health will also be
statutory members of health and wellbeing boards, and will wish to use the boards as the
key formal mechanism for promoting integrated, effective delivery of services.
What these legal responsibilities should translate into is the Director of Public Health acting
as the lead officer in a local authority for health and championing health across the whole of
the authority’s business. Thus the Director of Public Health will be the person elected
members and other senior officers will consult on a range of issues, from emergency
preparedness to concerns around access to local health services. Often the Director of
Public Health will not be personally responsible for the problem, but he/she will know how
to resolve it through engaging with the right people in the new system. He/she will be able
to promote opportunities for action across the “life course”, working together with local
authority colleagues such as the Director of Children’s Services and the Director of Adult
Social Services, and with NHS colleagues.
The Director of Public Health will work with local criminal justice partners and the new
Police and Crime Commissioners to promote safer communities. And he/she will engage
with wider civil society to enlist them in fostering health and wellbeing. In short, the Director
of Public Health will be a critical player in ensuring there are integrated health and
wellbeing services across the locality.
With regard to the ring-fenced grant, formal accountability rests with the Chief Executive of
the local authority, but we would expect day-to-day responsibility for the grant to be
delegated to the Director of Public Health.

Page 28

Core skills
To deliver its new public health functions the local authority will need a specialist trained
Director of Public Health and public health support with the full range of appropriate skills to
deliver the functions we have described. That means we will need to ensure that job
descriptions reflect the highest possible standards as set out by the Faculty of Public
Health.
It is important to reaffirm that the Government believes the multidisciplinary nature of public
health is a key strength of the profession. We believe that the transfer of new public health
responsibilities to local authorities in no way changes this, and indeed
reaffirms the importance of attracting to public health high-quality individuals from a wide
range of disciplines including, but not limited to, medicine.
We will publish a Public Health Workforce Strategy, accompanied by a formal public
consultation. The strategy will seek to ensure the development and supply of a professional
public health workforce, set out proposals for how learning and development will be taken
forward in the reformed health system, and outline options for how public health knowledge
can best be embedded across the wider workforce.
The new arrangements will provide opportunities and challenges for employers, including
the wider local authority workforce.
Professional appraisal and support, and capacity building
Continuing professional development is a professional obligation for all public health
professionals, both medical and non-medical. It ensures that public health professionals
develop and maintain the necessary knowledge, skills and attributes to practise effectively
and work towards improving the health of communities. Local authorities will wish to
support this professional development.
Way forward
The Director of Public Health’s new role offers a great opportunity to build healthier
communities. But to make the most of this Directors of Public Health will need to:
• be fully engaged in the redesign of services that address the coming challenges
• influence and support colleagues who have a key role in creating better health, such as
planning officers and housing officers
• facilitate innovation and new approaches to promoting and protecting health, while
bringing a rigorous approach to evaluating what works, using the resources of Public
Health England
• contribute to the work of NHS commissioners, thus ensuring a whole public sector
approach.

Page 29

Appendix 2
Commissioning responsibilities
Local authorities will be responsible for:
•

tobacco control and smoking cessation services

•

alcohol and drug misuse services

•

public health services for children and young people aged 5-19 (including Healthy Child
Programme 5-19) (and in the longer term all public health services for children and
young people)

•

the National Child Measurement Programme

•

interventions to tackle obesity such as community lifestyle and weight management
services

•

locally-led nutrition initiatives

•

increasing levels of physical activity in the local population

•

NHS Health Check assessments

•

public mental health services

•

dental public health services

•

accidental injury prevention

•

population level interventions to reduce and prevent birth defects

•

behavioural and lifestyle campaigns to prevent cancer and long-term conditions

•

local initiatives on workplace health

•

supporting, reviewing and challenging delivery of key public health funded and NHS
delivered services such as immunisation and screening programmes

•

comprehensive sexual health services (including testing and treatment for sexually
transmitted infections, contraception outside of the GP contract and sexual health
promotion and disease prevention)

•

local initiatives to reduce excess deaths as a result of seasonal mortality

•

the local authority role in dealing with health protection incidents, outbreaks and
emergencies

•

public health aspects of promotion of community safety, violence prevention and
response

Page 30

•

public health aspects of local initiatives to tackle social exclusion

•

local initiatives that reduce public health impacts of environmental risks.

We have undertaken a further check of where commissioning responsibilities for a range of
services might sit in the future. As part of this work we have taken the opportunity to look
again at where commissioning of abortion services might most appropriately be placed.
Given the highly clinical, and in most cases surgical, nature of abortion provision we have
reconsidered our earlier decision to place these services with local authorities. We have
provisionally concluded that abortion should remain within the NHS and be commissioned
by clinical commissioning groups.
However, we are keen to seek a range of views on this revised commissioning route. A
consultation on this revised recommendation will begin in due course.
In Healthy Lives, Healthy People: Update and way forward, we said we were still
considering where to place responsibility for sexual assault referral centres (SARCs) and
for campaigns to promote early diagnosis of, for example, cancer. We have decided that,
subject to resolving some further points of detail, responsibility for sexual assault services,
including SARCs, at least in the short to medium term, should rest with the NHS
Commissioning Board. This is in our view the best way to ensure the delivery of uniformly
high-quality services across the country. On early diagnosis we are committed to giving
both Public Health England and the NHS Commissioning Board clear responsibility for
delivery, based on a shared set of outcomes.
Only some of the above services are to be mandated. The commissioning of other services
will be discretionary, guided by the Public Health Outcomes Framework, the
local joint strategic needs assessment and the joint health and wellbeing strategy.
There was considerable comment during our consultation on commissioning
responsibilities about the split of responsibilities for the public health of children and young
people, including the Healthy Child Programme, with pregnancy to five services being
commissioned by the NHS Commissioning Board. We accept the many benefits to be had
from the integration of public health into the wider commissioning of children’s and young
people’s public health, particularly in terms of the prevention and safeguarding agendas.
As we explained in Healthy Lives, Healthy People: Update and way forward, we believe
that the NHS Commissioning Board will be best placed to lead the commissioning of public
health funded services for children under five in the first instance, including health visiting,
the Healthy Child Programme and Family Nurse Partnership, given the commitment to a
50% increase in the health visiting workforce and a transformation in the health visiting
service by 2015, and to ensure associated improvements in support for families.
Our medium-term aim is to unify responsibility for these services within local government by
2015 when the increased health visiting workforce and new health visiting service model
and the Healthy Child Programme offer to families should be in place. In line with this
direction of travel, we are also transferring responsibility for commissioning effective Child
Health Information Systems to the NHS Commissioning Board, also to be funded by the
public health budget.

Page 31

This decision will be reviewed in 2015 to determine longer-term plans. We will engage
further on the detail of these proposals, particularly in respect of transition arrangements
and the best way to begin to involve local authorities in local commissioning of these
services in partnership with the NHS.
In the meantime, Public Health England will retain a close interest in the specification of
Child Health Information Systems, to ensure public health requirements, such as accurate
and effective collection on the delivery of childhood immunisations, are met.
The list of commissioning responsibilities above is of course not exclusive. Local authorities
may choose to commission a wide variety of services under their health improvement duty,
and indeed we would hope to see much innovation as local authorities embrace their new
duties. This freedom is deliberately wide, to encourage the kind of locally-driven solutions
that lie at the core of localism, underpinned by a robust analysis of the needs and assets of
the local population. Public Health England will promote this local innovation through
encouraging peer sharing of best practice and learning experiences, and through
supporting rigorous evaluation of new approaches to improving and protecting public
health.
Sexual health services
Local authorities will become responsible for commissioning comprehensive open-access
accessible and confidential contraception and sexually transmitted infections (STIs) testing
and treatment services, for the benefit of all persons of all ages present in the area.
Transfer of these services offers great opportunities to integrate sexual health services and
to link services to wider services, including alcohol and drugs, for particular target groups,
such as young people, vulnerable people and other groups at risk of sexual ill-health.
We are going beyond merely transferring responsibility for sexual health services to local
authorities and actually mandating hem for two reasons. First, STI testing and treatment
services are a central part of protecting health. The Government therefore believes that
high-quality services must be available in all areas, although the services provided will be
tailored to meet local needs.
Second, the Secretary of State for Health currently has a duty, reiterated in the Health and
Social Care Bill, to provide advice on contraception, medical examination of people seeking
advice on contraception, the treatment of these people, and the supply of any contraceptive
substances and appliances. This duty is currently delegated to primary care trusts, who are
required to provide open-access services which are not limited to their own residents.
Mandating these services of local authorities in the future will allow the Secretary of State
for Health to meet this duty fully, over and above what is provided for via current GP
provision.
Health protection plans
At present Directors of Public Health in primary care trusts play a key leadership role in
planning for, and responding to, health protection incidents, supported by local Health
Protection Agency health protection units. Subject to Parliamentary approval, the Health
and Social Care Bill will provide that the Secretary of State for Health is responsible for
taking steps for the purpose of protecting the health of the population. However, we want

Page 32

the Director of Public Health to continue to provide a coordination role to protect the health
of the local population when transferred to local authorities. Our vision is that the local
authority, and the Director of Public Health acting on its behalf, should have a pivotal place
in protecting the health of its population. We therefore propose to use a regulation-making
power in the Bill to require local authorities to take steps to ensure that plans are in place to
protect the local population.
Under this duty, local authorities (and Directors of Public Health on their behalf) would be
required to ensure that plans are in place to protect the health of the local population from
threats ranging from relatively minor outbreaks to full-scale emergencies, and to prevent as
far as possible those threats arising in the first place. The scope of this duty will include
local plans for immunisation and screening, as well as the plans acute providers and others
have in place for the prevention and control of infection, including those which are
healthcare associated.
Where the Director of Public Health identifies issues it will be his or her role to highlight
them, and escalate issues as necessary, providing advice, challenge and advocacy to
protect the local population, working with Public Health England which will provide
specialist health protection services including, for instance, coordination of outbreak
control, and access to national expert infrastructure as and when necessary. His or her role
in delivering these functions will be supported by the transparency in the system that will
allow the Director of Public Health and others rapid access to routine monitoring data.
Below we set out in brief how we envisage this health protection role working.
With regard to emergencies, we plan the following. At the Local Resilience Forum
(LRF) level, a lead Director of Public Health from a local authority within the LRF area will
be agreed to coordinate the public health input to planning, testing and responding to
emergencies across the local authorities in the LRF area.
Public Health England will continue to provide the health protection services, expertise and
advice currently provided at an LRF level by the Health Protection Agency.
The NHS Commissioning Board will appoint a lead director for NHS emergency
preparedness and response at the LRF level, and provide necessary support to enable
planning and response to emergencies that require NHS resources.
Local Health Resilience Partnerships (LHRPs) will bring together the health sector
organisations involved in emergency preparedness and response at the LRF level. LHRPs
will consist of emergency planning leads from health organisations in the LRF area and will
ensure effective planning, testing and response for emergencies.
LHRPs are a formalisation of existing health subgroups found in the majority of LRF areas.
They will enable all health partners to input to the LRF and in turn provide the LRF with a
clear, robust view of the health economy and the best way to support LRFs to plan for and
respond to health threats. Further work will be done over the coming months to pilot and
plan the resourcing and operation of LHRPs.
The lead director appointed by the NHS Commissioning Board and the lead Director of
Public Health will act as co-chairs at the LHRP during emergency planning. Resources will
be required to support the LHRP to provide continuous readiness.

Page 33

More work will take place in the coming months to develop operational guidance for the
system-wide emergency preparedness, resilience and response model.
The NHS lead director will represent the LHRP on the LRF, as now, since most
emergencies require readiness and input of NHS resources. The lead Director of Public
Health should also attend, and Public Health England will attend where the emergency
requires its presence.
In terms of plans for screening and immunising the local population we envisage a process
as follows. The NHS Commissioning Board will be accountable for delivery of the national
screening and immunisation programmes in accordance with an agreement between the
Secretary of State for Health and the Board which will set out the terms in which the Board
will exercise a Secretary of State function. Public Health England will provide public health
advice on the specification of national programmes, and also a quality assurance function
with regard to screening.
Directors of Public Health will advise, for example, on whether screening or immunisation
programmes in their area are meeting the needs of the population, and whether there is
equitable access. They will provide challenge and advice to the NHS Commissioning Board
on its performance, for example through the joint strategic needs assessment and
discussions at the health and wellbeing board on issues such as raising uptake of
immunisations and screening, and how outcomes might be improved by addressing local
factors. They will also have a role in championing screening and immunisation, using their
relationships with local clinicians and clinical commissioning groups, and in contributing to
the management of serious incidents.
Directors of Public Health will play a role in ensuring that immunisation care pathways for
programmes such as neonatal hepatitis B are robust. The Board will remain accountable
for responding appropriately to that challenge from local public health teams, and for driving
improvement.
This local authority role in health protection planning is not a managerial, but a local
leadership function. It rests on the personal capability and skills of the local authority
Director of Public Health and his or her team to identify any issues and advise
appropriately. But it will be underpinned by legal duties of cooperation, contractual
arrangements, clear escalation routes and transparency.
Thus clinical commissioning groups will have a duty of cooperation with local authorities;
NHS-funded providers can be required through contracts to share plans and appropriate
information; Directors of Public Health can use their annual report and membership of the
health and wellbeing board to raise concerns more formally; and the Secretary of State for
Health can use the Mandate and his agreement with the Board to ensure that the NHS
Commissioning Board takes appropriate account of the advice of Directors of Public Health.
Finally, there will be a professional relationship between Directors of Public Health and
Public Health England, and the Chief Medical Officer as professional lead for public health,
which will give directors and their teams a route for contributing to national thinking about
what is needed.

Page 34

The system ensures that accountability is focused where it needs to be. The Director of
Public Health will be responsible as the public health lead in each local authority for
advising on plans that are in place and identifying any problems, using his or her public
health expertise. NHS and other partner colleagues will be accountable for taking
appropriate account of that advice.
This is in line with the design of the new system overall: Public Health England and
Directors of Public Health are accountable for the provision of high-quality public health
advice; the NHS Commissioning Board, clinical commissioning groups and others are
accountable for making the appropriate use of that advice.
The Secretary of State for Health will retain a central interest in health protection even
where he has delegated functions to the local level. To this end we will publish further
details as we develop policy on the new system. In particular we will develop a statement
on how we will promote high performance and support performance improvement.
We also intend to produce operational guidance to support incident management at a local
level, which will cover the working relationship between the NHS, Public Health England
and the local authority. The guidance will recognise the need for flexibility to enable each
area to make plans most appropriate to protect the health of its population.
Population healthcare advice to the NHS
We will also mandate local authorities to provide population healthcare advice to the NHS.
Good population health outcomes, including reducing health inequalities, rely not just on
health protection and health improvement, but on the quality of healthcare services
provided by the NHS. That is why we are preserving a key role for local authority public
health teams in providing public health expertise for the NHS commissioners of these
services.
The need to secure provision of public health expertise for healthcare commissioners (and
to support health and wellbeing boards in producing the joint strategic needs assessment
and joint health and wellbeing strategy) was a key theme of the consultation on the public
health white paper Healthy Lives, Healthy People.
We have consulted a group of public health and other experts who have developed a draft
model for what such a public health advice service might look like, building on existing work
across the country. Appendix 1 sets out the group’s recommendations, aligned against the
stages of the commissioning cycle.
Clinical commissioning groups will require a range of information and intelligence support
via both the population healthcare advice service based in local authorities and other
commissioning support services such as from Public Health England where appropriate. It
is important to note that although there are some similarities in the nature of these services
(ie public health population healthcare advice and the work of commissioning support
organisations (CSOs) in the future), they will have a different focus.
We envisage that public health teams will provide largely a strategic population focus,
synthesizing data from a wide variety of sources and applying their public health skills to
draw the implications of that data for the local population. CSOs will focus more on
commissioning processes and clinical systems, including detailed analysis of referrals and

Page 35

activity, procurement and business processes. Both are essential for driving improvements
in services.
There would be nothing to stop local authorities from agreeing locally to offer a wider range
of services. Local authorities will also be free to meet this obligation in a variety of ways, for
example in relatively small authorities it may make sense to locate a team in a single
authority, acting on behalf of several. In addition, Public Health England will have a role
through its information and intelligence service to support local authorities on this
mandatory duty. This could include, for example, providing baseline data and analysis that
local public health teams would need to share with the local NHS to inform discussions
about relative needs and priorities.
Given close working and responsiveness between public health teams and clinical
commissioners we would expect clinical commissioners to make full use of the expertise of
local public health teams (as well as public health expertise in clinical senates). Indeed we
are confident that as fully integrated commissioning teams are put in place throughout the
country, the nature and extent of such assistance will be an accepted and automatic core
element of local commissioning practice. This will be another means of taking forward the
underpinning localism ambitions of this policy approach.
Where there are concerns about the quality of the advice received we would expect this to
be raised at the local level initially with the local authority. There may be an issue of
professional development, in which case we would envisage clinical commissioning groups
involving Public Health England in discussions.
We are considering further what role local public health advice may play in supporting the
NHS Commissioning Board in its core responsibilities, for example with respect to the
quality of local primary care commissioning.
The group of public health experts and GPs who have advised us on the development of
the population healthcare advice service are also working with us to consider how best to
ensure that the provision of population healthcare advice meets the needs of clinical
commissioning groups. This will help ensure that clinical commissioning groups can be
confident that they will receive the kind of high-quality, responsive service they need.

Page 36

Appendix 3

Public Health Directorate – Health Improvement, Health Protection and Healthcare-related Public Health
Head of ChaMPs
(Hosted Public Health Network
Director of Public
Health
Head of Sexual Health Network
(Hosted Public Health Network
Deputy Director
of Public Health

Public Health Strategy
Manager

Page 37

Head of
Health &
Wellbeing
(Children & Young
People)

Health &
Wellbeing
(Children &
Young People)
Team
6.55 WTE

Acting Head of
Health &
Wellbeing
(Healthy
Communities)

Health &
Wellbeing
(Healthy
Communities)
Team
2.31 WTE

Consultant in
Public Health
0.53 WTE

Consultant in
Public Health
0.2 WTE

DAAT Manager
Head of
Emergency
Planning 0.6
WTE/
Business
Manager 0.4
WTE

DAAT Team
(8 WTE)

Acting Head of
Health Protection

Health Protection
Project Officer
Business
Support Team

Public Health Directorate – Health Improvement, Health Protection and Healthcare-related Public Health
Work Activities and functions

Commissioning and Managing
Teenage pregnancy, sexual health and contraception; weight management; breastfeeding; curriculum development for SRE;
the health of looked after children; the healthy child programme; safeguarding; physical activity programmes; contract
management; health inequality programmes, health trainer services; smoking cessation programmes; mental health and
wellbeing; health improvement for vulnerable and minority communities; drug treatment and recovery services; alcohol
education, prevention and treatment services; hepatitis testing and treatment programme; drug and alcohol services in criminal
justice; offender health; community asset development

Page 38

Commissioning and Managing
Health protection and major incident planning
Immunisation (multiple programmes childhood through to older age)
Screening programmes (12 programmes currently running – cancer, non-cancer, maternal and child health)
Support for secondary care health services (e.g. heart disease, cancers, mental health, respiratory disease etc)
Business Planning
Performance Management

Public Health Directorate – Public Health Performance, Intelligence & Research
Director of Public Health

Liverpool University
(Health Economics)
& John MooresUniversity

R&D Manager
1WTE

Page 39

R&D Analyst
0.6WTE

Head of Performance & Intelligence
1WTE

Intelligence Manager
1WTE

JSNA Programme Manager
1WTE

Performance Manager
1WTE

Senior Public Health Analyst
1WTE

Senior JSNA Analyst
1.0 WTE

Information Analyst
1WTE

Senior Public Health Analyst
0.8WTE

Information Analyst
0.68 WTE

PH Analyst
0.6WTE

DASSInformation Analyst*
Epidemiologist
[external to the organisation]
DASSInformation Analyst*

* Current management arrangements
to be reviewed with Director of ASS

Public Health Directorate – Public Health Performance, Intelligence & Research
- Work activities and functions
(Built around the commissioning cycle)

Page 40

-Joint Strategic Needs Assessment
-Health needs/impact assessment
-Risk profiling & prediction
-Demographic forecasting and
disease trends
-Geographic analysis and
mapping, socio-demographic
analysis
-Identification of risk groups (e.g.
communities)
-Research, evaluation, surveys,
audits, peer reviews
-Trend and statistical analysis
-Geographic (e.g. ward), practice,
regional and national
benchmarking of disease
prevalence, activity, productivity
and cost

PLAN

-Analysis and presentation of
productivity indicators
-Clinical pathway mapping/
modelling & cost comparators
-Providing evidence and information
on comparative health outcomes
-Statistical analysis of variation and
correlations
-KPI benchmarking
-Development, implementation &
management of a performance
management framework (at all
levels of organisation from strategy
to individual performance)
-Analytical support for contract
monitoring/analysis
-Provider activity, validation & data
quality review

DO

-Contract development (e.g. KPI
specification)
-Performance management and
support for service improvement
-Contract validation and challenge
-Pathway and scenario modelling
(e.g. dementia)
-Providing comparative cost and
activity monitoring
-Metrics reporting
-Performance reporting
-Providing comparative outcome
monitoring (inc. patient and public
health data)
-Production of Board level reports,
presentations and profiles.

REVIEW

-Demographic forecasting and
disease trends
-Forecasting and future projections
of expected activity
-Cost benefit analysis of current
activity versus alternatives (Health
Economics)
-Programme budgeting
(comparative spend on disease
conditions [Health Economics])

REVISE

Equality Impact Toolkit (new version February 2012)
Section 1:

Your details

Council officer:
Email address:

Page 41

Head of Service:
Chief Officer:

Fiona Johnstone

Department:

Public Health

Date:

24 February 2012

Section 2:

What Council function / proposal is being assessed?

The transfer of public health functions and responsibilities to the local authority.

Section 2b:

Is this EIA being submitted to Cabinet or Overview & Scrutiny Committee?

No

Page 42

Section 3:

Will the Council function / proposal affect equality in ……? (please tick relevant boxes)

¨

Services

¨

The workforce ü

¨

Communities

¨

Other (please state)

If you have ticked one or more of above, please go to section 4.
¨
None (please stop here and email this form to your Chief Officer who needs to
publishing)

email it to equalitywatch@wirral.gov.uk for

Section 4:

Within the Equality Duty 2010, there are 3 legal requirements.
Will the Council function / proposal support the way the Council
…………………(please tick relevant boxes)

¨

Eliminates unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation ü

¨

Advances equality of opportunity ü

¨

Fosters good relations between groups of people ü

If you have ticked one or more of above, please go to section 5.
¨
None (please stop here and email this form to your Chief Officer who needs to
publishing)

email it to equalitywatch@wirral.gov.uk for

Page 43
Section 5:

Will the function / proposal have a positive or negative impact on any of the protected groups (race,
gender, disability, gender reassignment, age, pregnancy and maternity, religion and belief, sexual
orientation, marriage and civil partnership)?
You may also want to consider socio-economic status of individuals.

Please list in the table below and include actions required to mitigate any negative impact.

Protected
characteristic

Disability

Positive or
negative
impact

May be a
negative
impact if staff
move location
and need
reasonable
adjustments
to be made

Action
required to
mitigate any
negative
impact
Assessment of
needs would
be undertaken

Lead
person

Timescale

Resource
implications

Page 44

Business
Manager

n/a – will
only apply if
staff move
location

Funding for
any
reasonable
adjustments
required

Business
Manager

Transition
period and
beyond

Will need to
be
considered
depending on
the flexibility
required.

Accessibility

Gender

Section 5a:

Carers may
Assessment of
need flexible needs
working
undertaken
arrangements
Use of flexible
working policy

Where and how will the above actions be monitored?

Through the Public Health Transition Steering Group

Section 5b:

If you think there is no negative impact, what is your reasoning behind this?

Section 6:

What research / data / information have you used in support of this process?

n/a

Page 45
Section 7:

Are you intending to carry out any consultation with regard to this Council function / policy?

Yes

(please stop here and email this form to your Chief Officer who needs to email it to equalitywatch@wirral.gov.uk for publishing)

Section 8:

How will consultation take place?

Consultation will take place through the Human Resources Workstream of the Public Health Transition Steering Group. There are staff
representatives on the steering group, and staff-side representatives have been invited to be on the workstream group.

Before you complete your consultation, please email your ‘incomplete’ EIA to equalitywatch@wirral.gov.uk via your Chief Officer in
order for the Council to ensure it is meeting it’s legal requirements. The EIA will be published with a note saying we are awaiting
outcomes from a consultation exercise.
Once you have completed your consultation, please review your actions in section 5. Then email this form to your Chief Officer who
needs to email it to equalitywatch@wirral.gov.uk for re-publishing.

Page 46

Agenda Item 8
WIRRAL COUNCIL
CABINET
15 MARCH 2012
Chief Executive’s Office

SUBJECT:
WARD/S AFFECTED:
REPORT OF:
RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO HOLDER:
KEY DECISION:

All
Chief Executive
The Leader of The Council
No

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.1 This report makes recommendations in relation to strengthening the Chief Executive’s
Office to ensure appropriate priority is given to key areas of activity. This involves the
transfer of the Head of Human Resources and Organisational Development (HR and
OD). In addition it takes forward the arrangements for establishing a Council Policy
Unit, further to the review of policy undertaken as part of the governance work
programme agreed by Cabinet on 16 November 2011 to ensure sufficient capacity is
in place to manage this crucial area of activity.
2.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES
There is a significant improvement and delivery agenda that requires the leadership of
The Chief Executive. It is important, therefore, that The Chief Executive has sufficient
support to meet these challenges. It is also important that the key functions that can
drive change, policy, communications and engagement, HR and Organisational
Development, work closely together to support The Chief Executive to deliver the
challenge.
3.0 HUMAN RESOURCES AND ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT
3.1 The HR and OD function is a key driver for change and is of strategic importance in
developing and delivering the capacity and cultural change required across the
organisation. The People Strategy 2010-2013: 2011-2012 Implementation Plan was
agreed by the Employment and Appointments Committee and outlined the key
priorities of The People Strategy. These priorities require the leadership from The
Chief Executive.
3.2 The aim of The People Strategy is to ensure that Wirral Council has an effective and
productive workforce to meet its current and future objectives. The principles of The
People Strategy are that people who are well led, healthy, motivated and developed,
are more likely to deliver effectively. The Council’s strategic people issues have been
addressed through focusing our attention and prioritising action within 5 key themes
with the priorities for deliver 2011/12 detailed below:
1. Developing and delivering leadership and skills across the organisation
•

Improve the take-up of learning and development and continue to develop
learning to meet the needs of the organisation

Page 47

1

2.

Developing our organisation, to respond to and deliver change

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Improved communications
Continued development of a framework to consult and engage employees
Remodelling the organisation to respond to organisational change
Future workforce change plan to be put in place
People are deployed effectively, and employee pay costs reflect the working
arrangements within budget
Delivery of the Transforming Business Support project
Review Employee Pay Costs

3.

Developing capability and capacity to deliver performance improvement

•

Implement and embed a performance management framework for leadership.

4. Delivering performance through an effective People Management
Framework and efficient processes
•
•
•
•
•

To review and seek approval for the People Management Framework policies
Delivery of one Casework system for HR cases
Delivery and management of enhanced Attendance Management policy and
procedure
Implementation of Phase 2 and 3 of Job Evaluation
Effected HR processes / services

5. Delivering our role as a good employer
•
•
•

Achievement of Excellent Status for the Equality Framework for Local
Government
Further develop the Fit for Wirral Framework
Development of Apprenticeship and Graduate Programmes

3.3 The People Strategy Implementation plan will need to be reviewed for 2012/13 to
ensure that it both drives and supports the Council’s Improvement Plan.
Organisational Development is key to developing organisational capacity, leadership,
individual performance management, team working and personal development.
4.0 POLICY, COMMUNICATIONS AND ENGAGEMENT
4.1

A detailed review of policy was undertaken to establish the proposed functions of a
Policy Unit with involvement from key stakeholders. As part of this work, a review of
policy arrangements in a range of other local authorities was undertaken to explore
models for delivery and identify good practice. These findings identified a strong
correlation between the development of robust evidence-based policies and
strategies with effective engagement and consultation with stakeholders and local
people. The review further identified that many of the models explored aligned
responsibilities for policy development and equality and diversity within one team.

4.2

As the result of the review, this report makes recommendations with regard to
establishing the Policy Unit by April 2012. It is therefore proposed that the Head of
Communications and Community Engagement is assigned to a newly designated

Page 48

2

post of Head of Policy, Communications and Community Engagement with overall
responsibility for the Council’s Policy Unit reporting directly to The Chief Executive in
addition to existing responsibilities for all communications and community
engagement activities (including marketing, tourism, the voluntary, community and
faith sector) and equality and diversity.
4.3

On the basis of these findings and with engagement from key stakeholders, the
proposed functions of the Policy Unit which were reported to the Council’s Corporate
Governance Committee on the 8 February 2012 will include:

4.4 To lead on a coherent and joined up approach to policy, planning and strategy
development for the Council
The products and features of this function would include:
•
•
•
•

Regular policy briefings
Well coordinated policy framework
Development of the Council’s Corporate Plan and other strategic plans as
appropriate including the Child Poverty Strategy
Policy network for the Council with all departments represented

The intended outcomes of this function will be:
•
•
•
•
4.5

Elected Members are well informed on current and future policy issues
Effective collaboration between departments on cross cutting policy issues
Robust implementation and review of policy decisions
Effective sharing of learning and best practice

To ensure that there is a robust knowledge and evidence based approach to
decision making in order to tackle the key challenges for Wirral
The products and features of this function will include:
•
•
•
•
•

Robust approach to ‘horizon scanning’ and dissemination of information
Regular policy briefings
A single knowledge ‘hub’ / evidence base e.g. statistics, demographic info
Annual ‘state of the borough’ report
Joined up approaches for research and information

The intended outcomes of this function will be:
•
•
4.6

Consistent use of evidence to develop Council plans and strategies
Shared view within the Council and amongst partners about the key challenges /
opportunities for Wirral

To engage with local and sub-regional partners to shape and respond to policy
developments and implement decisions
The products and features of this function will include:
•

Utilising the Local Strategic Partnership to discuss policy drivers

Page 49

3

•
•

Innovative partnership working
A clear briefing process in place to inform the Council’s contribution at City
Region, regional and national level

The intended outcomes of this function will be:
•
•
•
•

The Council and LSP proactively anticipates and plans for policy changes
Shared view within the Council and amongst partners about the key challenges /
opportunities for Wirral
Identification of potential resources
Influencing policy at sub-regional, regional and national level through ensuring
that Wirral’s interests and priorities are effectively represented.

5.0

INITIAL STAFFING AND RESOURCE CONSIDERATIONS

5.1.

Cabinet on 11 July 2010 agreed to a centralised model for The Human Resources
and Organisational Development function with a phased plan for delivery. It was
recognised that to meet the challenges facing the Council the HR/OD team would
need to work differently, with consistent leadership and direction under a “one team”
approach. The principles of centralising the HR/OD function ensure that there is one
team which brings all the functions of HR/OD together. This allows for alignment of
work, ensuring all team members understand the priorities and are working towards
those priorities, ensuring the most effective utilisation of resources. This will be
completed with a further report to Cabinet outlining the financial changes and future
structure.

5.2

The role of Head of HR and OD is currently at a Head of Service level. The role will
now take on additional duties which include directly supporting and reporting to The
Chief Executive in leading and driving The Improvement Plan for the Council which
will have a capacity building and people focus. This role will also provide direct
support to The Chief Executive.
To ensure parity with other direct reports it is proposed that this role be re- graded at
a Deputy Chief Officer level, DCO3. However as the senior management grades are
currently being evaluated, this change will be subject to the outcome of job
evaluation.

5.3

At The Employment and Appointments Committee on 29 September 2011, the
Committee approved my recommendation to create a Policy Unit working directly to
me and approved the creation of a new post of Head of Policy. Since this report in
September, I have implemented an interim arrangement whereby officers with
responsibilities for policy development have been reporting directly to me. This has
resulted in significant capacity issues. Policy development is an extremely important
function for the authority, as identified in the AKA report, and it is therefore essential
that this area of work is given sufficient capacity and strategic direction to robustly
influence and improve Council services. The recommendations made within this
report are therefore based on ensuring that a strategic direction is effectively
provided to the new post of Head of Policy and the policy unit, and I am therefore
recommending that the Council’s policy function reports into a Head of Service
rather than directly to me to provide additional support and capacity to this important
work.

Page 50

4

5.4

The review of policy arrangements in a range of other local authorities identified a
strong correlation between the development of robust evidence-based policies and
strategies with effective engagement and consultation with stakeholders and local
people. I am therefore recommending that the Head of Communications and
Community Engagement is assigned to a newly designated post of Head of Policy,
Communications and Community Engagement with overall responsibility for the
Council’s Policy Unit. This post already reports directly to the Chief Executive as a
DCO3 with existing responsibilities for all communications and community
engagement activities (including marketing, tourism, the voluntary, and community
and faith sector) and equality and diversity. This post will also provide direct support
for The Chief Executive.

5.5

The core staff in the Policy Unit will work closely with a wider network of officers in
departments and link as appropriate to other core functions in order to effectively
coordinate the Council’s approach to knowledge management. This will include
links with the functions delivered by the Director of Public Health such as the
preparation of Wirral’s joint strategic needs assessment and wider research and
information requirements.

5.6

A proposed structure chart is shown at Appendix A

6.0

RELEVANT RISKS

6.1

The bringing together of key functions to support The Chief Executive seeks to
mitigate the risk of the Council not delivering on the Improvement plan.

6.2

A project team has been established for the review of policy with robust project
planning and risk management in place. The risks in relation to this project are
regularly reviewed to ensure that these are addressed through mitigating action.

7.0

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

7.1

The establishment of a Council Policy Unit is one of the 10 Key Lines of Enquiry
(KLOE) approved by the Corporate Governance Committee on the 16 November
2011. This provided a clear steer for the review and therefore no further options
were considered.

8.0

CONSULTATION

8.1

Consultation with the key senior staff affected has taken place.

8.2

Consultation with stakeholders in respect of the establishment of a Policy Unit has
been undertaken as set out in section 5.0 of this report. This report has also been
considered by the Council’s Corporate Governance Committee on the 8 February
2012.

9.0

IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS

9.1

The proposed functions of the Policy Unit relating to engaging with partners will take
into account the need to ensure effective engagement with voluntary, community
and faith groups.

Page 51

5

10.0

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS

10.1

The net annual cost of the change of the grade for the post of Head of HR and OD is
£2821 plus on costs.

10.2

All other proposals are met within existing resources.

11.0

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

11.1

No legal implications have been identified in respect of the proposals set out in this
report.

12.0

EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

12.1

Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to equality?
(a)

Yes and impact review is attached –

Law, Human Resources and Asset Management Equality Impact Assessments (post
2010) | WIRRAL Borough Council

13.0

CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS

13.1

No carbon reduction implications have been identified in respect of the proposals set
out in this report.

14.0

PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS

14.1

No planning or community safety implications have been identified in respect of the
proposals set out in this report.

15.0

RECOMMENDATION/S

15.1 It is recommended that proposals in this report are agreed as the basis of the further
work required in establishing the Policy Unit by April 2012.
15.2

The Head of Communications and Community Engagement is assigned to a newly
designated post of Head of Policy, Communications and Community Engagement
with overall responsibility for the Council’s Policy Unit reporting directly to The Chief
Executive in addition to existing responsibilities for all communications and
community engagement activities (including marketing, tourism, the voluntary,
community and faith sector) and equality and diversity;

15.3

Authority is designated to the newly designated post of Head of Policy,
Communications and Community Engagement to establish the Policy Unit on the
basis of the proposed function and staffing considered in this report and works with
departments and key service areas to ensure the effective delivery of the core
functions of the Unit.

15.4

That the Head of HR and OD reports directly to The Chief Executive and the
function is moved into the new Chief Executive’s Department. The role will be

Page 52

6

graded at Deputy Chief Officer level DCO3, subject to the outcomes of Job
Evaluation.
15.5

Recommend to The Employment and Appointments Committee the changes to the
Staffing arrangements outlined above.

16.0

REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

16.1

The recommendations are in response to the critical milestones set out by Anna
Klonowski in her report ‘Improving Corporate Governance In Wirral’.
The
establishment of a Council Policy Unit is one of the 10 Key Lines of Enquiry (KLOE)
approved by the Corporate Governance Committee on the 16th November 2011.

REPORT AUTHOR:

Jim Wilkie
Chief Executive
Telephone: (0151) 691-8589
Email: jimwilkie@wirral.gov.uk

APPENDICES
Appendix A Structure chart – The Chief Executive’s Office
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting
Corporate Governance Committee

Date
8 February 2012

Page 53

7

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 54

Page 55

3ROLF\8QLW

&RUSRUDWH
(QJDJHPHQW
DQG
0DUNHWLQJ

3UHVVDQG
,QWHUQDO
&RPPXQLFDWLRQV
2IILFH
(0HGLD

3ROLF\&RPPXQLFDWLRQVDQG
(QJDJHPHQW

'HVWLQDWLRQ
0DUNHWLQJ

*UDSKLFV
'HVLJQ

&RUSRUDWH
(TXDOLW\ 
&RKHVLRQ

3XEOLF+HDOWK
$SULO

&KLHI([HFXWLYH¶V
2IILFH

2UJDQLVDWLRQDO
'HYHORSPHQW

3D\UROO
6HUYLFHV

+XPDQ
5HVRXUFHV

+XPDQ5HVRXUFHV 
2UJDQLVDWLRQDO
'HYHORSPHQW

'HSDUWPHQWDO
+57HDPV

$SSHQGL[$

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 56

Agenda Item 9
WIRRAL COUNCIL
CABINET
15 MARCH 2012
SUBJECT:

WIRRAL

INTENSIVE

FAMILY

INTERVENTION PROGRAMME
WARD/S AFFECTED:

ALL

REPORT OF:

ACTING

DIRECTOR

CHILDREN’S

SERVICES
RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO

COUNCILLOR SHEILA CLARKE

HOLDER:
KEY DECISION?

YES

1.0

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1

This report describes Wirral’s contribution to the implementation of the
Government’s Troubled Families Policy. The report includes a project proposal
(Appendix A) for approval which will be titled Wirral Intensive Family Intervention
Programme. Cabinet, are asked to approve the recommendations as outlined in
Section 12. The Wirral Intensive Family Intervention (IFIP) will promote the
Council’s Corporate Goals.
The programme will support families hoping to move from high levels of need whereby they require high cost interventions and support- to a position where they
are self organising and accessing universal services. Savings will be made (but not
immediately) and may well be evidenced in reducing pressures on intensive
resources. The programme is a government priority and it supports the intentions of
the Council Corporate Plan.

1.2

The report is not exempt.

2.0

BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES

2.1

The Troubled Families policy (Community Budgets) was introduced by the
government as an initiative to deal with the challenges presented by families with
complex needs. Building on the Total Place model, it involves a number of agencies
working together to identify needs and appropriate interventions. Central to this
approach is the need for families to have one worker who will work with the agencies
involved with the family and ensure that the interventions are appropriate and the
family is involved in the planning process. In the summer of 2011 Wirral indicated
that it was willing to be involved in phase two of the Community Budgets initiative.

2.2

Following the riots in the summer of 2011, the Government indicated that there were
too many families with complex and multiple needs, with children at risk of, or
actually involved in, anti social behaviour, not engaged with the system. The
Government has set a target to move 120,000 families from high levels of need to a

Page 57

point where parents are work ready, the children are in education employment or
training and there is a reduction in anti social behaviour. To drive this policy the
Troubled Families Unit was set up in the Department of Communities and Local
Government (DCLG) and Louise Casey was appointed as Director General of the
Troubled Families Unit. The estimated number of “Troubled Families” on Wirral is
900. The government has established that the following are key indicators for
involvement in the programme:
§
§
§
2.3

Family member/s involved in anti social behaviour
Intergenerational unemployment
Poor school attendance/ school exclusions

The Troubled Families Unit have identified more families than originally envisaged
with the community Budgets programme. Whilst councils are able to carry on with a
Community Budgets approach they are being encouraged to prioritise the
programme to provide intensive and targeted support to families with complex and
multiple needs. Following a visit from the Director General of the Troubled Families
Unit, Wirral has indicated that it will be part of the national programme to work with
families identified as having complex and multiple needs. It is intended that the
approach will be to upscale the work from one locality, with agencies sharing
resources, to one which will be Wirral wide.

2.4 This will be a challenging programme and will rely heavily on support from across
the Council and partners to meet the requirements of the programme. The family
intervention will focus on the whole family, supported by a key worker. This is a
change in service provision (see Appendix A) moving from the current situation
whereby family members receive specific responses to individual issues to one with
the family and key worker devising a family centred plan with appropriate
interventions being considered against family needs.
2.5 Families will receive intensive support negotiated by a key worker. This approach is
already employed in the current Family Intervention programmes commissioned for
Wirral by the Early Intervention Grant (EIG). There is additional intervention
programmes commissioned via the EIG and it is envisaged that these will become
part of the IFIP programme. The actual amount spent on complementary services is
identified in Appendix A as £3,717,783
2.6

The families engaged in this programme will have significant needs that will impact
on a number of service providers. Multi agency secondments or partnership
agreements will be needed to ensure a coordinated approach to dealing with the
cross agency issues presented by the families. One council department cannot meet
all the requirements of the programme and the involvement of other departments,
external partners (including the Voluntary Community and Faith Sector) at strategic
and operational level is essential if the expected outcomes are to be met. A key area
for agreement will be the secondment of staff from council departments, external
partners and the Voluntary Community and Faith Sector.

2.7 There will be £100,000 available from the Troubled Families Unit to fund a post of
Intensive Family Intervention Programme Co-ordinator. This is a senior post and will
work across the Wirral Partnership to ensure there is multi-agency involvement
resulting in performance measures being met. The post will report to the Troubled

Page 58

Families Unit and to the Programme Champion, the Acting Deputy Director CYPD
(Children’s Social Care).
2.8

The rationale behind this programme is not new; it is rooted in the Family
Intervention Programmes developed over a number of years. Meeting the expected
outcomes and timescales will depend on organisations working differently and
working together. Key workers and other programme staff will have to be flexible in
their approach and be prepared to work across professional boundaries. Additional
funding is being made available to assist with the initiation of the programme. It is
expected that partners will align resources such as staff to implement the
programme. The government announced in December 2011 that there would be
£480m over three years to help finance the programme. Guidance on the amount
and the regulations affecting the funding has yet to be released. It is anticipated that
between £3,500 and £4,000 will be made available as attachment funding for each
family (approximately 50% will made available at the start of the programme). It is
expected that 300 families will be included in the scheme each year and that the
remaining 50% funding will be paid on a Payment by results basis.

2.9

It is intended to start the programme in April 2012. There are a number of tasks to
be completed by then, including:
§
§
§
§
§
§
§
§

Identification of families
Agree the Vision for Intensive Family Intervention Programme
Finalise Project Plan
Agree Governance arrangements
Identify and secure the support of partner agencies
Secure cross council support
Appointment a Co-ordinator
Hold Readiness assessment workshop

2.10 Interface Associates have been commissioned by the Government to provide support
to councils. Part of this support includes a Readiness Assessment Workshop; this
will help identify strengths and also areas for additional work. Two workshops will be
held, one for elected members and chief officers and one for the staff and partners
who will be involved in the delivery of the programme.
3.0

RELEVANT RISKS

3.1

If no work is undertaken with families who meet the criteria for involvement in the
programme, high cost interventions will continue to be required. The negative impact
on outcomes for children and young people in these challenging circumstances will
be significant and may lead to further high cost interventions in the future.

3.2

This programme seeks to engage with families known to a number of agencies; the
success of this programme will rely on the tangible support of Council departments
and partner agencies including the Voluntary Community and Faith Sector.

4.0

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

4.1

There is no other option to engaging with this number of families as part of a
planned intervention Wirral wide.

Page 59

5.0

CONSULTATION

5.1

Partner agencies have been briefed through the Children’s Trust Board. It is
intended to consult with providers at the next Early Intervention Grant
Commissioned Providers Forum.

6.0

IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS

6.1

The delivery of this programme will require the involvement of a number of agencies
including the Voluntary Community and Faith Sector.

7.0

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS

7.1

The programme will utilise existing staff and existing resources. There is additional
funding of £100,000 to appoint a coordinator for three years. In addition there is a
government grant of between £3,500 and £4,000 per family (ie £1m to £1.2 m per
year over 3 years.

8.0

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

8.1

Data sharing which will be covered by the Children’s Trust data sharing protocol.

9.0

EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

9.1

Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to equality?
(a) Yes and impact review will be published on the web site, hyperlink below.
http://www.wirral.gov.uk/my-services/community-and-living/equality-diversitycohesion/equality-impact-assessments/eias-2010/children-young-people

10.0

CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS

10.1

There are none.

11.0

PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS

11.1

No.

12.0

RECOMMENDATION/S

12.1

That Cabinet approves the business case as outlined in Appendix A.
Cabinet approves the appointment of a programme Co-ordinator and refers this to
the Employment and Appointments Committee.
Cabinet requests a further report outlining the cross departmental implications in
implementing this programme.

13.0

REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

Page 60

13.1

To enable the necessary discussion to take place with partners to secure support to
implement the programme.

REPORT AUTHOR:

Maureen McDaid
Principal Manager (Commissioning/Participation)
telephone: (0151) 666-4508
email: maureenmcdaid@wirral.gov.uk

APPENDICES
Appendix A Project Proposal _Intensive Family Intervention Programme
REFERENCE MATERIAL
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting

Date

Page 61

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 62

Appendix A
WIRRAL COUNCIL
CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE’S DEPARTMENT
FEBRUARY 20/02/12
PROJECT INITIATION DOCUMENT
PROJECT TITLE: Intensive Families Intervention Programme

SUMMARY
1.1.

This document expands the Outline Business Case provided earlier, into a
full delivery plan for this project and is submitted for approval.

1.2.

The appendix describes the project resource requirements, timings and
benefits. The appointed Project Manager will be responsible for delivery and
reporting of the project.

2.

PROJECT SUMMARY

2.1.

Working with a number of agencies, develop an Intensive Support
Programme to support families with multiple and complex needs. This
programme will be Wirral’s response to the Government’s policy to work with
troubled families and help them move from high levels of need to one
whereby they are self organised and require limited support. This approach
will involve agencies working together to provide targeted support which is
personalised to the needs of the family and negotiated by a key worker. As
the families progress down the spectrum of need other agencies and key
members of the community will be involved to support the families engage
with the wider community and accessing universal services.

2.2.

The programme will be delivered through an interagency approach involving
colleagues from Children’s Services, Social landlords, Police, Probation, Job
Centre Plus, Voluntary and Community and Faith Sector and Health. The
intention is to trial this approach in one locality with families who meet the
criteria for support and in the course of 2012-13 up scale the work to operate
Wirral wide. The project will start with a baseline of needs and there will be
an evaluation to establish the impact of this approach on reducing the level
of needs as listed in the objectives.

Page 63

APPENDIX A
PROJECT INITIATION DOCUMENT
GENERAL INFORMATION
Project Name

Wirral Intensive family Intervention Programme (Community
Budgets)

PID submitted by

Maureen Mc Daid

Phone number

666-4508

Email address

maureenmcdaid@wirral.gov.uk

Project Description

In an agreed locality, working with other agencies, develop an
intensive targeted approach to support families with complex and
multiple needs to reduce their level of need. This will be delivered
through an interagency approach involving colleagues from
Children’s Services, Department of Adult Social Services (DASS),
Social landlords, Police, Job Centre Plus, Voluntary and
Community Sector and Health.
Addressing a broad range of issues including eviction, antisocial
behaviour or non schools attendance, this work will meet the
needs of partner agencies. The work with families with complex
and multiple needs seeks to move families down the spectrum of
need to a stage whereby the demand for more intensive support is
reduced. This outcome will be achieved through the planned
consistent response to the diverse needs of identified families.
This should contribute to fewer pressures on existing budgets. The
work will involve a Key Worker approach which should result in the
family having one person overseeing the interventions and
ensuring that they are being provided as agreed with both the
family and professionals.

Date OBC approved
Significant
Implications

This project will result in agencies having to be more flexible in
their approach to address the needs of families engaged in the
project. Organisations will have to agree to the following:
•

Sharing information across partners

•

Flexible working at times best suited to the families

•

Work in different settings

•

Key worker approach to manage agreed interventions

•

Staff will at times be operating out of their comfort zone

•

Needs of service users setting priorities and targets

•

Potential changes to job descriptions

BUSINESS CASE (Brief outline of why the project should be undertaken as per the
approved OBC)
It is proposed to provide planned intensive personalised support to families who have
complex and multiple needs. Families in these settings draw on a number of budgets
including Social Care, Health, Early Intervention Grant, Police and Integrated Youth Support
it is intended that by supporting families and reducing the level of need this will result in long

Page 64

term and sustainable savings to the council and partner agencies.
By using a Key Worker the interventions will be negotiated with both families and agencies
to ensure they are appropriate and provided as agreed with the families. This approach will
be trialled in one locality, the results of the quantitative and qualitative evaluation will be
used to identify how best to role out this approach on a Wirral wide basis.
The rationale underpinning this decision is that this work will require people to work
differently and alongside new partners. Seacombe meets the indicators of need but has not
previously been included in other workforce initiatives. To some extent, this provides a
“blank landscape” on which to develop operational responses to the challenges presented
while at the same time building on intelligence gained from other workforce development and
family support initiatives.
The approach is not new and has been used in the family Intervention Projects. It changed
the way in which organisations work with families. Currently, family members receive issue
specific responses to issue specific problems. The problems are dealt with in isolation. This
programme uses a key worker to work with the family to develop a Family Centred Plan and
work with the organisations to have negotiated co-ordinated interventions. The aim is to
move from families being dysfunctional and disengaged to a situation whereby the families
are self organising and managing their issues.
The change in service is shown in the diagrams below.
Current situation

DAAT

ESW

Parent/
Carer

Child

Page 65

YOS

Parent/
Carer

Child

Moving To:

DAAT

Social
Landlord

Police

Credit
Union

Review
Keyworker
Family Centred Plan

Parent/
Carer

Needs Assessment

Child

Parent/
Carer

Child

BACKGROUND
With the development of the Children’s Trust and the implementation of integrated working
much has been achieved for families who require support ranging from universal to intensive
targeted interventions. There is better intelligence about the problems families are facing and
this has been used to provide interventions that are appropriate. A recent example of this
has been the use of the Early Intervention Grant to commission services for children, young
people and families.
This programme will build on progress to date in respect of parenting and family support.
We know that there are families in need of support and the work so far has included Health,
Social Care, the Voluntary Community and faith Sector, the Schools and Health Visitors.
There are still some agencies working with vulnerable families but not within the context on
the current model of integrated working. If families with multiple needs require support all
agencies involved need to be at the table to participate in multi agency planning. This is
building on the current strong partnership working on Wirral and this proposal will further
develop that approach to effectively support families in need.
Scene Setting

On Wirral we have families who exist on a spectrum of need. This
means that at one end of the spectrum, families are fairly resilient
and self managing, able to function independently they may at
times access universal services such as education and healthcare.
Families in this context co-exist with other families in their
communities.
There are other families which require slightly more support to be
able to access universal services and these families may have
additional needs that will necessitate a more targeted intervention
to ensure their needs are met.
There are families who as a result of their involvement in crime,
anti-social behaviour or drug and or alcohol misuse may pose a

Page 66

serious threat to themselves or harm to others around them.
Families in this situation are at risk of breakdown and need a more
intensive, co-ordinated intervention.
There are also a number of families that have multiple needs, or
families who are dysfunctional and where the children are on the
edge of care and at times the children of these families have
already come into the care of the local authority.
In addition to this there are families that have experienced an
intergenerational cycle of deprivation. Families in these settings
include members with low aspirations, low educational attainment
and low skilled or no employment. In this setting children are more
vulnerable and at risk of harm, teenage pregnancy, anti social
behaviour, repeat homelessness and offending.
While there has been a considerable development in integrated
working there is still more to be done to improve the outcomes for
families in these settings. We have on Wirral families at each stage
of the spectrum and we are able to identify the numbers of families
currently receiving support and interventions both targeted and
universal. We will be aligning resources, including staff, from a
number of partners to put appropriate and co-ordinated strategies
in place to help families reduce their level of need. This project will
work to assist families to change their behaviours, ensure they are
in secure housing and move to a point whereby they have the
ability to act for themselves and other family members.
It is important that there is a consistent understanding of the
challenges inherent in this approach. It is essential that colleagues
fully understand the challenges and how they can be managed.
Therefore it is proposed that this project will, using agreed criteria,
identify the families in Wirral that are judged across the spectrum
as having complex and high levels of need. The project will
operate in a specific area within Wirral and the families with
complex and multiple needs in that locality will be targeted for
support through the programme.
The programme will be evaluated to identify the impact of such an
approach. The lessons learnt can then be applied on a Wirral wide
basis.
Grant funding of £100,000 pa has been made available to fund a
Programme Leader and other set up costs. The Programme
Leader will be a senior officer who will act as the main operational
lead for this programme. The Programme Leader will be
accountable to the Acting Deputy Director (Social Care) in CYPD
and will report to the Troubled Families Unit.
Related Projects

Currently there are a number of related projects that would support
this programme including:
Project

Amount

ESF Families with complex
difficulties

No money available –
partnership working

ESF family worklessness

No money available –

Page 67

programme

partnership working

EIG funded Intensive
Family Intervention
Programmes

£350,250

Parenting and Family
Support Programmes

£877,356

Short Breaks for Disabled
Children

£1,462,700

EIG funded YISP

£403,512

EIG funded Risk taking
Behaviour in Children and
Young People
Programmes.

£186,865

Multi-systemic therapy

£93,300

Family Nurse Partnership

£312,500

Payment By Results
(Children’s Centres)

£31,300

Child Poverty Strategy

Priorities underpinning the
programme

Total Amount per annum

£3,717,783

PROJECT DEFINITION
Objectives

The project is aimed to bring about the following key objectives:•

Sustaining children and young people in education and
employment.

•

Sustaining parents into employment.

•

Reducing the risk of eviction and homelessness and
supporting people to sustain their tenancies

•

Reducing anti-social behaviour (parents & children & young
people)

•

Better debt management and access to appropriate
benefits

Page 68

•

Reduce the numbers of families living in poverty

•

Addressing alcohol, drug and mental health problems

•

Reducing the levels of crime and re-offending

• Reducing the levels of repeat victimisation eg domestic
• Reduce the number of Looked After Children and the
number of children going into high cost care
Approach

The aim of the Intensive Family Intervention Programme is to work
with partners to improve outcomes for families who meet the
referral criteria. It is anticipated that the families engaged will be
known to at least three other agencies and will have a range of
needs to be addressed. This work will also serve as a foundation
for subsequent work with the recently established Troubled
Families Unit
The approach will be to:
•

Undertake a mapping exercise to identify the numbers of
families across Wirral who are regarded as having complex
needs.

•

This data will be sense checked to ensure it is robust and
not duplicating families.

•

The project will have a multi-agency focus group of
strategic officers who will provide the strategic direction for
the programme.

•

At a local level, agencies will working across current
structures, identify and engage with families identified as
being in need of support.

•

Families will be engaged in the project and will be directly
supported by a key worker. The key worker will work with
other professionals and the family to identify the issues and
agreed strategies and agreed outcomes. The programme
will have the needs of families at the heart of all decision
making.

It is expected that the agencies involved will include the following:
•

Children and Young people’s Department

•

Wirral Council – Community Safety Team

•

Department of Adult Social Services

•

Social Landlords

•

Job Centre Plus

•

GPs

•

Police

•

Health

•

Voluntary Community and Faith Sector

•

Schools

Page 69

•

Probation

•

Wirral council Regeneration Department

The agencies involved will identify staff that will operate at local
level.
Leadership
Strategic advice will be provided from the strategic steering group
which will be able to identify as required, additional resources to
support the programme. This group will be chaired by the Acting
Deputy Director – Children’s Social Care
Milestones will be identified to underpin the project but also to
steer the work with individual families.
Governance will be through the Children’s Trust with operational
accountability provided through the Children’s Trust Executive.
In scope

Families that have been identified using the following criteria (900
over three years)
•

Families with children with attendance levels below 85%

•

Families long term unemployed

•

Families involved in anti –social behaviour

Out of scope

Families with low levels of need.

Assumptions

This is a high profile national policy and there is an assumption
that this will be supported at the highest political level with the
council. In addition, support will have to be secured at the highest
level from partner organisations.
It is recognised that most challenging but essential element of the
project is at middle manager level and this is understandable as
the managers are working to a number of priorities. There is an
assumption that briefings will take place with middle managers in
all involved agencies to ensure they understand the imperatives
underpinning this approach and secure their support for the
project.

Constraints

In addition to the £100,000 for a Programme Leader, funding is
available from the Troubled families Unit and when this is finalised
will meet some of the some of the programme costs. This project is
heavily reliant on staff support from partners. The focus is on
operating within existing resources. The key task will be to
implement the necessary cultural changes to ensure the necessary
changes to working styles and patterns are achieved. As the newly
formed Troubled Families Unit establishes its requirements these
may generate constraints currently not in scope.

PROJECT CONTROL
The Programme Leader of the Intensive Family Intervention Programme, is responsible for
project control including aspects such as Risk Logs, Issues Logs, Project variation requests,

Page 70

Project Plans, Project Status Reports and financial aspects.
Any additional controls or variance from the standard controls should be detailed below:The project management group will be chaired by the Acting Director (Children’s Social
Care) and the performance/ monitoring will be reported to the Children’s Trust Executive and
the Children’s Trust Board.
PROJECT ORGANISATION AND STRUCTURE
Role

Name TBC

Phone

Project Sponsor

Julia Hassall

Project Manager (interim)

Maureen Mc Daid

666-4508

Role/Team Member

Janice Monty

666-4496

Role/Team Member [describe]

Peter Wong

Etc

Lynn Elton
Police
Job Centre Plus
Children’s Centre Staff (as
appropriate)

More organisations to be agreed
at DMT

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPACT:
Equality impact
statement date and
implications

The EIA has been completed; It is anticipated there will be positive
impacts as the aim of this project is to improve outcomes for
families, children and young people. 13/02/11

PROJECT PLANS
Timescales

Milestones with indication where these have changed since the
OBC was submitted
1. Vision for Intensive family Support Programme agreed March
2012
2. Business plan developed January- March 2012
3. Identification of families currently being supported by different
agencies January – February 2012
4. Governance arrangements agreed March 2012
5. Partner agencies identified February / March 2012
6. Intensive Family Support Programme for families with Complex
and Multiple Needs runs April 2012- 31 March 2015
7. Appoint Programme Leader April 2012

Page 71

Staff Resources required. [It is presumed that CYPD staff will be allocated as required.
However, if other non-departmental skills are required, these should be summarised here].
Resource 1
Staff from with CYPD
Commissioning
section who will work
on early project
development.

Project Manager January – March 2012 (2days/week for 12
weeks) (£7,000 approx)
Tasks:
• Strategic “Buy in” elected members, strategic managers.
• Establish Strategic Steering Group
•

Development of project plan with milestones.

•

Development of draft vision.

•

Monitoring progress against milestones.

•

Preparation of progress reports and reporting to steering
group as required.

Project Support January- March 2012 (2 days/week for 12
weeks) (£5,000 approx)Tasks:
•

Development of evidence and indicators to identify
impact.

•

Identify members for Operational Group

•

Early development of training / support requirements for
staff.

•

Development of good practice.

•

Monitoring of information.

•

Criteria for identification of Troubled Families.

Project Support March – June 2012 (1day/week for 12
weeks) (£3,000 approx)
Tasks:
•

Analysis of requirements for commissioned services as
result of Community Budget approach.

•

Support for monitoring of returns from Community Budget
programme.

•

Develop Investment protocols

Parenting Co-ordinator ( March – June 2 days / week for 12
weeks. (£4,000 approx)Tasks:
•

Training Staff in Parenting Level 4

•

Raising awareness/ information sharing at practitioner level

•

Marketing at local level.

Total from existing staffing resources:

Page 72

£19,000 – January – March 2012
Resource 2

1st April 2012-31 March 2013 : 4 Key workers and 1 Team
Leader(5x £40,000 = £200,000 from existing resources) and
additional front loaded support from the Troubled Families Unit.

Etc

Additional staff may be required for stage two (April 2012-March
2013) and this will be identified during stage one January – March
2012.

Key decisions

Cabinet Sign Off 15 March 2012

Key communication
requirements

Council wide communication will be through the One Brief system
with additional reports on the website as required. There will also
be reporting through the council wide performance monitoring
arrangements and to Executive Team if required. In addition to this
reports will be presented at each Children’s’ Trust Board and to
Cabinet as identified in the monitoring timeline.
Departmental communication will be to through the Staying safe
strategy Group, to Department Management Team and Branch
Management Team meetings. The CYPD Department
Development days will be used to promote the work of the project
and promote the lessons learnt and implications for CYPD.
Public communication will be through press release, website,
providing progress reports to external bodies.
Other stakeholders:
Area Forum and ward Councillors Communicate via briefing
meeting and progress reports
Communicate with parents via Parenting Groups to identify gaps
and measure impact

COSTS AND BENEFITS
Investment and costs

The premise of this programme is about working differently
with existing resources to produce better outcomes for
families with multiple issues.
Budgetary changes are linked to subsequent delivery models
(which will form part of the business plan) and can not be
determined at this stage.
However there may be some limited and one off additional
expenditure that may be necessary as a result of
implementing new delivery models e.g.:
• Computer software, licenses, hardware
• Training
• Publications etc.
£40,000 is available as support costs which can be used to
buy in additional support to deliver the Readiness
Assessment workshop.
A main thrust of the pilot will be to establish the efficacy of

Page 73

the delivered community budget model in terms of producing
better outcomes, reducing ‘negative costs’ and reducing
delivery costs.
No exact figure exists for what families with multiple issues
cost society, but it is estimated to be at least £75,000 per
year for such families and in some cases rising to several
hundred of thousands of pounds. Families have yet to be
identified and therefore it is not possible to provide a more
local estimate. The government estimates that Wirral has 900
families who would meet the referral category. Using the
£75,000 figure it can be suggested that 900 families with
multiple issues cost Wirral upwards of £60million per year.
These costs will be a combination of universal services,
targeted support and high level interventions. It should be
recognised at this time that the majority of financial
efficiencies are likely to be a reduction in ‘negative costs’
rather than cash releasing efficiencies.

Financial effects

This year

This year + 1

This year + 2

Anticipated Cost
reduction (£m)

TBD

TBD

TBD

Anticipated Revenue
Budget Saving (£m)

TBD

TBD

TBD

Other benefits

A community budget approach is fundamentally aimed at better
outcomes for families with multiple problems. There will be benefits
regarding integrated and partnership working. Work will be piloted
and then mainstreamed. Underpinning this will be clear output and
outcome measures.

KEY RISKS AND ISSUES
Key Risks

Lack of support from the external partners
Lack of support from middle managers
Families may not engage with the programme
Performance measures will not accurately report on impact of CB
approach.

ICT issues

Specific software may be required to help with data analysis and
reporting requirements.

Staffing issues

Partnership agreements may be required to address working with
staff from external agencies.
HR support will be necessary to assist with issues that will arise
from the need for staff to work flexibly and in different settings

Legal issues

Legal issues may be linked to resolving HR issues as a result of
potential changes to job descriptions.

Asset Management/
accommodation

The project will be operational from a Children’s Centre however
space may be required to ensure staff have facilities to meet with

Page 74

partners and families. There may be scope to use the facilities of
partner organisations.
Space will be necessary for meetings
Initial issues
Investment Agreements from partners
HR job descriptions
Meeting rooms
Key Worker role
Support available from partners including the Council.

APPROVAL
I, the proposer certify the above as an accurate
statement of the key elements of this project.
This project is endorsed by DMT
Financial implications verified by Head of
Finance
If approved, who will be the Project Manager?

Date:

22/02/2012

Date:

22/02/2012

Date:

22/02/2012

Name
Email
Phone

Page 75

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 76

Agenda Item 10
WIRRAL COUNCIL
CABINET
15TH MARCH 2012
SUBJECT:

EARLY INTERVENTION GRANT (EIG) –
COMMISSIONING PLAN AND
ARRANGEMENTS FOR 2012/2013

WARD/S AFFECTED:

ALL

REPORT OF:

ACTING DIRECTOR OF CHILDREN’S
SERVICES

RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO

COUNCILLOR SHEILA CLARKE

HOLDER:
KEY DECISION?

YES

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.1 This report outlines the Early Intervention Grant (EIG) Commissioning Plan for
2012-13 and makes recommendations for securing the delivery of services for
a 9 months period from 1st July 2012 – 31st March 2013 through negotiating
with existing providers. Cabinet is asked to approve the recommendations in
Section 12.
1.2 There are no exemptions in this report.
2.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES
EIG was introduced in 2011-12. The grant is intended to provide a focus on
early intervention in the early years in the age range 0 - 19 this can include
universal programmes and activities available to all children, young people and
families, as well as specialist services where intensive support is needed.
The total grant for 2012-13 will be £15.7m. Of this sum £2.8m (including £0.3m
from partners) has been commissioned to deliver intervention services in the
following priority areas:
•
•
•

Priority Area 1 - Parenting/reducing compromised Parenting.
Priority Area 2 - Children and Young People with Disabilities.
Priority Area 3 - Risk Taking behaviour in Children, Young People and
Families

2.1 These priority areas directly contribute to the delivery of the Corporate Plan and
the Children and Young Peoples Departmental Plan (2012/2013), as follows:

Page 77

•
•
•

Provide early intervention and support for vulnerable children and families.
Ensure Children and young people have opportunities to participate in
activities which help them achieve their potential:
Improve the health and wellbeing of children and young people, maintaining
a clear focus on tackling health inequalities.

and are delivered within the following principles:
•
•
•
•

Early intervention: to intervene to stop the problem developing.
Early prevention: acting proactively to ensure that problems do not arise in
the first place.
Early identification: identifying problems early or identifying the risk of
problems early.
Personalisation: the provision of greater personalised support.

2.2 Intervention services are intended to be prompt, appropriate, effective and
planned with the family and child. Planning is based on the principle of Early
Intervention and Prevention. A key outcome is that services should work
together with shared priorities to ensure there is no duplication or gaps.
Providers have a duty to engage with Common Assessment Framework / Team
Around the Child processes to ensure better outcomes.
2.3 Following a comprehensive tendering process last year Cabinet approved (2nd
June 2011) a range of providers to deliver 39 different services. This has
resulted in more activity and better targeting of services to vulnerable children,
young people and families than was previously provided. The majority of the
services are delivered by the voluntary, community and faith sector. .
2.4 The current services are operating with contracts or service level agreements
that run up to 30th June 2012. Aligning this commissioning round with other
contracts that start 1st April 2013 e.g. Public Health and other Children and
Young Peoples Department programmes, would provide further opportunities
for joint working, improved outcomes and more cost effective contracts.
2.5 It is recommended that the Council seek to implement the 2012/2013
commissioning plan by using/varying existing contracts. It is anticipated that a
full open procurement process for services for this aspect of the EIG from 2013
onwards will be initiated during the latter half of 2012.
3.0 RELEVANT RISKS
3.1 Changes in commissioning levels and services have been considered as part of
reviewing priorities and developing the 2012/2013 Commissioning Plan. These
services directly contribute to a number of goals within the Corporate Plan – in
particular Community Budgets.
3.2 Commissioners will work closely with providers to ensure continuity of support
and to facilitate effective and smooth adjustment to services and service
delivery.

Page 78

3.3 These services represent a significant investment in early intervention and
preventative services, to decommission them would have some impact of
demand for more intensive and expensive interventions.
3.4 Priority Area 3 specifically relates to Short Breaks for Disabled Children and is
integral to the services mentioned in the Statutory Short Breaks for Disabled
Children Statement.
3.5 These services are delivered by a wide range of local voluntary, community and
faith sector organisations working with very vulnerable local children, young
people and families.
4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED
4.1 Without earlier confirmation of budgets it has not been possible to initiate an
open procurement process that would be completed in time for new contracts
from 1st July 2012.
5.0 CONSULTATION
5.1 The 2011/2012 priority themes were discussed and agreed by the Wirral
Childrens Trust Board. Services users, young people and parents/carers were
consulted as part of focus groups to help finalise the service specifications and
the aspects of the tender evaluation.
Similarly young people and
parents/carers were fully involved in all aspects of the original evaluation
process, including the recommendations.
6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS
6.1 These services are delivered by a wide range of local voluntary, community and
faith sector organisations working with very vulnerable local children, young
people and families.
7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS
7.1 This report identifies recommendations for continued commissioning using the
existing Early Intervention Grant programmes. No additional funding is being
sought. There are no staffing, IT or asset issues for Wirral Council. Cabinet
should note that in PA1.1, PA1.2.4.A, PA1.2.5 and PA1.2.6 includes a funding
contribution of £150,000 from Wirral NHS and is dependent on Board sign off
after this meeting. PA.1.2.2 includes funding of £30,000 and additional
resources in kind from Wirral Partnership Homes which is expected to be
confirmed for2012-13.
8.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
8.1 None identified.

9.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS
9.1 The priority areas and service areas have been based upon review of local
need and identifying suitable evidenced based interventions. Significantly a

Page 79

specific focus of the Early Intervention Grant on Wirral is to target vulnerable
and at risk children, young people and families’ e.g. young carers, black and
minority ethnic families and victims of domestic violence. Equality was
specifically identified as part of the evaluation of all tenders.
9.2 Equality Impact Assessment (EIA)
(a) Is an EIA required?
(b) If ‘yes’, has one been completed?

Yes
Yes (20/2/12)

The review will be published on the web site, hyperlink below.
http://www.wirral.gov.uk/my-services/community-and-living/equality-diversitycohesion/equality-impact-assessments/eias-2010/children-young-people
10.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS
10.1 None identified.
11.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS
11.1 None identified.
12.0 RECOMMENDATIONS
12.1 Council officers make necessary arrangements to extend, and, where
necessary, amend contracts with effect 1st July 2012 to 31st March 2013.
Council officers continue to monitor contract performance and negotiate
accordingly.

13.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION/S
13.1 The priorities and services have been based on detailed needs analysis and
consideration of evidenced based delivery. The recommendations deliver a full
range of services to support the vision of the Early Intervention Grant.
13.2 The services were secured via an open competitive process less than 12
months ago. To undertake a full open procurement process for 9 month
contracts would require considerable lead-in time and resources and would not
represent value for money.

REPORT AUTHORS: Maureen McDaid
EIG Commissioning Lead
telephone: (0151) 666 4508
email: maureenmcdaid@wirral.gov.uk
Peter Wong
Commissioning Business Manager
Telephone: (0151) 666 4922
Email: peterwong@wirral.gov.uk

Page 80

APPENDICES
REFERENCE MATERIAL
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting

Date

Cabinet

6/2/11

Cabinet

2/6/11

Page 81

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 82

Agenda Item 11
WIRRAL COUNCIL
CABINET
15TH MARCH 2012
SUBJECT:

VEHICLE PROCUREMENT

WARD/S AFFECTED:

ALL

REPORT OF:

ACTING

DIRECTOR

OF

CHILDREN’S

SERVICES
RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO

COUNCILLOR SHEILA CLARKE

HOLDER:
KEY DECISION?

NO

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.1 This report provides information regarding the potential purchase of 11 vehicles for the
Council and an update on the provision of a vehicle to Wirral Food Bank. The vehicles
will be purchased through the Council’s procurement system to ensure value for
money. It is proposed that the vehicles will be purchased from a capital fund for
vehicle purchase held by the Integrated Transport Unit.

2.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES
2.1 The Integrated Transport Unit (ITU) supports the provision and maintenance of
vehicles for the council. For an effective and efficient operation vehicles are cyclically
replaced. Replacement vehicles are funded from a reserve held by the ITU for this
purpose or through alternative financing arrangements.
2.2 Vehicle requirement for Community Patrol is:
1 x Long Wheel Base van
3 x small vans
3 medium size cars
Vehicle requirement for Pest Control is:
3 small vans
1 Medium Wheelbase van
2.3 The council’s procurement system will be utilised for the procurement of these
vehicles. Generic specifications for the required vehicle types will be provided for
procurement and requirements for fuel efficiency, availability of parts and appropriate
delivery times will be included in the procurement process.
2.4 The capital funding held by the ITU available is £160,000.
2.5 On purchase vehicles are maintained by the ITU and Departments charged
accordingly.

Page 83

2.6 The Council has provided Wirral Foodbank with a transit van to support them to
provide emergency food to Wirral residents in crisis. The van was loaned to the
Foodbank in mid November 2011 at no charge to the organisation and the vehicle will
be maintained by the Council. A service level agreement is in place between Wirral
Council and Wirral Foodbank to ensure that the vehicle is correctly taxed and insured
and that repairs and maintenance are addressed appropriately.

3.0 RELEVANT RISKS
3.1 None related to this report.

4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED
4.1 Not to replace the vehicles.

5.0 CONSULTATION
5.1 Not relevant.

6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS
6.1 None arising from this report.

7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS
7.1 There are sufficient resources to fund the purchase of these vehicles from a reserve
held by the ITU totalling £160,000. Maintenance and operating costs will be met
through existing budgets.

8.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
8.1 None arising from this report.

9.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS
9.1 Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to equality?
(b) No because there is no relevance to equality.
10.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS
10.1 The specifications for the vehicles will contain reference to fuel efficiency.

11.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS
11.1 None

Page 84

12.0 RECOMMENDATION/S
12.1 Cabinet agrees to the inclusion of £160,000 within the CYPD capital programme for
the purchase of the required vehicle replacements for community patrol and pest
control.

13.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S
13.1 To replace vehicles evaluated to require replacement.

REPORT AUTHOR:

Nancy Clarkson
Strategic Service Manager Infrastructure
telephone: (0151) 6664329
email: nancyclarkson@wirral.gov.uk

APPENDICES
REFERENCE MATERIAL
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting

Date

Page 85

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 86

Agenda Item 12

WIRRAL COUNCIL
CABINET
15 MARCH 2012
SUBJECT:

NORTH WEST LIBRARY BOOK
PURCHASING CONSORTIUM:
CONTRACT EXTENSION

WARD/S AFFECTED

ALL

REPORT OF:

DIRECTOR OF FINANCE

RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO
HOLDER:

COUNCILLOR LESLEY RENNIE

KEY DECISION:

NO

1.0

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1

This report details the decision of the North West Libraries Consortium of
which Wirral is a member to extend a purchasing contract for a period of 12
months up to 31 March 2013.

2.0

BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES

2.1

Wirral has been a member of the North West Libraries Consortium for a
number of years. There are 20 local authorities in the Consortium which is led
by Stockport MBC. There is also a Yorkshire Consortium made up of a
number of Library services. The main purpose is by working as a much larger
purchaser than any individual service the Consortium is able to achieve
economies of scale when tendering for purchasing contracts and
subscriptions with suppliers which an individual local authority could not
achieve.

2.2

The Consortium offers a joint book purchasing contract, framework
agreements for periodicals and magazines, the E-Books service supplied by
OverDrive, and the Smart SM software system. There are also a number of
on line resource agreements including Oxford University Press News and
Who Else Writes Like service.

2.3

The current contract was awarded for three years from 1 April 2009 to 31
March 2012 and was won by Bertrams a leading supplier to Libraries.
Between the North West and Yorkshire there are 33 local authorities using
this service and the Consortia have agreed to extend the contract for one year
to 31 March 2013. The service is expected to go out to tender during 2012
with an award in late 2012 with the new contract in place for 1 April 2013.

Page 87

2.4

The Wirral book budget is £509,000 of which £400,000 will be spent through
this contract. The suppliers have a sophisticated system, Smart SM, which
assists staff in ordering books taking account of other local authorities
preferences and purchases as well as our own previous purchases.

3.0

RELEVANT RISKS

3.1

Without this contract Wirral would have to renegotiate a contract individually
and pay more for books as well as staff having to spend more time deciding
on and administering the purchases.

4.0

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

4.1

The option would be to purchase in a stand alone capacity as a single
Authority which brings cost and resource issues as outlined above.

5.0

CONSULTATION

5.1

None specific are required of this matter.

6.0

IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS

6.1

There are none arising directly from this.

7.0

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS; FINANCIAL, IT, STAFFING & ASSETS

7.1

Financial – The book budget for Wirral is £509,000. Remaining in the
Consortium minimises both the costs of administration and the payments to
suppliers by gaining a significant discount which could not be negotiated for
Wirral alone.

7.2

IT – None arising from this report.

7.3.

Staffing – None arising from this report.

7.4.

Assets – None arising from this report.

8.0

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

8.1

There are none arising directly from this report.

9.0

EQUALITY IMPLICATIONS

9.1

There are no specific equality implications arising from this report.

9.2.

An Equality Impact Assessment for the service has been completed as part of
the recent Customer Access & Library Strategy development, the link is;
http://www.wirral.gov.uk/my-services/community-and-living/equality-diversitycohesion/equality-impact-assessments/eias-2010/finance

10.0

CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS

10.1

There are none arising directly from this report.

Page 88

11.0

PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS

11.1

There are none arising directly from this report.

12.0

RECOMMENDATION

12.1 That Members agree the extension of the contract.
13.0

REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION

13.1

To inform Members of the extension of the contract and the reason for it.

REPORT AUTHOR:

Malcolm Flanagan
Head of Revenues, Benefits and Customer Services
Telephone: (0151 666 3260)
email: malcolmflanagan@wirral.gov.uk

SUBJECT HISTORY (last three years)
Council Meeting

Date

Page 89

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 90

Agenda Item 13
WIRRAL COUNCIL
CABINET
15 MARCH 2012

SUBJECT:

PARKS

&

COUNTRYSIDE

SERVICES

MODERNISATION PROJECT – PURCHASE
OF

SECOND-HAND

VEHICLES

AND

EQUIPMENT
WARD/S AFFECTED:

ALL

REPORT OF:

DIRECTOR OF TECHNICAL SERVICES

RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO
HOLDER:
KEY DECISION?

CLLR

LESLEY

RENNIE,

CULTURE

TOURISM & LEISURE

NO

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.1 The purpose of this report is to advise Members of the decision by the Director of
Technical Services in consultation with the Chief Executive to purchase second-hand
vehicles and equipment valued at £54,549 from Continental Landscapes Limited in
accordance with Contract Procedure Rule (CPR) 21 ‘Exceptions to Procurement
Procedure’.
1.2 The reason for procuring these second-hand vehicles and equipment from Continental
Landscapes Limited outside of normal procurement procedures is because it was not
possible to undertake a procurement exercise to purchase this specialist equipment in
time for service commencement by the Council and also because it represented
value-for-money for the Council.

2.0 BACKGROUND
2.1 Following on from the decision by Cabinet on 3rd November 2011 to not award an
external contract for the delivery of parks and countryside services and continue the
direct delivery of these services in-house, on the 24th November 2011 Cabinet were
provided with an update on progress in integrating Highways Grounds Maintenance
Services into the Council for 1st February 2012 when the existing external contract
with Continental Landscapes Ltd expired (Minute 205 refers).
2.2 On 12th January 2012 Cabinet approved the use of £500,000 of the existing Capital
Programme allocation for Cultural Services assets to be used for the acquisition of

Page 91

equipment to deliver the Highways Grounds Maintenance Service from 1st February
2012 (Minute 261 refers). This report advised that it may be necessary for some
specialist equipment to be purchased from the existing contractor subject to
assessment of condition and value.

3.0 REPORT OF DECISION TAKEN UNDER CPR 21 ‘EXCEPTIONS TO
PROCUREMENT PROCEDURE’
3.1 Following a formal assessment of the equipment and vehicles required to deliver the
Highways Grounds Maintenance Service directly (in-house) from 1st February 2012, it
was identified that certain specialist vehicles and equipment would be required. Due to
the specialist nature of this equipment it was identified that it would not be possible to
short-term hire and there would be a long lead-in time to procure brand new
equipment (minimum 12 weeks) meaning that the challenging timescale for service
commencement could not be met by either of these routes.
3.2 At this time the Council was also approached by the existing contractor, Continental
Landscapes Limited, who advised that they owned the specialist equipment and
vehicles used to deliver the service and they would be happy to sell this equipment to
the Council.
3.3 An independent assessment of the used value of the equipment was undertaken by
the Council’s Transport Section (Children & Young Peoples Department) which
confirmed that the equipment was in good condition, there would be a financial saving
to the Council of approximately £100k compared with purchasing new equipment and
overall purchasing this second-hand equipment would represent value-for-money for
the Council.
3.4 Based on a written assessment by the Deputy Director of Technical Services
confirmed with Corporate Procurement, the Director of Technical Services in
consultation with the Chief Executive made the decision to purchase this second-hand
equipment valued at £54,549 in accordance with CPR 21.1.1 (iii) applying to the
procurement of goods and/ or services valued at £50,000 or more:
“Where the procurement is required so urgently that it is not possible to invite tenders
and the time likely to be taken to undertake the necessary procurement process would
(in the opinion of the Responsible Chief Officer) expose the Council to an
unacceptable risk, challenge and/ or reputational harm.”

4.0 RELEVANT RISKS
4.1 The decision to purchase second-hand vehicles and equipment from the existing
contractor helped to address the risk that the Council would be unable to put the
necessary service delivery arrangements in place in terms of human resources,
vehicles, equipment and depot arrangements to deliver the Highway Grounds
Maintenance Service directly (in-house) from 1st February 2012.

Page 92

5.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED
5.1 The alternative option of following procurement procedures as usual would have
resulted in the necessary equipment and vehicles not being available in time for
commencement in service delivery thereby presenting unacceptable risk, challenge
and/ or reputational harm to the Council. The use of used equipment also reduced
the initial cost to the newly integrated service.

6.0 CONSULTATION
6.1 There are no implications under this heading.

7.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS
7.1 There are no implications under this heading.

8.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS
8.1 The cost of the second-hand vehicles and equipment was £54,549 funded from the
Cultural Services Capital Programme.

9.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
9.1 There are no implications under this heading.

10.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS
10.1 Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to equality?
(b) No because there is no relevance to equality.
11.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS
11.1 There are no implications under this heading.

12.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS
12.1 There are no implications under this heading.

13.0 RECOMMENDATION/S
13.1 Cabinet is requested to note the decision by the Director of Technical Services in
consultation with the Chief Executive to purchase second-hand vehicles and
equipment valued at £54,549 from Continental Landscapes Limited in accordance with
Contract Procedure Rule (CPR) 21 ‘Exceptions to Procurement Procedure’.

Page 93

14.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S
14.1 Contract Procedure Rule 21.1.1 (iii) as referred to in section 3.0 of this report.

REPORT AUTHOR:

Mark Smith
Deputy Director
telephone: (0151) 606 2103
email: marksmith@wirral.gov.uk

APPENDICES
None.

REFERENCE MATERIAL
Written assessment by the Deputy Director of Technical Services dated 8th February 2012.

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting

Date

Cabinet – PACSPE Contract Award

22 September 2011

Sustainable

Communities

O&S

Committee

– 20 October 2011

PACSPE Contract Award Call In

Cabinet – PACSPE Contract Award (following Call 3 November 2011
In)

Cabinet

–

Parks

&

Countryside

Services 24 November 2011

Modernisation Project – Integration of Highway
Services and Outline Delivery Plan

Parks

&

Countryside

Services

Modernisation 12 January 2012

Project - Update

Page 94

Agenda Item 14
WIRRAL COUNCIL
CABINET
15TH MARCH 2012
SUBJECT:

HIGHWAYS ASSET MANAGEMENT
STRATEGY INCLUDING THE DRAFT
HIGHWAYS ASSET MANAGEMENT PLAN
(HAMP)

WARD/S AFFECTED:

ALL

REPORT OF:

DIRECTOR OF TECHNICAL SERVICES

RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO

CABINET MEMBER FOR STREETSCENE

HOLDER:

AND TRANSPORT SERVICES

KEY DECISION?

YES

1.0

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1

This report sets out a comprehensive review of the Council’s approach to managing
and maintaining highways and includes the draft Highways Asset Management Plan
(HAMP) for the Council.
The proposed strategy, and the associated draft HAMP, will contribute to the
corporate priorities for ensuring that Wirral has a safe and well-maintained highway
network for all users, and to reduce the running costs of the Council by improving
the efficiency and value for money of Council services.
In the medium term, the development of an asset management approach will bring
about improved investment decision making based on whole life costs for a range of
service level options; and resulting in less reactive maintenance and greater savings
to the authority.
The maintenance of highways is a statutory duty for the Council under the Highways
Act 1980 (as amended).
Cabinet is asked to approve the revised strategy and the draft HAMP.

2.0

BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES
Background

2.1

On 3rd September 2009, Cabinet endorsed the implementation of the Highway Asset
Management Strategy [Minute 92 refers]. At that time government grant funding was
available to assist in delivering the strategy and Members approved its use for that
purpose.

2.2

A core part of the proposed strategy at that time was the procurement of a single
software package as part of a new integrated Asset Management ICT system to
store and manage data, and a procurement exercise was conducted in 2010.

Page 95

Regrettably, the cost of the system proved unaffordable and purchase did not take
place.
2.3

Accordingly, consideration of an alternative approach was required and Section 2.5
of the report sets out an alternative strategy based on utilisation and enhancement
of existing, non-integrated systems.

2.4

There are a number of drivers for continuing to develop a stronger approach to asset
management for highways; which are the Council’s highest value asset, with a gross
replacement cost presently estimated at £1.547 Billion:
•

Reporting the value of highway assets is a requirement of the CIPFA accounting
rules for local authorities who are highway authorities from 2012/13; as part of the
Whole of Government Accounts;

•

Ensuring that the Council has comprehensive, accurate and up-to-date data about
the highways assets, upon which to base its management and maintenance
investment decisions;

•

Delivery of Corporate Plan objectives relating to safe and well maintained highways
and to reduce the running costs of the Council by improving the efficiency and value
for money of Council services;

•

Continuous improvement in meeting the duty to maintain highways, and in managing
customer expectations about levels of service; and

•

Meeting Goal Six of the third Local Transport Plan for Merseyside 2011 - 2015,
“Maintaining our assets to a high standard”.

Highway Asset Management Strategy
2.5

In order to achieve the requirements set out in 2.4 above and taking into account the
constraint that an integrated ICT system is currently unaffordable, the following are
considered necessary:
(a)

Publish a HAMP prepared based on industry guidance and which provides a
continually evolving framework within which to bring together all aspects of
the management and maintenance of Wirral’s highways;
Progress: The draft HAMP is provided in the Appendix. It is a work in
progress, but within it, the additional work required to complete it is identified
to achieve the long term management and service delivery objectives
associated with the assets.

(b)

Maintain and enhance existing asset inventories to ensure that they allow
effective use of data and information about the assets’ condition and
requirements, and provide timely and accurate information to meet asset
valuation requirements;
Progress: The range of existing inventories, for each specialist asset (eg
street lighting, bridges, footways) has been reviewed and the availability,

Page 96

suitability or otherwise to meet all the needs of an asset management
approach, including valuation requirements, has been determined.
(c)

Review of highways management and maintenance policies to ensure
that not only do they continue to meet national guidance but that they reflect
the desired asset management approach;
Progress: Enforcement and Parking policies have been reviewed and reports
to this Cabinet are on the agenda. Highways Maintenance and Streetworks
co-ordination policies will be reviewed during 2012/13.

(d)

Ensure that asset data is reviewed and collected for all changes to the
asset and that where it can be efficiently achieved, collected for all existing
assets. Data shall be collected and stored in such a way that it enables asset
valuation to be carried out in accordance with national guidance and allows
the best possible investment decision making for the asset.
Progress: The Draft HAMP in the Appendix describes the detail relating to
asset data. Comprehensive inventories containing full details of asset
components and condition are already held for assets such as street lighting
and bridges, but much less detail is held for assets such as footways, for
example.
As part of the Council’s drive to ensure information is securely managed,
Technical Services’ Information Systems Strategy identifies Information Asset
Owners (IAO) and all such officers will be provided with additional training to
maintain compliance with corporate standards.

(e)

Process reviews: each specialist asset traditionally has its own processes
and specialist practices, often for good reason (such as that concerned with
electrical competence for lighting equipment), but it is important that they are
reviewed to ensure that they contribute to asset management and in
particular, data collection and investment decision making, to meet the needs
of the draft HAMP. There is also benefit in ensuring that best practice within
one specialist discipline is shared across other asset areas.
Progress: this work will be carried out as part of the development of full
“lifecycle” plans for each asset, as part of the further development of the
draft HAMP during 2012/13.

(f)

Officers from Finance and Technical Services need to develop a process for
Asset Valuation which satisfies the CIPFA guidance for establishing Gross
Replacement Cost and Depreciated Replacement Cost of the highways
assets for annual reporting and contributes to whole life costing of assets.
These two key CIPFA accounting terms are defined in the Draft HAMP
attached in the Appendix.
Progress: the Group leading on the development of the strategy and the draft
HAMP includes the appropriate representative from Finance, and common

Page 97

understanding of the requirements of the CIPFA guidance has already led to
the development of the asset component schedule within the Draft HAMP,
which is consistent with that guidance.
(g)

Similarly, key partners in the delivery of the service must be involved in
developing our approach to asset management, most notably our term
contractor.
Progress: Colas Ltd’s are represented by their Contract Manager on the
group leading the development of the strategy and draft HAMP, and whilst
their most significant experience of asset management has been within the
environment of a large PFI contract for highways management, that
representative has successfully led a change within Wirral’s drainage data
capture and record keeping, using IT solutions, which will improve efficiency
and contribute to improved asset records.

(h)

Whole life costing of highway assets for both asset valuation purposes and
in investment decision making is key to longer term savings and to provide
confidence for the Council in continuing to move towards greater planned
maintenance with less reactive maintenance.
Progress: the development of the draft HAMP during 2012/13, and in
particular the “lifecycle” planning and service level options will contribute to
the change in culture from consideration primarily of the current cost of
maintenance activity. Opportunity will be taken to learn from the experiences
of other authorities that have progressed further in this respect.

(i)

Development of whole-life maintenance strategies and long-term
programmes will build on the above aspects in future years. This will enable
the Council to compare service level options for each asset, with long-term
programmes adjusted to meet changes and the level of funding available.
Investment decisions based on an integrated asset management
approach, allowing officers to analyse and compare maintenance strategies
for diverse asset types, would develop as the Council becomes more
experienced, allowing objective choices to be made between, say, a
programme for replacement lighting and a programme of footway
reconstructions.

(j)

Benchmarking of the Council’s achievements and measurable results
relating to the highway network will continue, with learning in particular from
other authorities’ experiences in benchmarking in an asset management
environment.

(k)

A review of the affordability of an integrated Asset Management system
should be undertaken, compared against the benefits to be gained in the
future. It is considered that the most appropriate timing for such a review is in
parallel with that for the development of the highways service beyond the life
of the current HESPE term maintenance contract, which is due to end in
2014.

Page 98

It is important to note that this development work would also have been required if
an integrated IT system for asset management had been purchased. An integrated
system would make the processes for asset valuation and analysis of options for
whole-life strategies more efficient but would still require the data and process
reviews, and draft HAMP development to be effective.
3.0

RELEVANT RISKS

3.1

Failure to develop the highway asset records will limit the Council’s ability to provide
asset valuation information in accordance with the CIPFA Guidance as part of its
obligation to report on infrastructure assets for Whole of Government Accounts
purposes.

3.2

Failure to develop an asset management approach for highway infrastructure will
limit the opportunities for the Council to benefit from medium and long term savings
arising from whole life costing in maintenance investment decision making.

4.0

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

4.1

Procurement of a commercially available integrated management system was
undertaken as far as tendering, but the cost considerably exceeded budget provision
and was considered at the time to be unaffordable.

5.0

CONSULTATION

5.1

The Council’s term maintenance contractor has been engaged in the Council’s
deliberation of future approaches to managing the highways assets, and are
represented on the group leading on development of the strategy.

5.2

Through the development of the third Local Transport Plan, and in developing
benchmarking relating to the performance of highway assets, officers at the partner
districts on Merseyside have been consulted on the Council’s proposals.

5.3

Prior to seeking approval for the completed draft HAMP, consultation will be carried
out with key stakeholders including officers at Merseytravel, the Merseyside Districts
and the Council’s contractor.

6.0

IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS

6.1

There are no implications arising directly from this report.

7.0

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS

7.1

Financial – the continued development of the draft HAMP, data collection and
management, policy reviews and asset valuation will be managed using existing
revenue and capital resources as appropriate.

7.2

Financial – any future acquisition of an integrated management system is not likely
to be able to be met from existing resources, and a report will be made to Members
in due course advising on the outcome of the review.

7.3

Staffing – a temporary resource is providing support to existing resources in
developing the draft HAMP and the asset management tools and documents, until

Page 99

March 2013. A review of staff resource requirements will be carried out early in
2012/13, to determine whether this resource is sufficient and whether or not
permanent support is required.
7.4

The implications for the highway infrastructure assets are set out comprehensively in
the body of the report and in the accompanying draft HAMP in the Appendix.

8.0

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

8.1

The Council has a statutory duty to maintain highways, as highway authority.

9.0

EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

9.1

Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to equality?
(b)

No because there is no relevance to equality

10.0

CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS

10.1

Continuing to improve the information held on street lighting and illuminated street
furniture will contribute to continuing to monitor and reduce the Council’s energy
usage.

10.2

Information on the Council’s entire highway infrastructure assets will assist in
quantifying the Council’s carbon usage in highway maintenance operations, and in
the medium term future will enable service level and investment decisions to be
taken based on carbon reduction as one of a number of influencing factors, if
required.

11.0

PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS

11.1

There are no implications arising directly from this report.

12.0

RECOMMENDATION/S

12.1

Cabinet is requested:
•

To approve the strategy for highways asset management as set out in the
report;

•

To note progress in developing the draft HAMP attached to the report, and
provide any comments they may have; and

•

Ask the Director of Technical Services to bring a further report to Cabinet in
March 2013, reporting on progress in delivering the strategy and completing
the draft HAMP, taking into account the views of key stakeholders following
consultation.

13.0

REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

13.1

Endorsement by Members of the strategy proposed for the development the
Council’s approach to managing these vital highway infrastructure assets is crucial
for its success.

Page 100

13.2

The HAMP is still developing, and Members should receive a further report to
understand the progress that is being made, and that matters raised by key partners
during consultation are given consideration, and to ensure that this priority strategy
is being delivered.

REPORT AUTHOR:

Rob Clifford
Service Manager (Highways Management)
telephone: (0151) 606 2479
email: robertclifford@wirral.gov.uk

APPENDICES
Appendix – Draft HAMP
REFERENCE MATERIAL
CIPFA Code of Practice on Transport Infrastructure Assets [The report author holds one
copy]
The third Local Transport Plan for Merseyside 2011 – 2015 [Available from the Council’s
website]
Technical Services Department Information Systems Strategy 2011 – 2013 [Available from
the report author]
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting

Date

Cabinet – Acceptance of the Highway Asset

3 September 2009

Management Grant

Page 101

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 102

Highway Asset Management Plan
2012 – 2013 (DRAFT)

Highway Management
Technical Services Department
Wirral Council

Page 103

February 2012
DRAFT – Wirral Council Highway
Asset Management Plan

Wirral Council Highway Asset Management Plan
Contents
Page
1
1.1
1.2
1.3
1.4

Introduction
Executive Summary
Glossary of Terms
Wirral Profile and Highway Network
Purpose of Highway Asset Management

5
6
8
9

2
2.1
2.2
2.3
2.4
2.5
2.6

Asset Inventory
Introduction
Data Review
Asset Groups
Current Data Management Practices
Proposed Data Management Practices
Asset Inventory projects and Progress Summary

13
13
14
16
16
17

3
3.1
3.2
3.3
3.4
3.5
3.6
3.7

Business Processes
Introduction
How Customer Demands are Determined
How Funding Need is Assed
How Funding Need is Distributed over Time
How Effectiveness of Spend is Assessed
How Elected Members are Advised
How Levels of Service are Determined

20
20
21
22
22
22
23

4
4.1
4.2
4.2.1
4.2.2
4.2.3
4.2.4
4.2.5
4.3

Levels of Service
Understanding Levels of Service
Developing Levels of Service
Legislative Requirements
Wirral Council’s Mission, Policy and Objectives
Customer Expectations
Existing Levels of Service
Affordability
Service Options

25
25
26
26
27
27
27
27

5
5.1
5.2
5.3
5.4

Lifecycle Planning
Introduction
The Planning Process
Performance Management
Lifecycle Synopsis

32
32
33
36

2

Page 104

February 2012
DRAFT - Wirral Council Highway
Asset Management Plan

Contents
Page
6
6.1
6.2
6.3
6.4
6.5

Optimisation and Valuation of Assets
Introduction
Optimisation
Asset Deterioration Modelling
Predicting Funding Needs
Valuation of Assets

38
38
39
40
40

7
7.1
7.2

Risk Management
Introduction
Risk Management Policy and Register

42
42

8
8.1
8.2
8.3

Forward Works’ Planning
Introduction
Current and Future Practices
Reviewing existing Works’ Programmes

44
44
45

9
9.1
9.2
9.3
9.4

Performance Monitoring
Introduction
Performance Indicators
Customer Access and Complaint Monitoring
Performance Monitoring and Reporting

47
48
49
50

10
10.1
10.2
10.3

Recycling and Sustainability
Introduction
Levels of Sustainability within Existing Practices
Climate Change Strategy and Action Plan

53
54
55

11
11.1
11.2
11.3
11.4

Improvement Actions
Introduction
Improvement Measures
Issues Identified and Improvement Actions
HAMP Action Plan

58
58
59
62

Appendix 1 Data Classification and Collection (Templates Only)
Appendix 2

Asset System Register

3

Page 105

February 2012
DRAFT - Wirral Council Highway
Asset Management Plan

1

Introduction

4

Page 106

February 2012
DRAFT - Wirral Council Highway
Asset Management Plan

1

Introduction

1.1

Executive Summary

Wirral’s Highway Asset Management Plan (HAMP) provides an integrated
framework for the delivery of highway management services across the
borough’s road network and for resources for the management of all aspects
of the highway infrastructure.
The purpose of the Highway Asset Management Plan is to change how
highway services are delivered in a way that makes the process more
intelligence-led and customer responsive. Such an approach will ultimately
bring greater value for money and help achieve key Council goals that can be
found in strategies such as the Corporate Plan, the Local transport Plan and
the Sustainable Community Strategy – Wirral 2025.
The principles of asset management are based around reliable knowledge of
the asset; having a comprehensive asset inventory, knowing the condition of
the asset and knowing its maintenance lifecycle and how long it will last.
Equipped with reliable data, engineers are able to predict the annual level of
investment required to deliver a predetermined level of service in the most
cost effective manner.
The benefit of adopting an asset management approach is that it provides
officers and Members with fully informed levels of decision making, in
accordance with the principles set out in the County Surveyors Society’s
guidance document, A Framework for Asset Management. The HAMP sets
out the management arrangements required to ensure that levels of service
are optimised and ensures that the highway asset is managed wherever
practical to meet the expectations of the highway user, whilst meeting the
Council’s statutory duties as the Highway Authority.
The Wirral Council HAMP is a document that will evolve over time. The
Council acknowledges that at present there is insufficient data recorded
against some assets however, the HAMP is a tool that will identify these gaps
and will form the framework for the authority to work towards developing and
implementing a data collection strategy and action plan.

5

Page 107

February 2012
DRAFT - Wirral Council Highway
Asset Management Plan

1.2

Glossary of Terms

The following terms are used in this HAMP:
Asset
In the context of this document an asset is an integral feature of the highway
infrastructure, such as roads, structures, lighting and traffic management
systems.
Asset Inventory
A comprehensive record of the tangible assets that collectively comprise the
highway infrastructure.
Asset Management
A strategic approach that identifies the optimal allocation of resources for the
management, operation, preservation and enhancement of the highway
infrastructure to meet the needs of current and future customers.
Asset Valuation
The calculation of the current monetary value of an authority’s assets. It
excludes therefore any consideration of the value to the community in terms of
economic and social benefits of providing a means for people to travel in order
to work, socialise and live.
Depreciated Replacement Cost
A method of valuation which provides the current cost of replacing an asset
with its modern equivalent asset less deductions for all physical deterioration
and all relevant forms of obsolescence and optimisation.
Depreciation
The calculation of the reduction in the monetary value of an asset over its
useful life arising from use, ageing, deterioration, damage or obsolescence.
Deterioration
The physical wear and tear on the asset; damage due to time, weather etc.
that can be observed and measured through condition surveys.
Gross Replacement Cost
The total cost of replacing either the whole of an existing highway network, or
some part of it, with a new asset to a modern equivalent standard; taking into
account up-to-date technology and materials.
Levels of Service
A statement of the performance of the asset in terms that the customer can
understand. Levels of service typically cover condition, availability, capacity,
amenity, safety, environmental impact and social equality.
6

Page 108

February 2012
DRAFT - Wirral Council Highway
Asset Management Plan

They cover the condition of the asset and non-condition related demand
aspirations, i.e. a representation of how the asset is performing in terms of
both delivering a service to customers and maintaining its physical integrity at
an appropriate level.
Non-Principal Roads
Roads of local importance – mostly B roads, with some A roads.
Principal Roads
Regional and District distributor routes made up of A Roads.
Risk Management
The formal assessment of risks with the potential to affect delivery of the
service via a process of identification, assessment, ranking and control
planning.
Service Options
Options available for an asset or groups of asset in terms of alternative levels
of service.
Unclassified Roads
Feeder roads which comprise minor rural roads and urban estate roads.
Whole Life
The entire usable life of an asset; examples of whole-life costs include
planning, research, purchase price, maintenance, removal and disposal. An
estimate of the whole-life cost of an asset prior to purchasing will determine
whether or not it will be cost effective. It is also called the lifecycle cost.

7

Page 109

February 2012
DRAFT - Wirral Council Highway
Asset Management Plan

1.3

Wirral Profile and Highway Network

Under the Local Government Act 1972 the northern part of the Wirral
peninsular constitutes the Metropolitan Borough of Wirral. This is one of five
District Councils of Merseyside and has a population of 312,293 people (2001
census).
The roughly rectangular peninsula is about 10 miles (16.1 km) long and 7
miles (11.3 km) wide and is bounded by three bodies of water: to the west by
the River Dee, to the east by the River Mersey and to the north by the Irish
Sea.
The major urban centres of Wirral are to its east; these include Birkenhead
and Wallasey. To the west and south, Wirral is more rural. Two thirds of the
population of Wirral lives on one third of the land in Birkenhead and Wallasey,
Wirral is connected to the rest of Merseyside by two road tunnels and a rail
tunnel. The M53 motorway runs up the centre of the peninsula from the
Cheshire boundary.
The highway network is one of the most valuable assets in both financial and
community terms that Wirral Council is responsible for. The network supports
the national economy, particularly through its linkages to ferry terminals and
the Mersey tunnels, and is fundamental in supporting the local economy. It
also contributes to the character and environment of the local areas that it
serves and plays a vital role in the Council’s wider priorities.
The Council is highway authority for the Borough’s roads and as such has a
statutory duty to maintain its highway network with the exception of the M53
which is maintained by the Highways Agency on behalf of the Department for
Transport and the Mersey Tunnels which are privately owned and operated.
The total road length managed by Wirral Council is approximately 1181 km
(734 miles) of which 95 km are classified principal A roads, 67 km are
classified non-principal B roads and 54 km are classified non-principal C
roads with 965 km of unclassified roads (i.e. residential roads). These lengths
change continually through the adoption of newly-developed roads and
through closure of redundant highways.
The growth in traffic and its associated problems together with the continued
growth predicted for the future, have highlighted the importance of highway
management. Effective management and investment have consequences in
areas of safety, reliability, and quality, and in addition a planned long term
asset management system supported by effective technical systems will aid
8

Page 110

February 2012
DRAFT - Wirral Council Highway
Asset Management Plan

regeneration, planning decisions, social inclusion, community safety, health
and the environment.
Although carriageways and footways form the most obvious and substantive
part of Wirral’s highway infrastructure, the Highway Asset Management Plan
is developed around seven key asset groups which are:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

1.4

Carriageways
Footways, footpaths, public rights of way and cyclepaths
Highway green spaces
Lighting
Street Furniture
Structures (bridges and retaining walls)
Traffic signals and traffic management systems

Purpose of Highway Asset Management

There is no definitive answer for the definition of highway asset management
so for the purpose of this document the following definition has been adopted
from the County Surveyors Society framework;
“Asset management is a strategic approach that identifies the optimal
allocation of resources for the management, operation, preservation and
enhancement of the highway infrastructure to meet the needs of current and
future customers.”
This definition brings together themes that define Wirral’s Highway Asset
Management Plan (HAMP). They are:
•

Strategic Approach

•

Whole of Life

•

Optimisation

•

Resource Allocation

•

Customer Focus

A systematic process that takes a long term
view
The whole-life and / or lifecycle of an asset
is considered
Maximising benefits by balancing competing
demands
Allocation of resources based on assessed
needs
Explicit
consideration
of
customer
expectations

The development and subsequent continuation of an accurate inventory of
highway assets is crucial in supporting the HAMP. The HAMP is designed to
identify and target improvements which will enable Wirral Council to build on
existing policies, practices and procedures to meet ever changing demands
and constraints. In turn this will help the Council take decisions and meet its
strategic goals in the most effective manner having regard to statutory
9

Page 111

February 2012
DRAFT - Wirral Council Highway
Asset Management Plan

requirements, asset condition and value, customer aspirations and funding
limitations.
Wirral has a typical highway network comprising of a number of diverse
assets. The principals of asset management are to be applied to each of
these components.

1.5

Synopsis of Wirral’s Highway Asset Management Plan

Introduction
Sets out the rationale for the HAMP and provides an overview of the highways
asset together with a glossary of terms. It explains the key objectives and
gives an overview of highway asset management process.
Asset inventory
A reliable asset inventory containing information about each asset group is the
foundation of the asset management plan. The inventory includes information
relating to quantity, type, location and condition. It is vital that the inventory is
properly maintained and kept up-to-date if the data contained in it is to be
relied upon.
At present it is acknowledged that there are gaps in the amount of, and in
some instances quality of, inventory data held. The HAMP will identify these
gaps and will form the framework for the Council to work towards developing
and implementing a data collection strategy and action plan.
Business processes
Identifies business processes that affect asset management outcomes and
outlines proposed improvements to them. It introduces the processes by
which the HAMP will seek to establish funding options and optimise levels of
service.
Levels of service
Defines the levels of service for each asset with targets ranging from
statutory, minimum, or do nothing scenarios, to current, desirable or improved
levels of service. It also outlines how the options available for dealing with the
ongoing and future demands placed on the network are identified and
evaluated.
Lifecycle plans
Outlines how assets are managed having regard for levels of acceptable
deterioration and appropriate timescales for maintenance intervention, and
ultimately replacement.
Optimisation and budget consideration
Considers the highway asset budget and future funding needs alongside a
framework of strategic planning and optimisation.
10

Page 112

February 2012
DRAFT - Wirral Council Highway
Asset Management Plan

Risk management
Describes the risks associated with the management and ownership of the
highway asset and the processes that are used to control and manage these
risks.
Forward works’ programme
This will provide a summary of the forward works programme for each asset
group and the processes by which these programmes are formulated. The
means of determining future resource requirements is based on the manner in
which the asset group is allowed to depreciate and this is normally defined
through two categories.
The first category is known as the conventional method, where straight line
depreciation of the asset is acceptable to a point where replacement is
necessary, applying to such assets as highway lighting and street furniture.
The second category is known as component accounting, whereby a level of
annual expenditure is required to maintain the asset to a specified level of
service, this applies to assets such as carriageways and footways.
Performance monitoring
Demonstrates how Wirral Council monitors its performance relative to each
asset group by using commonly recognised performance measures; where
appropriate, including indicators which allow both assessment of improvement
of performance against previous condition or level of service; and to facilitate
benchmarking of performance.
Recycling and sustainability
There is an increasing demand and expectation for local government to
develop and apply sustainable construction and maintenance practices.
Wirral’s HAMP aims to further encourage the use of recycled materials and
the re-use of existing materials when carrying out maintenance activities.
Improvement actions to the HAMP
Improvement actions for proposals are put forward together with a programme
containing timescales to implement such improvements.

11

Page 113

February 2012
DRAFT - Wirral Council Highway
Asset Management Plan

2

Asset Inventory

12

Page 114

February 2012
DRAFT - Wirral Council Highway
Asset Management Plan

2

Asset Inventory

2.1

Introduction

A reliable asset inventory containing information about each asset group is the
foundation of the asset management plan. The inventory should include
information relating to quantity, type, location and condition. It is vital that the
inventory is properly maintained and kept up-to-date if the data contained in it
is to be relied upon.
The key objective is to make high quality inventory and condition data readily
available so that a consistent management approach is achieved on an
informed basis to optimise resource allocation.
Wirral Council does not have a single computerised Highway Asset
Management System (HAMS) but relies on a number of applications and
databases to inform its asset inventory.

2.2

Data Review

Confirmation of the quality, reliability and completeness of existing data sets is
essential. The level of confidence in the data has to be established before
embarking on the implementation of any asset management processes. A
review of current inventory practices has established the specific data held for
Wirral’s highway assets and the subsequent review of this data has
determined:
•
•
•
•

Where the data is recorded
The level of detail that is captured
The format of data capture; hard copy or electronic
How the data is validated

The level of information recorded against each asset group has been
assessed to determine that it is meaningful and has specific regard for the use
and purpose of the data. Typical uses include:
•
•
•
•
•
•

To provide information on the condition of the asset
To enable a long term programme to be established
To capture faults or damage in a way that can be analysed
To report on local indicators
To assist in the management of contractual arrangements
To enable the value of the asset to be calculated

13

Page 115

February 2012
DRAFT - Wirral Council Highway
Asset Management Plan

2.3

Asset Groups

Assets need to be grouped in a consistent manner so that data can be
comprehensively compared at a regional or national level for example to
determine actual expenditure or estimated spending need for a particular
asset class, to allow benchmarking with other Local Authorities and to allow
asset performance to be tracked over time.
The classification has three levels that are defined as:
Level 1
Asset types – broad categories based upon the general function of the assets.
They divide the asset base into categories that may be suitable for reporting in
the financial statement and provide an appropriate basis for high-level
management information.
Level 2
Asset groups – used to distinguish between assets that have a similar function
and form.
Level 3
Components – distinguishes between components that, when systems
become well developed, may require individual depreciation and impairment
models, such as different service lives and / or rates of deterioration.

14

Page 116

February 2012
DRAFT - Wirral Council Highway
Asset Management Plan

Level 1 :
ASSET TYPE

Level 2 :
ASSET GROUP

Carriageway

Flexible pavements
Flexible composite pavements
Rigid concrete pavements
Rigid composite pavements

UNIT OF MEASURE

Level 3 :
VALUATION COMPONENTS

area m2

Includes for all categories:
pavement layers, other surface
types, central reservation,
roundabouts, lay-bys, traffic
island etc, traffic calming, bus
lanes, drainage

linear m

Kerbing, markings, road
studs, hard strip / shoulder / verges

Notes
The road pavement is the actual surface on which the vehicles will travel:
Flexible - pavements with a bitumen bonded surfacing and roadbase
Flexible composite - surfacing and upper road base are bituminous on a lower roadbase of cement bound material
Rigid concrete - pavements with a concrete surface slab which can be un-reinforced, joint reinforced or continuously reinforced
Rigid composite - continuously reinforced concrete slab with a bituminous overlay

Footways &
cycleways

Footways
Pedestrian areas
Footpaths (including PRoW)
Bridleways (including PRoW)
Cycletracks

area m2

Includes for all categories:
construction layers and
formation

Notes
PRoW - public rights of way are paths on which the public have a legally protected right to pass and re-pass

Highway green spaces

Freehold land and rights land

area - hectares

Nothing beyond area of land

Notes
Rights land is usually held for maintenance access, such as adjacent to bridges.
Lighting

Lighting columns
Wall mounted lighting units
High mast lighting
Illuminated Traffic signs

number

The entire item including:
column and foundations
brackets, luminaires
control gear, internal wiring

Street furniture

Urban roads
Rural roads

number

Seating,
litter bins, grit bins
bollards, sign posts,
street name plates, trees, weather
station

Structures

Bridges and subways
Culverts
Retaining walls
Signs gantries, cantilever signs
Tunnels
Structural earthworks

deck area m2
internal surface area m2
retained area m2
span length m
length m
length m

Includes for all categories:
the entire structure

Traffic management

Traffic signals
Pedestrian signals
Information systems
Safety cameras

number
number
number
number

All equipment and cables
All equipment and cables
All equipment and cables
All equipment and cables

15

Page 117

February 2012
DRAFT - Wirral Council Highway
Asset Management Plan

2.4

Current Data Management Practices

For certain asset groups such as structures and street lighting the current data
management processes are considered to be good. However, in contrast
there are categories where limited data exists and there is little evidence to
suggest that reliable inventory records have ever been kept. It is our priority to
target the latter areas for the collection of asset inventory data.
The low level of confidence surrounding certain asset groups means that the
use of information needs to be tempered with the knowledge that its use can
bring about misleading results. The ability to undertake better analysis of
information and consequently plan works in a more proactive manner is
currently constrained by the inconsistent quality and completeness of asset
data.

2.5

Proposed Data Management Practices

It is generally accepted that to collect every piece of asset data is neither
practical nor financially viable (for example, all white lines). A review of
current data has provided a gap analysis that enables the targeting of the
more critical items of data. A prioritised programme of data collection is to be
implemented to produce higher levels of confidence in those data sets
identified as either mandatory or having a high level of importance. The data
collection exercise will provide a base set of reliable asset data upon which
future projections can be based, and more accurate valuations can be
compiled.
To ensure that the maintenance of data is kept in manageable proportions,
data administrators are to be assigned with responsibility for the
completeness, integrity and availability of specific elements of major data sets.
It is vitally important that before any inventory system is introduced, the
mechanism by which it is managed and updated on a day-to-day basis is in
place with fail-safe processes that will prevent such systems being neglected
in the event of staff changes or departmental restructures.
The inventory management procedures for each asset group will typically
include the following:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Named Information Asset Owners
Where the data is recorded
The level of data that is recorded
Format of data recording (hard copy or electronic)
Procedures for updating the asset inventory
Procedures for inventory verification and validation

16

Page 118

February 2012
DRAFT - Wirral Council Highway
Asset Management Plan

2.6

Asset Inventory Projects and Progress Summary

There are a number of asset inventory projects underway to improve the
quantity and quality of asset data held.
1)

A review of the traffic signs database is currently in progress to identify
the gaps in the data which have occurred as a result of new signing
schemes and alterations to existing signing layouts not being forwarded
to the asset data collection team to record on the database. There is
currently a backlog of approximately 12 months of data input work to be
undertaken.

2)

A footway condition inspection regime is to be established in addition to
the current highway safety inspection procedures to accurately record
footway material types. The data collected can be used to produce
priority maintenance listings and long term improvement programmes.

3)

A structural condition survey is to be undertaken on the Council’s older
street lighting columns to assess their condition for possible inclusion in
future column replacement programmes. As part of the ongoing cyclical
maintenance programme a visual inspection of the structural condition
is carried out and the presence of any key risk factors is recorded.
Equipment displaying these risk factors undergoes a more detailed
assessment and rating in accordance with National Guidelines.
The information is then used to prioritise column replacement.

4)

A survey of the Council’s highway tree asset is currently being carried
out to assess the condition of the existing tree stock and the data
collected from that survey will be included on a priority basis into a 3
year programme of planned maintenance work. The work builds on the
comprehensive risk based survey carried out for all highway trees in
2008.

5)

The existing highway gully and channel drainage system is largely
mapped and work is currently in progress to add land drainage culverts
that pass beneath the public highway, together with their
interconnecting watercourses. Together, this asset information will
enable a better understanding of flood risk in the Wirral and the
mechanisms that lead to highway flooding.
Additionally it is intended to investigate the relationships between the
highway drainage system and public sewers as it is likely that there are
more highway drains than are presently identified and mapped.

6)

A GIS-based database system is already in place for Highway
Structures, containing information on bridges, retaining walls and
culverts (as defined in the Code of Practice for the Management of
17

Page 119

February 2012
DRAFT - Wirral Council Highway
Asset Management Plan

Highway Structures); both publicly and privately owned. This includes
condition information, asset details including materials used, remedial
works undertaken, loading assessments, and links to electronic copies
of relevant reports, drawings and other archive materials, and which is
continually updated. The system also links into the existing Signs
database to allow cross-referencing of structure-related signage.
Details of component-level inspections are housed and updated when
further inspections are carried out, in accordance with national best
practice, and the system is interrogated automatically to report on
Bridge Condition Indices data to provide a snapshot of the current
condition of the Authority’s Bridge Stock. This system will be
developed to include data on Highway Retaining Walls in the future.
Information regarding Sea Walls will also be integrated into the system
where that infrastructure provides a highway supporting function.
The need to continue to obtain information on bridge component
conditions via a regular inspection regime in accordance with national
guidelines has also been identified as vital to ensure that the
information in the database remains up to date and is able to inform
future decisions on expenditure prioritisation.

18

Page 120

February 2012
DRAFT - Wirral Council Highway
Asset Management Plan

3

Business Processes

19

Page 121

February 2012
DRAFT - Wirral Council Highway
Asset Management Plan

3

Business Processes

3.1

Introduction

Business processes shape and direct key decision making to determine the
effective allocation of resources for all asset groups. Guidance for managers
comes in the form of established corporate systems for financial approval and
financial management. The Council’s Finance and Contract Procedure Rules
govern the way that the Highway Authority manages its business. These
internal mechanisms are routinely checked and monitored in a structured
manner by the Council’s own financial and internal audit officers.
Many of the maintenance procedures that have evolved over time offer
historical evidence to support the notion that good practices are being
achieved including following established national guidance where appropriate.
The adoption of a HAMP enhances our service delivery by focusing on the
following business procedure issues:
•
•
•
•
•
•

3.2

How customer demands are determined
How funding need is assessed
How funding is distributed over time
How effectiveness of spend is assessed
How elected Members are advised
How levels of service are determined

How Customer Demands are Determined

Wirral Council addresses customer expectations by informing, consulting and
encouraging both public participation and public empowerment.
Highway users and local communities are informed and advised about
highway works through a variety of channels, such as the internet, press
releases, media articles or by letter; leaflets and strategy and policy
documents may also be available online and in print at public buildings. On
occasion, personal visits for those households or businesses affected by the
various programmes of works, or seeking work to be undertaken, may take
place.
Wirral has a method for engaging communities and improving the
responsiveness of public services via Area Forums which were established in
2001. There are eleven Forums and they provide a positive and active
partnership of local people and organisations working together to tackle local
issues. The Neighbourhood Plans and the feedback received from
consultation during their preparation will provide much information on local
demand.
20

Page 122

February 2012
DRAFT - Wirral Council Highway
Asset Management Plan

Night-time working is an issue that may be addressed in the future by such
forum consultation in order to determine the advantages and disadvantages to
the local community; businesses, schools and medical centres etc may prefer
a night-time operation for major maintenance work however, local residents
may prefer a day-time operation to minimise the disruption affecting them
directly. Such feedback can be used in conjunction with views about
construction and road safety and maintaining traffic flow provided by traffic
managers, the police and the contractor.
The CRM system for registering and tracking enquiries and complaints and
various customer feedback questionnaires are also employed to gauge
customer needs and expectations, along with various project completion
evaluation measures and customer surveys.

3.3

How Funding Need is Assessed

Funding need is often established through historical precedent. For some
asset groups inventory information is limited and condition information is
sometimes insufficient for optimal decision making. This can result in
programmes that are disproportionately driven by reactive management to the
detriment of best value principles.
Statutory accounting rules require that all expenditure on the acquisition,
creation or enhancement of highways is capitalised on an accruals basis in
the accounts. Expenditure on the acquisition of, or expenditure that adds to,
and not merely maintains, the value of an existing asset, is capitalised,
provided that it yields benefits to the Council and the services it provides, for a
period of more than one year. This excludes expenditure on routine repairs
and maintenance of fixed assets that is charged directly to service revenue
accounts. It does, however, include expenditure such as the acquisition of
land and buildings, and the construction and enhancement of roads, buildings
and other structures.
Changes to the highways asset brought about by the adoption of new assets,
increased traffic volumes, major developments and government legislation
have not been uniformly matched with year-on-year funding adjustments for
Wirral’s revenue and capital budgets, or its shared Local Transport Plan (LTP)
settlements. It is intended that the HAMP will place greater focus upon need
rather than historical precedent. It is essential therefore, that measurement
procedures better demonstrate that the Council’s maintenance spending is not
only improving asset performance and value, but is also satisfying asset
demand.

21

Page 123

February 2012
DRAFT - Wirral Council Highway
Asset Management Plan

3.4

How Funding is Distributed

In general Wirral like most other highway authorities, funds the maintenance
of its highways assets through a combination of capital and revenue budgets.
A significant proportion of capital allocations are generally made by central
government through the LTP, which takes into account such factors as road
length, classification, traffic figures and National Road Maintenance Condition
Surveys (NRMCS).
Revenue allocations are generally funded through a combination of local
council tax, business rates, fee generations, and central government revenue
support and other grants.
More recently Wirral has been able to supplement these core funding streams
with additional sources including the EU Regional Development Fund, Local
Sustainable Transport Fund, Department for Transport Pothole Fund and
Section 278 Agreements (Highways Act 1980) for developments.

3.5

How Effectiveness of Spend is Assessed

Many highway asset groups used to have national performance indicators
attached to them in addition to local targets, however, these are now
monitored purely against the local targets in order to allow the effectiveness of
current funding levels to be assessed.
Measuring performance against established targets including condition
indicators, LTP delivery measures and user complaints are fundamental in
establishing and identifying performance gaps for desired service levels and
for developing budget models that will allocate funding on a fair and equitable
basis.
Performance monitoring, section 9, identifies these performance indicators.

3.6

How Elected Members are Advised

Funding for maintenance of the highway assets is determined by the
approved Council budget, and comprises revenue funding, capitalised
maintenance and the Council’s Capital Programme. The budget setting
process is carried out through the Cabinet and approved by the Council. The
process for recommending highway maintenance expenditure is presently
carried out as follows, on an annual cycle:
•
•

LTP funding identified
Preparation of the Structural Maintenance Programme based on
condition surveys, including consultation with the Area Forums
22

February 2012
DRAFT - Wirral Council Highway
Asset Management Plan

Page 124

•
•

Business Case submissions for Capital Programme funding
Report to Cabinet recommending the distribution of LTP capital
maintenance funding between different asset types, and approval of
the Structural Maintenance Programme for carriageways and footways
to be funded from the LTP capital maintenance allocation, capitalised
maintenance budget and any approved Capital Programme Business
Cases.

The approved list of schemes within the Structural Maintenance Programme is
greater in value than the proposed funding approved. This is to allow certainty
of priority yet flexibility to extend and or alter the proposed schemes to be
delivered in the event that, for example, there are clashes with major utility
activities, severe winter damage to certain roads, some scheme requirements
are reduced or less costly treatment is selected when the schemes are
prepared in detail.
Once a scheme is certain to proceed, Local Councillors will be notified that the
scheme is to proceed (with timescales), utilising the letter to be issued to
affected residents.
Progress in delivering the Council’s objectives for safe and well maintained
highways, and the performance measured through the carriageway condition
indicators, are reported annually to the Sustainable Communities Overview
and Scrutiny Committee. Both that Overview and Scrutiny Committee and the
Cabinet receive annual reports on the progress in delivering the benefits set
for the highways service delivered through its term maintenance contract.

3.7

How Levels of Service are Determined

Defining levels of service is a central element of Wirral’s HAMP and offers the
capability for a range of service options to be explored against clearly defined
standards for each of the asset groups under consideration.
Levels of service are assessed against a number of key requirements or
drivers, including legislation, stakeholder needs, corporate objectives and the
relevant national codes of practice or operational guidelines.
Wirral’s business processes are designed to provide an integrated planning
framework for delivering best value and continuous service improvement to
meet the visions, priorities and pledges of the Council. The Council’s budget
setting process is a key component in providing the required financial backing
to support and achieve desired service levels.

23

Page 125

February 2012
DRAFT - Wirral Council Highway
Asset Management Plan

4

Levels of Service

24

Page 126

February 2012
DRAFT - Wirral Council Highway
Asset Management Plan

4

Levels of Service

4.1

Understanding Levels of Service

Levels of service describe the quality of services provided by the asset for the
benefit of the customer. They are composite indicators that reflect the social,
economic and environmental goals of the community. Levels of service are
therefore the manner by which the highway authority engages with the
customer and are about reflecting the customer’s interests in terms that can
be measured and evaluated.
The correlation between customer expectations and the delivery of the asset
in practical terms must be explained and effectively communicated to
stakeholders. This distinction is important as whilst this framework promotes
a focus on the customer’s needs there may be instances (particularly in
relation to the structural condition of the asset) when the customer is not in a
position to hold an informed opinion because critical asset condition is not
always visible. Decisions which impact service delivery must also align with
the statutory obligations, policies and wider objectives of the Council.
Levels of service determine availability, capacity, amenity, safety,
environmental impact and social equity. They cover both the condition of the
asset and the non-condition demand aspirations.

4.2

Developing Levels of Service

The beginning of the process is to establish a clear set of service levels
ranging from an excellent service to a statutory minimum service. At present
no national framework exists although guidance contained in the County
Surveyors’ Society framework and the Code of Practice for Highway
Maintenance Management give indications of desirable service standards.
Levels of service are the means by which a highway authority attempts to
meet customer expectations, statutory obligations and corporate goals in
delivering highway services.
The key requirements affecting the development of levels of service are:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Legislative requirements
Wirral Council’s policy and objectives
Customer expectations
Best practice guidelines
Affordability
Availability of resources

25

Page 127

February 2012
DRAFT - Wirral Council Highway
Asset Management Plan

4.2.1 Legislative requirements
It is a requirement that levels of service comply with the legal obligations and
statutory duties incumbent on the highway authority. Additionally, the
adoption of recognised codes of practice will provide the necessary guidance
to align service delivery with national best practice.
It is essential that minimum levels of service are sufficient to meet the
statutory requirements set out in the following legislation (and any subsequent
amendments) and any other such Acts in connection with the delivery of the
service.
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Highways Act 1980
Traffic Management Act 2004
New Roads & Street Works Act 1991
Road Traffic Reduction Act 1997
Transport Act 2000
Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984
Traffic Signs Regulations & General Directions 2002
Railways and Transport Safety Act 2003
Local Authorities (Transport Charges) Regulations 1998
Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000
Environmental Protection Act 1990
Noxious Weeds Act 1993
Health and Safety at Work Act 1974
Management of Health and Safety at Work Regulations 1999
Construction (Design & Management) Regulations 2007
Local Government Act

A number of best practice guidelines also exist that directly influence levels of
service. While these best practice guidelines are not always statutory
requirements they represent a description of accepted good practice.
The most significant national best practice guidance documents relevant to
this plan are:
•
•
•

Code of Practice for Highway Maintenance Management.
Code of Practice for Road Lighting Management.
Management of Highway Structures (Code of Practice)

4.2.2 Wirral Council’s mission, policy and objectives
Wirral Council sets out its policies and corporate objectives in definitive
volumes such as the Corporate Plan - Action Plan for Highway Management;
Corporate Goal - Have a safe and well-maintained highway network for all
users, Wirral 2025 - A Sustainable Community Strategy and the third Local
Transport Plan for Merseyside.
26

Page 128

February 2012
DRAFT - Wirral Council Highway
Asset Management Plan

Wirral Council’s budget planning process is designed to enable strategic
choices and decisions to be made in an informed manner, so that the Council
can manage its budgets and services with due regard for prudence, stability,
investment and efficiency.

4.2.3 Customer expectations
The expectations of all road users, the community and local businesses need
to be recognised as factors in the service level decision making process, but
also that these expectations can sometimes be competing or conflicting.
When setting levels of service it is important to realise that key stakeholders
can have a noteworthy influence on performance measurement and service
perception.
The Council will facilitate discussion with stakeholders to keep them better
informed of the projects we are to undertake and how they have been
prioritised. Where appropriate their involvement in this prioritisation will be
sought.

4.2.4 Existing levels of service
A review of existing levels of service is essential to the development of the
HAMP. A review will establish the standard and cost of service provision for
each of the asset categories including any mechanisms that record or report
current levels of service. Such a review will identify gaps where information is
lacking. In the absence of relevant performance data, any such anecdotal
sources that exist will need to be tested to verify that assumed levels of
service are actually being achieved.

4.2.5 Affordability
Pressures on Council funding and increasing demands on the highway
network may mean it is not always possible to secure the required funding to
deliver the optimum solution. This is one of the reasons for presenting a
number of service level options in the HAMP. Another reason is that decision
makers will have access to data allowing them to make informed decisions
governing service delivery and be aware of the consequence of their decisionmaking. This is particularly useful in a situation of competing demands for
funding.
In reality budgets often dictate what can realistically be achieved, so
affordability must be recognised and acknowledged when setting deliverable
levels of service.

4.3

Service Options

An asset management approach offers existing and projected data to support
the decision making process. In practical terms this means the identification
and assessment of service options.
27

Page 129

February 2012
DRAFT - Wirral Council Highway
Asset Management Plan

Once the requirements driving an asset group’s service level have been
determined it is necessary to develop service options around these
requirements and evaluate them. This process should clearly identify the
service options applicable to the particular asset group and state the basis
upon which the preferred option has been selected.
Service delivery can be influenced by a number of demands. These come
mainly from legislation, best practice guidelines, health and safety
requirements, corporate goals, political influences, customer expectations and
financial constraints. Additionally, service options will vary between the
competing demands and importance of each asset group. As a starting point,
initial service provision will be established around current practices, which will
be developed through the HAMP by a process of continued monitoring and
improvement.
The following generic service levels have been adopted:
Statutory Minimum

Meeting statutory or legislative requirements and
notes for guidance

Existing

The impact on the asset if current funding levels
are maintained

Steady State

To arrest deterioration of the asset and maintain
current condition, performance and value

Requested Service

Based on customer expectations and / or political
aspirations

Optimum Service

An optimum level of service based on an economic
lifecycle planning process

Attainable Service

Re-interprets the Optimum Service option in light
of available recourses and represents the best
return for available funding

Ultimately, the chosen option will result from a combination of cost, benefit
and risk. Historically, of these three elements, cost has been the most readily
communicated and understood. Understanding cost is however an incomplete
picture, therefore it is necessary to evaluate service level options against an
agreed set of criteria to make the most of levels of service.
Depending on the asset category, the options evaluation criteria will typically
include:
•
•
•

Programmes and planning
Safety implications and requirements
Availability of service or asset
28

Page 130

February 2012
DRAFT - Wirral Council Highway
Asset Management Plan

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Accessibility to service or asset
Condition of the asset
Environmental impact of providing and maintaining the asset
Customer service, expectations and perceptions
Risk and benefits
Finance
Performance targets

When each service option has been approved and becomes operational the
asset management process will monitor, review and report on progress and
performance. Whenever possible, levels of service need to be measurable
and realistic. It should be noted that a number of asset groups come under
additional scrutiny through the Council’s corporate performance management
process where they are monitored against formal performance measures,
including:
•
•
•
•

Local performance indicators
Recording of response times
Customer complaints monitoring procedures
Condition surveys

A flow chart on the following page illustrates the key processes in developing
levels of service.

29

Page 131

February 2012
DRAFT - Wirral Council Highway
Asset Management Plan

Levels of Service Flow Chart

Service option
identification

Requirements

Statutory
Legislation
Requested
Stakeholder
expectations

Existing

Council
objectives

Steady-state

Optimum

Best
practice
guidelines

Attainable

Levels of service
factors
Planning

Performance indicators

Safety

Performance indicators

Availability

Local indicators

Accessibility

Customer surveys

Condition

Contract performance
indicators

Environmental

Customer

30

Page 132

February 2012
Financial
DRAFT - Wirral
Council Highway
Asset Management Plan

5

Lifecycle Planning

31

Page 133

February 2012
DRAFT - Wirral Council Highway
Asset Management Plan

5

Lifecycle Planning

5.1

Introduction

The adoption of lifecycle planning is a step that brings about greater focus on
long term planning and programming and whole life costing and is one of the
key components of the Wirral HAMP. By knowing the current condition of the
asset, and assessing its future performance through agreed risk and
investment scenarios, there is the capability to develop more effective
strategies and achieve specific levels of service throughout the life of the
asset.

5.2

The Planning Process

Previously, knowledge of an asset’s lifecycle has generally existed in
undocumented formats or in the minds, experience and judgement of key
officers involved in the mainstream maintenance processes. There is a real
risk that the information gathered by those individuals who have witnessed
‘asset passage from creation to disposal’ could be lost through staff turn
around or retirements.
The introduction of lifecycle plans will involve capturing this knowledge to
produce records and systems that will be available for future reference
ensuring consistency of service delivery.
The lifecycle planning process is driven by the future requirements and
budgetary constraints for each asset group. The following key areas are
considered and explored as part of the process:
Asset item inventory
Information defining the type and distribution of asset items, along with
mechanisms for routinely updating inventories, identifying data gaps and
reconciling discrepancies.
Goals and objectives
The statutory, legislative, best practice and corporate drivers for the provision
of services for each asset group.
Condition
Information regarding the current condition of each asset group and the
survey strategies and regimes set in place for recording and measuring
change in relation to this condition and where appropriate, statements and
standards that define what the desired condition of the asset should be.
Stakeholder demand
Acknowledgement of stakeholders’ reasonable expectations and monitor
these against established benchmarks, which measure capacity, reliability,
32

Page 134

February 2012
DRAFT - Wirral Council Highway
Asset Management Plan

serviceability and environmental considerations. This process assists with
setting levels of service and influences lifecycle planning.
Performance gaps
Based upon an appraisal of current performance of an asset against required
performance. Gaps are identified in terms of shortfall, and the investment
involved in closing these gaps must also be taken into account where
applicable; together with the risks associated with not doing so.
Options appraisal
Considers the maintenance regimes for each asset group and current levels
of funding allocated to the same. Identifying strategy, cost effectiveness and
reviewing the merits of alternative maintenance treatments, including cyclic,
reactive, routine and programmed options in relation to varying levels of
service.
Budget optimisation
Reviews current budget distribution between assets and the processes in
place for assessing competing demands against available budgets.
Forward works’ programmes
How current works’ programmes maintaining the asset are composed, with
asset management practices being developed to promote integrated
programmes of work of sufficient duration to allow optimum scheduling of
future works across all of the asset groups.
Works procurement
Appraisal of existing mechanisms by which works are procured for the
maintenance of each asset group, including the contractual arrangements in
place for commissioning works, and the alternatives available for delivering
new systems of working and technologies.

5.3

Performance Management

Wirral Council’s aim is to build on the performance objectives defined in
Section 9, Performance Monitoring, to develop trends in performance that can
be appraised over a number of years to form a key driver in decision making
for service delivery across the asset groups.
Detailed lifecycle plans will serve to target areas that need improvement in the
management and processing of important data for maintenance purposes. It
provides a framework for managers to critically appraise the quantity, quality
and accuracy of asset data.
Asset lifecycle options have been considered in accordance with the generic
categories identified by the County Surveyors Society (Framework for Asset
Management) in the following table:
33

Page 135

February 2012
DRAFT - Wirral Council Highway
Asset Management Plan

Asset Lifecycle Options
Creation or acquisition

Highway assets either already exist, or
are created and acquired largely as a
result of development / improvement or
the creation of increased capacity by new
build schemes.

Routine maintenance

Involves carrying out maintenance to
maintain the asset in a serviceable
condition. Routine maintenance regimes
are principally based on historical
practice. Wirral’s HAMP brings about
needs-based practices around condition
measurement, standards reviews, and
effectiveness assessments of routine
maintenance activities.

Renewal or replacement

Involves renewal or replacement of the
whole asset or elements of it, to return
the asset to its ‘as new’ capacity and
condition. Renewals and replacement
are the major treatments available when
routine maintenance alone cannot
sustain the asset. The identification and
timing of renewals / replacement is a
fundamental
element
of
lifecycle
planning, and the HAMP will provide data
to support the selection of the optimum
time for carrying out specific treatments.
Key areas of focus involve:
How are potential renewals identified?
How are renewals / replacements
evaluated?
How is the link between routine
maintenance and renewals evaluated?
How are the expected lives of treatments
evaluated and checked?
What service level criteria have
changed?

Upgrading

Most often considered in relation to
future needs.

(Improve the assets’ original standard)

34

Page 136

February 2012
DRAFT - Wirral Council Highway
Asset Management Plan

Disposal
(Decommission, demolish or closure of
assets)

Considers under what circumstances
assets would be disposed of and what
the processes for disposal will involve.

In addition there are two main non-asset related options:

Non-Asset Options
Managing demand

Considers reduction in use of the asset
such as road reclassification, managing
road space, encouraging modal shift and
weight restrictions.

Amend standards and targets

Review to ensure they are affordable and
are given the correct emphasis in relation
to other standards.

The treatment options for the highway assets are also considered within the
context of the County Surveyors Society generic framework:

Treatment Options - Examples
Road / pavement

Structures

Street Lighting

Short term
treatments

Pot hole filling,
patching

Masonry pointing,
painting, concrete
repairs

Failed unit
replacements

Medium life
treatments

Surface dressing,
slurry sealing,
micro asphalts

Replace joints,
bearings,
waterproofing

Bulk luminare
changes, tin
topping

Long life
treatments

Resurfacing,
reconstruction

Rebuild structure

Column
replacement
New cabling

Wirral’s HAMP encourages the adoption of lifecycle planning across all asset
groups along with documentation of how each phase of the asset’s life is
35

February 2012
DRAFT - Wirral Council Highway
Asset Management Plan

Page 137

managed from creation to disposal. Part of the process is to recognise how
the current level of investment in routine maintenance compares with the
levels of renewal that are required, and how historic construction techniques
can impact upon the future demands for maintenance expenditure.
The lifecycle planning process involves the identification of options and
becomes more meaningful when it evolves to deliver lifecycle evaluations
carried out in a rigorous and repeatable manner that help identify potential
performance gaps and deliver process optimisation in the longer term.

5.4

Lifecycle Synopsis

The HAMP will maintain and manage Lifecycle Plans for the following highway
asset groups:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Carriageways
Footways, footpaths, public rights of way and cyclepaths
Highway green spaces (including trees)
Lighting
Street Furniture
Structures (bridges and retaining walls)
Traffic signals and traffic management systems

It is not practical in this document to define in detail the lifecycle of every
highway asset group. Comprehensive information for all asset lifecycles will
be contained in appendices to the HAMP.

36

Page 138

February 2012
DRAFT - Wirral Council Highway
Asset Management Plan

6

Optimisation and Budget
Consideration

37

Page 139

February 2012
DRAFT - Wirral Council Highway
Asset Management Plan

6

Optimisation and Valuation of Assets

6.1

Introduction

One of the principal benefits of asset management is to provide the basis for a
more transparent and objective decision making process. The aim is to
establish decision-making processes regarding the network that fully
incorporate the concepts of optimisation and risk management and also take
account of budget considerations. These particular concepts are advanced
asset management techniques and can only be carried out if robust levels of
service information are available.

6.2

Optimisation

This has been defined as the process of identifying the optimal regime for the
operation and maintenance of the network; it can be aided by the use of
whole life costing and deterioration modelling.
It is necessary to go through an optimisation analysis process to identify the
most cost-effective means of managing or responding to the ongoing
demands that are placed on the highway assets. Optimisation is an advanced
asset management technique, and before it can be successfully applied both
basic data collection and analysis processes need to be in place.
The outcome of optimisation is the selection of the best option out of a range
of acceptable options and can be undertaken at two levels:
Single asset / service optimisation

Selection of the best option for a single
service / asset effectively in the absence
of any other constraints

Network level optimisation

Selection across a network to rationally
assess and evaluate the competing
demands of differing services and assets

Single optimisation is concerned with prioritising for a single asset and the
process starts with the identification of the options available for the asset
under consideration. Once each option is identified, it can be assigned
estimates of costs and benefits (both monetary and non-monetary).
These options are then ranked by a predefined system with the selected
option being that which shows the best return. This is a comparatively simple
process and provides the basic information to identify individual projects to be
put forward for funding.
38

Page 140

February 2012
DRAFT - Wirral Council Highway
Asset Management Plan

Network optimisation is used in the development of forward works
programmes and is the process by which competing demands of differing
services and assets are rationally assessed and evaluated. An example of this
would be to compare the relative merits of a lighting replacement scheme
against replacing a section of footway. This process of optimisation would
support the Council in maximising the performance of the network whilst
minimising the ongoing running costs. Presently the information and data to
fully adopt this process are not wholly available but this approach is the
ambition of the Council.

6.3

Asset Deterioration Modelling

Asset deterioration modelling is used to describe the process of simulating the
change in the condition of an asset over time and identifying treatments to
improve the asset and applying some rules to select the best possible
combination of treatments.
While the methods can be readily applied manually, they are ideally suited to
computer-based solutions owing to the large number of scenarios to be
performed, (more suited to the long-term management of complex activities
e.g. major carriageway maintenance, rather than activities like verge
management).
The definition of ‘best’, when deciding on the expenditure, is subjective and
may range from repair the “worst first” approach to more sophisticated
lifecycle costing approaches, and a range of steps in between.
In its simplest form, asset deterioration modelling can be broken down to the
following steps:
•
•
•
•
•

What do we have?
How will it perform with time and use?
What can we do to hold or improve the condition, and what will it cost?
What target levels of condition do we want?
What money do we have available, and how best do we spend it?

While an experienced practitioner can readily predict the requirements on a
section of road over the short term (perhaps five years or so), the ability to
identify longer-term demands is not readily achievable. Similarly, the ability to
identify the impacts of changes in use is also difficult to estimate. Other key
issues that can be addressed from the system include the prediction of
condition for a range of funding scenarios. In these cases informed decisions
can be made on what level of funding is appropriate to achieve the desired
condition in the longer-term.

39

Page 141

February 2012
DRAFT - Wirral Council Highway
Asset Management Plan

6.4

Predicting Funding Needs

The move to statutory Whole of Government Accounts means that local
highway authorities must generate in-depth information on the condition and
rate of deterioration of their highway assets. From this data, current and future
valuations can be calculated. Previously, it was sufficient to estimate the
projected maintenance expenditure needed to keep the highway asset
operational. However the flaw to this approach is its vulnerability to annual
budget shortfalls, ultimately leading to a backlog in the maintenance of
highway assets.
Wirral’s HAMP tackles these issues by improving the strategic long term
approach that involves infrastructure management processes driven by levels
of service and lifecycle planning.

6.5

Valuation of Assets

Gross Replacement Cost of Highway Asset (GRC)
The objective of calculating Gross Replacement Cost (GRC) is to provide a
realistic estimate of the current replacement cost of an asset using a
standardised procedure. The replacement asset should have a potential
performance broadly similar to the existing asset and take into account up to
date technology and materials contained in a modern equivalent asset. This
applies to all assets except those classified as a heritage asset.
Depreciated Replacement Cost of Highway Asset (DRC)
Depreciated Replacement Cost is defined as “the cost of replacing an existing
tangible fixed asset with an identical or substantially similar new asset having
a similar production or service capacity, from which appropriate deductions
are made to reflect the value attributable to the remaining portion of the total
useful economic life of the asset and the residual value at the end of the
asset’s useful life”.
Wirral Council will base the calculations for highway asset values on guidance
contained in the CIPFA Code of Practice.

40

Page 142

February 2012
DRAFT - Wirral Council Highway
Asset Management Plan

7

Risk Management

41

Page 143

February 2012
DRAFT - Wirral Council Highway
Asset Management Plan

7

Risk Management

7.1

Introduction

Wirral Council is committed to delivering its vision of “making Wirral a bigger
and stronger society”. The Council believes that effective risk management
will help ensure that it maximises its opportunities and minimises the impact of
the risks it faces and that by managing risk effectively, the authority will be in a
stronger position to deliver its vision and strategic and operational objectives.
For the purpose of highway asset management, a risk is the chance of
something happening that will have an impact on the Council’s objectives and
the continuity of service provision. As that impact may be positive or negative,
risks will be considered as opportunities and not simply as threats. The
strategy seeks to address all forms of risk, not simply those relating to health
and safety, financial or insurable risks.
Furthermore, risks do not simply reside in any one level within the
organisation and the Council’s approach to risk management will therefore
consider all strategic, operational and project risks.

7.2 Risk Management Policy and Register
The Council Corporate Risk Management Strategy was ratified by Cabinet in
September 2011 and it is this Policy that forms the basis for risk assessments.
Within the Technical Services Department Risk Register, the key risk
identified in respect of highways is the failure to deliver inspection and
maintenance obligations in accordance with policy. The Risk Register records
the controls in place to ensure that the Council meets its statutory duty.
The introduction of the HAMP and development of an asset management
approach will enhance the controls required to manage that risk.
Further review of the Risk Register will include evaluation of the obligation to
provide asset valuations in accordance with the CIPFA guidance.

42

Page 144

February 2012
DRAFT - Wirral Council Highway
Asset Management Plan

8

Forward Works’ Planning

43

Page 145

February 2012
DRAFT - Wirral Council Highway
Asset Management Plan

8

Forward Works’ Planning

8.1

Introduction

Fully integrated long-term forward works’ programmes are not currently
prepared by the Council for all the asset groups that make up the highways
asset.
The current method of working is that individual asset group managers
develop programmes independently; sometimes compiled upon a reactive
basis, throughout the year. For the majority of asset groups, priorities and
annual programmes of work are established by determining those locations
that are most likely to address assets which are in the worst condition or
oldest, and will give the best economic return on investment for any given
maintenance treatment, although without any whole life cost analysis for
assets such as carriageways and footways.
Customer requests through the customer relationship management system
(CRM), walked safety inspections and engineering programme inspections
together with local performance indicators also contribute to the prioritisation
process.
By implementing asset management the Council will ensure that, where
appropriate, programming of work is carried out in accordance with whole life
costing principles based on more comprehensive investment analysis by
encouraging greater integration between different areas of work and service
directorates. This will bring the opportunity to develop longer term
programmes with the potential to programme 10 years in advance, or further.

8.2

Current and Future Practices

Current practices rely upon asset group managers to independently assess
maintenance requirements and develop bids for funding applications against
largely short-term needs.
This practice will be replaced by processes that aim to identify long-term
needs within a framework of budget optimisation; considering more fully the
adoption of alternative service levels within the varying lifecycles for each
asset group.
Current and proposed future practices do not offer the ability to predict
precisely where and when projects will come about. This is because too many
variables impact in an unpredictable manner to allow this to happen, such as
differential rates of deterioration, statutory undertakers’ works, road space
availability, contractors’ resources, and weather conditions.

44

Page 146

February 2012
DRAFT - Wirral Council Highway
Asset Management Plan

It is however, practical and desirable, to predict the scale and type of
treatment for projects likely to be carried out in future years on a network wide
basis, and the adoption of the HAMP will bring together programmes across
the asset.
Such an approach will further improve the Council’s ability to co-ordinate its
activities with the long-term programmes of the utility companies.

8.3

Reviewing Existing Works’ Programmes

Currently, the review of each forward works programme occurs at individual
asset group manager level. There is no formalised process to review and
integrate forward works programmes to maximise the potential for combining
projects and budgets so that they are delivered in a more effective manner,
and reduce as far as practicable the disruption that results from uncoordinated
works programmes. The adoption of the HAMP will provide a formalised
structure within which forward works’ programmes can be reviewed and
integrated.
Current projects that are based on lifecycle plans are the Group Lamp
Replacement project, the highway surfacing and highway structures
maintenance programme and the Wirral Dock Bridges Status and
Management Strategy.
(1)

Group Lamp Replacement is carried out at a frequency based
upon the expected service life of the lamps. Improvements in lamp
technology have extended the service life of discharge lamps and this
has enabled a corresponding increase in the interval between lamp
replacements.

(2)

There is a degree of cross-referencing between the Highway
Resurfacing Programme and the Highway Structures programme;
whereby consideration is given to timing certain works to coincide,
where levels of funding and urgency of works allow. For example,
combining resurfacing schemes with replacement of bridge expansion
joints.

(3)

A programme of works is currently underway to refurbish and maintain
various bridges in the Birkenhead and Wallasey dock complexes to
enable them to continue to function in the medium term. This
programme was approved by Cabinet in December 2008 and contains
recommendations for repair works based on a Consultant’s Report on
Wirral Dock Bridges Status and Management Strategy. The works
identified take into account the need to review the long-term future of
the affected bridges in connection with large-scale development
proposals in the area.
45

Page 147

February 2012
DRAFT - Wirral Council Highway
Asset Management Plan

9

Performance Monitoring

46

Page 148

February 2012
DRAFT - Wirral Council Highway
Asset Management Plan

9

Performance monitoring

9.1

Introduction

Robust and comprehensive performance monitoring and management is
recognised as being essential in delivering services and corporate excellence.
Its purpose is to raise and maintain at a high level the performance of
individuals, services and the Council as a whole to ensure good quality and
cost effective services are delivered to residents and other key stakeholders.
Performance management is an integral part of the Council’s business
operations and is inextricably linked to other strategic and service objectives.
Actual performance monitoring against individual asset groups is achieved
through a combination of measures including performance indicators and
comparisons plus targets. There is a fundamental requirement for all Councils
to secure continuous improvement in the way they exercise their functions,
having due regard for a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness.
Under the Code of Audit Practice 2005 for Local Government Practice, the
Audit Commission defines these key terms as:
Economy

Acquiring human and material resources of
appropriate quality and quantity at the lowest price

the

Efficiency

Producing the maximum output for any given set of
resource inputs for the required quantity and quality of
service provided

Effectiveness

Having the organisation to meet the customers’
requirements and having a programme or activity to
achieve its established goals or intended aims

To demonstrate continuous improvement, performance is periodically
assessed, and where practical like many other highway authorities Wirral uses
a variety of well-recognised means to evaluate and quantify performance
levels:
Performance Indicators The measure of performance in exercising a
function
Performance Standards The minimum acceptable level of performance in
the exercise of a function measured by reference
to a performance indicator for that function; failure
to meet this standard is seen as failing the test of
best value for that function
47

Page 149

February 2012
DRAFT - Wirral Council Highway
Asset Management Plan

Performance Targets

The level of performance in the exercise of a
function expected to be achieved over a minimum
one year period measured by reference to the
performance indicator for that function

Performance can be measured in many ways, but the focus of best value is
accepted as the benchmark of placing greatest emphasis upon:
•

Input

Resources (human, material, financial)

•

Process

Methodology and procedure of committing resource

•

Output

The result (often numerical) of applying resource input

•

Outcome

The impact upon the community (the best way of
measuring performance)

9.2

Performance Indicators

The Department for Transport (DfT) previously set very specific guidance on
indicator development and monitoring in order for Councils to report nationally
on Local Transport Plan 2 (LTP2). In contrast to this there has been no
indicator development and monitoring associated with the third Local
Transport Plan (LTP3) other than it is a ‘local matter’ and should therefore be
organised at a local level. This is in line with government policy.
This national precedent is the abandonment of existing indicator sets,
although some new streamlined sets of indicators have been re-introduced
e.g. in the DfT Business Plan. Furthermore there will be no requirement to
report back to DfT on an annual basis via Annual Performance Reports as
was the case for LTP2.
However, Wirral as one of the five regions making up the Merseyside
Transport Partnership has determined that there remain good and sound
management reasons for maintaining a meaningful set of performance
indicators for the Merseyside Local Transport Plan. The ability to measure
performance in order to identify both success and shortcomings and therefore
being able to address these issues throughout the lifetime of LTP3 is of clear
value. A set of focused, clear measurable indicators provides accountability
and incentives for improved performance and can help deliver better value for
money as interventions are sought to maximise performance.
Maintaining continuity with LTP2 is also valuable. The Merseyside Transport
Partnership are in some instances only now starting to see the full value of
some of the indicator programmes from LTP2, and to halt these now could
prove to be short-sighted.
48

Page 150

February 2012
DRAFT - Wirral Council Highway
Asset Management Plan

The ‘traditional’ highway maintenance indicators that are continued in LTP3,
and have been adopted within the Wirral Council Corporate Plan as a
measure of its priorities in respect of safe and well maintained highways, as
follows:

Target Indicators
Previous
reference

NI

Description

Target for 2011 – 2015
in LTP3

LTP3 / LTP2
Reference

NI 168

A2 / BVPI 223
(96)

Principal road condition

Prevent any increase in the length of
principal classified roads requiring
maintenance
treatment
road
condition is a robust dataset that will
continue to be collected

NI 169

A3 / BVPI 224a
(97a)

Non-principal
condition

road

Prevent any increase in the length of
non-principal
classified
roads
requiring maintenance treatment road condition is a robust dataset that
will continue to be collected

PI 5188

C2 / BVPI 224b
(97b)

Unclassified
condition

road

Prevent any increase in the length of
unclassified
roads
requiring
maintenance treatment

The progress against each of the targets set for these three indicators are
also reported to Wirral Council’s Sustainable Communities Overview and
Scrutiny Committee each year.

9.3

Customer Access and Complaint Monitoring

Performance evaluation must take into account the perception and aspirations
of stakeholders, and include the measures set in place by the Council to bring
about good communication between those who manage the asset and those
who use the asset.
Wirral Council aims to work with local people, partners, organisations and
community groups to provide local people with choice in the way Council
Services are delivered to them. The Council aims to allow residents the
opportunity to access the Council at a time and in a way that suits them best.
The Council supports its channels of access by providing and consulting on
the benefits of a variety of technologies such as:
•
•
•
•
•

Contact centres – One Stop Shops
Customer relationship management (CRM)
Web facilities and intranet/extranet
Email
Text messaging (SMS)
49

Page 151

February 2012
DRAFT - Wirral Council Highway
Asset Management Plan

•
•

Electronic procurement and payment of services,
Geographical information systems (GIS)

Robust mechanisms exist to monitor perceived performance, including that
which is considered unsatisfactory. The Council has a number of channels
allowing for customer and stakeholder enquiries and it offers a direct forum
through which complaints can be made regarding staff or performance in the
delivery and management of services.
To gauge public perception, individual initiatives such as customer feedback
leaflets are distributed on a sample of major carriageway and footway
maintenance schemes. This has proved to be a valuable exercise that
provides a measure of customer perception and allows the Council to respond
and improve service delivery accordingly.
Large capital projects such as The Dell Underpass refurbishment scheme
involved a highly coordinated approach to customer engagement at key
stages during the delivery of the project. As the work required sections of the
Rock Ferry/New Ferry By Pass to be closed, prior to work starting on site
there was consultation with local residents, regular users of the by-pass,
Merseyside Police and the emergency services backed up with advertising
campaigns that included local newspapers and the Internet. During the
construction phase there were continual updates on the Council’s web-site
with important traffic management bulletins being aired on local radio advising
the public of the progress of the scheme.
Objective consideration of public feedback needs to be mindful of the
conflicting demands placed upon the service given that, in particular, highway
maintenance will be popular with those customers seeking improved highways
but unpopular with those inconvenienced during the works.
It is important to manage the expectations of customers, so that they too are
able to gauge whether the service level is appropriate or the inconvenience
was better or worse than the Council suggested. It is crucial therefore as part
of our processes within the HAMP to ensure that information about our
activities is as comprehensive and consistent as possible; across all those
access channels listed above.

9.4

Performance Monitoring and Reporting

Performance information gathered against service delivery is a key
component of the Wirral HAMP. It assists with monitoring and measuring the
effectiveness of resource allocation and aids budget setting and decision
making. The process will be subject to annual review in the light of
performance data and user feedback.

50

Page 152

February 2012
DRAFT - Wirral Council Highway
Asset Management Plan

There are a number of ways in which performance measures can be
summarised and reported. In deciding upon a reporting format considerations
should be given to:
•

Showing the alignment between the measures to outcomes / strategic
goals

•

Reflecting a balance between competing demands

•

Presenting only information that the audience requires

•

Keeping the number of measures manageable

Increasingly, there is a demand for Councils to report on not only the financial
performance of their assets, but also on the social and environmental effects
of their actions. Under such a regime the outcomes of these actions are
reported against the social, economic and environmental outcomes. This
means a move away from purely financial reporting to being able to
demonstrate to stakeholders that social and environmental responsibilities are
also being managed.

51

Page 153

February 2012
DRAFT - Wirral Council Highway
Asset Management Plan

10

Recycling and Sustainability

52

Page 154

February 2012
DRAFT - Wirral Council Highway
Asset Management Plan

10

Recycling and Sustainability

10.1 Introduction
Wirral Council’s HAMP provides a commitment to both environmental and
quality issues. Wherever possible, current and future practices will take
account of the following priority areas:
•
•
•
•

Sustainability in the consumption and production of resources
The effects of climate change and energy efficiency
Natural resource protection and environmental impact
Sustainable and maintainable community objectives

The Council Corporate Plan promotes a ‘safe and well maintained highway
network for all users’ and, in striving for a sustainable highway network we
have adopted Technical Services’ Environmental Policy which includes the
commitment to ‘consider environmental costs, risks and impacts when making
planning, contracting, purchasing and operating decisions’.
In July 2007, the Institution of Civil Engineers (ICE) launched its new
‘Sustainable Development Strategy & Action Plan for Civil Engineering’, which
sets out the broader actions associated with sustainability objectives. During
the summer of 2007, The Highways Agency also released its first Sustainable
Development Action Plan. The plan recognised that the majority of
environmental impact associated with the highway infrastructure is generally
caused by the vehicles travelling on the highway network. However, there was
also recognition that there are a range of significant actions available to all
highway authorities as organisations or construction clients in their own right.
These actions must explicitly include developing policies to review
maintenance and construction specifications and standards in the light of
sustainability issues.
These guidance documents highlight that those involved with maintaining the
highways asset be required to give consideration to those issues which affect
the environment, such as noise pollution, light pollution, waste management
and the recycling of highway construction materials when designing, planning
and undertaking major maintenance schemes or replacement of individual
assets.
Environmental obligations dictate the need to focus in detail on how the
Council and its policies and initiatives might more effectively target and
promote sustainability issues, with a view to bringing about improvements in
relation to:
•
•
•

Noise reduction measures
Materials utilisation options
Protection of virgin aggregates policies
53

Page 155

February 2012
DRAFT - Wirral Council Highway
Asset Management Plan

•
•
•
•
•
•

Reducing carbon footprints
Waste management and recycling options
Pollution control measures
Energy efficiency and the implementation of alternative technologies
Nature conservation and biodiversity options
Reduced environmental intrusion initiatives

The HAMP is consistent with the Council’s broader local and national policy
commitments and will seek to bring about innovation and joint working in
relation to the key issues of energy, waste and recycling.
Some asset groups will lend themselves more freely to improvements brought
about by changes in processes or technology, others may require substantive
investment or redesign at network wide levels before potential benefits can be
realised.
With regard to some of the higher value asset groups such as carriageways
and footways, the need for sustainability has a financial impact, which is a
direct consequence of the introduction of the Aggregates Tax Legislation in
April 2002.
The aim of this tax was to reduce the demand for virgin aggregates, and
encourage the use of recycled materials to address the environmental costs
associated with quarrying such as noise, dust, visual intrusion and haulage.
The tax applies to sand, gravel, and crushed rock.

10.1 Levels of Sustainability within Existing Practices
Wirral Council is moving forward with regard to the development of
sustainable maintenance practices.
Currently the Council’s Highways
Maintenance Partner is Colas Limited; who are responsible for the delivery
and operation of a wide range of highway services including footway and
carriageway repairs, traffic signs, street furniture, and winter maintenance.
The work includes:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Resurfacing and repairing carriageways and footways
Salting and gritting carriageways in the winter
Looking after street lighting and lighting on signs and bollards
Traffic regulation and traffic calming schemes
Vehicular crossings for domestic driveways
Pedestrian crossings

Prior to being successful in this partnership, Colas were required to provide
details of their proposed approach to environmental management including
details of environmental policies, environmental management systems and
54

Page 156

February 2012
DRAFT - Wirral Council Highway
Asset Management Plan

practical details of how they would minimise the carbon footprint and overall
environmental impact of administering the contract.
One of the key performance indicators which has proved very successful
within the performance management of the contract with Colas Ltd is that
which measures the amount of waste arising from works activities which goes
on to be recycled.
Case Study 1 - Road Recycling Project in Partnership with Colas
The project involved the replacement of a 1.5km length of principal
classified road between Brimstage Village and the M53 motorway.
Brimstage Road was in a state of structural failure throughout the bound
layers of the carriageway and required total reconstruction to a depth of
290mm.
Following a site investigation to determine the extent of the failure, the
Council sought an innovative approach from tenderers to deal with the
removal and replacement / recycling of the failed bound materials using a
sustainable method.
The agreed solution with the preferred contractor was to recycle and relay
the existing failed road surface materials by adding a new binder product.
This provided a recycled road construction of equal quality to traditional
construction materials.
The process reduced the original budget cost by 30%, a 73% reduction
was achieved in construction related vehicle movements and there was a
100% reduction in the amount of waste sent to landfill. In addition to this
energy and carbon savings of 44% and 46% respectively were realised
when compared to using traditional reconstruction methods.

10.3 Climate Change Strategy and Action Plan
Technical Services became the first department within Wirral Council to
achieve the ISO 14001 international standard on environmental management
in January 2006. Following this in June 2007, Cabinet Members agreed the
Council’s Climate Change Strategy and Action Plan supporting a number of
local and national sustainability strategies. To assist this process, the Council
approved an energy efficiency capital investment programme and the
following measures affecting highway assets were included:
•

Phase 1 Street lighting bulk change scheme to make lighting more
55

Page 157

February 2012
DRAFT - Wirral Council Highway
Asset Management Plan

efficient
•

Phase 3 Street lighting / signage energy efficiency improvements

This work has been completed.
Case Study 2 – Street Lighting Central Management System
During the past year a trial has been carried to convert 200 street lights in
New Brighton to enable them to communicate with a remote monitoring,
central management system. The aim of the Trial was to positively identify
and evaluate the potential benefits of such a system particularly in relation to:
• Energy savings and eradication of “day burners”
• Impact/savings associated with carbon reduction/carbon credits
• Scrutiny and Inspection costs and in particular if successful how
best to “roll-out” the system to the existing 9500 main road
lighting units
• Public perception of changes in lighting level.
The successful trial has led to adoption of a policy in September 2011 to give
consideration of use of the system for all new lighting schemes.
The wider roll-out of the system is underway with 900 lighting units on main
roads being converted in February and March 2012.

56

Page 158

February 2012
DRAFT - Wirral Council Highway
Asset Management Plan

11

Improvement Actions

57

Page 159

February 2012
DRAFT - Wirral Council Highway
Asset Management Plan

11

Improvement Actions

11.1 Introduction
It is recognised that this is only the first step in implementing a coherent and
efficient HAMP however, the process has already highlighted a number of
areas where improvements in information, processes and practices are
required.
It is envisaged that as this plan is implemented and evolves, additional
improvement actions will be discovered and that a continual review of the Plan
will be essential.

11.2 Improvement Measures
The identification and prioritisation of improvement measures will generally be
evaluated using the following main drivers:
•

Risk

Do current levels of service expose the Council to
unacceptable risk, either now or in the foreseeable
future?

•

Cost

Is expenditure justifiable in relation to the anticipated or
expected measurable improvements?

•

Timescale

Do we need to implement improvement actions early in
order to reduce risk? Does the particular improvement
action depend upon preceding actions or events taking
place?

The collective evaluation of risk, cost and timescale categories will provide
officers and Members with the means to prioritise and target support for
specific improvement actions. The analysis of cost and time, within the HAMP,
will identify where early savings and improvements in service delivery can be
achieved within existing budgets.
Progress in delivering the improvement plan within the HAMP, and the
monitoring of service targets will be the subject of annual reporting to the
appropriate Committee.

58

Page 160

February 2012
DRAFT - Wirral Council Highway
Asset Management Plan

11.3 Issues Identified and Improvement Actions
Asset inventory
Issue
Insufficient data recorded
against some asset
groups
Where data exists it
cannot always be relied
upon
Data management and
validation procedures do
not always exist

Improvements
Develop and implement a
data collection strategy
and action plan
Implement data
management procedures

Review date
April 2012

Identify specific data
needs and collect missing
data

April 2012

Improvements
Long term funding
strategies need to be
developed around asset
inventory data and
lifecycle planning
Forward works
programmes need to be
optimised through the
introduction of lifecycle
planning where possible
Working group to fully
assess critical situations
and long term
consequence of funding
being redirected from
elsewhere

Review date
July 2012

Improvements
Review existing levels of
service to establish
standards and cost of
service provision for all
assets
Develop asset
management procedures
for the evaluation and
creation of a range of
service options for each
asset group
Develop levels of service
around long term lifecycle
approach

Review date
July 2012

April 2012

Business processes
Issue
Funding allocation is
often based on asset
inventory data but not
always on asset condition
Budgets are not currently
developed around
lifecycle planning and
long term funding needs
Spending allocations are
sometimes redirected to
areas of greatest need
when situations become
critical

July 2012

July 2012

Levels of service
Issue
Documented levels of
service do not exist for all
assets

Levels of service are not
formally evaluated which
may lead to comparative
needs not being properly
assessed
Existing levels of service
have evolved through
historic precedent and in
some cases are aimed
primarily at improving
Performance Indicators
rather than taking a long
term lifecycle approach

59

Page 161

July 2012

July 2012

February 2012
DRAFT - Wirral Council Highway
Asset Management Plan

Lifecycle planning
Issue
Documented
performance gaps do not
exist for all assets

Reasons for performance
gaps are not identified

Lifecycle plans do not
exist for all asset groups

Improvements
Asses performance gaps
using performance
measures plus other data
sources including
customer feedback
Recognise that the
performance gap may be
a perception gap and
could be improved by
enhanced communication
with customers
Lifecycle plans will allow
options to be clearly
identified and will assist
with forward planning

Review date
April 2012

April 2012

July 2012

Optimisation and budget consideration
Issue
A complete valuation of
highway assets is yet to
be carried out
Historical expenditure has
not been analysed and
summarised

Current practices do not
identify long term funding
needs

There is no formalised
process for the allocation
of funding between
competing highway asset
needs

Improvements
Complete an initial
valuation of highway
assets
Explore past expenditure
to enable comparison
between forecasted
future spend and
historical expenditure
Long term funding needs
to be identified through
lifecycle planning and
forward works
programmes
Working group to fully
assess

Review date
May 2012

Improvements
Develop formalised risk
assessments for all asset
groups where appropriate

Review date
June 2012

Develop formalised risk
evaluation mechanisms
for maintenance option
appraisals

June 2012

May 2012

May 2012

May 2012

Risk management
Issue
Some asset groups do
not have formalised
mechanisms in place to
establish risks for the
asset or the service it
provides
Risk assessments are not
comprehensively used
within the evaluation of
maintenance options

60

Page 162

February 2012
DRAFT - Wirral Council Highway
Asset Management Plan

Forward works’ planning
Issue
There is no single longterm forward works’
programme for all works
on the network

Programmes of work are
not always linked to
specified levels of service
It is not always clear who
is responsible for longterm planning,
preparation of bids and
allocation of resources
Current programming
does not identify all
options available and
respective levels of
service, funding and risk
associated with each
option

Improvements
Develop an integrated
forward works’
programme for all
planned work for the
network for a period of up
to 10 years
Develop a forward works’
programme to produce
reports based upon
defined levels of service
Allocate responsibility for
key tasks within the
forward works’
programme

Review date
September 2012

Develop an integrated
forward works’
programme procedure to
detail the information
requirements for each
asset group and each
stream of improvement
work

September 2012

September 2012

September 2012

Develop procedures that
detail how programmes
will be created and
presented

Performance monitoring
Issue
Performance indicators
are a clear indicator of
service delivery – should
these be developed for
each asset area?

Improvements
Review Local
Performance Indicators to
ensure we track key
levels of performance

Review date
September 2012

Recycling and sustainability
Issue
Long term trialling of new
/ alternative methods has
not been established
Economic cost of
sustainable methods has
not been established

Improvements
Monitor significant project
evaluation reviews

Review date
April 2012

Establish cost options
within lifecycle planning
processes

July 2012

61

Page 163

February 2012
DRAFT - Wirral Council Highway
Asset Management Plan

11.4 Action Plan
The following table is a consolidated list of improvement actions that take into
account the issues above that have been raised in the preparation of the
HAMP.

HAMP Improvement Action Plan

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

Improvement Action
Undertake a gap analysis to identify
where asset inventory data does not exist
or is unreliable
Develop and implement systems for the
collection and management of data,
providing it is economically viable and
practical to do so
Review highway policies and update or
create new policies were necessary
Carry out an initial valuation of the
highway asset and produce a valuation
report in accordance with the CIPFA
guidelines
Develop and document lifecycle plans for
each asset group; consider the viability of
recycling and sustainability
Use forward works’ programmes and
works’ history to assist with the appraisal
of whole life costing options for each
asset group
Develop levels of service around a longterm lifecycle approach and discourage
short term objectives
Develop risk assessments for asset
groups and develop risk evaluation
mechanisms for the maintenance options
that are available
Develop forward works’ programmes for
each asset group based upon
predetermined levels of service; report
funding and resource requirements and
identify where responsibility lies for key
tasks
Develop an integrated forward works’
programme that includes all planned work
across the network for a period of up to
10 years (where practicable)
Develop long term funding strategies
around inventory data, forward works’
programmes and lifecycle planning, with a
choice of service level options for each
asset group.

62

Page 164

Priority Ranking

Target Date

High

March 2012

High

Ongoing

High

September
2012

High

May 2012

Medium

July 2012

Medium

Ongoing

Medium

July 2012

Medium

July 2012

Medium

November
2012

Medium

2014

Ongoing

February 2012
DRAFT - Wirral Council Highway
Asset Management Plan

12

13

Regularly review national and local
performance indicators to check that up to
date performance monitoring methods are
being used
Monitor feedback from Colas on
significant projects for recycling and
sustainability initiatives

Ongoing

Ongoing

Competing demand for staff time and variations in financial resources mean
that setting firm target dates for the implementation of improvement actions
across all asset groups is not practical.
Where mechanisms for improvement are clear and precise it is possible to
determine the timescales for implementation of specific improvement actions.
However, for some asset groups it is more appropriate to give the
improvement action an overall priority ranking based around the relative
importance and consequential risk of that improvement action not being
implemented.
This ranking framework actively secures the fastest possible returns available
to the Council by pursuing reduced risk and efficiency saving objectives.

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

63

Page 165

February 2012
DRAFT - Wirral Council Highway
Asset Management Plan

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 166

Appendix 1 – Data Classification and Collection
The Highway Asset Management Plan (HAMP) has identified that the data
recorded against some asset groups is insufficient and / or unreliable in terms
of:
•
•
•
•

Asset groups
Asset group components
Condition of assets
Size and / or number of assets

In order to ascertain the amount and quality of data held, data tables have
been produced for each asset group and these are to be populated by the
relevant officer.
This information will then be analysed and the results will inform a priority
process for improving the quality of data.

Page 167

1

Classification of Carriageway Assets

Level 1 :
ASSET TYPE

Level 2 :
ASSET GROUP

Carriageway

Flexible pavements
Flexible composite pavements
Rigid concrete pavements
Rigid composite pavements

UNIT OF MEASURE

Level 3 :
VALUATION COMPONENTS

area m2

Includes for all categories:
pavement layers, other surface
types, central reservation,
roundabouts, lay-bys, traffic
island etc, traffic calming, bus
lanes, drainage

linear m

Kerbing, markings, road
studs, hard strip / shoulder / verges

In addition individual asset hierarchy data is required for both rural and urban roads in terms of meters / linear length

Carriageways
• Carriageway infrastructure
• Road markings
• Pedestrian refuges, central reservations and traffic islands
Asset Hierarchy

Principal Roads
Classified Roads
Unclassified Roads
Back lanes

Asset Elements

Carriageway infrastructure
Road markings
Pedestrian refuges, central reservations and traffic
signals

Information Held

Road name
Road classification
Surfacing material
Length
BVPI surveys
In-house condition assessments
Date of last inspection
Coloured surface / anti-skid
Location of speed limits
Road markings associated with TRO’s
Location of traffic calming features

Information
Required

Width
Construction date
Construction materials and thickness
Maintenance history
Location of cellars under the carriageway

Page 168

Existing Data Information
Table 1.1

Details of Existing Inventory Data (Traffic Signals)

Item

Coverage
(%)

Records
Format &
Location

Confidence
Level (%)

Last
Surveyed

Update
Frequency

Road name
Road classification
Length (individual asset
hierarchy data required
for both rural and urban
roads)
BVPI’s principal &
classified roads
BVPI’s unclassified
roads
Visual condition
assessment principal &
classified roads
Visual assessment
unclassified roads
Date of last inspection
Coloured surfacing /
anti skid
Location of speed limits
Road markings
associated with TRO’s
Location of traffic
calming features
Width (individual asset
hierarchy data required
for both rural and urban
roads)
Construction date
Construction materials
and thickness
Planned maintenance
history
Reactive maintenance
history
Location of cellars
under carriageway

Criteria
• Coverage – the amount of information available expressed as a
percentage of the whole asset
• Records Format & Location – whether the records are hard copy or
electronic, what type of electronic database and where they are
presently stored
• Confidence Level - the level of confidence held that the existing
information is correct & up to date

Page 169

•
•

Last Surveyed – the date of the last full survey used to populate the
inventory information
Update Frequency – the frequency with which the existing data is
checked and updated

Data Collection
Table 7.2

Details of Data Collection (Traffic Signals)

Item

Historic
Data Mgt

Collection
Method

Collection
Date

Validation
Exercise

Where
Stored

Road name
Road classification
Length (individual asset
hierarchy data required
for both rural and urban
roads)
BVPI’s principal &
classified roads
BVPI’s unclassified
roads
Visual condition
assessment principal &
classified roads
Visual assessment
unclassified roads
Date of last inspection
Coloured surfacing /
anti skid
Location of speed limits
Road markings
associated with TRO’s
Location of traffic
calming features
Width (individual asset
hierarchy data required
for both rural and urban
roads)
Construction date
Construction materials
and thickness
Planned maintenance
history
Reactive maintenance
history
Location of cellars
under carriageway

Criteria
• Historic Data – how will historic data be collated / managed?

Page 170

Input
Method

•
•
•
•

•

Collection Method – how will the missing data be collected?
Collection Date – when is the missing data expected to have been
collected?
Validation Exercise – how will the existing and newly collected data be
validated?
Where Stored – where will the collected information be stored (if
response is as per Records Format and Location in Table 1.1 enter an
‘L’)?
Input Method – How will the information be entered into its storage
location?

Page 171

2

Classification of Footway and Cycleway Assets

Level 1 :
ASSET TYPE

Level 2 :
ASSET GROUP

Footways &
cycleways

Footways
Pedestrian areas
Footpaths (including PRoW)
Bridleways (including PRoW)
Cycletracks

UNIT OF MEASURE

area m2

Level 3 :
VALUATION COMPONENTS

Includes for all categories:
construction layers and
formation

In addition individual asset hierarchy data is required for both rural and urban footways in terms of meters / linear length
Where width is an unknown, meters / linear length will suffice for all the individual asset groups (for now)

Footway & Cycleway
Footway Asset Hierarchy

Prestige area (category 1a)
Primary walking route (category 1)
Secondary walking route (category 2)
Link footway (category 3)
Local access footway (category 4)

Asset Elements

Footway infrastructure
Cycleway infrastructure
Kerbing

Information Held

Location
Condition assessment
Date of last inspection
Length

Information
Required

Width
Surfacing material
Kerb type / material
Channel type / material
Construction date
Construction materials & thickness
Maintenance history

Page 172

Existing Data Information
Table 2.1

Details of Existing Inventory Data (Footway and
Cycleway)

`Item

Coverage
(%)

Records
Format &
Location

Confidence
Level (%)

Last
Surveyed

Update
Frequency

Location
BVPIs
Visual condition
assessment
Date of last inspection
Length (individual asset
hierarchy data required
for both rural and urban
roads)
Width (individual asset
hierarchy data required
for both rural and urban
roads)
Surfacing material
Kerb type / material
Construction date
Construction materials
and thickness
Planned maintenance
history
Reactive maintenance
history

Criteria
• Coverage – the amount of information available expressed as a
percentage of the whole asset
• Records Format & Location – whether the records are hard copy or
electronic, what type of electronic database and where they are
presently stored
• Confidence Level - the level of confidence held that the existing
information is correct & up to date
• Last Surveyed – the date of the last full survey used to populate the
inventory information
• Update Frequency – the frequency with which the existing data is
checked and updated

Page 173

Data Collection
Table 2.2

Details of Data Collection (Carriageways)

Item

Historic
Data Mgt

Collection
Method

Collection
Date

Validation
Exercise

Where
Stored

Input
Method

Location
BVPIs
Visual condition
assessment
Date of last inspection
Length (individual asset
hierarchy data required
for both rural and urban
roads)
Width (individual asset
hierarchy data required
for both rural and urban
roads)
Surfacing material
Kerb type / material
Construction date
Construction materials
and thickness
Planned maintenance
history
Reactive maintenance
history

Criteria
• Historic Data – how will historic data be collated / managed?
• Collection Method – how will the missing data be collected?
• Collection Date – when is the missing data expected to have been
collected?
• Validation Exercise – how will the existing and newly collected data be
validated?
• Where Stored – where will the collected information be stored (if
response is as per Records Format and Location in Table 2.1 enter an
‘L’)?
• Input Method – How will the information be entered into its storage
location?

Page 174

3

Classification of Structures Assets

Level 1 :
ASSET TYPE

Level 2 :
ASSET GROUP

UNIT OF MEASURE

Structures

Bridges and subways
Culverts
Retaining walls
Signs gantries, cantilever signs
Tunnels
Structural earthworks

deck area m2
internal surface area m2
retained area m2
span length m
length m
length m

Level 3 :
VALUATION COMPONENTS

Includes for all categories:
the entire structure

For a complete list of unit costs for structure sub-groups see the CIPFA Structures Calculator

Bridges & Other Highway Structures
Asset Elements

Accommodation bridge
Culvert
Disused rail bridge
Disused rail tunnel
Footbridge
High mast lighting column
Overbridge – building
Pedestrian way
Retaining wall
Road bridge
Sign gantry
Stairs
Subway
Tunnel
Tunnel – service

Information Held
(Do we hold all
this info ?)

Structure number
Structure name
Maintaining agent (structure / road surface)
Date of last inspection
Structure owner
Year structure commissioned
Does the road go over / under railway / canal / river /
road?
Is river tidal / navigable?
Name of navigation/drainage authority
Is the structure susceptible to scour?
Is the structure on the high load route?
Is the structure on the heavy load route?
Is the structure scheduled as an ancient monument?
Statutory undertakers having services on structure
Minimum headroom
Design load
Design standard version

Page 175

Special loading / restriction
Structure type
Grid reference
Primary deck element code
Primary deck material code
Secondary deck element code
Secondary deck material code
End supports
Intermediate supports
Nature of foundations
Bridge deck type
Bridge deck area
Parapet type
Parapet length
Pedestrian guardrail type
Pedestrian guardrail length
Footbridge type
Footbridge deck area
Wing wall type
Wing wall length
Wing wall area
Abutment type
Abutment area
Pier no
Pier type
Pier area
Retaining wall type
Retaining wall length
Retaining wall area
Stair type
Stair plan area
Ramp type
Ramp plan area
Culvert type
Culvert plan area
Subway type
Subway plan area
Safety fence type
Safety fence length
Advanced signs
Height / weight restriction signs
Lighting units
Condition assessments – (inspection and assessment
records)
Bridge condition indices (BCI’s).
Information
Required
(Does any of
the info in the

Missing structures i.e. retaining walls and culverts
that have not yet been entered onto the existing database

Page 176

list above need
moving to this list ?)
Existing Data Information
Table 3.1

Details of Existing Inventory Data (Structures)

Item

Coverage
(%)

Records
Format &
Location

Confidence
Level (%)

Structure number
Structure name
Maintaining agent
(structure / road
surface)
Date of last inspection
Structure owner
Year structure
commissioned
Does the road go over /
under railway / canal /
river / road?
Is the river tidal /
navigable?
Name of navigation /
drainage authority
Is the structure
susceptible to scour?
Is the structure on the
high load route?
Is the structure on the
heavy load route?
Is the structure
scheduled as a n
ancient monument?
Statutory undertakers
having services on the
structure
Minimum headroom
Design load
Design standard
version
Special loading /
restriction
Structure type
Grid reference
Primary deck element
code
Primary deck material
code

Page 177

Last
Surveyed

Update
Frequency

Table 3.1

Details of Existing Inventory Data (Structures)

Item

Coverage
(%)

Records
Format &
Location

Confidence
Level (%)

Secondary deck
element code
Secondary deck
material code
End supports
Intermediate supports
Nature of foundations
Bridge deck type
Bridge deck area
Parapet type
Parapet length
Pedestrian guardrail
type
Pedestrian guardrail
length
Footbridge type
Footbridge deck area
Wing wall type
Wing wall length
Wing wall area
Abutment type
Abutment area
Pier number
Pier type
Pier area
Retaining wall type
Retaining wall length
Retaining wall area
Stair type
Stair plan area

Page 178

Last
Surveyed

Update
Frequency

Table 3.1

Details of Existing Inventory Data (Structures)

Item

Coverage
(%)

Records
Format &
Location

Confidence
Level (%)

Last
Surveyed

Update
Frequency

Ramp type
Ramp plan area
Culvert type
Culvert plan area
Subway type
Subway plan area
Safety fence type
Safety fence length
Advance signs
Height / weight
restriction signs
Lighting units
Condition assessments
(inspection and
assessment records)
BCIs

Criteria
• Coverage – the amount of information available expressed as a
percentage of the whole asset
• Records Format & Location – whether the records are hard copy or
electronic, what type of electronic database and where they are
presently stored
• Confidence Level - the level of confidence held that the existing
information is correct & up to date
• Last Surveyed – the date of the last full survey used to populate the
inventory information
• Update Frequency – the frequency with which the existing data is
checked and updated

Page 179

4

Classification of Lighting Assets

Level 1 :
ASSET TYPE

Level 2 :
ASSET GROUP

Lighting

Lighting columns
Wall mounted lighting units
High mast lighting
Traffic signs

UNIT OF MEASURE

number

Level 3 :
VALUATION COMPONENTS

The entire item including:
column and foundations
brackets, luminaires
control gear, internal wiring

Highway Lighting
Asset Elements

Lighting columns
Wall mounted lighting units
High mast lighting (over 12m)
Subway units
Heritage columns
Feeder pillars
Illuminated traffic bollards
Illuminated traffic signs

Information Held
(Do we hold all
this info ?)

Identity number
Site location
Year commissioned
Date of last inspection
Date of last electrical test
Date of last electrical test to authority network by circuit
Date of last Authority cable network electrical test
Date of last group lamp replacement
Unit type
Column / sign post material
Column / sign post mounting height
Column / sign post fixing
Column / sign post root protection
Column / sign post flange base
Bracket type
Number of brackets
Bracket projection
Traffic sign illumination
Number of luminaries
Luminaire model reference
Luminaire distribution and profile
Luminaire setting
Luminaire ingress protection
Lamp type
Lamp wattage
Lamp charge code
Number of lamps per luminaire

Page 180

Control type
Switching regimes codes
Control location
Service owner
Supply point
Number of outgoing circuits at supply points
Traffic sign diagram number (if applicable)
Traffic sign category (if applicable)
Attachment / traffic sign size (if applicable)
Number of approved attachments (if applicable)
Type of approved attachment (if applicable)
Trans-illuminated traffic bollard body material
Trans-illuminated traffic bollard body type
Trans-illuminated traffic bollard base material
Trans-illuminated traffic bollard base type
Feeder pillar body material
Feeder pillar body protection
Number of phases
Isolator rating
Number of outgoing circuits
Outgoing circuit protection device
Feeder pillar drawing number
Information
Missing columns and illuminated signs
Required
that have not yet been entered onto the existing database
(Does any of
the info in the
list above need
moving to this list ?)
Existing Data Information
Table 4.1

Details of Existing Inventory Data (Structures)

Item

Coverage
(%)

Records
Format &
Location

Confidence
Level (%)

Identity number
Site location
Year commissioned
Date of last inspection
Date of last electrical
test
Date of last electrical
test to authority network
by circuit

Page 181

Last
Surveyed

Update
Frequency

Table 4.1

Details of Existing Inventory Data (Structures)

Item

Coverage
(%)

Records
Format &
Location

Confidence
Level (%)

Date of last Authority
cable network electrical
test
Date of last group lamp
replacement
Unit type
Column / sign post
material
Column / sign post
mounting height
Column / sign post
fixing
Column / sign post root
protection
Column / sign post
flange base
Bracket type
Number of brackets
Bracket projection
Traffic sign illumination
Number of luminaires
Luminaire model
reference
Luminaire distribution
and profile
Luminaire setting
Luminaire ingress
protection
Lamp type
Lamp wattage
Lamp charge code
Number of lamps per
luminaire
Control type
Switching regimes
codes
Control location
Service owner
Supply point

Page 182

Last
Surveyed

Update
Frequency

Table 4.1

Details of Existing Inventory Data (Structures)

Item

Coverage
(%)

Records
Format &
Location

Confidence
Level (%)

Last
Surveyed

Update
Frequency

Number of outgoing
circuits at supply points
Traffic sign diagram
number (if app)
Traffic sign category (if
app)
Attachment / traffic sign
size (if app)
Number of approved
attachments (if app)
Type of approved
attachment (if app)
Trans-illuminated traffic
bollard body material
Trans-illuminated traffic
bollard body type
Trans-illuminated traffic
bollard base material
Trans-illuminated traffic
bollard base type
Feeder pillar body
material
Feeder pillar body
protection
Number of phases
Isolator rating
Number of outgoing
circuits
Outgoing circuit
protection device
Feeder pillar drawing
number

Criteria
• Coverage – the amount of information available expressed as a
percentage of the whole asset
• Records Format & Location – whether the records are hard copy or
electronic, what type of electronic database and where they are
presently stored
• Confidence Level - the level of confidence held that the existing
information is correct & up to date
• Last Surveyed – the date of the last full survey used to populate the
inventory information
• Update Frequency – the frequency with which the existing data is
checked and updated

Data Collection

Page 183

Table 4.2

Details of Data Collection (Carriageways)

Item

Historic
Data Mgt

Collection
Method

Collection
Date

Validation
Exercise

Where
Stored

Input
Method

All items

Criteria
• Historic Data – how will historic data be collated / managed?
• Collection Method – how will the missing data be collected?
• Collection Date – when is the missing data expected to have been
collected?
• Validation Exercise – how will the existing and newly collected data be
validated?
• Where Stored – where will the collected information be stored (if
response is as per Records Format and Location in Table 4.1 enter an
‘L’)?
• Input Method – How will the information be entered into its storage
location?

Page 184

5

Classification of Land Assets

Level 1 :
ASSET TYPE

Level 2 :
ASSET GROUP

UNIT OF MEASURE

Level 3 :
VALUATION COMPONENTS

Highway green spaces

Freehold land and rights land

area - hectares

Nothing beyond area of land

Highway Land / Green Spaces
Asset Elements

Land - rural
Land - urban

Information Held
(Do we hold all
this info ?)

Location
Date of last inspection
Area

Information
Required

CIPFA guidance not yet available so elements unknown

Existing Data Information
Table 5.1

Details of Existing Inventory Data (Land)

Item

Coverage
(%)

Records
Format &
Location

Confidence
Level (%)

Last
Surveyed

Update
Frequency

Location
Condition
Area - rural
Area - urban

Criteria
• Coverage – the amount of information available expressed as a
percentage of the whole asset
• Records Format & Location – whether the records are hard copy or
electronic, what type of electronic database and where they are
presently stored
• Confidence Level - the level of confidence held that the existing
information is correct & up to date
• Last Surveyed – the date of the last full survey used to populate the
inventory information
• Update Frequency – the frequency with which the existing data is
checked and updated

Page 185

Data Collection
Table 5.2

Details of Data Collection (Land)

Item

Historic
Data Mgt

Collection
Method

Collection
Date

Validation
Exercise

Where
Stored

Input
Method

Location
Condition
Area - rural
Area - urban

Criteria
• Historic Data – how will historic data be collated / managed?
• Collection Method – how will the missing data be collected?
• Collection Date – when is the missing data expected to have been
collected?
• Validation Exercise – how will the existing and newly collected data be
validated?
• Where Stored – where will the collected information be stored (if
response is as per Records Format and Location in Table 4.1 enter an
‘L’)?
• Input Method – How will the information be entered into its storage
location?

Page 186

6

Classification of Street Furniture Assets

Level 1 :
ASSET TYPE

Level 2 :
ASSET GROUP

Street furniture

Urban roads
Rural roads

UNIT OF MEASURE

number

Level 3 :
VALUATION COMPONENTS

Seating,
litter bins, grit bins
bollards, sign posts,
street name plates, trees, weather
station

Street Furniture
•
•
•

Carriageway infrastructure
Road markings
Pedestrian refuges, central reservations & traffic islands

Asset Hierarchy

Principal roads
Classified roads
Unclassified roads

Asset Elements

Advanced direction signs
Direction signs
Warning signs
Information signs
Sign posts
Street name plates
Bollards
Seats
Highway fences
Pedestrian barriers
Safety barriers
Litter bins
Grit bins
Weather station
Highway trees

Information Held

Signs
Sign Category
Reflectorisation
External Illumination
Mounting Method
Mounting Height
Plate Size
X-height
Posts
Ownership
Condition Details (Good, Average, Poor)

Page 187

Bins and Grit Bins
Location
Type
Condition
Age
Weather Station
Location
Type
Condition
Age

Information
Required

Signs
Gazetteer Reference
Location Description
OS Grid Reference
Unit Number (where applicable)
Sign Plate Reference Number (Traffic signs Manual)
Plate Description
Sign Type
Condition (Good, Average, Poor)
Photo Reference
Sign Category
Reflectorisation
External Illumination
Mounting Method
Mounting Height
No of Poles
Plate Size
X-height
Ownership
Barriers
Location
Type
Length
Condition
Age
Street Furniture
Location
Type
Material
Length
Height
Condition
Age

Page 188

Highway Trees
Location
Species
Height
Condition
Age
Existing Data Information
Table 6.1

Details of Existing Inventory Data (Street Furniture)

Item

Coverage
(%)

Records
Format &
Location

Confidence
Level (%)

Signs
Sign category
Reflectorisation
External illumination
Mounting method
Mounting height
Plate size
X-height
Posts
Ownership
Condition details (good,
average, poor)
Bins and Grit Bins
Location
Type
Condition
Age
Weather Station
Location
Type
Condition
Age

Page 189

Last
Surveyed

Update
Frequency

Criteria
• Coverage – the amount of information available expressed as a
percentage of the whole asset
• Records Format & Location – whether the records are hard copy or
electronic, what type of electronic database and where they are
presently stored
Confidence Level - the level of confidence held that the existing
information is correct & up to date
• Last Surveyed – the date of the last full survey used to populate the
inventory information
• Update Frequency – the frequency with which the existing data is
checked and updated
•

Data Collection
Table 6.2

Details of Data Collection (Carriageways)

Item

Historic
Data Mgt

Collection
Method

Collection
Date

Signs
Sign category
Reflectorisation
External illumination
Mounting method
Mounting height
Plate size
X-height
Posts
Ownership
Condition details (good,
average, poor)
Gazetteer reference
Location description
OS grid reference
Unit number
Sign plate reference
number

Page 190

Validation
Exercise

Where
Stored

Input
Method

Plate description
Sign type
Barriers and Guardrail
Location
Type
Condition
Age
Street Furniture
Location
Type
Material
Length
Height
Condition
Age
Highway Trees
Location
Species
Height
Condition
Age

Criteria
• Historic Data – how will historic data be collated / managed?
• Collection Method – how will the missing data be collected?
• Collection Date – when is the missing data expected to have been
collected?
• Validation Exercise – how will the existing and newly collected data be
validated?
• Where Stored – where will the collected information be stored (if
response is as per Records Format and Location in Table 6.1 enter an
‘L’)?
• Input Method – How will the information be entered into its storage
location?

Page 191

7

Classification of Traffic Signal Assets

Level 1 :
ASSET TYPE

Level 2 :
ASSET GROUP

UNIT OF MEASURE

Level 3 :
VALUATION COMPONENTS

Traffic management

Traffic signals
Pedestrian signals
Information systems
Safety cameras

number
number
number
number

All equipment and cables
All equipment and cables
All equipment and cables
All equipment and cables

Asset Hierarchy

Principal Roads
Classified Roads
Unclassified Roads

Asset Elements

Traffic Signalised Junction
Pelican / Puffin Crossing
Toucan Crossing
Pegasus Crossing
School Crossing Patrol Flashing Lights
SCOOT Apparatus

Information Held

Site number
District
Site location
Type of controller
Control system
Listing of all power consuming equipment (Traffic Heads,
Green arrows, Pedestrian Heads etc)
Equipment contained within the controller
Inspection Records
Condition of Installation
Number of Signal Poles
Condition of Signal Poles

Information
Required

Location referenced to road number/hierarchy

Existing Data Information
Table 7.1

Details of Existing Inventory Data (Traffic Signals)

Item

Coverage
(%)

Records
Format &
Location

Confidence
Level (%)

Site number
Site location

Page 192

Last
Surveyed

Update
Frequency

GPS reference
Age
Type of controller
Control system
Listing of all power
consuming equipment
Equipment contained
within the controller
Inspection records
Condition of installation
Number of signal poles

Criteria
• Coverage – the amount of information available expressed as a
percentage of the whole asset
• Records Format & Location – whether the records are hard copy or
electronic, what type of electronic database and where they are
presently stored
• Confidence Level - the level of confidence held that the existing
information is correct & up to date
• Last Surveyed – the date of the last full survey used to populate the
inventory information
• Update Frequency – the frequency with which the existing data is
checked and updated

Data Collection
Table 7.2

Details of Data Collection (Traffic Signals)

Item

Historic
Data Mgt

Collection
Method

Collection
Date

Site number
Site location
GPS reference
Age
Type of controller
Control system
Listing of all power
consuming equipment
Equipment contained
within the controller

Page 193

Validation
Exercise

Where
Stored

Input
Method

Inspection records
Condition of installation
Number of signal poles
Location referenced to
road number / hierarchy

Criteria
• Historic Data – how will historic data be collated / managed?
• Collection Method – how will the missing data be collected?
• Collection Date – when is the missing data expected to have been
collected?
• Validation Exercise – how will the existing and newly collected data be
validated?
• Where Stored – where will the collected information be stored (if
response is as per Records Format and Location in Table 7.1 enter an
‘L’)?
• Input Method – How will the information be entered into its storage
location?

Page 194

Appendix 2 – Asset Systems Register
The following table provides a register of the existing Highways Asset Information
records and systems.
Asset Group
Carriageway
Carriageway

Description
Road Markings
records
Gazetteer

Carriageway,
Footway
Carriageway

Inspection Records

Footways and
Cycleways
Footways and
Cycleways

Cycle Route
Documentation
Public Rights of
Way Definitive Map
and records
Disposal
Documents
Conveyancing
Records (including
tenancies)
Easement Records

Land
Land

Land
Street Lighting
Street Furniture
Street Furniture
Street Furniture
Structures

Structures
Traffic
Management

Drainage records

Street Lighting
records
Street Furniture
records
Traffic Signs records
Street Name Plates
Bridges
Management and
Assessment
Coastal Erosion
Records
Traffic Signals
records

Information Owner
Traffic Manager

System
SIGNS

Highways Asset
Manager
Contracts
Manager
Drainage and
Flood
Management
Manager
Traffic Manager

GIS

Highways Asset
Manager

GIS

Service Manager

Legal Services
records
Legal Services
records

Service Manager

Service Manager
Street Lighting
Manager
Highways Asset
Manager
Traffic Manager
Highways Asset
Manager
Bridges and
Coastal Manager
Bridges and
Coastal Manager
Traffic Manager

Page 195

Oracle CRM
SEAGULLS and
Gazetteer

Spreadsheet

Legal Services
records
HILITE Horizon
Gazetteer
SIGNS
Filed records
BADGERS

CIGARS
SEIMANS SCOOT

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 196

Agenda Item 15
WIRRAL COUNCIL
CABINET
15TH MARCH 2012
SUBJECT:

LOCAL TRANSPORT CAPITAL FUNDING &
THE INTEGRATED TRANSPORT BLOCK
(ITB) PROGRAMME 2012/13

WARD/S AFFECTED:

ALL

REPORT OF:

DIRECTOR OF TECHNICAL SERVICES

RESPONSIBLE

COUNCILLOR DAVE MITCHELL

PORTFOLIO HOLDER:

STREETSCENE AND TRANSPORT SERVICES

KEY DECISION?

YES

1.0

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1

On 13 January 2011, Cabinet were advised of the Government’s Local
Transport Capital Settlement letter, dated 13 December 2010, which
announced the level of transport funding that the Merseyside authorities were
to receive for 2011/12 and 2012/13, along with indicative figures for 2013/14
and 2014/15. The Cabinet report also presented the background to the
development of the third Local Transport Plan (LTP3), which commenced in
April 2011, and set out the LTP budget for 2011/12 (minute 285 refers). This
report presents the budget for 2012/13 in accordance with the 2010
settlement letter, and seeks Cabinet approval for the Integrated Transport
Block (ITB) programme that is anticipated to be in the region of £1,185,000
(subject to the finalisation of ongoing discussions with the Merseyside
Transport Partnership).

1.2

The determination of suitable schemes and projects within the proposed
2012/13 Capital programme and the budget allocation for the ITB outlined in
this report are prioritised in line with the Council’s Corporate Goal to “have a
safe and well maintained highway network for all users” and continue to
reduce the number of people killed or seriously injured on the roads in the
Borough. Schemes and projects identified in the report will contribute to the
objectives and priorities contained in the current LTP3.

1.3

The schemes detailed within this report that form the ITB directly address the
Council’s Statutory Duties as set out in the Highways Act 1980, Road Traffic
Regulations Act 1984, Road Traffic Act 1988, Local Government Act 2000
and the Traffic Management Act 2004.

1.4

Members will be aware that the Department for Transport (DfT) has
significantly reduced the amount of transport funding it has made available
since 2010. Over the last couple of years, Wirral’s allocation of the

___________________________________________________________________________

Page 197

Merseyside annual ITB equates to a reduction of nearly 50%, from
£2,365,000 in 2010/11 to £1,185,000 in 2012/13. This reduction in the
Integrated Transport Block funding from Government is likely to have
significant impact on the ability of the Council to continue its recent
improvements in road safety.
1.5

To compensate for this reduction the Council has approved an additional
£650,000 Capital allocation specifically for road safety improvements and
transport schemes as part of a Capital Investment Programme. This
additional funding is crucial and also welcomed in light of the reductions in
funding by the DfT and will enable schemes to be developed that will make a
significant contribution in reducing the number and severity of casualties on
Wirral’s roads and improve the existing infrastructure to support safer,
sustainable travel for vulnerable road users, including cyclists and
pedestrians. The funding will be invested using a prioritisation process to
ensure the greatest benefit in road safety casualty reduction specific schemes
are incorporated within the appropriate ITB allocations detailed in this report.

2.0

BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES

2.1

This section provides Members with a brief overview of the priorities and
objectives in the third Local Transport Plan (LTP3), which came into effect at
the start of April 2011.

2.2

Following the Local Transport Act 2008, the Merseyside Integrated Transport
Authority (ITA) has formal statutory responsibility for LTP3, however, in
keeping with the established partnership working in Merseyside, it has been
produced in collaboration with all of the Merseyside local authorities. The LTP
Strategy document is a crucial policy/statutory framework for future transport
provision.

2.3

The third LTP has been developed according to government guidance to
ensure that the Merseyside transport system aids economic growth whilst, at
the same time, playing its part in reducing carbon emissions and addressing
climate change. The strategy aims to deliver other local priorities of improving
health and well-being, so that health inequalities, social exclusion, improved
accessibility and safety can be addressed.

2.4

However, the new LTP has also been developed in a climate of reduced
funding and challenging economic circumstances. Local forecasts for the
future, based on the best information available, including development
forecasts, show a largely flat projected traffic growth in the short term.
Longer-term forecasting at the present time is uncertain, but in line with
national projections, forecasts show demand will increase again from about
2014/15.

2.5

On this basis, it is anticipated that the existing Merseyside transport networks
will largely be able to cope with forecast demands over the first 3 or 4 years of
LTP3. Key actions over the short-term, therefore, have been identified that:

___________________________________________________________________________

Page 198

2.6

•

Prioritise maintenance programmes;

•

Provide a robust framework linking transport and future
developments in a way that can reduce long distance travel and
carbon emissions, and improve accessibility;

•

Expand the range of public transport services;

•

Begin to implement the next generation of technology;

•
•

Develop and enhance the freight and logistics network;
Reduce carbon emissions and reliance on oil, improve air quality
and improve health;

•

Increase sustainable and safe travel; and

•

Continue to reduce road traffic accidents.

Each of the Merseyside LTP partner authorities has developed their own
capital programme which, when combined, form a Merseyside-wide
Implementation Plan. Wirral’s LTP programme has been constructed under
the following headings to reflect the above key actions and complement the
Council’s Corporate Goals and Objectives to make sure that Wirral’s roads
are safe and well maintained and continue to reduce the number of people
killed or seriously injured in road traffic accidents.
•

Improving Road Safety

•

Promoting Active Travel & Health

•

Promoting Economy & Accessibility

•

Reducing Congestion & Carbon Emissions

•

Transportation - General

Sections 5 to 9 of this report address each of these headings in turn, and
present a breakdown of the ITB funding (together with the additional
£650,000 Capital allocation approved by Council) against potential projects.
Wirral’s ITB allocation of £1,185,000 for 2012/13, based on the existing ITB
local formula, equates to 10.04% of the Merseyside ITB settlement
(£12,255,000).
2.7

At its meeting on the 20th February 2012, Merseytravel’s Local Transport Plan
Delivery, Bus & Merseytram Committee approved recommendations for
cross-authority core activities such as the Liverpool City Region Transport
Model (LCRTM), Monitoring and Freight Development, to be funded directly
from the 2012/13 Merseyside ITB settlement of £12,255,000. It was approved
that a core activity allocation of £460,000 from the ITB settlement be retained

___________________________________________________________________________

Page 199

by and administered by Merseytravel. It was stressed that these core activity
costs are still indicative and proposed they remain so for the duration of
2012/13 until final costs are known. As the ITB is distributed on a quarterly
basis, the core activity fund is to be reviewed regularly to allow for any
adjustments to be made.
2.8

There are further discussions needed to determine if joint funding is required
to support the Road Safety Partnership. The MTP is endeavouring to keep
the level of such joint working to a minimum but at the time of writing, the
outcome of these discussions should be resolved following the meeting of the
Merseyside Integrated Transport Authority on 15th March.

4.0

IMPROVING ROAD SAFETY (£815,000)

4.1

The LTP Capital programme block allocation for ‘Improving Road Safety’ may
be summarised as:

‘IMPROVING ROAD SAFETY’ (Block Allocation)
Sub-Block

Allocation

Local Safety Schemes (LSS)
School Travel Improvements - Safer Routes To School (SRTS)
Area Forums

£ 555,000
£150,000
£110,000

Total ‘IMPROVING ROAD SAFETY’
4.2

£815,000

Local Safety Schemes (LSS) (£555,000)

4.2.1 The Corporate Plan has a goal to “have a safe and well maintained highway
network for all users”. Schemes prioritised within the Local Safety Scheme
programme will have a major impact in reducing the number and severity of
casualties on Wirral’s roads and, thereby, making a significant contribution
towards this Corporate Goal.
4.2.2 The Local Safety Scheme programme allocation contains scheme(s) that
address the obligations required as part of the Council’s Statutory Duties (as
set out in the Highways Act 1980, Road Traffic Regulations Act 1984, Road
Traffic Act 1988, Local Government Act 2000 and the Traffic Management Act
2004) and are proven with evidential information (e.g. DFT Road Safety
Research Report no.108 ‘contribution of Local Safety Schemes to Casualty
Reduction’) to reduce road accident casualties.
4.2.3 The list below identifies schemes totalling £555,000 for inclusion within the
2012/13 LSS programme based upon the results of preliminary investigations
by my Accident Investigation Unit into the accident records for each location,
together with an overall initial assessment of the suitability for suggested
remedial measures that can be economically justified based on the expected
accident cost savings. Further detailed investigations will be required prior to
any final scheme being designed.
___________________________________________________________________________

Page 200

4.2.4 The list has been prepared with initial estimates, however it should be noted
that final schemes will be subject to the costing of detailed designs and
statutory undertakers’ works.
4.2.5 Should any of the schemes identified be found to be not viable upon further
detailed investigation, or to have been completed for less than the indicative
cost, the Director of Technical Services in conjunction with Party
Spokespersons shall be given delegated authority to identify suitable
additional or replacement schemes that can be expected to achieve similar
accident cost savings.
4.2.6 As part of the 2011 Local Transport White Paper, the Department for
Transport issued guidance regarding the creation of a £560 million Local
Sustainable Transport Fund (LSTF), the purpose of which was to help build
local economies and address climate change. Authorities were invited to bid
to secure funding via the Department for Transport (DfT). The fund, both
revenue and capital, was available over four financial years 2011/12 to
2014/15.
4.2.7 Metropolitan Authorities were required to bid through their respective
Integrated Transport Authority (ITA) and in June 2011, Merseytravel, on
behalf of the Merseyside Transport Partnership (MTP), submitted an early
smaller bid, known as a Key Component bid, for £4.877 million. The project
was to “Facilitate Sustainable Access to Employment in Merseyside”.
4.2.8 In August 2011, Merseytravel on behalf of the Merseyside Transport
Partnership were told that their bid for funding was successful and £810,000
of the total Key Component bid was awarded for the delivery of projects in
Wirral.
4.2.9 It is proposed that, a scheme to introduce traffic signals at the junction of
Bromborough Road / The Wiend / Ellen’s Lane, be jointly funded between the
Local Safety Scheme programme and the recently successful LSTF Key
Component bid allocation. This proposal will provide significant safety
improvements for pedestrians and cyclists, improved access to Port Sunlight
Railway Station, the Unilever Factory and improved links to the A41 corridor.
Allocation:
Sub-Block:
Local Safety Schemes:
Bolton Road Roundabout, Bromborough - Signalised junction /
crossing improvements*
Budworth Road / Waterford Rd, Oxton - Improved Signing &
Lining
Cathcart Street / Price Street, Birkenhead - minor junction
improvement
Ellens Lane, Bebington - Traffic signals / pedestrian facilities**
Greenway Road / Hawthorne Road / Dial Road, Tranmere Signing & lining

£55,000
£5,000
£25,000
£30,000
£10,000

___________________________________________________________________________

Page 201

Gorsey Lane/Kingsway Tunnel RAB, Wallasey - Signing & lining
Marlowe Road/Torrington Road. Wallasey - Refuge & build-out
Mount Road/Broadway, Bebington - mini-roundabout
Leeswood Road, Mavis Road & Woodland Road Area,
Woodchurch – Traffic Calming measures
Downham Road Area, Birkenhead – Traffic Calming Measures
Arrowe Park Road, Upton – Signs & Lines
Shrewsbury Road, Oxton: Route action (various measures)
Telegraph Road/Quarry Road, Heswall - Improved Signing &
Lining
Total ‘Local Safety Schemes’ (Sub-Block Allocation)

£35,000
£35,000
£90,000
£105,000
£75,000
£20,000
£60,000
£10,000
£555,000

* Part funded together with £45,000 contribution from Walking Strategy, £45,000 contribution from
Cycling Strategy & £30,000 contribution from UTC/Telematics allocation(s).
** Part funded together with £90,000 contribution from approved minor bid (Key Component) LSTF
allocation.

4.2.10 Members will note that a specific budget heading for Traffic Calming is not
included within the proposed Road Safety block for 2012/13. Traffic calming
measures will however continue to be considered where their provision
supports specific initiatives and where such schemes may be justified on their
existing personal injury accident record.
4.3

School Travel Improvements - Safer Routes To School (SRTS)(£150,000)

4.3.1 The schemes and projects within the Safer Routes To School programme
have been selected to contribute towards the Corporate Goal “to have a safe
and well maintained network for all users” and all to provide and promote
sustainable travel options.
4.3.2 SRTS schemes help teachers, parents/carers and children to reduce car use
on the school journey and adopt a more sustainable approach to getting to
school by walking and cycling thereby increasing their independence, health
and fitness. Such schemes by their very nature also help to contribute to a
reduction in Wirral’s carbon footprint.
Allocation:
Sub-Block:
School Travel Improvements (SRTS):
Bridge Road / Orrysdale Road, West Kirby - TOUCAN crossing*
Grange Road / Darmonds Green, West Kirby** - PUFFIN crossing
Manor Lane, Wallasey (TRO, Signing & Road Markings) ***
School Keep Clear Markings - various locations
Spital Road, Clatterbridge (east leg) - pedestrian phase at Spital
Crossroads Traffic Signals****
SRTS Promotional Activities
Woodslee Primary School, Bromborough - School (flashing light)
signing

£35,000
£35,000
£4,000
£8,000
£30,000
£36,000
£2,000

___________________________________________________________________________

Page 202

Total ‘School Travel Improvements’ (Sub-Block Allocation)

£150,000

* Part funded together with £35,000 contribution from Cycling Strategy programme
** Part funded together with £35,000 contribution from Pedestrian Signals programme
*** Scheme carried forward from 2011/12
**** Part funded together with £20,000 contribution from Pedestrian Signals programme

4.4

Area Forum Improvements (£110,000)

4.4.1 The remaining allocation of £110,000 under the ‘Improving Road Safety’
heading is available for the 11 Area Forums. (Together with an allocation of
£110,000 from the ‘Promoting Active Travel & Health’ heading (para 6.4
refers), apportioned equally across the eleven Area Forums, this equates to a
total of £20,000 per Area Forum).
Sub-Block:

Allocation:

Area Forum Improvements:
Bebington & Clatterbridge
Bidston & Claughton
Birkenhead, Tranmere & Rock Ferry
Bromborough & Eastham
Greasby, Frankby, Irby, Upton & Woodchurch
Heswall, Pensby & Thingwall
Liscard & Seacombe
Leasowe, Moreton & Saughall Massie
New Brighton & Wallasey
Oxton & Prenton
West Wirral
Total ‘Area Forum’ (Sub-Block Allocation)

£10,000
£10,000
£10,000
£10,000
£10,000
£10,000
£10,000
£10,000
£10,000
£10,000
£10,000
£110,000

5.0

PROMOTING ACTIVE TRAVEL & HEALTH (£620,000)

5.1

The LTP Capital programme block allocation for ‘Promoting Active Travel &
Health’ may be summarised as:

‘PROMOTING ACTIVE TRAVEL & HEALTH’ (Block Allocation)
Sub-Block

Allocation

Walking Strategy
Cycling Strategy
Area Forums

£ 255,000
£ 255,000
£110,000

Total ‘PROMOTING ACTIVE TRAVEL & HEALTH’
£620,000
___________________________________________________________________________

Page 203

5.2

Walking Strategy (£255,000)

5.2.1 Schemes and projects within the Walking Strategy programme are prioritised
in line with the Council’s Corporate Goals and Objectives to make sure that
walking in the Borough is a safe, convenient and attractive proposition.
Pedestrians can be at higher risk on the road network and schemes
developed will contribute to a reduction in the number and severity of
casualties and will help to reduce the carbon footprint.
5.2.2 The Walking Strategy programme comprising of pedestrian signal controlled
crossings, dropped kerb crossings, pedestrian refuges and public rights of
way, are proposed to encourage walking through better environments where
it is safe and attractive to do so and thereby promoting a carbon friendly,
sustainable and healthy alternative mode of transport. The programmes have
been determined against agreed Council criteria and take account of ideas for
schemes from Local Area Forums and through receipt of petitions.
5.2.3 In formulating the programme for 2012/13, a site inspection has been carried
out at potential Pedestrian Crossing sites including all those for which
requests have been received. A number of sites are not considered suitable
for the provision of a puffin crossing because of physical constraints (or
potential design-safety concerns following further detailed consideration) and
have not been assessed against the approved weighting system. All previous
requests have been re-assessed using the most recent surveys and accident
records. A list of the 10 highest scoring sites from previous years is shown in
Appendix B together with the weighted PV2 figures where appropriate. (‘P’
being the number of pedestrians crossing and ‘V’ being the vehicle flow
‘squared’).
5.2.4 It should be noted that the 2nd ranked location for a Puffin crossing is St
Albans Road, Liscard, however technical and safety considerations would
preclude the provision of a Puffin type facility at this location in isolation
without undertaking potentially extensive works at the adjacent junction and
beyond and it is unlikely that the ‘Pedestrian Signals’ element of the Walking
Strategy budget allocation would be sufficient to fund such works.
5.2.5 This allocation is also used to improve or provide formal signalised pedestrian
crossing facilities at existing signalised junctions were additional benefits can
be accrued in line with the objectives of the Safer Routes to School initiative
and at other sites that can be prioritised for action based upon potential
accident savings in line with LTP priority targets.
5.2.6 A programme of improvements will also continue to be identified, prioritised
and implemented to compliment the Public Rights of Way Improvement Plan.
5.2.7 The Walking Strategy deals with the following specific programmes and
recommends works/allocations for each of the following headings listed
below. The schemes proposed are also designed to compliment the terms of
___________________________________________________________________________

Page 204

reference adopted by the Wirral Pedestrian Forum that advocate and promote
safe, accessible and usable facilities and routes across the borough, making
walking more attractive and accessible to residents, visitors, employees and
businesses.
5.2.8 Appendix C lists the requests for the provision of dropped crossings that are
to be recommended as prioritised for action in consultation with WIRED. Any
specific locations raised directly by WIRED during consideration will also be
assessed during these consultations. The provision of a single dropped
crossing facility costs in the region of £750 and it will not be possible to
address all requests.
Sub-Block:

Allocation:

Walking Strategy:
Pedestrian Signals:
• Grange Road/Darmond Green, West Kirby*- PUFFIN
crossing
• Old Chester Road / Pembroke Court, Tranmere conversion from Zebra to PUFFIN crossing
• Poulton Road / north of Poulton Royd Drive (in the vicinity
of Mobberley Way), Spital - PUFFIN crossing
Pedestrian Improvements:
• Bolton Road roundabout, Bromborough - pedestrian
facilities**
• Pedestrian Dropped Crossings (refer to appendix ‘C’)***
• Spital Road / Poulton Road, Clatterbridge - pedestrian
signalised phase****
Public Rights Of Way - Improvement Plan

£20,000
£15,000

Total ‘Walking Strategy’ (Sub-Block Allocation)

£255,000

£35,000
£70,000
£50,000

£45,000
£20,000

* Part funded together with £35,000 contribution from the ‘Safer Routes To School’ programme
** Part funded together with £45,000 contribution from the ‘Cycling Strategy, £55,000 contribution
from the LSS programme & £30,000 from UTC / Telematics

*** Appendix ‘C’ lists requests for dropped crossings (to be prioritised for action in consultation with
Wirral Information Resource for Equality & Disability (WIRED) & the Wirral Pedestrian Forum).

**** Part funded together with £30,000 contribution from the ‘Safer Routes To School’ programme
5.3

Cycling Strategy (£255,000)

5.3.1 The schemes and projects identified within the Cycling Strategy programme
are prioritised in line with the Council’s Corporate Goals and Objectives to
make sure that Wirral’s roads are safe and convenient for cyclists to use.
Cycling schemes will contribute to reducing the number and severity of
casualties on the road network and to reducing Wirral’s carbon footprint.
___________________________________________________________________________

Page 205

5.3.2 Opportunities to draw on external funding, to complement the LTP
programme, are also being applied for, including new applications to Sustrans
‘Links to Schools’ Fund. Such schemes by their very nature help to promote a
healthy lifestyle and contribute to a reduction in Wirral’s carbon footprint.
5.3.3 The proposed Cycling Strategy programme can be summarised as follows:
Sub-Block:

Allocation:

Cycling Strategy:
Bolton Road roundabout, Bromborough*
Bridge Road / Orrysdale Road, West Kirby (TOUCAN)**
Gorsedale to Central Park link, Wallasey
Kelvin Road - Lucerne Road link, Wallasey
Measures to assist Wirral Circular Trail (east)
Mill Lane to Mosslands Link , Wallasey
Cycling Promotional Activities
Wallasey Network signing
Total ‘Cycling Strategy’ (Sub-Block Allocation)
Broadway / Claremont Rd, Wallasey (carried forward from 2011/12)

£45,000
£35,000
£40,000
£10,000
£60,000
£30,000
£25,000
£10,000
£255,000
£15,000

* Part funded together with £45,000 contribution from the ‘Walking Strategy, £55,000 contribution
from the LSS programme & £30,000 from UTC / Telematics

** Part funded - £35,000 contribution from the ‘SRTS’ programme.
5.4

Area Forum Improvements (£110,000)

5.4.1 The remaining allocation of £110,000 under the ‘Promoting Active Travel &
Health’ heading is available for the 11 Area Forums. Apportioned equally
across the eleven Area Forums this equates to £10,000 per Area Forum.
5.4.2 A further £110,000 allocation is available for the 11 Area Forums under the
‘Improving Road Safety’ heading (para 5.3 refers), resulting in a total of
£20,000 per Area Forum.
Allocation:

Sub-Block:
Area Forum Improvements:
Bebington & Clatterbridge
Bidston & Claughton
Birkenhead, Tranmere & Rock Ferry
Bromborough & Eastham
Greasby, Frankby, Irby, Upton & Woodchurch
Heswall, Pensby & Thingwall
Liscard & Seacombe

£10,000
£10,000
£10,000
£10,000
£10,000
£10,000
£10,000

___________________________________________________________________________

Page 206

Leasowe, Moreton & Saughall Massie
New Brighton & Wallasey
Oxton & Prenton
West Wirral
Total ‘Area Forum’ (Sub-Block Allocation)

£10,000
£10,000
£10,000
£10,000
£110,000

6.0 PROMOTING ECONOMY & ACCESSIBILITY (£50,000)
6.1

The LTP Capital programme block allocation for ‘Promoting Economy &
Accessibility’ may be summarised as;

‘PROMOTING ECONOMY & ACCESSIBILITY’ (Block Allocation)
Sub-Block

Allocation

Accessability

£ 50,000

Total ‘PROMOTING ECONOMY & ACCESSIBILITY’

£50,000

6.2

Accessibility was one of the 4 “shared priorities” that were agreed by
Government to be delivered as part of the second Local Transport Plan
(LTP2). The Accessibility block of the LTP Capital Allocation has been used in
recent years to help break down barriers to people using public transport, and
deliver schemes and initiatives to improve access to jobs, healthcare,
education and life opportunities. In LTP3, improving levels of accessibility
continues to be a key aspect of the strategy to ensure that transport supports
equality of travel opportunities, which forms part of the short-term
implementation plan up to 2014/15.

6.3

A key success of the accessibility programme in Wirral has been the Travel
Training scheme originally set up in November 2007 and to date has received
almost 400 referrals. Following the successful pilot scheme, originally
supported with European funding, has now been expanded to 3 dedicated
travel trainers. The travel trainers work closely with several local special
schools, Children and Young Peoples Department, Department of Adult
Social Services and numerous local voluntary and community sector
organisations. This scheme supports individuals aged 14+, by providing oneto-one training to help those who need extra support to make journeys on
their own using public transport. Travel training can help those who are not
familiar with using public transport, those having to make new or unfamiliar
journeys or people who are experiencing difficulties after a recent disability or
illness. Once completed travel training enables people to take up employment
opportunities, reduces reliance on car journeys, saves money by reducing
reliance on taxis and most importantly improves the client’s independence.

___________________________________________________________________________

Page 207

7.0

REDUCING CONGESTION & CARBON EMISSIONS (£100,000)

7.1

The LTP Capital programme block allocation for ‘Reducing Congestion &
Carbon Emissions’ may be summarised as;

‘REDUCING CONGESTION & CARBON EMISSIONS’ (Block Allocation)
Sub-Block

Allocation

Traffic Management
UTC / Telematics / CCTV
Travel Plan Measures

£35,000
£60,000
£5,000

Total ‘REDUCING CONGESTION & CARBON EMISSIONS’
7.2

£100,000

Traffic Management - General (£35,000)

7.2.1 Effective traffic management is essential in order to support the efficient
movement of people and goods. The economic success of Wirral and the city
region relies on the effective movement of freight and service vehicles; people
wanting to connect easily with employment, services and social activities; and
communities seek minimal vehicular intrusion to improve their local
environments.
7.2.2 In order to continue the work to improve traffic management during the last
LTP periods, it is proposed to allocate £35,000 towards schemes that
complement these aims such as Strategic Signing on the Borough’s principal
road network.
7.3

UTC / Telematics / CCTV (£60,000)

7.3.1 Implementation of the ‘next generation’ technology is identified as one of the
short-term key actions for LTP3, to improve information systems and help
maintain free-flowing networks, increase journey opportunities and integrate a
wide range of transport uses. Examples include the use of smart cards,
which are being introduced by Merseytravel to improve ticketing for public
transport users, and the use of intelligent telematic systems on the highway
network to improve traffic management.
7.3.2 An allocation of £30,000 is proposed for such as the provision of variable
message signing and CCTV for traffic monitoring purposes and improved
traffic management linked to the Council’s Urban Traffic Control Centre.
7.4

Travel Plan Measures (£5,000)

7.4.1 In order to continue to support the Council’s Travel Plan, which complements
the Merseyside TravelWise initiative to promote sustainable travel, a sum of
£5,000 has been allocated to implement measures to encourage employees
and visitors to Council buildings to reduce single occupancy car trips.
___________________________________________________________________________

Page 208

8.0

TRANSPORTATION GENERAL (£295,000)

8.1

The LTP Capital programme block allocation for ‘Transportation’ may be
summarised as;

‘TRANSPORTATION - GENERAL’ (Block Allocation)
Sub-Block

Allocation

Advance Design
Forward Planning, Research & Monitoring
Total ‘TRANSPORTATION - GENERAL’

£ 75,000
£220,000
£295,000

8.2

The ‘Transportation (General)’ block allocation covers expenditure aimed at
meeting the constantly evolving range of demands linked to LTP delivery.
This budget allocation allows for Advanced Design, Land & Forward Planning,
and Research & Monitoring and Project Development.

9.0

RELEVANT RISKS

9.1

Failure to undertake the identified programme of works could result in the
Council not meeting its Statutory Duties as set out in the Highways Act 1980,
Road Traffic Regulations Act 1984, Road Traffic Act 1988, Local Government
Act 2000 and the Traffic Management Act 2004.

9.2

Failure to undertake the identified programme of works would also result in a
failure to address the Council’s LTP3 Objectives and the Council’s Corporate
Goals and Objectives to make sure that Wirral’s roads are safe and well
maintained and to continue reducing the number of people killed or seriously
injured in road traffic accidents.

10.0

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

10.1

None. The proposed programmes and projects identified within this report
enable the Council to comply with its Statutory Duties as set out in the
Highways Act 1980, Road Traffic Regulations Act 1984, Road Traffic Act
1988, Local Government Act 2000 and the Traffic Management Act 2004 and
address the Council’s LTP3 Objectives and the Council’s Corporate Goals
and Objectives to make sure that Wirral’s roads are safe and well maintained
and to continue reducing the number of people killed or seriously injured in
road traffic accidents.

11.0

CONSULTATION

11.1

The development of LTP3 underwent two major consultation exercises in
March 2010 and November 2010, in addition to a number of Officer and
stakeholder workshops. The first major consultation sought views from
stakeholders and the general public on the ‘Challenges and Opportunities’
that had been identified during previous research undertaken by the LTP

___________________________________________________________________________

Page 209

partnership. The second consultation exercise focused on the ‘Preferred
Strategy’ and sought responses on the various aspects of the draft Plan.
11.2

In drawing together the draft ITB programme, Officers have considered the
comments raised at LTP3 stakeholder and elected member workshops that
aimed to inform priority areas for expenditure.

12.0

IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS

12.1

LTP3 strives to promote the concept of a new mobility culture and how
transport provision is planned, provided and promoted. Pooling of resources
and expertise across a number of policy areas and embracing as many
partners and stakeholders as possible will make the best use of resources for
the maximum benefit for the people of Merseyside.

12.2

To this end, one key action within the short-term implementation plan is to
expand the range of public transport services by examining the role of other
providers, backed by a network of neighbourhood based information services,
which may have implications for voluntary, community and faith groups.

13.0

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS

13.1

Existing staff resources will be used for the detailed investigation, design and
supervision of these schemes. Future maintenance costs will be met from the
Highway Maintenance Revenue Budget.

14.0

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

14.1

As defined by the Highways Act 1980, Road Traffic Regulations Act 1984,
Road Traffic Act 1988, Local Government Act 2000 and the Traffic
Management Act 2004.

15.0

EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

15.1

Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to
equality?
(a) Yes and impact review is attached – http://www.wirral.gov.uk/myservices/community-and-living/equality-diversity-cohesion/equality-impactassessments/eias-2010/technical-services-0

15.2

As part of the development of LTP3, a comprehensive Integrated Assessment
(IA) was carried out in accordance with Government LTP Guidance. The IA
included a number of assessments, including an Equality Impact Assessment
dated October 2010.

15.3

The proposed programme of works that supports the LTP3 strategy includes
measures to assist the transport needs of all sections of the community.

___________________________________________________________________________

Page 210

16.0

CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS

16.1

The greater majority of schemes under the ‘Improving Road Safety’, ‘Active
Travel & Health’ and ‘Reducing Congestion & Carbon Emissions’ headings
will help to improve the efficiency of travel on the road network and reduce
CO2 emissions.

17.0

PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS

17.1

There are no specific planning implications arising from this report.

18.0

RECOMMENDATION

18.1

That Cabinet:
•

Approve the proposed allocation of the Local Transport Plan Capital
programme 2012/13 Integrated Transport Block between the five
identified headings of ‘Improving Road Safety’, ‘Promoting Active
Travel & Health’, Promoting Economy & Accessibility’, ‘Reducing
Congestion & Carbon Emissions’ and ‘General Transportation’ as
detailed in this report.

•

Approve detailed programmes of schemes and projects under each of
the five identified headings of the combined Integrated Transport Block
(ITB) Capital Programme for 2012/13 set out in Sections 5 to 9 (and
summarised in Appendix A) of this report.

•

Delegate authority to the Director of Technical Services, in conjunction
with the Cabinet Member for Streetscene and Transport Services and
Party Spokespersons, to make necessary adjustments to the priorities
within the programme should the need arise due to financial conditions
or other factors.

19.0

REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

19.1

To ensure that the transport capital programme reflects the Corporate Goals
and Objectives and the LTP3 short-term implementation priorities, and has
the flexibility to ensure delivery of the most effective schemes within the
financial year.

REPORT AUTHOR:

Mark Redman
Principal Asst Engineer
telephone: (0151 606 2110)
email: markredman@wirral.gov.uk

___________________________________________________________________________

Page 211

APPENDICES
Appendix ‘A’ Local Transport Capital Funding & The Integrated Transport
Block (ITB) Programme 2012/13 - SUMMARY
Appendix ‘B’ Walking Strategy - Priority List of Requests and Assessments for
Pedestrian Crossings
Appendix ‘C’ Walking Strategy - Pedestrian Improvements: Dropped Crossing
Requests

REFERENCE MATERIAL: SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting

Date

CABINET (Local Transport Capital Funding & The
Integrated Transport Block (ITB) Programme
2011/12)

17th March 2011

CABINET (Council Capital Programme
2011/12)

21st February 2011

CABINET (Provisional Local Government
Finance Settlement)

13th January 2011

COUNCIL

12th December 2011

CABINET (Capital Programme and Financing 20122015)

8th December 2011

CABINET Local Sustainable Transport Fund
(LSTF) - Acceptance of ‘Key Component’ Funding

24th November 2011

CABINET (2010/11 Local Transport Capital
Programme - Environment / Air Quality)

4th February 2010

CABINET (2010/11 Local Transport Capital
Programme - Road Safety Block)

4th February 2010

___________________________________________________________________________

Page 212

LTP CAPITAL PROGRAMME - 2012 / 13

Appendix A:

Scheme

£

IMPROVING ROAD SAFETY (£815,000)
LOCAL SAFETY SCHEMES

£555,000

Local Safety Schemes
Bolton Road Roundabout, Bromborough - signalised crossing improvements

£55,000

Joint funded with Walking / Cycling Strategy & UTC / Telematics allocation

Budworth Road / Waterford Road, Oxton - Improved Signing & Lining
Cathcart St / Price St, Birkenhead - minor junction improvement
Ellens Lane, Bebington - Traffic Signals & Pedestrian Facilities

£5,000
£25,000
£30,000

(part funded with approved minor LSTF bid/allocation)

Greenway Road / Hawthorne Road / Dial Road, Tranmere - Signing & lining
Gorsey Lane / Kingsway Tunnel Roundabout - Improved Signing & Lining
Marlowe Road / Torrington Road, Wallasey - Pedestrian Refuge Island & Build-out
Mount Road / Broadway, Bebington - Mini-roundabout
Leeswood Road; Mavis Road & Woodland Rd Area, Woodchurch – Traffic Calming
measures
Downham Road Area, Birkenhead – Traffic Calming Measures
Arrowe Park Road, Upton – Signs & Lines
Shrewsbury Road, Oxton - Route Action (various measures)
Telegraph Rd/Quarry Rd, Heswall - Improved Signing & Lining

SAFER ROUTES TO SCHOOL / ETP

£10,000
£35,000
£35,000
£90,000
£105,000
£75,000
£20,000
£60,000
£10,000

£150,000

Safer Routes To School / ETP
'Bridge Road / Orrysdale Road, West Kirby - TOUCAN crossing

150
£35,000

Joint funded with Cycling Strategy

Grange Road / Darmond Green, West Kirby - PUFFIN crossing

£35,000

Joint funded with Pedestrian Signals programme

Manor Lane, Wallasey (TRO, Signing & Road Markings) - B'fwd from 2011/12
School Keep Clear Markings - various sites
Spital Road, Clatterbridge - pedestrian phase across east leg of Spital Crossroads
Traffic Signals

£4,000
£8,000
£30,000

Joint funded with Walking Strategy

SRTS Promotional Activities
Woodslea Primary School, Bromborough - School (flashing light) signing

AREA FORUM IMPROVEMENTS

£36,000
£2,000

£110,000

Area Forums + £110,00 from 'Promoting Active Travel & Health' Block
Bebington & Clatterbridge
Bidston & Claughton
Birkenhead, Tranmere & Rock Ferry
Bromborough & Eastham
Greasby, Frankby, Irby, Upton & Woodchurch
Heswall, Pensby & Thingwall
Leasowe, Moreton & Saughall Massie
Liscard & Seacombe
New Brighton & Wallasey
Oxton & Prenton
West Wirral

IMPROVING ROAD SAFETY - TOTAL:

Page 213

£10,000
£10,000
£10,000
£10,000
£10,000
£10,000
£10,000
£10,000
£10,000
£10,000
£10,000

£815,000

Scheme

£

PROMOTING ACTIVE TRAVEL & HEALTH (£620,000)
WALKING STRATEGY

£255,000

Pedestrian Signals
Grange Road / Darmonds Green, West Kirby - PUFFIN crossing

£155,000
£35,000

Joint funded with SRTS programme

Old Chester Road / Pembroke Court, Tranmere - conversion from Zebra to PUFFIN
crossing
Poulton Rd / nth of Poulton Royd Dv (vicinity of Mobberley Way), Spital - PUFFIN
Pedestrian Improvements
Bolton Road Roundabout, Bromborough - signalised crossing improvements

£70,000
£50,000
£80,000
£45,000

Joint funded with LSS programme, Cycling Strategy & UTC / Telematics allocation

Pedestrian Dropped Crossings

£20,000

Spital Road, Clatterbridge - pedestrian phase across east leg of Spital Crossroads
Traffic Signals

£20,000

Joint funded with SRTS

Public Rights Of Way Improvement Plan
Public Rights Of Way Improvement Plan

CYCLING STRATEGY

£15,000
£15,000

£255,000

Cycling Strategy
Bolton Road Roundabout, Bromborough - improvements to assist cyclists

£255,000
£45,000

Joint funded with LSS, Walking Strategy & UTC / Telematics allocation

Bridge Road / Orrysdale Road, West Kirby - TOUCAN crossing

£35,000

Joint funded with Cycling Strategy

Cycling Promotional Activities
Gorsedale to Central Park link, Wallasey
Kelvin Rd - Lucerne Road link, Wallasey
Measures to assist Wirral Circular Trail (east)
Mill Lane to Mosslands Link, Wallasey
Wallasey Network signing

AREA FORUMS

£25,000
£40,000
£10,000
£60,000
£30,000
£10,000

£110,000

Area Forums + £110,00 from 'Improving Road Safety' Block
Bebington & Clatterbridge
Bidston & Claughton
Birkenhead, Tranmere & Rock Ferry
Bromborough & Eastham
Greasby, Frankby, Irby, Upton & Woodchurch
Heswall, Pensby & Thingwall
Leasowe, Moreton & Saughall Massie
Liscard & Seacombe
New Brighton & Wallasey
Oxton & Prenton
West Wirral

PROMOTING ACTIVE TRAVEL & HEATH – TOTAL:

Page 214

£10,000
£10,000
£10,000
£10,000
£10,000
£10,000
£10,000
£10,000
£10,000
£10,000
£10,000

£620,000

Scheme

£

PROMOTING ECONOMY & ACCESSIBILITY (£50,000)
ACCESS TO JOBS & SERVICES

£50,000

Accessibility (Travel trainers)

£50,000

PROMOTING ECONOMY & ACCESSIBILITY - TOTAL:

£50,000

REDUCING CONGESTION & CARBON EMISSIONS (£100,000)
TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT

£100,000

Traffic Management Measures
Traffic Management Measures

£35,000
£35,000

UTC / Telematics / CCTV
UTC / Telematics / CCTV

£60,000
£60,000

TRAVEL PLANS & TRAVELWISE

£5,000

Council’s Travel Plan Measures

£5,000

REDUCING CONGESTION & CARBON EMISSIONS - TOTAL:

£100,000

TRANSPORTATION - GENERAL (£250,000)
ADVANCE DESIGN

£75,000

Advance Design

£75,000

RESEARCH & MONITORING

£175,000

Transportation
Transportation Studies etc
LTP Monitoring
LTP Monitoring
Forward Planning
Forward Planning

£25,000
£10,000
£140,000

TRANSPORTATION GENERAL - TOTAL:

£250,000

LTP CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2012 / 13 - TOTAL: £1,835,000

Page 215

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 216

Appendix B:
2012 / 13 WALKING STRATEGY
PRIORITY LIST OF REQUESTS AND ASSESSMENTS FOR PEDESTRIAN CROSSINGS

No.

Location

Ward

1

New Chester Road / Bolton Road East, New Ferry

Bromborough

2

St Albans Road / Mill Lane, Liscard

Liscard

3

Grange Road / Darmonds Green, West Kirby

4

Old Chester Road / Pembroke Court, Tranmere

West Kirby &
Thurstaston
Rock Ferry

5

Clatterbridge

6

Poulton Road / nth of Poulton Royd Drive,
Bromborough (in the vicinity of Mobberley Way)
Bebington Road / Parkside Road, Bebington

7

Column Road / Grammar School Lane, West Kirby

West Kirby & Thurstaston

8

Frankby Road / Greasby Road, Greasby

Greasby, Frankby, Irby

9

Pensby Road / Oaks Lane, Pensby

Pensby & Thingwall

10

Marlowe Road / Thorncliffe Road, Liscard

Liscard

Weighted
PV2
(x 108)
2.31
2.21
1.65

Page 217

1.55
1.48

Remarks
Petition received for improved crossing
facilities. Improvements to be
implementation 2012/13)
Not prioritized for inclusion with
2012/13 Programme (as detailed in
para 6.2.3)
Puffin crossing to be joint-funded from
Walking Strategy & ‘SRTS’ programme
(for implementation 2012/13)
Conversion of Zebra to Puffin crossing
to be funded from Walking Strategy (for
implementation - 2012/13)
Puffin crossing to be funded from
Walking Strategy (for implementation
2012/13)

Bebington
1.43
1.40
1.19
1.15
1.12

Pedestrian Refuge funded from ‘Local
Safety Scheme’ programme (for
implementation - 2012/13)

n/a

Petition received for crossing
facilities

Petitions for pedestrian facilities received - Sites not ranked in Top 10 sites for prioritisation

n/a

M53 Moreton Spur / Moreton Road, Upton

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 218

Appendix C:
2012/13 WALKING STRATEGY
PEDESTRIAN IMPROVEMENTS - DROPPED CROSSINGS
NEW REQUESTS
No of
Crossings
Birkenhead & Tranmere
2

Location

Ward

Lord Street (at vehicle access to rear of Wirral Heritage
Tramway)
Birkenhead & Tranmere
Lord Street (vehicle entrance to Municipal Building)
Bromborough
Boundary Road / Circular Drive (2no junctions)
Caldbeck Road
Bromborough
Bromborough
Central Road / Windy Bank
Bromborough
Central Road / Lower Road
Bromborough
Central Rd at Entrance to Osbourne Court (s/o No. 3 Central Rd)
Bromborough
Central Road / Primrose Hill
Bromborough
Circular Drive (s/s No. 2)
Bromborough
Primrose Hill (s/o No. 1)
Bromborough
Primrose Hill / Circular Drive
Bromborough
Welton Road
Greasby, Frankby & Irby
Mill Lane (Vehicle entrance at s/o no.20)
Greasby, Frankby & Irby
Thingwall Road East / Thingwall Drive
Greasby, Frankby & Irby
Thingwall Road (at vehicle entrance to The Shippons PH)
Greasby, Frankby & Irby
Thingwall Road (at s/o McColls newsagents)
Greasby, Frankby & Irby
Thingwall Road / Roslin Road
Greasby, Frankby & Irby
Thingwall Road / Coombe Road
Greasby, Frankby & Irby
Thingwall Road / Harrockwood Close
Greasby, Frankby & Irby
Thingwall Road (at slip road s/o no. 120)
Greasby, Frankby & Irby
Thingwall Road / Glenwood Drive
Greasby, Frankby & Irby
Thingwall Road / Elm Road
Greasby, Frankby & Irby
Thingwall Road (at 4no. entrances to service road)
Greasby, Frankby & Irby
Thingwall Road / Whalley Lane
Greasby, Frankby & Irby
Thingwall Road / Parkway
Telegraph Road / Beacon Lane
Telegraph Road / West Drive
Trinity Road / Marmion Road
Trinity Road / Sea View
Trinity Road / Back Sea View
Trinity Road / Grove Road
Drake Road
Danger Lane / Fairmead Road
Danger Lane / Daneswell Drive
Danger Lane / Blundells Drive
Danger Lane / Yew Way
Danger Lane / East Way

Heswall
Heswall
Hoylake & Meols
Hoylake & Meols
Hoylake & Meols
Hoylake & Meols
Leasowe & Moreton East
Leasowe & Moreton East
Leasowe & Moreton East
Leasowe & Moreton East
Leasowe & Moreton East
Leasowe & Moreton East

Page 219

TBA

4
TBA

2
2
2
2
2
2
2
TBA

2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
8
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
TBA

2
2
2
2
2

Danger Lane / Pasture Avenue
St Elmo Road (entry at s/o 1)
Upton Road / Rosslyn Drive
Upton Road / Dawpool Drive
Upton Road / Winston Grove
Upton Road / Chadwick Street
Marine Promenade at Rowson Street (Roundabout 1 leg
adjacent to Bobby's bar)
Osborne Road at Osbourne Avenue (corner o/s 2-8 Osborne
Vale leading to corner o/s 11 Osborne Road)
Fairview Road / Fairview Close
Fairview Road (at vehicle entrance side of St Josephs school)
Fairview Road / Downing Close
Fairview Road / The Grove
Fairview Road (at St Josephs school entrance)
Langdale Avenue at Rydal Close
Langdale Avenue at Paltridge Way
Thingwall Road / Parkway
Thingwall Road / Dane Close
Thingwall Road / Dane Close
Thingwall Road East (at vehicle entrance to 81)
Thingwall Road East (at vehicle entrance to farm opposite
Heywood Boulevard)
Thingwall Road East (at disused entrance to park opposite no.
21)
Thingwall Road East / adjacent service road o/s 9
Pensby Road (at entrance to Thingwall Primary School)
Pensby Road at entrance to Stanley School
Pensby Road (at vehicle entrance to no 487)
Pensby Road (at vehicle entrance to no 489)
Pensby Road (at vehicle entrance to no 491)
Pensby Road (at vehicle entrance to no 493)
Pensby Road / Berwyn Avenue
Pensby Road / Penrhyn Avenue
Oldwood Road (s/o no.74)
Fishers Lane (opp 59 at entrance to Pensby Park carpark)
Fishers Lane (car park rear of shops, both entrance and exit)
Johnson Road (at both junctions with Prenton Dell Road)
Johnson Road (across entrance to garages adjacent to no. 47)
Leeswood Road at Glebe Hey Road
Leeswood Road (at service road between Glebe Hey Road and
Domville Drive)
Leeswood Road (at service road between Domville Drive and
North Brooke Way)
Leeswood Road (at service road between North Brooke Way
and Kiln Road
Leeswood Road at Kiln Road
Moreton Road, Upton Ward (entrance to service road o/s flat
nos. 135 to 145, northwest of junction with Royden Road)

Page 220

Leasowe & Moreton East
Liscard
Moreton West & Saughall
Massie
Moreton West & Saughall
Massie
Moreton West & Saughall
Massie
Moreton West & Saughall
Massie
New Brighton

2
2
2

New Brighton

2

Oxton
Oxton
Oxton
Oxton
Oxton
Pensby & Thingwall
Pensby & Thingwall
Pensby & Thingwall
Pensby & Thingwall
Pensby & Thingwall
Pensby & Thingwall
Pensby & Thingwall

2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2

Pensby & Thingwall

2

Pensby & Thingwall
Pensby & Thingwall
Pensby & Thingwall
Pensby & Thingwall
Pensby & Thingwall
Pensby & Thingwall
Pensby & Thingwall
Pensby & Thingwall
Pensby & Thingwall
Pensby & Thingwall
Pensby & Thingwall
Pensby & Thingwall
Prenton
Prenton
Upton
Upton

2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
4
4
2
2
2

Upton

2

Upton

2

Upton
Upton

2
2

2
2
2
2

Rolleston Drive / Oldfield Road
Sea Road (end of road at point where footpath leads to
promenade)
Sandcliffe Road / Coastal Drive
Warren Drive (vehicle entrance at no. 27a)
Warren Drive (vehicle entrance at no. 27b)

Wallasey
Wallasey
Wallasey
Wallasey
Wallasey

2
1
2
2
2

PREVIOUS REQUESTS

Broadway @ Kingsway

Bebington

No of
Crossings
2

Church Road / Highcroft Avenue
Higher Bebington Road @ vehicle crossing o/s 156 - Dropped
Kerbs
Kings Lane / Woodburn Boulevard - Dropped Kerbs
Kings Lane / Kingswood Boulevard - Dropped Kerbs
Kings Lane / Queenswood Avenue - Dropped Kerbs
Kings Lane / Service Road (o/s 139 Kings Lane) - Dropped
Kerbs
Kings Road @ first entrance into Christ Church - Dropped Kerbs

Bebington
Bebington

2
1

Bebington
Bebington
Bebington
Bebington

1
1
1
1

Bebington

1

Kirket Lane / Highcroft Avenue
Kings Road @ Kings Close
Millfield Close, Bebington (Junction School Lane)
Mount Road (Access outside 47a)
Mount Road ( Access outside 49)
Mount Road @ Mount Avenue
Mount Road @ Mount Drive
Mount Road @ Mill Road
Village Road @ Acorn Close (Corner Closest to Acorn PH)
Bidston Moss (Either side of entrance into MFI car park)
Delamere Close @ Forth Avenue
Chester Street (refuge near Market Street)
Cleveland Street (Locations to be confirmed)
Duncan Street
Duncan Street @ Gertrude Street
Duncan Street @ Albion Street
Entrance bet30 & 36 Olive Mount

Bebington
Bebington
Bebington
Bebington
Bebington
Bebington
Bebington
Bebington
Bebington
Bidston & St James
Bidston & St James
Birkenhead & Tranmere
Birkenhead & Tranmere
Birkenhead & Tranmere
Birkenhead & Tranmere
Birkenhead & Tranmere
Birkenhead & Tranmere

2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
1
2
2
3

Exmouth Street (at entrance across fire station)
Gamlin Street (O/S No 1 & 29)
Grange Road East @ Argyle Street
Market Street (Between Argyle Street & Adelphi Street)

Birkenhead & Tranmere
Birkenhead & Tranmere
Birkenhead & Tranmere
Birkenhead & Tranmere

2
4
2
20

Mount Grove / Braidwood Court
Olive Mount @ Holborn Hill,
Olive Mount @ Olive Crescent,
Olive Mount @ Frodsham Street,

Birkenhead & Tranmere
Birkenhead & Tranmere
Birkenhead & Tranmere
Birkenhead & Tranmere

2
2
2
2

Location

Ward

Page 221

TBA

4
2
2
2

O/S 25 Gilbrook Square
Side of 56 Thompson Street,
Shore Road
St Anne Street either side of the entrance to Finch Court
St Pauls Road J/O Alison Ave
St Mary’s Gate @ Chester Street
Thomas Street @ non-public entrance to M53 Ford
Thompson Street @ Warrington St
Waterloo Place
Whitfield Street (Access adjacent to 17)
Brookhurst Avenue, Bromborough
Brookhurst Avenue, Bromborough
King Georges Drive (Opp Lady Lever o/s former girls club)
King Georges Drive (Opp Lady Lever o/s former girls club)
Legion Lane (at end of road were it meets car park)
O/S Bromborough Hotel, Mark Rake, Bromborough.
Opposite 89 Acre Lane
S/O no. 2 Marquis Street, New Ferry
Pool Bank, Port Sunlight
S/O no. 2 Marquis Street, New Ferry
Stanhope Drive, Bromborough (Across 2no. entrances to
Meadowcroft)
Sunningdale/Brookhurst Ave
Welton Road off Caldbeck Road
Wentworth Drive/Brookhurst Avenue.
Church Road, Bebington (@ vehicle entrance to St Andrews
Vicarage)
Bromborough Road @ entrance to Raffa Social Club
Intabene (Upton Road)
Bidston Road @ Vyner Road South
St Peters Way @ Norris Close
St Peters Way @ Newark Close
St Peters Way @ Norfolk Close
St Peters Way (vehicle access to St Peters Church)
Adaston Avenue / Glenburn Avenue, Eastham
Wharfedale Drive, Eastham (Outside No 53 to provide access
across the road to entry leading to shops)
Greasby Road @ Norwood Road
Greasby Road o/s 249 near shops
Greasby Road (Outside number 185) Highfield Drive
Greasby Road @ Hambledon Drive
Greasby Road / Rylands Hey
Greasby Road @ Wood Lane
Irby Road @ Woodlands Road, Irby
Hambledon Drive / Retford Close
Hambledon / Beauworth Avenue
Mill Lane @ Thorns Drive

Page 222

Birkenhead & Tranmere
Birkenhead & Tranmere
Birkenhead & Tranmere
Birkenhead & Tranmere
Birkenhead & Tranmere
Birkenhead & Tranmere
Birkenhead & Tranmere
Birkenhead & Tranmere
Birkenhead & Tranmere
Birkenhead & Tranmere
Bromborough
Bromborough
Bromborough
Bromborough

1
1
9
2
2
2
2
2
4
2
TBA
TBA

2
2

Bromborough
Bromborough
Bromborough
Bromborough
Bromborough
Bromborough

1
1
1
2
2
2

Bromborough
Bromborough
Bromborough
Bromborough
Clatterbridge

4
2
1
2
2

Clatterbridge
Claughton
Claughton
Claughton
Claughton
Claughton
Claughton
Eastham

2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2

Eastham
Greasby, Frankby & Irby
Greasby, Frankby & Irby
Greasby, Frankby & Irby
Greasby, Frankby & Irby

2
2
4
2
2

Greasby, Frankby & Irby
Greasby, Frankby & Irby
Greasby, Frankby & Irby

2
4
2

Greasby, Frankby & Irby
Greasby, Frankby & Irby
Greasby, Frankby & Irby

2
2
2

Mill Hill Road @ Heathbank Avenue
Pump Lane @ Kinloss Road
Thingwall Road at Coombe Road
Thorns Drive @ Sycamore Rise
Thorns Drive @ Elmdene Court
Thorns Drive @ Chesnut Close
Thorns Drive @ Oakdale Drive
Wood Lane

Greasby, Frankby & Irby
Greasby, Frankby & Irby
Greasby, Frankby & Irby
Greasby, Frankby & Irby
Greasby, Frankby & Irby
Greasby, Frankby & Irby
Greasby, Frankby & Irby
Greasby, Frankby & Irby
Heswall
Disabled slope requested for pavements, corner by Lister Lodge
across to Cottage Lane (Gayton Farm Road)
Fairview Way, Pensby
Heswall
Old Wood Road, Pensby
Heswall
Park Road @ Buffs Lane
Pensby Road @ Radnor Avenue
Pensby Road @ Poll Hill Road
Pensby Road @ Florence Avenue
Telegraph Road, Heswall (s/o Heswall Methodist Church) Opp.
Police Station.
Telegraph Road , Heswall @ Beacon Lane
Telegraph Road/Strathallen Close
Telegraph Road J/O West Drive
Station Road, Heswall (junction Rectory Close)
Barton Road – Penrhos Road to Service Road r/o Kings Gap
Chapel Road, Hoylake
Elwyn Road @ Entrance to Great Meols Primary School
Elwyn Road @ Newlyn Road
Graham Road (Adjacent to Applegarth)
Greenwood Lane, Meols
Guffitts Rake @ Elwyn Road
Guffitts Rake @ Bennet's Lane
Market Street, Hoylake ( Hoyle Road to Shaw Street)
Melrose Avenue
North Parade / Meols Parade, Meols
Rycroft Road @ Birkenhead Road, Meols
Westbourne Road at Church Road
Leasowe Road (at slip road to north Wallasey approach)
Cameron Road @ service rd (rear of Oyster Catcher PH)
Cameron Road @ Mackenzie Road
Leasowe Road, Leasowe (Pasture Road to Twickenham Drive)
Twickenham Dv, Leasowe (Drake Rd to Twickenham Dv side rd)
Eaton Street @ Grosvenor Street, Liscard
Martins Lane o/s The Primrose
Martins lane / Greenwood Lane
Ruskin Avenue, Wallasey
Seaview Road - Access between Kwik Fit & Stanley Public
House

Page 223

2
2
2
2
2
2
2
40 +

2
1

Heswall
Heswall
Heswall
Heswall
Heswall

2
2
2
2
2

Heswall
Heswall
Heswall
Heswall
Hoylake & Meols
Hoylake & Meols

2
1
2
4
12
8
2
2
1
1
2
2
22
1

Hoylake & Meols
Hoylake & Meols
Hoylake & Meols
Hoylake & Meols
Hoylake & Meols
Hoylake & Meols
Hoylake & Meols
Hoylake & Meols
Hoylake & Meols
Hoylake & Meols
Hoylake & Meols
Leasowe & Moreton East
Leasowe & Moreton East
Leasowe & Moreton East
Leasowe & Moreton East
Leasowe & Moreton East
Liscard
Liscard
Liscard
Liscard
Liscard

TBA

2
2
8
2
2
10
4
2
2
2
TBA

2

St Albans Road, Liscard
Torrington Road and Rullerton Road
Water Street, Egremont
Withens Lane, Wallasey (o/s Saddlers Pub & British Legion)
Pasture Road (Either side of entrance to cycle path running
adjacent to The Birket
Berrylands Road (rear entrance to Harvest Court)
Berrylands Road o/s no. 2. Ramp required for elderly residents
Borrowdale Road (Burrell Drive to Hoylake Road)
Douglas Drive At Francis Avenue
S/O 20 Maryland Lane
Atherton Street / Victoria Road
Coastal Drive, New Brighton
Rowson St junction of Wellington Road (tactile kerb)
Bidston Road at entrance to West Knowe
Outside 4 Holm Lane (redundant vehicle crossing)
Outside 38 Holm Lane (redundant vehicle crossing)
Outside 40a Holm Lane (vehicle crossing)
Holm Lane at entrance to Holm Cottages
Nursery Close
Shrewsbury Road, Oxton (Palm Hill to Alton Road)
Spurstow Close, Oxton (junction Calveley Close)
Talbot Road, Oxton (Townfield Lane to Holm Lane)
Village Road/Claughton Firs, Oxton
Woodchurch Road @ Woodhurch Court (Opp Oakdene Rd)
Kentmere Drive (@ Derwent, Rusland, Gleneagles & s/o 60)
Kentmere Drive (@ Langdale, Rosemead and Ashlea
Kentmere Drive (Entrance to Pensby Infants School)
Oldwood Road @ Nicholls Drive
Old Wood Road, Pensby (o/s no.55)
Pensby Road @ Wimbourne Avenue
Ryland Park, Pensby (o/s Emmanual Church)
98/100 Prenton Village Road
O/S 1 Mount Road, Prenton
Outside 98 Prenton Village Road - Dropped Kerbs.
Prenton Village Road/Prenton Dell Road
Gothic Street (Access adjacent to no. 36)
Gothic Street (Access adjacent to no. 47)
King Street at its junction with Sefton Road
King Street at its junction with Acton Road
King Street at its junction with Wilton Road
King Street at its junction with Queens Road.
Nelson Road (Access adjacent to Derby Arms Public House)

Page 224

Liscard
Liscard
Liscard
Liscard
Moreton West &
Saughall Massie
Moreton West &
Saughall Massie
Moreton West &
Saughall Massie
Moreton West &
Saughall Massie
Moreton West &
Saughall Massie
Moreton West &
Saughall Massie
New Brighton
New Brighton
New Brighton
Oxton
Oxton
Oxton
Oxton
Oxton
Oxton
Oxton
Oxton
Oxton
Oxton
Oxton
Pensby & Thingwall
Pensby & Thingwall
Pensby & Thingwall
Pensby & Thingwall
Pensby & Thingwall
Pensby & Thingwall
Pensby & Thingwall
Prenton
Prenton
Prenton
Prenton
Rock Ferry
Rock Ferry
Rock Ferry
Rock Ferry
Rock Ferry
Rock Ferry
Rock Ferry

16
2
2
2
4
2
1

2
1
2
TBA
TBA

2
TBA
TBA
TBA
TBA

1
8
2
6
4
2
6
6
2
2
1
2
1
1
1
1
2
2
2
2
2
2
2
2

Nelson Road at entrance to Nelson Court
New Chester Road at its junction with Nelson Road
New Chester Road at its junction with King Street
Woodward Road (Outside 126)
Matthew Street, Wallasey
2 Ford Close,
Arrowe Park Road (o/s 165)
Arrowe Park Road (o/s 149 Beech Lodge)
Arrowe Park Road (at entrance to the Stirrup PH)
Upton Road / 1. Torwood. 2. Interbene Lodge
Arrowe Park Road, Upton between 17 & 19
Entrance to church car park, Church Road
Fleet Croft Road at its junction with Archers Way
Fleet Croft Road at its junction with Goodakers Meadow
Fleet Croft Road at its junction with Troutbeck Close
Fleet Croft Road at its junction with Crewe Garden
Fleet Croft Road at its junction with Eltham Green
Fleet Croft Road at its junction with Childwall Green
Leeswood Road, Woodchurch (junction with Arrowe Park Road)
Noctorum Avenue @ Ormond Way
Noctorum Way @ St Peters Way
Noctorum Way @ Pine Tree Avenue
Noctorum Way @ Beryl Road
Noctorum Way @ Windermere Road
Olivia Close (opposite sheltered housing bungalows)
Olivia Close (Opposite sheltered housing bungalows)
Ormond Way its junction with Ossett Close
Ormond Way its junction with Ollerton Close
Ormond Way its junction with Orlando Close
Ormond Way @ Ossett Close
Ormond Way @ Ollerton Close
Noctorum Avenue at its junction with Ormond Way
Salacre Lane @ Slingsby Drive
Slingsby Drive at entrance to St Mary’s Court
Whitewell Drive at junction with Sunny Bank
o/s 4 Kiln Road
Claremount Road at the junction of Taunton Road
Claremount Road at 2no. Entrances to Claremount Methodist
Church
Grove Road / Keswick Road
Marshlands Road, Wallasey
Claremount Road and Harrow Road

Rock Ferry
Rock Ferry
Rock Ferry
Rock Ferry
Seacombe
Upton
Upton
Upton
Upton
Upton
Upton
Upton
Upton
Upton
Upton
Upton
Upton
Upton
Upton
Upton
Upton
Upton
Upton
Upton
Upton
Upton
Upton
Upton
Upton
Upton
Upton
Upton
Upton
Upton
Upton
Upton
Wallasey
Wallasey

2
2
2
1
6
1
2
2
2
4
2
2
1
1
1
1
1
1
2
2
2
2
2
2
1
TBA
TBA
TBA

2
2
2
TBA

2
2
2
1
2
4

Wallasey
Wallasey
Wallasey

2
4
2

Claremount Road and Church Hill

Wallasey

2

Grove Road @ The Leas, The Willows, Conniston Ave
Leasowe Road (2no entrances to Wallasey Van Hire)
Wallasey Village at its junction with Sandiways Road
Wallasey Village. Entrance adjacent to The Farmers Arms PH
Wallasey Village. Entrances fronting Classic Cars of Wirral

Wallasey
Wallasey
Wallasey
Wallasey
Wallasey

8
4
2
2
4

Warren Drive / Zetland Road

Wallasey

2

Page 225

Bridge Road / Meols Drive, West Kirby
Grange Road / Gerard Road, West Kirby
Grange Road / Homestead Mews, West Kirby
South Parade, West Kirby (Disabled bays opp. Salisbury Ave)
South Parade, West Kirby (@ Coronation Gardens)
Sandy Lane / Village Road (2 Entances into Moby Dick)
Village Road / Abbey Road, West Kirby
Village Road / The Kirkland's, West Kirby
Village Road / The Oatlands, West Kirby
Village Road / St Bridget's Lane, West Kirby
Vehicle Access o/s 3 Village Road, West Kirby
Vehicle Access r/o Moby Dick Public House, Village Road, West
Kirby

Page 226

West Kirby & Thurstaston
West Kirby & Thurstaston
West Kirby & Thurstaston
West Kirby & Thurstaston
West Kirby & Thurstaston
West Kirby & Thurstaston
West Kirby & Thurstaston
West Kirby & Thurstaston
West Kirby & Thurstaston
West Kirby & Thurstaston
West Kirby & Thurstaston
West Kirby & Thurstaston

2
2
2
3
2
4
2
2
2
2
2
2

Agenda Item 16
WIRRAL COUNCIL
CABINET
15 MARCH 2012
SUBJECT:

STREETSCENE

ENFORCEMENT

POLICY

REVIEW
WARD/S AFFECTED:

ALL

REPORT OF:

DIRECTOR OF TECHNICAL SERVICES

RESPONSIBLE

PORTFOLIO CLLR DAVE MITCHELL, STREETSCENE &

HOLDER:

TRANSPORT SERVICES

KEY DECISION?

YES

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.1 This report details a revised Streetscene Enforcement Policy Review and updates
Members on progress made with respect to the Streetscene Enforcement Strategy
endorsed by Cabinet in October 2008.
1.2 The Enforcement Policy Review sets out the framework of legislation and local
policies which will be used to deliver the priorities and actions detailed in current
and future Corporate and Departmental plans.
1.3 The Council has a number of relevant statutory duties and responsibilities
including; keeping land and highways clear of litter and waste (Environmental
Protection Act 1990), removing abandoned vehicles (Refuse Disposal (Amenity)
Act 1978) and protecting the rights of the public to the use and enjoyment of the
highway (Highways Act 1980).

2.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES
2.1 Wirral Council has adopted an Enforcement Concordat, which sets out general
standards and principles that should be applied when undertaking any enforcement
activity. The principle of the concordat is that when enforcement or regulation is
necessary it is undertaken in a firm but fair manner that is transparent, consistent
and proportionate. The concordat was originally adopted by the Council on 5th
April 2001 [Minute 150 refers] and a full copy of the report is included in Appendix
B to the report.
2.2 In October 2008 the Director of Technical Services reported on a proposed
Streetscene Enforcement Strategy and policies that pulled together a number of
disparate policies into one document. In addition to setting out the range of
enforcement activities undertaken the report also set out standards for service
delivery and prioritisation of activity.

Page 227

2.3 On 15th April 2010 [Minute 402 refers], a further report was considered by Cabinet
which amended the individual policy in relation to the regulation of “A” Boards and
Shop Displays on the Highway.
2.4 In the intervening period since the 2008 report there have been a number of
changes in the structure of the Council that have affected some areas of
enforcement responsibility. In particular the areas of Development Control and
Building Regulation no longer fall under the Director of Technical Services.
Additionally, the continuing pressure on Council funding and the 2010 Early
Voluntary Redundancy/retirement scheme has brought about further challenges
and has highlighted the need for greater flexibility in both use of the workforce and
in delivery of the service in relation to changing demands and resource availability.
2.5 When produced, the 2008 report encompassed the areas of Highway and
Environmental Enforcement, Parking Enforcement and Streetworks Enforcement.
Although these areas remain within the overall enforcement remit, due to the scope
and complexity of these areas of regulation and enforcement it is considered that
they would be better dealt with in individual separate reports. The Parking
Enforcement report is included as a separate item on this agenda and the
Streetworks report will be presented to a future meeting at an appropriate time.
2.6 Significant progress has been made in delivering the priorities and actions
identified within the 2008 report and the following is a summary of progress and
recent activity.
2.7 In 2010/11 the enforcement team dealt with more than 3500 individual enquiries
across a range of enforcement activities including fly tipping, abandoned vehicles,
littering, cars for sale on the highway, untidy land and buildings, domestic and
trade waste issues, street trading, fly posting, unregulated skips and unauthorised
items on the highway. A large majority of enquiries related to fly tipping and
domestic waste issues.
2.8 In the same period the Council undertook the following actions;
Investigations undertaken
Fixed penalty notices issues
Formal notices issued
Successful prosecutions
Abandoned vehicles removed
Licences and permits issued, skips etc.

2008
99
109
9
22
4756

2.9 Significant progress has been made in delivering a pro-active enforcement service
across a range of activities. The service now delivers a calendar of enforcement
campaigns or events covering the following activities, littering, fly tipping, street
trading, skip regulation, domestic waste issues, fly posting and items on the
highway including shop displays and “A” boards. Proactive enforcement sends a
strong message to those who flout the rules and regulations that Wirral Council will
not tolerate such activity, which endangers the safety of highway users, and also
sends a positive message to Wirral citizens that the Council take such matters
seriously.

Page 228

2.10 Greater use is also now being made of the wider pool of resources available to the
Council for enforcement activity. In particular staff across a range of service areas
both within and outside the Technical Services department have been trained and
resourced to undertake litter enforcement to complement their existing roles. These
include the dog fouling team, community patrol staff and the waste teams.
Additionally, the Council’s appointed parking enforcement contractor has also been
similarly trained and equipped and now take part in the planned monthly litter
campaigns.
2.11 To better inform the public and businesses of the Council’s services with regard to
regulation and enforcement of the highway, the Council’s web pages covering
these areas have been reviewed and amended to provide more information in
order to make it easier to contact the Council or make an enquiry. Specifically in
relation to activities of regulation and licensing; for example skips on the highway;
a complete website application process has been implemented allowing customers
to apply for, pay any necessary fees and to be advised of progress and the final
decision; all online.
2.12 To compliment and enable reliable and consistent delivery of the enforcement
policies, a detailed set of operational procedures for each area of activity has been
produced and these are available as a reference resource for all enforcement staff.
This is also an invaluable tool for training purposes and to ensure delivery of a
consistent quality service.
2.13 The Council are raising and improving the profile of the enforcement team by
taking a more proactive approach to publicising its successes. Details of
successful prosecutions are now routinely passed to the Council’s Press Office for
media release. Most recently this has included fly tipping, littering and skip
regulation cases. Additionally, the service has also recently publicised the new
“partner” litter enforcement teams and ongoing campaigns.
2.14 The Council is in the process of combining the administration functions within the
three areas of enforcement which will improve service delivery and efficiency and
greater use is being made of existing “inspector“ roles for more generic activities
and to act as eyes and ears for the enforcement team.
2.15 Although much progress and many changes have already been introduced, in
order to continue to deliver a service that is able to meet future public and Council
expectations, the service must continue to evolve and develop.
2.16 Looking forward, the main focus of this plan is to set a framework to enable
delivery of the goals, aims and priorities identified within both current and future
Corporate and Departmental plans. This requires a plan built around strong
principles and policies but which is flexible and responsive enough to
accommodate changing needs, priorities and the resources available to deliver
them. In particular, it is proposed that the new plan and policies will enable officers
to make qualified decisions and judgements on how best to respond and deal with
issues in a way that will improve efficiency, provide a better quality service and
reduce complaints.

Page 229

2.17 In relation to Streetscene enforcement, the overriding priorities as set out in both
the existing and new draft corporate plans can be summarised as “helping to
create a clean and safe environment free from rubbish and graffiti”.
2.18 The key areas for enforcement activity will remain as:
• Fly tipping on public and private land
• Littering in streets, highways and private land
• Domestic waste issues including contamination and recycling
• Removal of abandoned vehicles (a statutory duty)
• Commercial and trade waste issues
• Unauthorised use of the highway including “A” boards and shop displays
• Dealing with issues of untidy property and land
• Fly posting and graffiti on public and private buildings
• Businesses offering cars for sale and vehicle repairs on the highway
• Unregulated and improperly marked skips on the highway
• Street trading in prohibited and consent streets
2.19 In the 2008 report, an attempt was made to categorise enforcement activities into
different priority levels. Although this gave staff clear priorities, this approach can
be inefficient as resources are often used to meet or chase targets rather than
outcomes and are also less flexible to meet changing demands and needs.
Removing this type of prioritisation will improve flexibility and allow more efficient
use of resources; for example by allowing officers greater opportunity to better plan
and organise workload and journeys.
2.20 Future priorities will be based upon on fulfilling statutory duties, meeting corporate
and departmental aims and responding to customers within agreed timescales.
Where there are competing demands for use of resources, issues which impact
most on the safety of the public or which will bring about the greatest benefit to the
widest possible audience will be prioritised highest.
2.21 Our Streetscene enforcement priorities will be;
•
•
•
•
•

•
•

To ensure compliance with statutory duties relating to use of the highway and
abandoned vehicles.
To investigate all enquires raised, to undertake relevant actions and to provide
timely feedback and responses in accordance with corporate standards.
To use all available legislation powers and resources to assist in the delivery of
corporate and departmental aims and goals.
To undertake planned proactive campaigns on a range of enforcement activities
including but not limited to: littering, fly tipping and domestic waste issues etc.
To regulate appropriate use of the highway through a system of permits and
licensing based upon assessments of risk and by application of appropriate
conditions.
To bring about effective enforcement action including warnings, formal notices
and prosecutions as appropriate.
To engage and work with other departments, organisation and partner agencies
on common matters were a joint approach might be beneficial.

Page 230

2.22 In preparing this report a full review and refresh of the current enforcement policies
has been undertaken. This has taken into account any changes in legislation, new
information and advice on best practise and lessons learnt. The revised policies
provide a clear framework for future enforcement action.
2.23 The format of the policies has also been revised to reduce repetition by grouping
together common practices and processes and by putting the scale of penalties,
fees and charges into one place for easier referral and future review. The following
policies have been reviewed and are included as Appendix A to the Report
• LEQ01
• LEQ02
• LEQ03
• LEQ04
• LEQ05
• LEQ06
• LEQ07
• LEQ08
• LEQ09
• LEQ10
• LEQ11
• LEQ12
• LEQ13
• WTD01
• WTD02
• WTD03
• PLE01
• HPE02

Fly tipping investigations and enforcement
Litter dropping enforcement
Abandoned vehicle removal
Enforcement of Litter Clearing Notices
Enforcement of Street Litter Control Notices
Fly posting and graffiti
Control of distribution of free literature
Obstructions, pavement café licensing, “A” boards and shop
displays
Nuisance vehicles (cars for sale and vehicle repairs on the
highway)
Skips, storage containers and building material on the highway
Licensing of Street Trading
Overhanging hedges, trees or shrubs
Miscellaneous highway enforcement
Enforcement of waste transport legislation
Enforcement of trade waste disposal legislation
Enforcement of domestic/commercial waste and recycling policy
Untidy property and land
Unauthorised Vehicle Crossing (over footway)

2.24 Most of the changes to these policies are minor with the main aim to clarify and
simplify the application and interpretation of the powers available for regulation or
enforcement actions.
2.25 The determination of penalties, fees and charges is as follows:
• Where penalty levels or a range of penalty levels are specified in the legislation;
the level has been set at the maximum permissible.
• Where fees or charges are set locally these are predominantly based on
historical levels but should cover all reasonable costs and be competitive in the
marketplace.
• Additionally it is proposed that where an option of a discount for early payment
is available this should be adopted only for litter and domestic waste offences.
3.0 RELEVANT RISKS
3.1 If the enforcement plan is not implemented the service will continue to provide a
day to day reactive response to enforcement activity but without any medium or

Page 231

long term strategy which in the current challenging environment is less likely to be
able meet the future needs of local people and the Council.
4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED
4.1 None.
5.0 CONSULTATION
5.1 In preparing this report a range of partners and stakeholders have been consulted
to gain a better understanding of those issues most relevant to them and to help
develop policies and prioritise resources. In total more than 20 bodies and
organisations have been consulted including WIRED, Age Concern, Retail
organisations and Chambers of Trade, Residential Social Landlords and highway
and pedestrian groups.
6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS
6.1 There are none arising specifically from this report.
7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING AND ASSETS
7.1 There are none arising specifically from this report although the changes to the
administration team may require an internal accommodation review.
8.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
8.1 There are none arising specifically from this report. Legal Services provide advice,
guidance and representation as required and are a vital component of the
enforcement process.
9.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS
9.1 Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to equality?
(a) Yes and impact reviews are attached for Items on the highway and licensing of
‘A’ boards, shop displays, pavement cafes & other items on the highway and also
Enforcement of Fly Posting & Graffiti – http://www.wirral.gov.uk/myservices/community-and-living/equality-diversity-cohesion/equality-impactassessments/eias-2010/technical-services-0

10.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS
10.1 There are none arising directly from this report.

11.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS
11.1 There are no planning implications arising directly from this report.
cafes may require planning permission.

Page 232

Pavement

12.0 RECOMMENDATION/S
12.1 It is recommended that Cabinet note the contents of the report and that the
proposed plan and policies as detailed in the report and Appendix A are adopted.

13.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S
13.1 On 16th October 2008 Cabinet endorsed a Streetscene Enforcement Strategy and
Policies [Minute 238 refers] that detailed how enforcement activity would be
undertaken in the following years. In accordance with best practice and to ensure
the continuing delivery of an enforcement service that meets the current and future
needs of local people and the Council the strategies and policies have been
reviewed and revised.

REPORT AUTHOR:

Phil Black
Enforcement Manager
telephone: (0151) 606 2271
email: philblack@wirral.gov.uk

APPENDICES
Appendix A:

Policies and Scales of Penalties and Fees

Appendix B:

Enforcement Concordat

REFERENCE MATERIAL
None

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)

Council Meeting

Date

Cabinet - Streetscene Enforcement Strategy and

16th October 2008

Policies
Cabinet – Review of “A” Boards and Shop Displays on 15th April 2010
the Highway

Page 233

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 234

APPENDIX A
TECHNICAL SERVICES ENFORCEMENT POLICIES

This appendix contains Policies and procedures for the following enforcement and licensing
activities.
REF

ENFORCEMENT POLICY

PAGE

GEN01

Processes and procedures common to all policies

2

LEQ01

Fly tipping investigations and enforcement

4

LEQ02

Litter Dropping enforcement

6

LEQ03

Abandoned Vehicle removal

8

LEQ04

Enforcement of Litter Clearing Notices

10

LEQ05

Enforcement of Street Litter Control Notices

12

LEQ06

Fly posting and graffiti

14

LEQ07

Control of Distribution of free literature

17

LEQ08

Obstructions on the highway and Pavement Café licensing, “A” boards and
shop displays
19

LEQ09

Nuisance vehicles (cars for sale and vehicle repairs on the highway)

23

LEQ10

Skips, storage containers and building material on the highway

24

LEQ11

Licensing of Street Trading

27

LEQ12

Overhanging hedge, trees or shrubs

29

LEQ13

Miscellaneous highway enforcement

30

WTD01

Enforcement of Waste Transport legislation

32

WTD02

Enforcement of Trade Waste legislation

33

WTD03

Enforcement of domestic waste and recycling policy

35

PLE01

Untidy property and land

37

HPE02

Unauthorised Vehicle Crossing (over footway)

39

FEE01

Schedule of fees and charges

41

Page 235

Page 1

APPENDIX A
TECHNICAL SERVICES ENFORCEMENT POLICIES

GEN01 - COMMON PROCESSES AND PROCEDURES
The page outlines process and procedures that are standard across most if not all of the
various policies.

Penalties and charges – In instances where formal enforcement action is appropriate a
range of actions and penalties are available including formal and informal warnings, legal
notices, fixed penalty notices, cautions and court prosecution. In many circumstances it will
be most appropriate to issue a fixed penalty notice (FPN) if this option is available. For
serious or repeat offences and in instances where an FPN remains unpaid it is more
appropriate for cases to be referred to the magistrate’s court.
A table showing the proposed fixed penalty notice amounts for the full range of offences,
fees and charges is included in the Schedule attached at the end of this document.
Cases dealt with in court carry a wider range of penalties including imprisonment for the
most serious waste offences. The actual amounts imposed will vary case by case with
many factors being taken into account including previous convictions and mitigating
circumstances and are decided by the courts.
In relation to certain emergency, remedial or default actions undertaken by the Council it
may seek to recover it’s reasonable costs in carrying out these works from those
considered responsible or liable.
Appeals – In most cases where an FPN is issued there is no formal appeal process. If an
alleged offender considers an FPN is unfair or inappropriate or refuses to pay the matter
may be referred to the magistrates court where the offender will subsequently have an
opportunity to state his case. In practise the Council will normally consider informal appeals
at any stage prior to the case being referred to the magistrate’s court.
In relation to formal notices issued by the Council there is usually a statutory appeal
through the magistrates court if a person wishes to challenge the terms or conditions
imposed in a notice.
In relation to licences and permits in some circumstances an aggrieved person may appeal
to a magistrates’ court in relation to a refusal by the local authority to grant a licence or to
the conditions imposed by such.
Payment options – Fixed Penalty Notices are normally required to be paid in full within 14
days or in relation to certain offences at a reduced amount for early payment within 10
days. If no payment is received a reminder letter may be sent before the matter is
considered for court prosecution. In cases of financial hardship, payment arrangements
may also be considered if this is likely to assist in the FPN being paid, in such cases the
total amount to be paid will be at the full FPN level with the final payment date fixed to allow
the Council sufficient time to refer the case to the courts should the arrangements be
defaulted.
Payments of court imposed fines and costs are collected by the courts service.

Page 236

Page 2

APPENDIX A
TECHNICAL SERVICES ENFORCEMENT POLICIES

Fees and charges may be recovered by monthly invoice, paid annually in advance and in
some circumstances through payments arrangements. The Council’s sundry debtors team
would seek to recover unpaid debts.
Press and Media Releases – In situations where the details of a successful prosecutions
would be of public interest, for example to raise awareness of an issue or promote the work
of the Council a press release will be prepared and made available to the media.

Page 237

Page 3

APPENDIX A
TECHNICAL SERVICES ENFORCEMENT POLICIES

POLICY NAME – LEQ01 – FLY TIPPING.
POLICY SUMMARY
Although the investigation and enforcement of Fly Tipping is not a statutory duty local
authorities do have a duty to keep relevant land clear of litter and refuse. It therefore stands
that any enforcement action to reduce the problems of litter and refuse on land will help the
authority fulfil that duty.
Fly-tipping is the illegal dumping of waste. It can vary in scale significantly from a bin bag of
rubbish to large quantities of waste dumped from trucks. Fly-tipped waste may be found
anywhere, such as roadsides, in lay-bys or on private land.
This policy applies to land within the borough including privately owned land unless there is
a valid environmental permit in place authorising the deposit of waste.
The authority will investigate all reported incidents of fly tipping from the public, internal and
external sources including those recorded on CCTV cameras. Robust enforcement action
will be taken against persons or businesses involved in undertaking such illegal activity
including prosecution through the courts. Fly tipping is unsightly, damages the environment
especially if chemicals and or hazardous substances are involved, can be costly to cleanup
and if not controlled, may encourage further offences. Robust enforcement together with
high media profile of successful prosecutions is the main element of a long-term strategy.
POLICY DETAIL
Legislation - Section 33 of the Environmental Protection Act 1990. Persons suspected of
fly tipping may be prosecuted through the courts if sufficient evidence is available. Due to
the seriousness of such offences fixed penalty notices are not applicable.
Investigation – Fly tipping is the unauthorised deposit of any waste on land not licensed for
such use. For the purpose of this policy all such waste other than very small volumes
(generally one bin bag or less) will be treated as fly tipping. (Fly tipping of one bin bag or
less may be dealt with as a littering offence as detailed in Policy LEQ02 below).
Additionally waste which may otherwise be considered as fly tipping but which occurs in
relation to the domestic waste collection for that immediate area may be treated in
accordance with the Household Waste Collection And Recycling Enforcement Policy
WTD03 detailed below.
All reported incidents of fly tipping including incidents of fly tipping captured on the CCTV
cameras, will be investigated to ascertain if information linking the waste to an offender is
present, the level and detail of the investigation will range from a desk top exercise to a
detailed site investigation depending upon the type of wasted dumped and the information
available at the time of the initial report. Whenever possible written witness statements will
be obtained from those who may have observed or reported the offence taking place. If
required, suspected offenders will be invited to attend at Council offices for formal interview
under caution to explain their actions. Trained officers will undertake such interviews in
accordance with the Police and Criminal Evidence Act

Page 238

Page 4

APPENDIX A
TECHNICAL SERVICES ENFORCEMENT POLICIES

At locations where repeated fly tipping has occurred it is sometimes possible to undertake
covert camera surveillance, although this is subject to location and suitable site conditions.
Such surveillance operations are only undertaken after they have been considered and
authorised in accordance with relevant RIPA legislation.
Following the investigation and recording of all appropriate information, if the waste has
been deposited on highway land, the Waste Team will be notified to clean up the waste and
to keep a record of any costs incurred. If the waste has been deposited on private land it is
normally the responsibility of the landowner to have the waste removed at their own cost.
Prosecution - Following the gathering of all evidence including photographs, interviews
and statements, if sufficient information is available for there to be a reasonable prospect of
a successful prosecution a case file will be prepared and presented to the Council’s Legal
Services department for appraisal and listing for prosecution. An impact statement together
with a breakdown of investigation costs and cleanup costs where appropriate will also be
presented.
Investigating officers will attend court hearings and trials to give evidence and provide
assistance to the legal representation
If a prosecution is successful, details of any previous convictions for similar offences will be
made available for the courts to consider when setting fine levels.

Page 239

Page 5

APPENDIX A
TECHNICAL SERVICES ENFORCEMENT POLICIES

POLICY NAME – LEQ02 – LITTERING ENFORCEMENT
POLICY SUMMARY
Although undertaking litter dropping enforcement is not a statutory duty local authorities do
have a duty to keep relevant land clear of litter and refuse. It there stands that any
enforcement action to reduce the problems of litter will help the authority fulfil that duty.
Individuals observed or reported for dropping litter can be issued with a fixed penalty notice
(FPN) either on the spot or by post. Litter dropping is anti-social, is detrimental to
environment quality, presents a poor image to visitors and is costly to cleanup. Littering can
blight areas and in most part is a result of thoughtfulness or laziness. Regular planned
enforcement together with media promotion, education and advice are the main elements of
a long term improvement strategy.
POLICY DETAIL
Legislation –Section 88 of The Environmental Protection Act 1990 as amended by the
Clean Neighbourhoods and Environment Act 2005 gives local authorities powers to issue
FPN’s in lieu of court prosecution to persons guilty of dropping and leaving litter.
Enforcement Procedure – Littering offences either reported or directly observed by
Council officers’ may result in a FPN being issued either immediately or through the post if
the offender can be identified.
For more serious cases or in the case of repeat offenders a FPN would not be considered
appropriate and these matters will be referred directly to court for prosecution.
Un-intentional littering such as an item falling from a bag or pocket or very minor littering for
example an individual crisp or a small piece of orange peel would not normally attract a
FPN. However discarded cigarette butts, matches and chewing gum would constitute
littering and attract a FPN.
Direct Approach – Authorised enforcement officers including Council officers and
contracted civil enforcement officers, undertake litter campaigns on a planned regular basis
in targeted areas. In addition the Community Patrol Team and the Anti- Social Behaviour
Team have been trained and are equipped to carry out litter enforcement whilst undertaking
their other duties.
Where an offence has clearly been committed and a person is observed dropping and
leaving litter, that person can be approached, advised that they have committed an offence
for which a FPN is considered applicable and be asked to provide their name and address
and any other relevant information. An FPN will only be issued where the alleged offender
is compliant and understands why they have been challenged, the issuing enforcement
officer believes that they have provided their correct name and address and there are no
aggravating circumstances. A FPN will not be issued where the person when approached
is obstructive and non-cooperative, when it is suspected they have failed to provide their
correct name and address or when the person seems confused, either through some form
of impairment or through drugs or alcohol. A homeless person should not be offered an
FPN.

Page 240

Page 6

APPENDIX A
TECHNICAL SERVICES ENFORCEMENT POLICIES

Although technically FPN’s can be issued to persons between the ages of 10 years to 18
years this should only be undertaken as a last resort once all other avenues of enforcement
and education have been undertaken. Prior to embarking upon this type of enforcement
procedures and protocols must be put into place in partnership with youth offending teams
and juvenile courts. At the present time these systems and processes are not in place in
Wirral, significant additional resources for education, promotion and training would be
required to facilitate setting up and operating an enforcement regime to tackle juvenile
littering.
Enforcement following Camera Evidence – Video or still photographic evidence with or
without an additional witness statement may be used as evidence to investigate littering
offences and could result in the issue a of a postal FPN providing details of the offender can
be identified. This could include photographs taken by civil parking enforcement officers,
CCTV footage from fixed or mobile cameras such as those sited around the borough for
public safety, traffic management or other enforcement purposes or photographs submitted
by members of the public. For cases related to vehicle derived litter ie items thrown out of
windows or ashtrays emptied into gutters etc it should be noted that under current
legislation the vehicle keeper cannot automatically be issued with an FPN. In these
circumstances the keeper details are obtained through the DVLA and they are written to
and requested to provide details of the person responsible, who will then be subsequently
issued with an FPN.

Via third party information – Written or photographic information provided by a third party
may provide sufficient evidence to issue a FPN. Details of the alleged offence, offender
identity (if known), photographic evidence and a signed statement would normally be
sufficient for an FPN to be issued. Such information can come from a variety of sources
including other Departments, members of the public, contractors working on behalf of the
Council (for example Biffa), Neighbourhood or Environmental wardens and the Police etc.
In some circumstances it may be appropriate for the alleged offender to be interviewed
under caution prior to the issue of a FPN. In such instances trained officers will undertake
the interview in accordance with the Police and Criminal Evidence Act
Investigation – In certain circumstances it may be appropriate to treat very low levels of fly
tipping as littering. It is proposed that a threshold of one bin bag or less is adopted. In these
circumstance if the investigation reveals information that links the waste to an individual, ie
named and addressed utility bills or other similar addressed correspondence then it may be
appropriate to issue an FPN. If a repeat offender is identified it may be more appropriate to
prepare a case directly for court prosecution.

Page 241

Page 7

APPENDIX A
TECHNICAL SERVICES ENFORCEMENT POLICIES

POLICY NAME – LEQ 03 - ABANDONED VEHICLE REMOVAL.
POLICY SUMMARY
The removal of abandoned vehicles is a statutory duty of the Council.
The legislation relates to the removal of vehicles that have been abandoned or appear to
have been abandoned on any land in the open air including privately owned land or on any
other land forming part of a highway.
Vehicles can be removed where it appears to the local authority that the vehicle has been
abandoned without lawful authority and may become a target for anti-social behaviour or a
danger to young people or other groups of the community as well as loss of amenity to an
area.
In addition, where it appears that a person has committed the offence of abandoning a
vehicle that person can be issued with a £200 FPN as an alternative to prosecution through
the courts. The local authority can also claim the costs of removal, storage and/or disposal
of the vehicle from the registered keeper/owner.

POLICY DETAILS
Legislation – Section 2(1) of The Refuse Disposal (Amenity) Act 1978 makes it an offence
to for any person to abandon a motor vehicle on any land in the open air or on any other
land forming part of a highway.
Section 3(1) of The Refuse Disposal (Amenity) Act 1978 imposes a duty on the local
authority to remove any motor vehicle in their area that appears to be abandoned without
lawful authority.
Section 2A of the Clean Neighbourhoods and Environment Act 2005 gives local authorities
powers to issue a FPN in lieu of prosecution to any person who has abandoned a vehicle.
Enforcement Procedure
The removal of an abandoned vehicle and the issuing of a FPN would only be considered
after the registered keeper or local keeper/owner has been given an opportunity to remove
or reclaim the vehicle voluntarily except in cases where the vehicle is considered to be an
immediate danger to the public (this could include a combination of any of the following significant damage, rundown, unroadworthy with flat tyres, wheels and/or other parts
removed, broken windows, fluids leaking, substantial road traffic accident damage, or is in a
dangerous location).
In all instances the Council must contact the Police on notification of a vehicle being
abandoned to check that the vehicle has not been stolen or involved in a crime, unless
notification has been received from the Police in the first instance. In all cases attempts will
be made to ascertain if there is a registered keeper or local keeper/owner following a DVLA
check where necessary. If the DVLA enquiry reveals a Wirral owner, all reasonable efforts
will be made to contact the owner before arranging any vehicle removal.

Page 242

Page 8

APPENDIX A
TECHNICAL SERVICES ENFORCEMENT POLICIES

If a vehicle is located on the highway and an owner/keeper cannot be identified or, following
contact with the owner/keeper, no progress has been made and the condition of the vehicle
indicates it has been abandoned, then an instruction may be given to have the vehicle
removed normally within 24 hours. Vehicles that are unquestionably abandoned and pose
an immediate danger to the public will be removed within 4 hours.
In all cases, if a keeper has been identified and the vehicle is considered to be secure and
does not pose a danger, the keeper will be notified by letter that the vehicle should be
removed. If the vehicle is located on highway land and the owner/keeper fails to remove the
vehicle within the timescale requested, then the Council will arrange for the vehicle to be
removed. Where a vehicle, which is deemed to be abandoned, is on private land, the local
authority must write to the owner/occupier of that land giving 15 days notice that they
propose to remove the vehicle. The local authority is not entitled to remove the vehicle if the
occupier objects to the proposal within that period. However, if the occupier gives the local
authority permission to remove the vehicle (e.g. if the vehicle was abandoned without their
consent), the15-day notice automatically lapses and the vehicle can be removed
immediately.
In all cases once a vehicle has been removed, a letter will be issued to the registered
owner/keeper to advise them that the vehicle has been removed and that they should make
arrangements to reclaim the vehicle. They will also be advised that if they do not reclaim
the vehicle they may be issued with an FPN for vehicle abandonment.
Once a vehicle has been removed it will be stored for a period of not less than 10 days after
which time it may be destroyed. If the owner/keeper fails to make contact or reclaim the
vehicle an instruction will be given to destroy the vehicle. The owner/keeper will still be
liable to pay for all costs incurred in any such removal, storage and/or destruction. A letter
will be issued to the owner/keeper requesting payment of the full costs of removal, storage
and/or destruction. If the owner/keeper fails to make payment as requested, the debt may
be recovered through the Council’s debt recovery process.
If after a vehicle has been removed and before the vehicle is destroyed, a person satisfies
the Council that they are its owner and pays to the Council the costs of removal and
storage fees, then the owner may remove the vehicle from the approved contractor at their
own cost. If the owner fails to claim the vehicle, they will still be liable to pay any resulting
costs incurred by the Council for its removal, storage and destruction.

Page 243

Page 9

APPENDIX A
TECHNICAL SERVICES ENFORCEMENT POLICIES

POLICY NAME – LEQ04 – LITTER CLEARING NOTICE.
POLICY SUMMARY
The issuing of a Litter Clearing Notice is not a statutory duty, but local authorities do have a
duty to keep relevant land clear of litter and refuse. It therefore stands that any enforcement
action that can help to reduce the problems of litter and refuse on land will help the
authority fulfil that duty.
The Council can issue Litter Clearing Notices to the occupier/owner of certain private land
where accumulated litter is considered detrimental to the amenity of the area. It should
however, not be used against victims of fly tipping. Litter Clearing Notices are not suitable
on land that is defaced by refuse such as food waste that is likely to attract or harbour
vermin. This will be dealt with by the Environmental Health Team.
Notices should only be issued when occupiers/owners have been given an opportunity and
have either refused or have failed to rectify the problem.
Failure to comply with the requirements of a Litter Clearing Notice can result in an FPN
being issued as an alternative to prosecution through the Courts.
Education and encouragement followed up with robust enforcement form the main
elements of a long term improvement strategy.
POLICY DETAIL
Legislation – Section 92A of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 as amended by the
Clean Neighbourhoods and Environment Act 2005 gives authorities powers to issue FPN’s
in lieu of court prosecution to persons who have failed to comply with the requirements of a
Litter Clearing Notice within a prescribed timescale typically 28 days.
Enforcement Procedure
The issuing of a Litter Clearing Notice (LCN) would usually only be considered after the
occupier/owner has been given an opportunity to rectify the problem voluntarily.
Persons responsible for land which is defaced by litter will be contacted, after undertaking a
land registry check if necessary, and advised of the problem which has been identified and
the potential remedies available to them. They will also be advised of the legislative powers
available to the Council if they do not voluntarily take action. They will be encouraged to
voluntarily make arrangements to resolve the issues within an agreed timescale; typically
28 days.
Follow up visits will be made to identify if any action has been taken or if voluntarily agreed
measures have been undertaken.
If no progress on resolving the issues has been made and it is considered that the land is
detrimental to the amenity of the neighbourhood, then the occupier/owners will be advised
in writing that a Litter Clearing Notice is to be issued.

Page 244

Page 10

APPENDIX A
TECHNICAL SERVICES ENFORCEMENT POLICIES

A Litter Clearing Notice will state why it is being issued and can specify that a person must
remove all litter from within the defined area, to a specified standard within a specified time
period typically 28 days. It can also require that the area is regularly inspected and cleaned
to maintain the specified level of cleanliness.
An appeal against such a Notice may be made to a magistrates’ court within 21 days from
the date on which it is served.
Once a LCN has been issued the land will be subject to further follow up visits to ensure
compliance. Failure to comply with the requirements of a LCN either in whole or part within
the specified timescale, may result in a FPN being issued or in more serious cases or for
repeat offenders a case may be prepared for prosecution in the magistrates’ court. It is also
open to the Council or any person authorised by the authority to enter the land and clear it
of litter and refuse and require the person on whom the notice has been served to pay a
reasonable charge in this respect.

Page 245

Page 11

APPENDIX A
TECHNICAL SERVICES ENFORCEMENT POLICIES

POLICY NAME – LEQ05 – STREET LITTER CONTROL NOTICE.
POLICY SUMMARY
The issuing of a Street Litter Control Notice is not a statutory duty, but local authorities do
have a duty to keep relevant land clear of litter and refuse. It therefore stands that any
enforcement action that can help to reduce the problems of litter and refuse on land will
help the authority fulfil that duty

Enforcement of legislation relating to litter or refuse arising outside retail/commercial
premises and mobile catering facilities: It is intended primarily to help deal with food and
drink packaging and other litter caused by eating ‘on the go’, as well as litter from cash
points and lottery tickets dropped outside shops.
Notices can be issued by the Council only if it is satisfied that litter or refuse is causing the
‘recurrent defacement’ of the street and is of detriment to the amenity of the local
environment. Notices should only be issued when other avenues of education, advice and
partnership arrangements have been explored and have either been rejected or have failed
for some other reason. Street litter is detrimental to environment quality, presents a poor
image to visitors and is costly to cleanup.
Failure to comply with a Street Litter Control Notice can result in a FPN being issued as an
alternative to prosecution through the Courts.
Education and advice, backed up with robust enforcement will form the main elements of a
long-term improvement strategy.
POLICY DETAIL
Legislation – Section 93 of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 as amended by the
Clean Neighbourhoods and Environment Act 2005 gives authorities powers to issue Street
Litter Control Notices with a view to the prevention of accumulations of litter or refuse in
streets arising from retail/commercial premises and mobile catering units and to issue
FPN’s in lieu of court prosecution to persons who have failed to comply with the
requirements of a Notice within a prescribed timescale, typically 7 days.

Enforcement Procedure
The issuing of a Street Litter Control Notice (SLCN) will only usually be considered when
other avenues of partnership arrangements, education and advice have been promoted and
have either been rejected, ignored or have been unsuccessful. Information on partnership
arrangements is included within the Voluntary Code of Practice - Reducing litter caused by
‘food on the go’ published by DEFRA.
Within Wirral promotion of the “Tidy Business Awards” is also being rolled out to
businesses.
Premises responsible for generating street litter that is considered to be detrimental to the
amenity of the local environment will be contacted and advised of the problems they are

Page 246

Page 12

APPENDIX A
TECHNICAL SERVICES ENFORCEMENT POLICIES

creating and potential remedies including legislative powers available to the authority. They
will be encouraged to voluntarily make arrangements to resolve the issues, which could be
achieved through an informal agreement, or preferably a more formal partnership
arrangement.
If either formal or informal arrangements are agreed, follow up visits will be made to ensure
compliance. If agreed standards are not being maintained, businesses will be encouraged
to comply and a date for a follow up visit will be set.
If businesses have either failed to make voluntary improvements or not agreed to enter into
a formal or informal arrangement, or have failed to achieve standards agreed in any such
arrangements they will be advised that a Street Litter Control Notice (SLCN) is to be issued.
A SLCN will state why it is being issued and will specify that the occupier of the premises
undertakes to remove all litter or refuse from within a defined area, usually the premises
frontage up to the gutter but not including the carriageway, to a specified standard and
within a specified time period, usually 7 days. It can also require a business to maintain the
specified level of cleanliness by cleaning of the area on a regular basis and the provision of
emptying receptacles used for litter or refuse.
Following the service of a notice, the person on whom the notice has been served will have
an opportunity to make representations about the notice to the Council within 21 days from
the date of the notice being served, or they may appeal to a magistrates’ court.
Once a SLCN has been issued, the premises will be subject to further follow up visits to
ensure compliance. Failure to comply with the requirements of a SLCN either in whole or
part within the specified timescale, may result in an FPN being issued or in more serious
cases or for repeat offenders a case may be prepared for prosecution in the courts.

Page 247

Page 13

APPENDIX A
TECHNICAL SERVICES ENFORCEMENT POLICIES

POLICY NAME – LEQ06 – FLY POSTING AND GRAFFITI.
POLICY SUMMARY
The investigation and enforcement of fly posting and graffiti is not a statutory function.
Fly posting is the posting of stickers, posters, banners and other advertising without the
consent of the owner of the property.
Graffiti is the illegal or unauthorised defacement of property usually in the form of drawings,
pictures and scribbles, messages or tags that are painted, or written on walls without the
owners’ consent. Offensive graffiti may contain some or all of the following elements:
offensive language; language of a politically/racially/religiously insulting/inciting nature; a
hate statement; and/or an image which is graphically explicit or offensive by the message
that it contains.
Street furniture in particular is targeted. Persons who undertake or authorise the
undertaking of fly posting or graffiti can be issued with an FPN or prosecuted through the
Courts. Owners of street furniture, statutory undertakers and educational institutions may
also be issued with a graffiti removal notice, which they must comply with within a
prescribed timescales usually 28 days. Fly posting and graffiti is unsightly, can distract or
hinder visibility at traffic junctions, presents a poor image to visitors, can be offensive and is
can be costly to cleanup. Robust enforcement together with media promotion, education
and advice are the main elements of a long term improvement strategy.
POLICY DETAIL
Legislation
Fly Posting
• Section 43 of the Anti-social Behaviour Act 2003 together with Part 4 Section 28 of
Clean Neighbourhoods and Environment Act (CNEA) 2005 gives authorities powers
to issue FPN’s in lieu of court prosecution to persons witnessed fly posting;
• Section 48 of the Anti-social Behaviour Act 2003 give the local authority powers to
issue a “Graffiti Removal Notice” where they are satisfied that a relevant surface in
an area has been defaced by graffiti (which includes painting, writing, soiling,
marking or other defacing by whatever means) and that the defacement is
detrimental to the amenity of the area or is offensive;
• Section 225(1) of the Town and Country Planning Act (TCPA) 1990 allows the local
authority to remove or obliterate any placards and posters displayed in their area and
which are in contravention of Section 220 of the TCPA 1990;
• Under Section 225(3) of the TCPA 1990 if the placard or poster identifies the person
who displayed it or caused it to be displayed, then the local authority must give that
person notice in writing of their intention remove or obliterate the placard or poster
and must not do so until the expiry of the notice;
• Section 132 of the Highways Act (HA) 1980 creates an offence for fly posting. It also
gives the Council the power to remove placards and posters without contacting the
organisation. However, there is no power under the “Recovery of Expenses”
(Section 305 of the HA 1980) to recover costs of removal. Legal action can be
considered for an offence under this section.

Page 248

Page 14

APPENDIX A
TECHNICAL SERVICES ENFORCEMENT POLICIES

Graffiti
• Section 43 of the Anti-social Behaviour Act 2003 together with Part 4 Section 28 of
the CNEA 2005 gives authorities powers to issue FPN’s in lieu of court prosecution
to persons witnessed and positively identified marking illegally on walls and other
surfaces. A FPN must not be issued if the commission of the offence falls within
section 44(1)(c) of the Act or in the case that any relevant offence was motivated
(wholly or partly) by hostility towards a person based upon his membership of a
racial or religious group, or towards members of a racial or religious group based on
their membership of that group;
• Section 48 of the Anti-social Behaviour Act 2003 give the local authority powers to
issue a “Graffiti Removal Notice” where they are satisfied that a relevant surface in
an area has been defaced by graffiti (which includes painting, writing, soiling,
marking or other defacing by whatever means) and that the defacement is
detrimental to the amenity of the area or is offensive;
• Instances of large scale graffiti or offensive graffiti will always to referred to the Police
for potential prosecution under the Criminal Damages Act 1971 or other more
appropriate legislation.

ENFORCEMENT PROCEDURE
Fly posting offences – There is no statutory definition of fly posting however, it is widely
accepted to be the display of advertising material on buildings and street furniture without
consent of the owner, and contrary to the law. The following framework will be used when
enforcing fly posting offences.
All observed or reported incidents of fly posting will be recorded and investigated. If
possible the identity of the fly poster or beneficiary of the content of the poster will be
obtained. The alleged offender will initially be contacted either in person or by letter, and
advised that they are committing an offence and be given an opportunity to remove the
material. The length of time given to comply will depend upon the scale and nature of the
offence, typically local businesses and individuals would be allowed between 48 hours and
7 days to comply.
If this request is not complied with the enforcement officer will record further details of the
offending material, locations, dates times etc including photographs and if possible remove
the material.
An FPN may be issued, usually by post, for each individual offence. Where there are a
number of banners, placards or posters displayed in the same location or it is a persistent
offender that has been previously warned the impact on the local environment would be
such that it may be more appropriate to prepare a case and prosecute the offender through
the courts.
In the case of banners, placards or posters being erected on guardrails, street furniture or
traffic signals, the Council may remove the fly posting immediately to alleviate any danger
to road users and consider prosecution against the responsible person.
Graffiti Offences – Graffiti includes painting, writing, soiling, marking or other defacing by
whatever means. All observed or reported incidents of graffiti will be recorded and

Page 249

Page 15

APPENDIX A
TECHNICAL SERVICES ENFORCEMENT POLICIES

investigated. Instances of offensive graffiti will be referred to the Police for appropriate
action and removed in accordance with graffiti removal policy.
Obtaining the identity of persons responsible for graffiti can be very difficult but sharing
information with other agencies may assist with known offenders.
For non offensive graffiti, where the identity of a person responsible is known an FPN may
be issued, usually by post, for each individual offence. However, FPN’s are only applicable
for minor instances of graffiti where the level of defacement or damage is small. Instances
of repeated or large scale graffiti or where permanent damage to property by scratching or
gauging has occurred, property owners may wish to refer the matter to the Police for
possible prosecution under the Criminal Damages Act 1971.
Where fly posting or graffiti occurs on street furniture, equipment owned by statutory
undertakers or on educational institution buildings and has not been removed and/or
remains detrimental to the environment, action against the property owner may be taken.
Attempts should first be taken to resolve such matters in partnership but if these fail a
“Graffiti Removal Notice” may be appropriate. Once served the notice must be complied
with within a prescribed timescales usually 28 days, although the notice can be appealed to
the magistrates’ court within 21 days of the date of service of the notice. If no action results
the Council may remove the defacement and recover the costs.

Page 250

Page 16

APPENDIX A
TECHNICAL SERVICES ENFORCEMENT POLICIES

POLICY NAME – LEQ07 – DISTRIBUTION OF FREE LITERATURE.
POLICY SUMMARY
Enforcement of legislation relating to the distribution of free literature in public spaces is not
a statutory duty.
The authority can designate areas of its own land or highways, by order, in which the
distribution of free literature is only permitted with specific consent. Persons who
subsequently distribute free literature or who commission the distribution of such within
these areas without consent may be issued with an FPN.
Although Cabinet have previously agreed in principle to the adoption of these powers
through a legal order government guidance suggests this should only implemented if there
is sufficient evidence to suggest this is a problem. At the present time the evidence does
not exist and it would be difficult to justify the implementation of the scheme if it was
challenged during the formal process. It is therefore suggested that implementation is
deferred and reconsidered in the future if the situation changes.
THE FOLLOWING IS THEREFORE INCLUDE AS BACKGROUND INFORMATION ONLY
POLICY DETAIL
Legislation – Section 94B – SCHEDULE 3A of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 as
amended by the CNE Act 2005 gives authorities powers to designate consent areas and
issue FPN’s, in lieu of court prosecution, to persons who distribute or commission the
distribution of free literature in designated areas without consent.
Enforcement Procedure
Following the designation, by order of areas of land as consent areas for the distribution of
free literature, no such literature should be distributed without prior consent.
The Council may refuse any request for a consent or grant consents with limitations and
conditions for example, restrictions on times or extent of area and requirements to
undertake cleaning operations. A fee may also be charged for a consent. It is initially
proposed that no consents will be granted for the distribution of literature within the
designated areas with an exemption only for local or national initiatives by the Council or
other public bodies relating to issues such as crime reduction, health or education etc. Any
person who is aggrieved by a decision not to grant consent or by any conditions imposed
by such consent may appeal to a magistrates Court.
Distribution of literature from organisations within the meaning of the Charities Act 1993 or
for the purpose of political or religious belief is exempt from the consent requirement.
Following designation of the above areas, any person or organisation distributing or
commissioning the distribution of free material within the designated areas without consent
will be advised of the offence and may be issued with an FPN with the exception that during
the first month of such designation warnings will be given for first offences in lieu of an FPN.

Page 251

Page 17

APPENDIX A
TECHNICAL SERVICES ENFORCEMENT POLICIES

In cases of repeat offenders or where distribution has continued despite a warning and
before an FPN has been issued, it is proposed that a case will be prepared for court
prosecution. The Council has powers to seize material where it believes an offence has
been committed, such material must be returned if ordered by a magistrate’s court or
following the conclusion of any formal action.

Page 252

Page 18

APPENDIX A
TECHNICAL SERVICES ENFORCEMENT POLICIES

POLICY NAME – LEQ08(A) – OBSTRUCTIONS AND LICENCING OF ‘A’ BOARDS,
SHOP FRONT DISPLAYS AND OTHER ITEMS DISPLAYED ON THE HIGHWAY, AND
LEQ08(B) – LICENSING OF PAVEMENT CAFES
POLICY SUMMARY
The regulation and licensing of ‘A’ boards, shop displays, pavement cafes and other items
displayed on the highway is not a statutory duty, although the authority has a duty to protect
the rights of the public in relation to use the highway.
This policy covers ‘A’ boards, shop front displays, pavement cafes, placards, statues and
cut-outs, novelty displays, display islands and trestles, pots, plants and planters, furniture,
window displays projecting over the footway and other items of a similar nature.
Wirral Council as the local highway authority has powers and duties to manage and
maintain highways and footways in the borough. The Highways Act 1980, the Traffic
Management Act 2004 and the Equality Act 2010 place duties and responsibilities on
authorities to manage and maintain the highway so that amongst other things it provides
safe, efficient and obstruction free highways available for all its users.
Currently there are no legislative powers to issue a FPN where a person obstructs the
highway or has failed to apply for a licence or comply with its rules and conditions. Persons
who obstruct the highway may be prosecuted in the courts through use of other legislation
in the Highways Act.
POLICY DETAILS
Legislation – Sections 41, 58, 130, 137, 137ZA, and 178 of the Highways Act 1980 (as
amended) refers and sections 132 and 143 of the Highways Act 1980 (as amended) gives
authorities the powers of removal. Sections 137, 148, 149, 152 and 161 of the Highways
Act 1980 (as amended) refers to penalties and offences and The Local Government
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982, Schedule 5 Highway Amenities Part l, addition of part
VllA to Highways Act 1980 (as amended) sections 115A – 115K give authorities’ powers for
the licensing of ‘A’ boards, shop display and other items on the highway.
FEES AND CHARGES
LEQ08(A) ‘A’ Boards, Shop Front Displays and other items
For ‘A’ Boards and shop front displays – provided that the applicant can satisfy and meet all
of the ‘Standard Rules’ there will be no fee payable upon application. If all of the ‘Standard
Rules’ cannot be met then a fee is payable for each item to be displayed. A shop front
display counts as one item.
For all other items such as but not limited to:
• Placards
• Statues and cut-outs
• Novelty displays
• Display islands and trestles
• Pots, plants and planters
• Furniture

Page 253

Page 19

APPENDIX A
TECHNICAL SERVICES ENFORCEMENT POLICIES

• Window displays projecting over the footway
a fee will be payable in respect of each item to be displayed.
Charity shops are exempt from payment of fees but must adhere to all other relevant
legislation with regards to the display of ‘A’ boards, shop front displays and other items on
the footway.
LEQ)08(B) Pavement Cafes
Fees apply depending upon whether the application is an initial application or a renewal
and are also based upon the size of the area occupied.

LICENSING CONDITIONS AND ENFORCEMENT PROCEDURES
It is an offence for a person without authority (or licence) to erect or deposit anything on a
highway to the interruption of any user of that highway. Items left on the highway without
permission should in most circumstances be removed. In relation to ‘A’ boards, shop
displays and other items, the Council may licence these items and request a fee in doing
so. Any licences issued will clearly state any limitations, conditions and the exact area or
location for the ‘A’ board, shop display or other item.
The Council may remove any unauthorised items including ‘A’ boards and shop displays
where it is deemed that the unauthorised items are causing a danger on the highway,
without notice being issued to the owner. In other circumstances the trader may be
“noticed” to remove the items, invited to apply for a licence or may be prosecuted for
obstruction
Applications and Licensing
Any person wishing to display an ‘A’ board, shop front display, pavement cafe or any other
item on the highway must complete and submit an application form to the Council and must
provide proof of suitable Public Liability Insurance (PLI) before a licence will be issued.
Additionally businesses applying to operate a pavement café on the public highway must
have or be in the process of obtaining will require a valid planning permission before the
authority will consider an application for a pavement café licence.
In all cases a licence will only be granted if there will be a suitable footway width remaining
after the items are placed on the highway. The location will be assessed for suitability from
a highway safety viewpoint having regard for pedestrian and vehicle movements and flow at
busiest times. This may vary depending upon location and traffic/pedestrian levels but will
include allowance for the presence of vehicle and pedestrian crossing points, traffic signals,
sightlines and visibility and existing street furniture or obstructions.
Prior to granting a license, the Council is required to post notices on the street, serve notice
on the occupier of any premises appearing to the council to be likely to be materially
affected and undertake consultation. The license will not be granted until the Council has
taken into consideration all representations made in connection with the proposal within the
period specified in the notice.

Page 254

Page 20

APPENDIX A
TECHNICAL SERVICES ENFORCEMENT POLICIES

If on application all of the ‘standard rules’ criteria can be met and suitable PLI is in place,
then the ‘A’ board or shop display may continue to be displayed whilst the application is
processed. For all other applications the items must not be displayed prior to permission
being granted.
Site and location standards
The minimum clear footway width allowing for the item, display or café must be no less than
2m. In busy or heavily trafficked areas the minimum clear width may be increased to 2.5m
or more depending upon individual site conditions and pedestrian flows. Where existing
street furniture is located near to the kerb edge i.e. street lighting columns, pedestrians
should not be expected to walk between it and the roadway and the clear width must be
measured between the item proposed for display and the existing item of street furniture.
The minimum clear widths will be increased by a minimum of 1m where the proposed
item/display is located adjacent to a dropped pedestrian crossing.
Items will not be permitted in locations that would impede visibility for pedestrians or vehicle
users in particular at or near junctions, signals or pedestrian crossing points. The through
route for pedestrians must be directly in the line of the main pedestrian flow and not involve
kinks, detours or sharp changes of direction.
Licences for ‘A’ boards or similar will only be considered in relation to boards or items that
are displayed near to or adjacent to the frontage of the premises and not located remote or
outside other properties. They would also not be permitted in locations where they would
compete with locations currently utilised or identified for Highway Roadside Advertising.
The maximum size for ‘A’ boards is nominally 0.6m wide x 1m high and they must be
designed with stable bases and must not rotate or spin. Flag type signs will not be
permitted.
Shop displays should normally be displayed immediately adjacent to the frontage of the
premises and shall not be remote or outside other properties. The maximum projection
from the frontage for shop displays is nominally 1m with a total area of no more than 5m2.
All shop displays or goods should be displayed on or within a stand, table or enclosure and
where appropriate kick boards or similar should be provided in the lower 300mm to assist
blind or visually impaired users. Items must be placed and designed so as not to project
over the footway beyond the display base by more than 100mm, as this can present a
specific hazard to partially sighted and blind users.
Pavement cafes should normally be located immediately adjacent to the frontage of the
premises and shall not be remote or outside other properties. The maximum permitted size
for pavement cafés will depend upon individual suite circumstances.
Licence
If granted, subject to satisfying the relevant criteria and having received no substantiated or
relevant objections, a licence will normally be issued for an initial period of 2 years but may
be reviewed at any time. If an application for an extension is received 8 weeks prior to the
licence expiry and this is approved, the licence may be extended for a further period of 2
years. A decision to approve an extension of a licence will depend on a number of factors
including continued compliance with any rules or conditions. A breach of the standard rules

Page 255

Page 21

APPENDIX A
TECHNICAL SERVICES ENFORCEMENT POLICIES

or conditions at any time may result in a range of enforcement action including the licence
being revoked depending upon the seriousness of the breach and may affect a future
decision to renew or extend a licence. Licences will only remain valid whilst all fees and
charges if applicable are fully paid.
The Council may refuse a request for a licence where it is considered that the position of
the ‘A’ board, shop front display, pavement cafe or other item could constitute a danger or
hazard to other users of the highway.
If an application is refused, the application fee (if any) will not be refunded but the applicant
will be advised in writing why that particular location is unsuitable.
When granted a licence will include various rules and conditions, for example designated
boundaries, sizes and locations of items, permitted times when they may be displayed i.e.
during trading hours only, and requirements to leave the highway in a clean and tidy state,
including regular inspection and removal of any litter.
The licence should be kept on the premises for inspection by the Council at all times that
the items are located on the highway.
If an unauthorised ‘A’ board, shop display or pavement café is observed on the highway but
is considered to be acceptable in terms of its size and location and any relevant
permissions have been obtained and suitable PLI is in place, then the trader will be invited
to submit an application for a licence within 14 days, and that application will be processed
in accordance with the policy described above.
Where a person fails to apply for a licence following a 14-day compliance period, then the
Council may in certain circumstances issue a 28-Day Removal Notice or alternatively
consider prosecution for wilful obstruction of the highway. If a 28-Day Removal Notice is
issued and the responsible person fails to comply with the notice, then the authority may
make a complaint to the magistrates’ court for a removal and disposal order or if the item(s)
is considered to constitute a danger, then an enforcement officer can instruct removal of the
item(s) immediately. Any costs incurred by the Council in doing so can be recovered
through the courts and that person will also be guilty of an offence and liable to a fine if
convicted
If any unauthorised item including an ‘A’ board, shop display or pavement café is observed
on the highway in a location which is considered an obstruction to other highway users, the
owner will be asked to remove the item immediately. Follow up visits will be made and if no
progress has been made a case may be prepared for prosecution.
Other legislative requirements that may impact upon the placing of ‘A’ boards or a shop
display within the highway include the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and the Town
and Country Planning (Control of Advertisements) Regulations 2007. It is the responsibility
of the applicant to ensure that they meet the requirements of these and any other Acts and
Regulations.

Page 256

Page 22

APPENDIX A
TECHNICAL SERVICES ENFORCEMENT POLICIES

POLICY NAME – LEQ09 - NUISANCE VEHICLES – EXPOSING VEHICLES FOR SALE
AND VEHICLE REPAIRS ON THE HIGHWAY
POLICY SUMMARY
Enforcement of vehicles being exposed for sale and vehicle repairs taking place on the
highway is not a statutory duty.
The local authority can issue an FPN to anyone found to be advertising for sale two or more
vehicles parked within 500 metres of each at the same time or repairing vehicles on the
highway as part of a business operation. A FPN offers the offender the opportunity to
discharge any liability for the offence as an alternative to court prosecution. Private
individuals found to be advertising vehicles for sale on the highway may be issued with
informal warning notices.
For repeat or persistent offenders it may be more appropriate for a court prosecution as
opposed to issuing an FPN
POLICY DETAIL
Legislation – Section 6 of the Clean Neighbourhoods and Environment Act 2005 gives
authorities the power to issue FPN’s in lieu of court prosecution or to prosecute persistent
offenders who are found to be selling, advertising or repairing vehicles on the highway as
part of a business.
Enforcement Procedure
We will investigate complaints regarding vehicles for sale or repair on the highway including
taking photographs and recording details of adverts including telephone numbers. Attempts
will be made to contact the vehicle owner and DVLA check may be made if necessary.
If the person responsible for selling, advertising or repairing vehicles on the highway can be
identified they will be issued with a formal letter advising of the legislative powers available
to the Council and advised to cease the activity immediately.
The issuing of a FPN would normally only be considered after the person responsible has
been given this opportunity to cease the activity.
A follow up visit will normally be made by officers to identify if the activity has stopped and if
no progress on resolving the matter has been made, an FPN may be issued. For more
serious cases or for repeat offenders, a case may be prepared for prosecution in the courts.

Page 257

Page 23

APPENDIX A
TECHNICAL SERVICES ENFORCEMENT POLICIES

POLICY NAME – LEQ10 - CONTROL OF SKIPS, STORAGE CONTAINERS, BUILDING
MATERIALS, STALLS AND THINGS ON THE HIGHWAY (CHERRY PICKERS/CRANES)
POLICY SUMMARY
The licensing of skips, storage containers, building materials, stalls and things deposited on
the highway (cherry pickers/cranes) is not a statutory duty although skip operators must
seek permission from the Council before depositing skips on the highway.
The Council licence skips, storage containers, building materials, stalls and things
deposited on the highway (cherry pickers/cranes). A range of permit charges applies
depending upon the size of the container.
Where such items are placed on the highway without a licence or in contravention of any
conditions imposed by a licence, the authority can take action against the offenders. In the
case of commercial skip operators who fail to notify the Council prior to placing an item on
the highway, an additional penalty fee will be added to the standard permit fee. In the case
of individual members of the public, they will be given the opportunity to remove the items
or apply for a retrospective permit or licence at the standard fee
As the legislation does not provide for the issuing of a fixed penalty notice, persons who do
not obtain a licence or contravene its conditions may be prosecuted through the courts.
POLICY DETAILS
Legislation – Sections 139 and 140 of the Highways Act 1980 and Builder’s Skips
(Markings) Regulations 1984 gives authorities’ powers for the control and removal of skips
from the highway where it is considered that they are causing an obstruction on the
highway, are sited without a permit, deemed to be in an unfit condition or are improperly
lighted and guarded.
Section 171 of the Highways Act 1980 gives authorities the power to control the deposit of
building materials and making of excavations in streets. Section 149 of the Highways Act
1980 gives authorities the powers for the removal of things so deposited on highways as to
be a nuisance.
The Local Authorities (Transport Charges) Regulations 1998 (S.I. 1998 No. 948) gives
authorities the power to make a charge with regard to their consideration of an application
for the depositing of skips, storage containers, building materials, stalls and things on the
highway (cherry pickers/cranes).

Licence and enforcement procedure
Persons wishing to place a skip, container, building material, stalls and things on the
highway (cherry pickers/cranes) on the highway must apply for a permit and pay the
appropriate fee. Permits for skips are valid for 14 days and for containers or building
materials 28 days. Permits for stalls and things on the highway (cherry pickers/cranes) are
valid per day or part thereof or per weekend.

Page 258

Page 24

APPENDIX A
TECHNICAL SERVICES ENFORCEMENT POLICIES

Although technically the Council can remove unauthorised skips, storage containers,
building materials, stalls, cherry pickers/cranes or any other thing from the highway where
they have been deposited without permission, are causing an obstruction on the highway or
are deemed to be in an unfit condition, this is not generally undertaken due to the costs and
difficulties of storage. If the Council does go down this route it can recover all reasonable
expenses incurred in doing so from the person convicted of the offence.
Currently there are no legislative powers to issue a FPN where operators have failed to
apply for a permit or comply with the legislation.
The Council will seek to prosecute operators through the courts where operators have
deposited a skip or container on the highway without permission or in an unfit condition.
Skips on the Highway– Before a permit application is considered operators must provide
proof of their Public Liability Insurance and proof that a valid Waste Carriers Licence has
been issued by the Environment Agency. They are also required to confirm acceptance of
the Council’s rules and regulations for placing skips on the highway and to provide an out of
hours emergency contact telephone number. Any skip operator who fails to supply the
relevant documentation or sign up to the rules and regulations will not be permitted to place
skips on the highway. In the event that any skip is placed on the highway without
permission, the Council will seek to prosecute the skip operator.
Skip permits can be requested by email, fax or online through Business Link. Permits must
normally be requested in advance but will also be accepted no later than the end of the
working day on which the skip is first placed on the highway.
Where a skip operator has failed to apply for a permit, and an unauthorised skip has been
identified, the operator will be contacted in writing by the Council and given the opportunity
to apply for a retrospective permit or make representations within 14 days. If appropriate the
permit fee will be applied at the standard rate plus an additional penalty fee.
The Council or a Police Constable can require the owner of a skip to remove or reposition it
at their own expense even if permission has been granted.
Skips must not normally be placed on grass verges or the pavement unless precautions
have been made to protect such.
Skip permits are issued with various rules and conditions including those relating to lighting,
guarding and signing of the skip. All skips must be guarded and lit to comply with the Traffic
Signs Manual – Chapter 8. Warning lamp must remain lit throughout the hours of darkness.
If an unlit skip is reported the Council will attempt to contact the emergency number that
has been provided by the skip operator and they will be given 2 hours to rectify the matter
during normal office hours or a period of 1 hour out of normal office hours. If the skip
operator fails to comply with the Council’s requests and neglects or refuses to properly light
the skip within the prescribed timescale, and the Council are required to provide lamps, the
skip owner will be re-charged for all costs incurred by the Council. In addition, the Council
can prosecute skip operators who fail to comply with the rules and conditions.
Where a skip operator has failed to apply for a permit or make representations having been
given the opportunity to do so, or the permit has expired, or the skip is causing an
obstruction on the highway or is deemed to be in an unfit condition or is unlit, unguarded

Page 259

Page 25

APPENDIX A
TECHNICAL SERVICES ENFORCEMENT POLICIES

and/or unsigned, the Council has powers to prosecute the skip operator. In these
circumstances if sufficient evidence exists the Council will prepare a case and seek to
prosecute such offenders through the courts.
Invoicing and outstanding fees and charges – The Council invoices skip operators
monthly in respect of permit fees for the preceding month. To avoid excessively large
arrears building up if an invoice remains unpaid for longer than a period of 14 days after the
invoice date, the Council will write to the skip operator advising them that no further skip
permits will be granted and that the skip operator must not place any more skips on the
highway until the invoice has been paid in full. If skips continue to be deposited on the
highway without authority, the Council will seek to prosecute the skip operator.
Storage Containers, Building Materials, Stalls and Other Things on the Highway
(cherry pickers/cranes) – Where a person/operator has failed to apply for a licence and
any unauthorised storage containers, building materials, stall or other things have been
deposited on the highway, the responsible person is contacted immediately by the local
authority and advised to apply for a licence or to remove the unauthorised storage
container(s) and/or building materials, stall or other thing on the highway immediately.
If the Council considers that anything unlawfully deposited on the highway constitutes a
danger to users of that highway and that the thing in question ought to be removed without
the delay the Council may remove the thing forthwith and may then recover any expenses
reasonably incurred in removing it through the courts or apply to the courts for a removal
and disposal order.
Any licence issued will contain various conditions including those relating to lighting,
guarding and signing of the items. The Council can take action against operators who fail to
comply with the terms of the licence.
Where a person/operator has failed to apply for a licence having been given the opportunity
to do so, or the licence has expired, or the object is causing an obstruction on the highway,
the council has powers to take action against the operator. In some instances it may
remove the object from the highway without further notice.
The Council will therefore prepare a case and seek to prosecute such offenders through the
courts.

Page 260

Page 26

APPENDIX A
TECHNICAL SERVICES ENFORCEMENT POLICIES

POLICY NAME – LEQ11 – CONTROL AND LICENCING OF STREET TRADERS
POLICY SUMMARY
Regulation and licensing of street traders is not a statutory duty.
The Council has designated many of its streets as being Prohibited or Consent Streets for
the purposes of street trading. Within consent streets the Council can licence street traders
and request a fee in doing so. Any such licence approved will state clear limitations,
conditions and the location of the stall, container or mobile.
The authority may prosecute any person who engages in street trading in a prohibited
street; in a consent street without a licence; or contravenes any of the principal terms or
conditions of the licence; or knowingly makes a false statement; or who trades without a
valid licence. Currently there are no legislative powers to issue a FPN where a person has
failed to apply for a licence or comply with legislation.
POLICY DETAIL
Legislation – The Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 Part 3 –
Schedule 4 gives authorities powers to licence street traders and to prosecute a person in
contravention of the terms or conditions of a licence; or who trades in a prohibited street or
in a consent street without a licence; or knowingly makes a false statement.
Fees – There will be a non-refundable application fee payable in respect of all new or
annual renewal applications. Additionally an annual or daily consent fee will apply.
A street trading licence will remain valid for a period of 12 months from the date on which it
is granted or for a shorter period as specified in the licence. The Council may at any time
propose to revoke the licence if the licence holder refuses or neglects to pay the relevant
consent fees or fails to comply with the terms and conditions of the licence and no fee will
be refund in these circumstances.
If a trader surrenders his licence before the expiry date, the Council may refund the whole
or part of the fee.
Licence - The Council may at any time propose to vary the principal terms of a licence,
refuse to grant a licence or the renewal of a licence, grant a licence on principal terms
different from those specified in the application, grant a licence confining the applicant’s
trading to a particular place in a street or revoke a licence if the licence holder fails to
comply with the terms and conditions of a licence and/or persistently refuses or neglects to
pay fees due to the Council in respect of the consent fees. In these circumstances a notice
will be served on the licence holder specifying the grounds on which it proposes to vary,
refuse to renew or revoke a licence and allowing a period of not less than 7 days within
which the licence holder can make representations to the local authority in this respect.
On the expiry of the notice, the licence holder has 21 days following notification of the
Council’s decision to appeal to the magistrates’ court. The notice will not take effect until
the appeal period has expired.

Page 261

Page 27

APPENDIX A
TECHNICAL SERVICES ENFORCEMENT POLICIES

Enforcement Procedure – It is an offence for a person to engage in street trading in a
prohibited street, in a consent street without a licence or contravenes any of the principal
terms and/or conditions of an existing licence. Prosecution would usually only be
considered after the owner has been advised of the legislation and given an opportunity to
cease trading and remove the unauthorised stall or container within 24 hours if on a
prohibited street or sited in an unsuitable location within a consent street. If the
unauthorised stall or van is located in a consent street and the inspecting officer considers
that the stall or container is sited in an acceptable location and is not in competition with
shops or otherwise, then the owner will be advised of the legislation and given a period of 7
days to apply for a licence. Follow up visits will be made to identify if the trader has
complied with the authorities requests. Failure to comply may result in the Council
preparing a case for prosecution.
Consent Streets
The Council’s Environment and Transportation Select Committee on 7th February 2006
considered a report on the Control Of Street Trading, which included a list of current
Prohibited and Consent Streets.

Page 262

Page 28

APPENDIX A
TECHNICAL SERVICES ENFORCEMENT POLICIES

POLICY NAME – LEQ12 – OVERHANGING HEDGE, TREES OR SHRUBS
POLICY SUMMARY
The authority has a duty to protect the rights of the public in relation to use the highway.
Where a hedge, tree or shrub overhangs the highway and endangers the passage of
vehicles or pedestrians or obstructs visibility or obscures street lighting or where the
condition of any hedge, tree or shrub is such that it may fall into a highway the Council may
serve notice on the owner requiring him to cut, lop or fell it to remove the danger,
obstruction or interference within 14 days.
If following such notice the danger, obstruction or interference remains, the Council may
take such action as deemed appropriate to remedy such and may recover the costs from
the owner in doing so.
Overhanging vegetation obstructs the highway, reduces visibility at junctions and present
hazards to pedestrians particularly the partially sighted and during the hours of darkness.
POLICY DETAIL
Legislation – Section154 of The Highways Act 1980 gives authorities powers to serve
notice on owners of dangerous or obstructive hedges, trees and shrubs and to recover
costs of remedial works if the notice is defaulted.
Enforcement Procedure
Where a hedge, tree or shrub overhanging the highway is reported or observed during a
routine inspection an inspector will visit and make an assessment based upon the likely
dangers to the passage of vehicles or pedestrians or the obstruction of visibility at junctions
or if street lighting or other street furniture /signs are obscured. An assessment of the
condition of any hedge, tree or shrub considered likely to fall into the highway will also be
made including obtaining expert advice if necessary.
If action is considered necessary the owner will be contacted advised of the problem and
requested by letter to take remedial action voluntarily.
If, following a subsequent visit by an inspector and a second letter, no progress has been
made, a formal Section 154 Notice would be issued to the owner stating the works to be
carried out and giving a 14 day timescale for compliance. The notice will state that if the
works are not carried out as required the Council will undertake them itself and recharge the
costs.
If after 14 days the Section154 Notice has still not been complied with, arrangements will be
made for the Council’s contractor to undertake the works. Once completed an invoice will
be sent to the owner for the costs incurred by the Council.

Page 263

Page 29

APPENDIX A
TECHNICAL SERVICES ENFORCEMENT POLICIES

POLICY NAME – LEQ13 – MISCELLANEOUS HIGHWAY ENFORCEMENT
POLICY SUMMARY
The authority has a duty to protect the rights of the public in relation to use the highway.
Through use of the Highways Act 1980, various other legislation and the Civil Law system it
is possible to control and seek redress for many activities which are considered dangerous,
damaging or cause a nuisance to users of the highway.
It is proposed that full use of all available legislation is used to give notice to persons
responsible for activities which are considered dangerous, damaging or causing a nuisance
to users of the highway to cease such activity and where appropriate to penalise through
the courts and to recover the costs of any remedial works undertaken. The following are
examples of where action could be taken: construction materials mixed on the highway or
allowed to flow into drains; anything deposited or placed on or over the highway likely to
cause a danger; activity or storage on land adjoining a street likely to present a danger;
clean or dirty water or effluent drained on or over the footway; unauthorised road markings
or signs on or attached to the highway or a structure on it; damage to highway verges;
damage to the highway by tree roots from adjacent land; defacing or removing signs. This
list is not an exhaustive and the Council will seek to prevent any unauthorised use of the
highway or anything that causes damage or endangers users of it.
In most instances an informal approach will be taken before any formal action is
undertaken. If following any informal “notice” the danger, obstruction or interference
remains the Council may take such action as deemed appropriate to remedy such and will
attempt to recover the costs from the person responsible. Where no physical damage has
resulted i.e. the illegal discharge of water over the highway, the Council may still seek a
penalty from the courts to encourage compliance.
POLICY DETAIL
Legislation – S131,132,161,162,163,165,170 of The Highways Act 1980 gives authorities
powers to take action in the instances described above. Additionally redress can be sought
through the civil court system in certain circumstances.

Enforcement Procedure
Where any activity, item or instance is reported an inspector will visit and make an
assessment based upon the level of interference, damage or likely dangers to users of the
highway.
If action is considered necessary the persons responsible will be contacted, advised of the
problem and requested by letter to cease the activity, or take appropriate remedial action
and/or pay the Council’s costs in taking such action. In some instances if the Council
consider there is an imminent danger, the Council may take immediate action without first
contacting the persons responsible.
If following further visits and a second letter no progress has been made, either notice of
intention to prosecute or seek financial redress or a formal Notice may be issued. Any

Page 264

Page 30

APPENDIX A
TECHNICAL SERVICES ENFORCEMENT POLICIES

notice so issued would state the work required to be carried out and give an appropriate
timescale for compliance.
If after the expiry of the period stated in the Notice no progress has been made, details of
the case will be passed to Legal Services for appropriate court action or prosecution.

Page 265

Page 31

APPENDIX A
TECHNICAL SERVICES ENFORCEMENT POLICIES

POLICY NAME - WTD01 – ENFORCEMENT OF WASTE TRANSPORT LEGISLATION.
Policy Summary
Enforcement of legislation relating to the transport of non-domestic waste is not a statutory
duty
Persons that fail to provide to the local authority satisfactory proof of a licence or other
acceptable documentation to transport waste may be issued with an FPN. Individuals or
operators who transport waste without authority are more likely to be involved in the illegal
disposal of waste through domestic waste collection, fly-tipping and littering.
Policy Detail
Legislation -The Control of Pollution (Amendment) Act 1989 as amended by the Clean
Neighbourhoods and Environment Act 2005 makes it an offence for any person who is not
a registered carrier of controlled waste, in the course of any business of his or otherwise
with a view to profit, to transport any controlled waste, subject to certain exemptions.
The CNE Act 2005 gives authorities powers where it appears that a person has failed
without reasonable excuse to produce an authority to transport waste when required to do
so and to issue a FPN in lieu of court prosecution.
Enforcement Procedure – Generally undertaken as part of a multi-agency operation.
Suspect vehicles will be stopped by Police and searched by enforcement officers. If
controlled waste is being transported a formal notice to produce documents within 7 days
may be issued. If valid documentation is not produced without reasonable excuse within the
7 day period, an FPN may be issued requiring payment within 14 days. If payment is not
received a case may be prepared for court prosecution.
Enforcement action may also result from evidence including photographic or CCTV images
or observation by an officer where the illegal transportation of waste is suspected. In such
cases the vehicle owner will be formally required in writing to produce the required
documentation as per the procedures above. Persons suspected of transporting waste
illegally may also be invited for formal interview under caution prior to any further action.

Page 266

Page 32

APPENDIX A
TECHNICAL SERVICES ENFORCEMENT POLICIES

POLICY NAME - WTD02 – ENFORCEMENT OF TRADE WASTE LEGISLATION.
Policy Summary
The enforcement of legislation relating to businesses that fail to store their commercial
waste correctly is not a statutory duty.
This policy covers the enforcement of legislation in respect of businesses that fail to make
proper provision for the disposal of their waste or to furnish valid documentation (Waste
Transfer Notes) to the local authority upon request.
Businesses that have not made appropriate arrangements for the disposal of commercial
waste are more likely to be involved in the illegal disposal of waste through domestic waste
collection, fly-tipping and littering.
Policy Detail
Legislation – Section 47(2) of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 gives authorities
powers to issue a formal notice to businesses who fail to store their commercial waste
correctly and the waste is likely to cause a nuisance and/or is likely to be detrimental to the
amenities of the locality. Section 47ZA of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 as
amended by the CNEA 2005 gives authorities powers to issue FPN’s in lieu of court
prosecution for failure to comply with a formal notice issued under section 47(2) of the EPA
1990.
Section 34(1)(c) of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 imposes a duty on any person
who produces and/or disposes of controlled waste to ensure that the waste is only
transferred to an authorised person and to keep a written discription of that waste (i.e. a
waste transfer note [WTN]) for a minimum period of two years. Section 34A of the EPA
1990 as amended by the Clean Neighbourhoods and Environment Act 2005 gives
authorities powers to issue FPN’s in lieu of court prosecution to persons who have failed to
furnish valid documentation (WTN’s) to the local authority upon request.

Enforcement Procedure – Businesses may be contacted following complaints or as part of
a targeted approach to businesses in problem areas and charity shops are not exempt from
this legislation. Information and advice to assist the businesses to comply with the
legislation will be provided either through a letter or with a personal visit. This will also
provide information on any local or national initiatives for example the “Tidy Business
Awards” scheme. The information pack will advise what documents must be made available
for inspection and will advise of an approximate timescale, (usually 7 –14 days after
notification) when the premises will be visited to formally inspect the documentation.
Business premises will be visited and if no documentation is available, a formal notice to
produce documents within 7 days will be issued. If valid documentation is not produced
without reasonable cause within the 7 day period, an FPN may be issued requiring payment
within 14 days. If payment is not received a case may be prepared for legal to issue a Court
summons.
In circumstances where documentation is in place but where waste is still not being
managed correctly, for example insecure containers leading to spillage, bins obstructing the
highway etc. the Council will, if informal approaches have failed to resolve the situation,

Page 267

Page 33

APPENDIX A
TECHNICAL SERVICES ENFORCEMENT POLICIES

issue a formal notice setting out the standards to be met. Failure to comply with the
requirements of the notice, within a reasonable time period, may result in a FPN being
issued or in more serious cases or persistent offenders prosecution in the courts will be
considered.

Page 268

Page 34

APPENDIX A
TECHNICAL SERVICES ENFORCEMENT POLICIES

POLICY NAME – WTD03 – ENFORCEMENT OF HOUSEHOLD WASTE COLLECTION
AND RECYCLING
POLICY SUMMARY
Enforcement of Legislation relating to household waste collection and recycling is not a
statutory function.
The local authority can serve notice on an individual who is suspected of persistently
leaving a bin(s) out after collection day, or deliberately contaminates recycling receptacles,
or leaves additional waste by the side of the bin ready for collection or at a bin collection
point, or fails to provide a bin, or places recyclable items in the residual bin.
Failure to comply with the formal notice may result in the issue of a Fixed Penalty Notice
(FPN) to the responsible individual. The FPN is issued as an alternative to prosecution
through the courts. FPN’s will only be issued when occupiers have been given an
opportunity to rectify the problem and have either failed or refused to do so. The Council
has undertaken education and awareness initiatives pre and post implementation of the
recycling schemes to encourage residents to manage their waste in a responsible manner
and use the recycling schemes available to them.
Encouragement followed up with robust enforcement will form the main elements of a longterm improvement strategy.
POLICY DETAIL
Legislation – Section 46 of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 and the introduction of
the Clean Neighbourhoods and Environment Act 2005 – Section 47A gives authorities
powers to issue FPN’s in lieu of court prosecution to persons who have failed to comply
with the requirements of a formal notice.

Enforcement Procedure
Where a household fails to comply with the Council’s requests and warnings to present their
waste correctly for collection after having been given education and advice, the Waste and
Recycling Team may refer the matter to Highways Enforcement Team for consideration of
the issue of a formal notice. A notice can be served on the occupier of an individual
property or where there are a number of properties and individual households cannot be
identified, then a “blanket” notice can be served on all properties in that location. Providing
that the householder complies with the notice, no further action will be taken.
Formal notices generally state the standards and requirements relating to the how, where
and when waste must be presented for collection, what receptacles must be used for
different waste types and stipulate that bins must be taken back onto the property after they
have been emptied.
Residents who do not comply with a formal notice risk being issued with a FPN for noncompliance. Enforcement Officers also have the discretion to issue more warnings before
the issue of a FPN.

Page 269

Page 35

APPENDIX A
TECHNICAL SERVICES ENFORCEMENT POLICIES

The FPN may be issued to the offender by post or in person. Following the serving of a
notice, residents may be issued with an FPN at any time during the 12 months period from
the date of serving of the notice. After 12 months the notice may be re-served if further
breach occur. If there has been a change in occupancy over the 12 month period since
date the notice was served, then the notice will no longer be valid.
The Council may consider prosecution in more serious cases or for residents who have had
two or more fixed penalties as opposed to being issued with any further FPN’s.

Page 270

Page 36

APPENDIX A
TECHNICAL SERVICES ENFORCEMENT POLICIES

POLICY NAME – PLE01 – UNTIDY BUILDINGS AND LAND
POLICY SUMMARY
The enforcement of untidy buildings and land is not a statutory function.
The local authority can issue formal notices on an owner/occupier of private land where it is
considered that a building and/or land is having an adverse and detrimental impact on the
amenity of the area. This can include a building falling into disrepair, gardens littered with
cars/car parts, overgrown trees and vegetation (but not effective for grassed areas), land
littered with bricks and rubble, replacement of broken windows and frames, repair of doors,
roofs and gutters, repair of fences, walls and other means of enclosures.
Notices cannot be issued against land that is untidy due to its lawful use, i.e. licensed scrap
yards.
Notices should only be issued when occupiers/owners have been given an opportunity to
rectify the problem and have failed or refused to do so. Fly tipped rubbish, overgrown land
and untidy buildings can create a local sense of neglect and if left can begin to adversely
affect the amenity of an area.
Encouragement followed by a robust enforcement policy will deal with these problems more
effectively. The Council will give consideration to the service of a section 215 or section 79
notice as there is a potential financial burden on the Council arising from costs incurred in
default action. Other enforcement options for land defaced by litter only are Litter Clearing
Notices as per Policy LEQ04.
POLICY DETAIL
Legislation – The Town and Country Planning Act 1990 Sections 215, 216, 217, 218 and
219 and the Building Act 1984 Sections 79 and 99 gives authorities powers to require the
owner of a building and/or land which is considered to be seriously detrimental to the
amenity of an area, to undertake works to remedy the condition of the building and/or land
within a prescribed timescale and to undertake default action and/or prosecution in the
event of non compliance.
Section 16 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 – Requisition for
Information allows the authority to require information from a person with regards to the
nature of their interest in the land.
In exercise of its powers under section 79 of the Building Act 1984, the local authority also
has powers under the Law of Property Act 1925, if they have incurred debts as a result of
undertaking works in default in accordance with their statutory powers, the Act gives the
local authority the power to sell the property for ‘Best Price’, when an owner has allowed the
property to deteriorate and not maintained it to the basic standards as set out in Statute
Acts of Parliament. Under section 101 of the Law of Property Act 1925, the local authority
is able to apply to the District Land Registry to have a land charge registered as a priority
local interest, giving the local authority the same claim as a mortgagee, including the power
of sale.

Page 271

Page 37

APPENDIX A
TECHNICAL SERVICES ENFORCEMENT POLICIES

Enforcement Procedure
The issuing of a section 215 or section 79 notice would usually only be considered after the
owner/occupier has been given an opportunity to rectify the problem voluntarily.
Persons responsible for buildings and/or land which has become detrimental to the amenity
of an area will be contacted, after undertaking a land registry check if necessary, and
advised of the problem which has been identified, the potential remedies available to them
and also the legislative powers available to the local authority if they voluntarily do not take
action. They will be encouraged to voluntarily undertake the works required to bring the
building and/or land back to an acceptable standard and for the works to commence within
a timescale typically 28 days. The local authority will not accept the boarding of doors and
windows of properties, unless in an emergency or in special circumstances, as this is
unsightly and has a negative impact on the area. In any event, this will only be allowed for a
temporary period until more substantive works can be carried out.
A follow up visit will be made to identify if any action has been taken voluntarily and if no
action has been taken a further letter will be issued giving the owner/occupier a further 14
days to comply.
If the breach continues, then the local authority will consider the issue of either a section
215 or section 79 notice. Once a notice has been issued the land will be subject to further
follow up visits to ensure compliance. Failure to comply with the notice may result in the
local authority taking direct action (i.e. undertaking the remedial work itself) and/or
prosecution. If it is deemed that direct action should be taken, a report will be placed before
the appropriate Committee indicating the approximate costs of the works involved and to
seek approval to undertake the works in default.
Prior warning should be given of any intended direct action or prosecution by letter. If a
person fails to take the steps required within either of the notices within the specified time
period, the Council will prosecute and the offender will be liable on summary conviction to a
fine.
Following default works in contravention of a section 215 notice, any expenditure incurred is
recoverable from the owner as a simple contract debt through the courts or can be
registered as a local land charge. These charges become recoverable when the land is
sold.
Following default works in contravention of a section 79 notice, the local authority can
recover from the owner the costs incurred as a simple contract debt through the courts or
can apply to the District Land Registry to have a land charge registered as a priority local
interest, giving the local authority the same claim as a mortgagee, including the power of
sale.

Page 272

Page 38

APPENDIX A
TECHNICAL SERVICES ENFORCEMENT POLICIES

POLICY NAME – HPE02 - UNAUTHORISED VEHICLE CROSSING (OVER FOOTWAY)
POLICY SUMMARY
Enforcement relating to vehicles crossing over footways and verges without a proper
crossing is a non-statutory function.
Where the owner of land adjacent to a highway habitually drives vehicles over a footway or
verge the Council may serve notice on the owner advising them that the Council can
execute works to construct a crossing and recharge the costs to the landowner (including
the costs of any damage to the footway or apparatus contained within it). The owner will
also be invited to cease driving over the footway/verge or to voluntarily apply for a crossing.
If following such notice no request for a crossing is received and the footway is still being
driven over, the Council may undertake the works and recharge the landowner.
Vehicles which cross over the footway/verge without a properly constructed crossing cause
damage to the highway structure and can potentially damage underground services laid
within it. Damaged footways and verges are costly to repair, look unsightly and present trip
hazards to pedestrians.
POLICY DETAIL
Legislation – Section184 of The Highways Act 1980 gives authorities powers to serve
notice on occupiers or landowners who habitually drive over the footway or verge and to
recover the costs of any construction and remedial works undertaken.
Enforcement Procedure
Where it is reported or observed that a vehicle(s) is being regularly driven over a footway or
verge an inspector will visit and make a note of the site conditions and any evident damage.
A letter will be sent to the occupier/owner of the land being accessed advising of the
Council’s powers and requesting that the activity ceases or that the landowner applies for a
properly constructed crossing. Developers may be permitted to construct a temporary
crossing.
If no request to construct a crossing is received and following further site visits it is evident
that the footway/verge is still being habitually crossed, a formal notice will be issued.
The notice will advise that the Council intends after the expiry of a 14 day period from
service of the notice to execute works to construct a crossing and recharge the costs to the
landowner. The amount charged may include the costs of repairing any damage to the
footway or apparatus contained within it. The owner will also be given an estimate for the
works and invited to voluntarily complete and return within the 14 day period an order for
the works to be undertaken. The notice will also state that the person on whom it is served
has a right to object to the notice.
If after the expiry of 14 days no order for the works or objection has been received the
Council may instruct its contractor to undertake the default works.

Page 273

Page 39

APPENDIX A
TECHNICAL SERVICES ENFORCEMENT POLICIES

All reasonable costs in undertaking the works including any remedial works will be
recharged to the landowner.
This procedure will also be applied in circumstances where a footway crossing already
exists but is of insufficient quality or size to accommodate the type of vehicles using it.

Page 274

Page 40

APPENDIX A
TECHNICAL SERVICES ENFORCEMENT POLICIES

SCHEDULE OF PENALTIES, FEES AND CHARGES
FIXED PENALTY NOTICES LEVELS - EFFECTIVE FROM 1st APRIL 2012
Policy Name

LEQ 02
Depositing Litter.

LEQ 07
Unauthorised distribution
of free printed matter on
designated land.
LEQ 06
Graffiti and fly posting.

WTD 03
Failure to comply with a
formal notice - domestic
waste.

LEQ 05
Failure to comply with a
street litter control notice
and failure to comply with
a litter clearing notice.
LEQ 09
Nuisance vehicles.
LEQ 03
Abandoning a vehicle.

WTD 01
Failure to furnish
documentation (waste
carrier’s licence).
WTD 02
Failure to produce
authority (waste transfer
notes).
WTD 02
Failure to comply with
formal notice - trade
waste

Act

Section of Act

Full amount of
penalty,
payable within
14 days

Discounted amount for
prompt payment if
paid within 10 days

Environmental Protection
Act 1990, as amended by
Section 19 of the Clean
Neighbourhoods and
Environment Act 2005.
Environmental Protection
Act 1990, as amended by
Section 23 of the Clean
Neighbourhoods and
Environment Act 2005.
Anti-Social Behaviour Act
2003, as amended by
Section 28 of the Clean
Neighbourhoods and
Environment Act 2005.
Environmental Protection
Act 1990, as amended by
Section 48 of the Clean
Neighbourhoods and
Environment Act 2005.

88

£75

£50

Schedule 3A, para
7(2)

£80

N/A

43

£80

N/A

46/47ZA/47ZB

Currently £60 to be
reduced to £40 following
changes in legislation in
Spring 2012

Environmental Protection
Act 1990, as amended by
Section 22 of the Clean
Neighbourhoods and
Environment Act 2005.
Clean Neighbourhoods and
Environment Act 2005
Refuse Disposal (Amenity)
Act 1978, as amended by
Section 10 of the Clean
Neighbourhoods and
Environment Act 2005.
Environmental Protection
Act 1990, as amended by
Section 45 of the Clean
Neighbourhoods and
Environment Act 2005.
Control of Pollution
(Amendment) Act 1989, as
amended by section 38 of
the Clean Neighbourhoods
and Environment Act 2005
Environmental Protection
Act 1990, as amended by
Section 48 of the Clean
Neighbourhoods and
Environment Act 2005.

92C/94/94A

Currently £110
to be reduced to
£80 following
changes in
legislation in
Spring 2012
£110

N/A

s.6(1)

£100

N/A

s.2A(1)

£200

N/A

s.34A(2)

£300

N/A

s.5B(2)

£300

N/A

47/47ZA/47ZB

£110

N/A

Page 275

Page 41

APPENDIX A
TECHNICAL SERVICES ENFORCEMENT POLICIES

FEES AND CHARGES - EFFECTIVE FROM 1st APRIL 2012

Policy Name
LEQ 08
‘A’ Board

Act
Highways Act 1980 (as
amended) sections 115A –
115K.

LEQ 08
Shop front display

Highways Act 1980 (as
amended) sections 115A –
115K.

LEQ 08
Other items displayed on the highway
such as but not limited:
• Placards
• Statues and cut-outs
• Novelty displays
• Display Islands and trestles
• Planters
• Furniture
• Window displays projecting over the
footway.
LEQ 08
Pavement cafe

Highways Act 1980 (as
amended) sections 115A –
115K.

LEQ 10
Skips, storage containers, building
materials, stalls and things on the
highway (cherry pickers/cranes)

Highways Act 1980 (as
amended) sections 115A –
115K.

The Local Authorities
(Transport Charges)
Regulations 1998 (S.I 1998
No 948).

Page 276

Amount of Licence Fee / Permit Charge
Free if standard conditions can be met. If
standard conditions cannot be met, there will
be a £52 licence fee payable in respect of
each ‘A’ board to be displayed. Subsequent
years charged at £42.
Free if standard conditions can be met. If
standard conditions cannot be met there will
be a £52 licence fee payable in respect of the
shop front display. Subsequent years charged
at £42.
£ 52 licence fee payable in respect of each
item to be displayed. Subsequent years
charged at £42.

Licence Fees:
st
1 year £310 subsequent years
2
£155 (max area 6 m ).
st
2
1 year above 6 m charged at an additional
2
£21 per m subsequent years charged at £16
per m2.
Permit Fees:
£25 per skip 6 tonne or above (max size 6.1m
X 2m) for a maximum period of 14 days.
£15 per skip below 6 tonne for a maximum
period of 14 days.
£25 penalty fee will be applied in respect of all
retrospective skip permit applications (traders
and commercial operators only).
£75 per application for storage containers up
to 6m and building materials for a maximum
period of 28 days. Permit renewals containers
up to 6m and building materials charged at
£37.50 for a further 28 days.
£150 per application for storage containers
over 6m for a maximum period of 28 days.
Permit renewals for containers over 6m
charged at £75 for a further 28 days.
Stall on Highway (Commercial) Application
Fee £25
Stall on Highway (Commercial) £206 per day
or part thereof
Stall on Highway (Charity/Public Service)
FREE
Things on the Highway (Cherry pickers) £75
per day or weekend
Things on the Highway (small crane) £75 per
day or weekend
Things on the Highway (large crane) £150 per
day or weekend

Page 42

APPENDIX A
TECHNICAL SERVICES ENFORCEMENT POLICIES

Policy Name
LEQ 11
Street traders

Act
The Local Government
(Miscellaneous Provisions)
Act 1982 Part 3 – Schedule
4.

Page 277

Amount of Licence Fee / Permit Charge
Annual Consent Fees:
Subject to formal order making process
£75 non-refundable application fee will be
payable in respect of all new or annual
renewal applications in addition to consent
fees below.
£825 – stalls, catering vans and containers
2
under 8m .
£1025 - stalls, catering vans and containers
2
2
between 8m and 10m .
£1250 - stalls, catering vans and containers
2
2.
between 10m and 12m
Stalls, catering vans and containers above
2
12m fees by negotiation.
Daily Consent Fees:
£25 non-refundable application fee will be
payable in respect of each application in
addition to daily fees shown below.
£21 per day consent fee per stall, catering unit
2
and container under 8m .
£26 per day consent fee per stall, catering unit
2
and container 8m and above.

Page 43

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 278

METROPOLITAN BOROUGH OF WIRRAL

APPENDIX B

CABINET
5TH APRIL 2001
REPORT BY THE DIRECTOR OF HOUSING & ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
THE ENFORCEMENT CONCORDAT
1.0

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1

The purpose of this report is to seek agreement to the Council adopting the principles
contained within the Enforcement Concordat which is promoted by the Better
Regulation Unit of the Cabinet Office. The Concordat is intended to promote good
enforcement practice in all regulatory services. Cabinet is also asked to approve
recent amendments to policies dealing with enforcement work of Trading Standards
and Environmental Health Services.

2.0

BACKGROUND

2.1

All Departments of the Council have assessed whether they have regulatory services
to which the Concordat applies.

2.2

Arising from this exercise the Borough Solicitor and Secretary, the Directors of Social
Services, Housing and Environmental Protection, Borough Engineer and Planning and
Economic Development, who all have extensive regulatory services, have now also
reviewed their procedures in respect of enforcement and where necessary reported
any changes to their Service Committees.

2.3

Environmental Health and Trading Standards Services have produced detailed
enforcement policies which will enable the Concordat’s principles to be monitored.
(The policies agreed by the Environmental Health and Consumer Protection
Committee is attached to this report at Appendix 1). The policies have now been
amended to take into account the provisions of the Human Rights Act. A similar policy
is being developed for Building Control.

2.4

All Departments other than those mentioned in 2.2 above have affirmed that the
Concordat does not apply to their work areas. Some Departments may need to
subsequently formulate detailed prosecution policies if the Council signs up to the
principles of the Concordat.

3.0

FINANCIAL AND STAFFING IMPLICATIONS

3.1

There are no direct financial implications arising out of this report. Staff will have to
have a good working knowledge of Departmental Prosecution Policies and the
principles of the Enforcement Concordat. It is likely that the Best Value Inspectorate
will require that decisions regarding prosecution and other regulatory matters are
taken by personnel having regard to the agreed policies and Concordat.

4.0

LOCAL AGENDA 21 IMPLICATIONS

4.1

Regulatory decisions are required by the Concordat to be transparent so that
everyone involved can see that they have been taken in line with existing policy and
best practice. This should ensure that they are proportionate to risk.

CABhep010405rep3

Page 279
1

5.0

LOCAL MEMBER SUPPORT IMPLICATIONS

5.1

None

6.0

PLANNING IMPLICATIONS

6.1

None.

7.0

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY IMPLICATIONS

7.1

None.

8.0

HUMAN RIGHTS IMPLICATIONS

8.1

Prosecution policies must take into account the Human Rights aspect of
proportionality where decisions are taken which may result in an infringement of one
or more of the articles in the European Convention on Human Rights.

9.0

BACKROUND PAPERS

9.1

None.

10.0

COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS

10.1

The Concordat and associated local prosecution policies and procedures provide a
framework where offenders can clearly see the guide-lines that will be used to decide
what action the Council will take. Transparent regulatory action provides for
punishment of offenders and acts as a deterrent for possible offenders.

11.0

RECOMMENDATIONS

11.1

That the Council agrees to the adoption of the Enforcement Concordat and requires
that all of its regulatory services develop and maintain prosecution policies that include
the principles of good enforcement contained in the Concordat

11.2

That the Cabinet approve the revised enforcement policies for the Trading Standards
and Environmental Health Services.
Alan Stennard
Director of Housing & Environmental Protection
This report has been prepared by Charles Allan who can be contacted on 666 5209

CABINET/DRAFTS/ENFORCEMENT.DOC

Page 280
2

APPENDIX 1
ENFORCEMENT CONCORDAT
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH AND TRADING STANDARDS ENFORCEMENT
POLICIES
1.0

BACKGROUND
The Environmental Health and Trading Standards Divisions enforcement policies deal
with relationships with traders and businesses from the promotion of advice through to
the prosecution of offences.
The Environmental Health policy is applicable to food premises inspections, food
complaints and for premises where this Department is the Enforcement Authority for
Health and Safety, Pollution Control and general Public Health Legislation.
Included in the term “enforcement“ are advisory visits and assisting with compliance
as well as licensing and formal enforcement action. By adopting the Concordat, we
commit ourselves to the following policies and procedures, which contribute to Best
Value, and will provide information to show that we are observing them.
The majority of enforcement action leads to problems being resolved before the
institution of legal proceedings becomes necessary.
Carrying out enforcement functions in an equitable, practical and consistent manner
helps to promote a thriving national and local economy. The Environmental Health
and Trading Standards Divisions support the Council’s objectives through commitment
to maintaining a fair and safe trading environment for consumers and responsible
businesses.
The effectiveness of legislation in protecting our stakeholders depends crucially on the
compliance of those regulated. It is recognised that most businesses want to comply
with the law. The Environmental Health and Trading Standards Divisions take care to
help business and others meet their legal obligations without unnecessary expense,
while taking firm action, including prosecution where appropriate, against those who
flout the law or act irresponsibly. All stakeholders will reap the benefits of this policy
through better information, choice and safety.
The policies adopt a holistic approach by incorporating the principles of good
enforcement contained in the Enforcement Concordat promoted by the Regulatory
Impact Unit of the Cabinet Office and the prosecution criteria adopted by the Crown
Prosecution Service.
The policies clearly indicate to stakeholders the rationale behind enforcement
decisions ranging from advisory visits to assisting businesses with compliance and
finally to formal action.
It must be remembered that in relation to the institution of legal proceedings,
enforcement action is, in some cases, dictated by the need to comply with all the
provisions of criminal justice process legislation such as the Police and Criminal
Evidence Act, the Criminal Procedures and Investigations Act and the variously titled
Criminal Justice Acts.

CABhep010405rep3

Page 281
3

TRADING STANDARDS ENFORCEMENT POLICY
Principles of Good Enforcement: Policy
•

Standards
In consultation with business and other relevant interested parties, including technical
experts where appropriate, we will draw up clear standards setting out the level of
service and performance the public and business people can expect to receive. We
will publish these standards and out annual performance against them. The
standards will be made available to businesses, the public and others who are
regulated.

•

Openness
We will provide information and advice in plain language on the rules that we apply
and will disseminate this as widely as possible. We will be open about how we set
about our work, including any charges that we set, consulting business, voluntary
organisations, charities and consumers where appropriate. We will discuss general
issues, specific compliance failures or problems with business based in Wirral.

•

Helpfulness
We believe that prevention is better than cure and that our role therefore involves
actively working with business, especially small and medium sized businesses, to
advise on and assist with compliance. We will provide a courteous and efficient
service and our staff will identify themselves by name. We will provide a contact
point and telephone number for further dealings with us and we will encourage
business to seek advice/information from us. Applications for licenses, equipment
testing, etc. will be dealt with efficiently and promptly. We will ensure that wherever
practicable, our enforcement services are effectively co-ordinated to minimise
unnecessary overlaps and time delays.

•

Complaints about service
We will provide well publicised, effective and timely complaints procedures easily
accessible to business, the public, and consumer groups. In cases where disputes
cannot be resolved, any right of complaint or appeal will be explained, with details of
the process and the likely time-scales involved.

•

Proportionality
We will minimise the costs of compliance for business by ensuring that any action we
require is proportionate to the risks. We will take account of the circumstances of the
case and the attitude of the trader when considering action, taking into account our
prosecution criteria included in this document.
We will take particular care to work with small businesses and voluntary and
community organisations so that they can meet their legal obligations without
unnecessary expense where practicable.
Enforcement decisions affecting individuals and companies will be made with regard
to their rights as governed by the European Convention on Human Rights and will be

CABINET/DRAFTS/ENFORCEMENT.DOC

Page 282
4

made in proportion to the risks to them compared with the risks to society at large
using the concept of proportionality.
•

Consistency
We will carry out our duties in a fair, equitable and consistent manner. While officers
are expected to exercise judgement in individual cases, we will have arrangements
in place to promote consistency, including effective arrangements for liaison with
other authorities and enforcement bodies through schemes such as those operated
by the Local Authorities Co-ordinating Body on Food and Trading Standards
(LACOTS) and the Local Authority National Type Approval Confederation (LANTAC),
if appropriate to Trading Standards.

Principles of Good Enforcement: Procedures
Advice from an officer will be put clearly and simply and will be confirmed in writing,
on request, explaining why any changes in business practices or procedures are
necessary and over what time-scale, and making sure that legal requirements are
clearly distinguished from best practice advice. If the recipient disagrees with the
advice, the option to ask for a review by a senior officer will be given.
Before formal enforcement action is taken, officers will provide an opportunity to
discuss the circumstances of the case and, if possible, resolve points of difference,
unless immediate action is required (for example, in the interests of health and safety
or environmental protection or to prevent evidence being destroyed) and bearing in
mind the over riding principles contained in the Police and Criminal Evidence Act and
other legislation governing the conduct of investigations.
Where immediate action is considered necessary, an explanation of why such action
was required will be given at the time and confirmed in writing in most cases within 5
working days and, in all cases, within 10 working days, subject to the provisions of
the Police and Criminal Evidence Act.
Where there are rights of appeal against formal action, advice on the appeal
mechanism will be clearly set out in writing at the time the action is taken (whenever
possible this advice will be issued with the enforcement notice).
Enforcement Action
Minor infringements can be dealt with by means of an informal warning by the officer.
More serious matters will be dealt with as follows:
Written Warning
This will consist of a letter from a senior officer outlining the circumstances of the
offence explaining the alleged contravention, possible measures to be taken to
prevent re-occurrences and the potential consequence of further breaches.
Formal Cautions
Under certain circumstances, a formal caution may be an appropriate alternative to
prosecution. This option will be considered before prosecution. A formal caution is
a serious matter. It is recorded on the Central Register of Convictions and may be
used to influence any decision whether or not to institute proceedings if the person
should offend again. It may be referred to in an subsequent court proceedings. It
CABhep010405rep3

Page 283
5

will not be referred to in respect of any conviction recorded more than 3 years
earlier.
Formal cautions serve the following purposes:a.
b.
c.

to deal quickly and simply with less serious offenders;
to avoid unnecessary appearance in criminal courts;
to reduce the chance of offenders re-offending.

Before issuing a caution the following conditions must be satisfied:i. there must be sufficient evidence to give a realistic prospect of conviction;
ii. the suspected offender must admit the offence by signing a declaration
iii. the suspected offender must understand the significance of a formal caution
and give an informed consent to the caution.
Prosecution
The Council will use discretion in deciding whether to initiate a prosecution. Where
the circumstances justify it, prosecution with prior warning may take place.
The Council will consider prosecution when:•

it is appropriate in the circumstances, as a way to draw attention to the need for
compliance with the law, especially where there would be a normal expectation
of a prosecution, or where, through the conviction of offenders, others may be
deterred from offending; or

•

there is the potential for considerable harm arising from the breach; or

•

the gravity of the offence, taken together with the general record and approach
of the offender justifies it.

The decision to prosecute will always take account of the criteria set down in the
Code for Crown Prosecutors and Attorney General’s Guidelines and the Code of
Practice on Legal Matters made under section 40 of the Food Safety Act 1990.
Before deciding to prosecute there must be sufficient evidence for a realistic
prospect of conviction taking account of any defence that may be available, and it
must be in the public interest.
The following public interest criteria will normally be taken into account when
deciding on the relevance of legal proceedings, although this list is not exhaustive:•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

The prevalence of the type of offence.
The need for a suitable deterrent.
The risk of danger or injury to the public.
The failure to comply with a statutory notice or respond to advice about legal
requirements.
The disregard of legal requirements for financial reward.
Significant financial loss, potential or actual, to a third party.
A history of similar offences.
Persistent breaches of legislation.
Where fraud, gross negligence or guilty knowledge is a factor.

CABINET/DRAFTS/ENFORCEMENT.DOC

Page 284
6

•

Minor breaches of a number of statutes

Where possible, an offender will be told as soon as sufficient evidence is obtained
that a prosecution may follow.
All prosecutions will be brought without unnecessary delay.

CABhep010405rep3

Page 285
7

Environmental Health Enforcement Policy
Principles of Good Enforcement : Policy
Standards

In consultation with business and other relevant interested parties, including
technical experts, where appropriate, we will draw up clear standards setting
out the level of service and performance the public and business people can
expect to receive. We will publish these standards and our annual
performance against them. The standards will be made available to
businesses and others who are regulated.

Openness

We will provide information and advice in plain language on the rules that
we apply and will disseminate this as widely as possible We will be open
about how we set about our work, including any charges that we set,
consulting business, voluntary organisations, charities and consumers,
where appropriate. We will discuss general issues, specific compliance
failures or problems with business based in Wirral.

Helpfulness

We believe that prevention is better than cure and that our role therefore
involves actively working with business, especially small and medium sized
businesses, to advise on and assist with compliance. We will provide a
courteous and efficient service and our staff will identify themselves by
name. We will provide a contact point and telephone number for further
dealings with us and we will encourage business to seek advice/information
from us. Applications for licences, equipment testing, etc. will be dealt with
efficiently and promptly. We will ensure that wherever practicable, our
enforcement services are effectively co-ordinated to minimise unnecessary
overlaps and time delays.

Complaints About
The Service
We will provide well publicised, effective and timely complaints procedures
easily accessible to business, the public, and consumer groups. In cases
where disputes cannot be resolved, any right of complaint or appeal will be
explained, with details of the process and the likely timescales involved.
Proportionality We will minimise the costs of compliance for business by ensuring that any
action we require is proportionate to the risks. We will take account of the
circumstances of the case and the attitude of the trader or person when
considering action, taking into account our prosecution criteria included in
this document.
We will take particular care to work with small businesses and voluntary and
community organisations so that they can meet their legal obligations
without unnecessary expense, where practicable.
Enforcement decisions affecting individuals and companies will be made
with regard to their rights as governed by the European Convention on
Human Rights and will be made in proportion to the risks to them compared
with the risks to society at large using the concept of proportionality.
Consistency

We will carry out our duties in a fair, equitable and consistent manner.
While officers are expected to exercise judgement in individual cases, we
will have arrangements in place to promote consistency, including effective
arrangements for liaison with other authorities and enforcement bodies
through schemes such as those operated by the Local Authorities Co-

CABINET/DRAFTS/ENFORCEMENT.DOC

Page 286
8

ordinating Body on Food and Trading Standards (LACOTS) and the Local
Authority National Type Approval Confederation (LANTAC). Due regard will
also be given to any guidance issued in statutory Codes of Practice, HELA
documents, Home Office Circulars the Human Rights Act 1998 and the
Food Standards Agency.
Principles of Good Enforcement : Procedures
Advice from an officer will be put clearly and simply and will if necessary be confirmed in
writing, explaining why any remedial work is necessary and over what timescale, and making
sure that legal requirements are clearly distinguished from best practice advice.
Before formal enforcement action is taken, officers will provide an opportunity to discuss the
circumstances of the case and, if possible, resolve points of difference, unless immediate
action is required (for example, in the interests of health and safety, food safety,
environmental protection or to prevent evidence being destroyed).
Where immediate action is considered necessary, an explanation of why such action was
required will be given at the time and confirmed in writing in most cases within five working
days and, in all cases, within ten working days.
Where there are rights of appeal against formal action, advice on the appeal mechanism will
be clearly set out in writing at the time the action is taken (whenever possible this advice will
be issued with the enforcement notice).
The decision as to whether or not to prosecute an individual or company lies initially with the
individual officer as he or she confronts a particular situation. However, the officer must
discuss their decision with their Line Manager prior to any action being initiated.
Prosecution is only one of a number of enforcement options available to the officer and each
option should be considered to determine whether other courses of action are more
appropriate and effective.
ENFORCEMENT OPTIONS OPEN TO ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH STAFF
The form of enforcement which an officer can follow falls into two main types:Informal

Informal action typically consists of verbal and/or written advice/ guidance or
warnings.
Education in the form of courses and documents which have been translated
into various languages are made available for those who do not have English
as a first language.
When informal action is taken, officers will clearly differentiate between legal
requirements and good practice.

Formal

Formal action may take the form of:a)

Notices of Intention to Serve an Improvement Notice (for food notices) served prior to an Improvement Notice.

b)

Improvement Notices - served when there are contraventions of laws and
regulations where

CABhep010405rep3

Page 287
9

i)
ii)
iii)
c)

formal action is proportionate to the risk to public health.
there is a record of non-compliance with breaches of legislation.
the authorised officer has reason to believe that an informal approach
will not be successful.

Prohibition Notices including:
Emergency Prohibition Notice (EPN) ]
Emergency Prohibition Order (EPO) ] for food
EPN served by Senior or Divisional Environmental Health Officer (or
EHO’s under direct supervision of SEHO/DEHO) when there is an
imminent risk of injury to health. (Statutory Code of Practice No. 6 should
be followed). The SEHO/DEHO then applies to the Magistrates Court for
an EPO.

d)

Formal Caution - used when the defendant admits the offence but the
matter is not taken to Court. Home Office Circular 18/1994 should be
used as a guide.

e)

Prosecution - used when there is a blatant disregard for the law and when
the public are put at serious risk. The result of prosecution is a fine and/or
imprisonment on conviction.

Since it often takes several months to bring a case to Court, it may be necessary for the
Officer to take a combination of actions to achieve the desired result. This may well be the
case when immediate action needs to be taken to prevent the occurrence or re-occurrence of
a particular hazard. In these instances, the officer may serve a Prohibition Notice and also
institute legal proceedings.
CRITERIA FOR PROSECUTION
Prior to deciding whether to prosecute, the officer should consider the guidance provided in
the Code for Crown Prosecutors and the factors listed below. The list is not considered
exhaustive nor prescriptive since ultimately each case must be taken on its merits.
i)

ii)

The Seriousness of the Offence
a)

A serious offence would include instances of blatant and reckless disregard of
the law which may have led, or lead, to a serious accident or a case of ill health,
which places employees and/or the public at risk.

b)

In the case of accidents at work, it should be the seriousness of the offence
which should be taken into account, not the severity of the accident.

c)

A serious offence would also include the failure to comply with an Improvement
or Prohibition Notice.

The Public Benefit of a Prosecution
a)

Any prosecution must be able to demonstrate that it is only taken for the benefit
of the general public. If there is no public benefit then the prosecution should
not be pursued.

b)

A prosecution which attracts local publicity can have a salutary effect on the
occupiers of similar premises.

CABINET/DRAFTS/ENFORCEMENT.DOC

Page 288
10

c)
iii)

iv)

v)

The Likelihood of the Defendant being Convicted
a)

Cases should not be instituted unless the officer considers he or she has
adequate evidence to prove the matter beyond reasonable doubt.

b)

Consideration must also be given to whether the individual or company will be
able to establish and maintain a “due diligence” defence.

The Previous History of the Party or Premises Concerned
a)

This would include instances of persistent and repeated breaches of legal
requirements leading to poor and deteriorating standards in individual
establishments, or branches of multiple concerns, where it appears the
individual, or management, is neither willing or structured to deal with these
repeated breaches of the law.

b)

Had the individual or company ever received a formal caution?

Witness Co-operation
a)

vi)

The prosecution might also establish a legal precedent applicable to other
companies or other geographic areas.

The officer must also take into account the ability of any important witness to
give evidence and their willingness to co-operate in the legal process.

Explanation/Confidence in Management
a)

The officer should also take into account any explanation offered by the
affected person or company and the willingness of the party to prevent a
recurrence of the problem.

When gathering information as part of an investigation/interview or during an inspection when
details are recorded in notebooks, officers will have regard to the Police and Criminal
Evidence Act 1984 and collect evidence in the manner prescribed within the Home Office
Code of Practice.
Where prosecution is determined to be the most appropriate course of action, the EHO/
SEHO is deemed to be both the Investigating Officer and the Officer in Charge whilst the
Divisional Environmental Health Officer will assume the position of Disclosure Officer.

CABhep010405rep3

Page 289
11

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 290

Agenda Item 17
WIRRAL COUNCIL
CABINET
15 MARCH 2012
SUBJECT:

PARKING POLICY REPORT ON PARKING
ENFORCEMENT

WARD/S AFFECTED:

ALL WARDS

REPORT OF:

DIRECTOR OF TECHNICAL SERVICES

RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO COUNCILLOR DAVE MITCHELL
STREETSCENE AND TRANSPORT SERVICES
HOLDER:
KEY DECISION?

YES

1.0

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1

This report reviews and updates the Council’s Parking Enforcement Policy
that was last reported to Cabinet on 13 March 2008 [Minute 534 refers].
Parking enforcement within Wirral is undertaken through the provisions of
Part 6 of the Traffic Management Act 2004 (TMA 2004), enacted in March
2008 and which requires local highway authorities to produce and publish its
policies and strategies on parking and enforcement.

2.0

BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES

2.1

On the 21st October 2003 the Secretary of State for Transport, Local
Government and the Regions, in exercise of powers conferred by Schedule 3
to the Road Traffic Act 1991 (RTA 1991), gave Wirral Council powers of
decriminalised parking enforcement through the following Order:The Road Traffic (Permitted Parking Area and Special Parking Area)
(Metropolitan Borough of Wirral) Order 2003. The Order came into force on
17th November 2003.

2.2

As a consequence, on 17th November 2003, the responsibility for enforcing
on-street parking restrictions transferred from Merseyside Police to Wirral
Borough Council.

2.3

More recent legislation, which came into effect on 31st March 2008, has
superseded the RTA 1991 and Civil Parking Enforcement (CPE), as it is now
called, is now undertaken in accordance with Part 6 of the TMA 2004.

2.4

Wirral Council has adopted an Enforcement Concordat, which sets out
general standards and principles that should be applied when undertaking
any type of enforcement activity including parking. The principle of the
concordat is that when enforcement or regulation is necessary it is
undertaken in a firm but fair manner that is transparent, consistent and
proportionate. The concordat was originally adopted by the Council on 5th
April 2001 [Minute 150 refers].

Page 291

2.5

Part 6 of the TMA 2004 provides for a single framework in England for the
civil enforcement of parking, bus lanes and some moving traffic offences. The
aim of CPE is to provide for a reasonable, transparent and proportionate
system of parking enforcement that is applied consistently across the country.
The objective is to increase public confidence by providing a system that can
be seen to be balanced and fair to the motorists whilst satisfying the Council’s
transport and parking duties and its policy aspirations.

2.6

This report therefore sets out a framework for parking enforcement within
Wirral based upon the above legislation and principles. The document will be
reviewed on a regular basis and updated when necessary; for example to
accommodate changes in legislation, corporate and departmental objectives,
best practice and local parking needs.

2.7

The procedures and policies contained in this report are intended to ensure
the Council delivers its parking enforcement service in a timely, fair and
consistent manner in relation to all aspects from the issuing of penalty charge
notices to dealing with any subsequent challenges or appeals.

2.8

The delivery of the parking enforcement service can be linked with the
delivery of many of the broader aims and themes comprised within the current
and draft Corporate Plans, including; having a safe highway network through
reducing dangerous and inconsiderate parking, reducing Wirral’s carbon
footprint by assisting in maintaining a free flow of traffic and reducing
congestion, improving the quality of life of residents by reducing non
residential parking within residential areas, and ensuring compliance with on
and off street parking controls to generate a turnover of parking space
necessary for a prosperous local economy.
Other benefits include
maintaining access to facilities for persons with disabilities for example by
ensuring that only valid blue badge holders park in designated spaces,
ensuring that dropped crossing points are not obstructed and reducing the
inconvenience and dangers posed by inconsiderate footway parking and
parking across residential driveways.

2.9

PARKING ENFORCEMENT POLICY

2.9.1 Parking Enforcement is therefore undertaken to assist in:
• Delivery of an efficient and accessible transport system for all,
• Management of parking, traffic levels and congestion through effective
parking controls to make making Wirral a safer place to live, work in and
enjoy.
• Supporting and improving the effectiveness of measures introduced to
prevent or reduce accidents.
• Improving public transport accessibility and reliability,
• Meeting the needs of disabled people by improving access to and
availability of dedicated parking space.
• Reducing unnecessary parking and traffic in residential and other
environmentally sensitive areas.

Page 292

• The economic sustainability of shops and businesses by encouraging a
turnover of use of parking space, and hence maximising the available
use of existing parking space.
• Ensuring that designated areas are kept clear for specific road users, i.e.
loading, blue badge holders, goods vehicles, taxis etc.
• Ensuring that access for emergency vehicles, delivery and service
vehicles is maintained.
2.9.2

The procedures and policies contained in this document will be regularly
reviewed to ensure:
a) Changes in legislation, statutory and non guidance, national and
local policy are properly considered.
b) That the service continues to support corporate and departmental
aims and objectives.
c) That the service continues to support and meets the needs of
Wirral businesses, residents and partner agencies.

2.9.3 It is not practical or feasible to enforce all types and areas of restrictions in all
parts of the Borough, all of the time. Therefore, an outline enforcement
regime as indicated below was adopted by the Council in 2008 and remains
supportive to the service aims and objectives outlined above:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Waiting, parking and loading restrictions on principal or primary routes, will
be enforced daily.
Waiting, parking and loading restrictions within the Birkenhead Controlled
Parking Zone, will be enforced daily.
Waiting, parking and loading restrictions centred around outer Birkenhead,
Liscard, Heswall and West Kirby shopping centres, will be enforced on a
regular basis, no less than 3 times per week.
Waiting, parking and loading restrictions centred around the secondary
shopping centres including Bromborough, Bebington, Upton, Hoylake, etc
will be enforced on a regular basis, no less than once per week.
Waiting, parking and loading restrictions in and adjacent to public service
and amenity facilities, industrial and business areas, will be enforced on a
regular basis, and subject to demand.
Residents parking zones in Liscard and Birkenhead, will be enforced daily
Residents parking zones in other areas will be enforced on a regular
basis, no less than once per week.
Residents parking zones in Tranmere will be enforced on all match days
School Keep Clear markings throughout the Borough will be enforced with
a rolling programme and in response to specific demands.
Waiting, parking and loading restrictions within other environmentally
sensitive areas, will be enforced subject to demand.
Waiting, parking and loading restrictions in areas of seasonal demand will
be enforced subject to demand.
Waiting, parking and loading restrictions in areas not covered in any of the
above, will be enforced in response to identified problems and requests
Temporary or permanent restrictions for special events will be enforced as
necessary.

2.9.4 To ensure an efficient and effective operation the exact frequency and times
of patrols are left to the Director of Technical Services and his appointed
contractor to determine. These frequencies and times will be reviewed
regularly.

Page 293

2.9.5 The following sections set out the general principles and processes through
which parking enforcement is undertaken in Wirral.
2.10

Civil Enforcement Officers:

2.10.1 Civil Enforcement Officers (CEO’s) are the public face of parking
enforcement. Within Wirral this part of the service is contracted out to an
external parking enforcement service provider under a term contract. The
current contract is with NSL Limited and is due for renewal in 2015. CEO’s
are deployed to enforce parking restrictions both on-street and off-street
within Council car parks. When undertaking enforcement they must wear a
uniform identifying them as CEO’s.
2.10.2 The hours and days of operation and patrols are determined through the
contract but may be varied to address local parking issues and demands.
Regular reviews and meeting take place to ensure that the service continues
to meet these demands.
2.10.3 In addition to planned patrols and beats the Council will endeavour to respond
to individual requests for enforcement in response to issues highlighted by
partner agencies, MPs, Councillors and members of the public. Priority will be
given to requests received from the Police to address particular traffic
management or road safety issues.
2.11

Use of Discretion by CEO’s:

2.11.1 A CEO should only issue a PCN when there is sufficient evidence to show
that a parking contravention has occurred. To prevent CEO’s being left open
to claims of inconsistency, favouritism or bribery, it is not normally appropriate
for them to be able to exercise discretion. The only exception to this is on
occasion where a driver returns to the vehicle before the CEO has recorded
details of the contravention. In this situation, advice or a warning may be
more appropriate.
2.12

Observation Period:

2.12.1 The observation period is the length of time, immediately prior to issue of a
PCN, during which a CEO will visually determine whether a specific
contravention has occurred or not. When a contravention is first observed
details of the vehicle are entered into the CEO’s hand held computer (HHC),
at this point the observation period will commence and the computer will
prevent issue of a PCN until the relevant observation period for the
contravention has elapsed.
2.12.2 The first observed time is printed on the face of the PCN and recorded in the
HHC.
2.12.3 Observation periods range in time, dependent upon each specific
contravention, from ‘nil’ or instant issue ticket for loading bans or parking on
school or pedestrian crossing zigzag markings to 15 minutes for exceeding

Page 294

the allowed time in a limited waiting bay. There is a three minute period for
most yellow line contraventions.
2.12.4 Appendix A attached to his report shows the observation periods for each of
the contravention types enforced in Wirral.
2.13

Penalty Charge Notice Amounts:

2.13.1 Since March 2008 two levels of penalty charge amounts have applied in
addition to the early payment discounts. PCN’s are now issued with a higher
or lower penalty amount depending upon the type of contravention, as
determined by the legalisation. A full list of parking contraventions together
with the appropriate current penalty charge amount is shown in Appendix A
to this report.
2.13.2 For both higher and lower rate penalties a discount of 50% still applies if the
penalty is paid within 14 days of issue, or 21 days for postal PCN’s.
2.14

Penalty Charge Notice (PCN) Content:

2.14.1 Legislation requires that PCN’s must contain certain minimum information,
this includes;
• The date on which the notice is served.
• The name of the enforcement authority.
• The registration mark of the vehicle involved in the alleged
contravention.
• The date and time of the alleged contravention.
• The grounds upon which the CEO serving the notice believes that the
penalty charge is payable.
• The amount of the penalty charge.
The notice must also include information relating to the payment period
and discount payment rate and period, the methods of payment
available and information relating to the service of a Notice to Owner,
appeals, challenges and the adjudication service
2.14.2 The CEO records this and all other relevant details onto the HHC including
tax disc number and tyre valve positions if appropriate. The CEO will also
record photographs of the contravention typically including images of the
vehicle registration number, the parking contravention and the PCN attached
to the vehicle.
2.15

Service of a Penalty Charge Notice by post:

2.15.1 Although in most circumstances PCN’s are served on a vehicle or to the
driver there are three circumstances in which a PCN may be served by post:
i) Where the contravention has been detected on the basis of
evidence from an approved device (i.e. a camera);

Page 295

ii) If the CEO has been prevented by threat or violence from serving
the PCN conventionally to the vehicle or to the person who appears
to be in charge of that vehicle;
iii) If the CEO had started to issue the PCN but did not have enough
time to serve it before the vehicle was driven away and would
otherwise have to write off or cancel the PCN.
2.15.2 In any of these circumstances a PCN may be served by post on the owner
following a DVLA enquiry. The Postal PCN also acts as the Notice to Owner
(NtO). Postal PCN’s must be sent within 28 days of the contravention
occurring, and in accordance with good practice the Council aim to send
Postal PCN’s within 14 days.
2.16

Enforcement by Approved Devices (Cameras)

2.16.1 The TMA 2004 gives authorities the powers to issue PCN’s for contraventions
detected with a camera and associated recording equipment. Prior to using
such equipment the Council must apply to the Secretary of State for the
device and its associated processes and systems to be certified. The mobile
CCTV car used within Wirral has been through this process and certified as
an approved device for parking enforcement.
2.16.2 The discount payment period for a PCN issued on the basis of evidence from
an approved device is increased from 14 to 21 days. This is because the
postal PCN also serves as the NtO and hence motorists only have one
opportunity to make a formal representation, as the informal challenge stage
only occurs when a PCN is placed on a vehicle.
2.16.3 The Council’s mobile CCTV vehicle is deployed to places where enforcement
is difficult or sensitive such as outside school entrances or locations with a
high turnover of persistent, but generally short term parking, which creates
traffic problems but is difficult to enforce by conventional means.
2.17

Prevention of Service of the PCN

2.17.1 The TMA 2004 gives authorities the power to serve a PCN by post if the CEO
is prevented from issuing the PCN conventionally to either the vehicle or the
driver.
2.17.2 Prevention of Service by threat or violence.
2.17.3 A PCN may be served by post if the CEO attempts to serve it but is prevented
from doing so by some person. This includes situations where the person who
appears to be in charge of the vehicle is abusive or prevents service indirectly
through intimidation or directly through threats or actual physical force.
2.17.4 In such circumstances, the PCN printed by the CEO will be cancelled and a
Postal PCN, containing further information, will be served following a DVLA
enquiry to obtain keeper details. This will only be done after checks to ensure
there is sufficient primary and supporting evidence to deal with any

Page 296

subsequent representations or appeals. In these circumstances a 14 day
discount payment period will apply.
2.17.5 Prevention of service by “drive away”
2.17.6 A PCN may also be served by post if the CEO had begun to issue it, but the
vehicle was driven away before the CEO had finished issuing the PCN or
been able to serve it. ‘Begun to issue’ is defined as having completed all
observations and entered sufficient data such that the PCN would otherwise
have to be cancelled.
2.17.7 In such circumstances, the PCN printed by the CEO will be cancelled and a
Postal PCN, containing further information, will be served following a DVLA
enquiry to obtain keeper details. This will only be done after checks to ensure
there is sufficient primary and supporting evidence to deal with any
subsequent representations or appeals. It is recommended that the CEO
records the excise license number of the vehicle and if possible informs the
motorist of the contravention before they drive away. The Council shall keep a
record of which CEO’s ask for a Regulation 10 PCN to be issued and will
consider whether there is anything in the manner in which the officer is
working that has contributed to this. In these circumstances a 14 day discount
payment period will apply.
2.17.8 A PCN may not be served by post if the motorist returns to the vehicle before
the CEO has started to issue the PCN. Jotting down details is not classed as
starting to issue the PCN.
2.18

Exemptions to contraventions:

2.18.1 There are a number of vehicle types and circumstances for which exemptions
from waiting restrictions may apply, depending upon the provisions contained
within the relevant Traffic Regulation Order (TRO), typically these are:
• Vehicles used for Police, Fire Brigade and Ambulance purposes.
• Vehicles carrying out statutory authorised powers and duties if they
cannot be used for such purposes in any other road.
• Vehicles involved in contracted highway maintenance, improvement or
reconstruction where there is a need for them to be parked adjacent to
the work site.
• Vehicles involved in building, industrial or demolition operations.
• Post Office and other vehicles engaged in the delivery of postal packets
and bearing a livery used by a universal service provider within the
meaning ascribed by the Postal Services Act 2000. This does not
include private vehicles used by postmen/women whilst carrying out
letter deliveries.
• Electricity Board, Gas Board, Water Authority, British Telecom or other
telecommunications (and/or their appointed contractors), whilst actively
laying, altering or undertaking repairs to pipes, cables or other
apparatus.
• Vehicles used in the connection of the loading or unloading of goods.

Page 297

• Vehicles displaying a valid disabled person’s badge (blue badge) and a
parking disc on which the driver or the person in charge of the vehicle at
the time it was parked has marked the time at which the period of
waiting began, and where permitted by the prevailing parking
restrictions.
• Vehicles used as an official vehicle for the purpose of a wedding or
funeral at a church or place of worship.
• Vehicles used in connection with the posting, or removal, of any
advertising material in poster form, or is being used for cleaning
windows or chimneys in, or on, premises adjacent to that parking space.
• Any vehicle (typically bullion vehicles or specially adapted Security vans)
involved in the delivery or collection of cash and other high value goods
at a bank or other premises.
2.18.2 PCN’s will not normally be issued to vehicles falling within the above
categories, however, if a PCN is issued it will only be cancelled on appeal if
sufficient evidence is provided to prove that an exemption applies.
2.19

PENALTY CHARGE NOTICE APPEAL PROCESS AND FLOWCHART

2.19.1 Councils must review and publish their policies on how they deal with
appeals, challenges and representations against PCN’s. The following details
outline the main stages of penalty notice processing from initial issue through
to debt recovery.
2.19.2 The flow chart included in Appendix B shows the various stages of
progression and appeal for conventionally served PCN’s and in Appendix C
for postal PCN’s.
2.19.3 PCN stage – Following the issue of a PCN, the notice can either be: paid,
challenged, or cancelled. If payment is made then a discount of 50% is
applied if paid within 14 days (21 days if the PCN was served by post),
beginning with the date on which the PCN was served.
2.19.4 Informal Challenge stage - an informal challenge is an appeal made in the
period of 28 days between the issue of a PCN and the issue of an NtO.
2.19.5 Notice to Owner (NtO) stage - If a PCN is not paid within a period of 28
days, beginning with the date on which the PCN was served, or it is not
successfully challenged within that period, the Council may serve a NtO on
the owner of the vehicle, requiring payment of the PCN.
2.19.6 Formal Representation stage - Following the issue of an NtO the vehicle
owner may make formal representation to the Council within a period of 28
days.
2.19.7 Appeal stage – If a formal representation is rejected, a vehicle owner may
further appeal through the Traffic Penalty Tribunal Service (TPT)) to have the
appeal heard by an independent parking adjudicator.

Page 298

2.19.8 Charge Certificate stage - Charge Certificates are issued in circumstances
where no payment has been received to either PCN or the subsequent NtO,
or where an appeal has been rejected and no payment received before the
end of the period of 28 days, beginning with the date of the notice of rejection.
A charge certificate increases the standard PCN charge by 50%.
2.19.9 Debt Registration stage - If a Charge Certificate is not paid within 14 days
the authority may apply to the Traffic Enforcement Centre at Northampton
County Court to register the debt as a debt recoverable by Bailiffs. Within
Wirral an additional stage, the pre-debt registration letter, has been
introduced to give motorists a further opportunity to make payment. The
process of registering a debt attracts a small charge, levied by the Court,
which is subsequently added to the overall total debt. Once a debt is
registered the debtor is sent an Order for Recovery and Witness Statement
allowing a further 21 day period to either pay the debt or file a Witness
Statement.
A witness statement may be filed on one of four grounds.
1. The Notice to Owner was not received.
2. A formal representation was made to the local authority but the
rejection notice was not received.
3. An appeal was made to the Parking/Traffic Adjudicator but no
response has been received.
4. The penalty charge has been paid in full.
2.19.10 A witness statement can be rejected by the court and the Council has the
right to challenge the truthfulness of the ground on which the statement has
been filed.
2.19.11 Warrant Registration stage – Following debt registration, failure to either
pay the debt in full or complete a valid Witness Statement will result in the
authority applying for a Warrant of Execution from Northampton County
Court, Traffic Enforcement Centre. Once a Warrant of Execution has been
obtained an instruction will be given to the Councils Bailiff Service provider
for certificated bailiffs to collect the outstanding debt.
2.20

Challenges, Representations and Appeals

2.20.1 This section contains information on the process and decision making when
considering appeals. This is framework for guidance; however each case will
be considered on its own merits.
2.20.2 The Council has discretion to cancel a PCN at any point in the process even if
it is established that a contravention did occur. Where a decision has been
made not to cancel a penalty; a written explanation will always be provided
together with information on how to challenge the penalty further, if such a
stage is available.
2.20.3 When a PCN is issued it contains advice on how the motorist may appeal if
they wish to do so. In the first instance, this is termed an informal challenge.

Page 299

2.20.4 It is important to note that given the quasi judicial role of the statutory appeals
process, elected members and unauthorised officers should not play a part in
deciding the outcome of individual challenges or representations.
2.21

Challenge (informal):

2.21.1 An informal written challenge may be made to a PCN at any time prior to the
issue of an NtO. The challenge should state the grounds on which it is being
made together with any mitigating circumstances and supporting evidence.
The Council will give full and proper consideration to such representations in
accordance with the following paragraphs and respond in a timely manner. If
a challenge is received within 14 days of the PCN being served, and if the
Council subsequently reject the challenge, a further 14 days discount period
will normally be allowed. If a challenge is rejected the Council will provide
reasons as to why.
2.21.2 Making an informal challenge does not affect the right of the vehicle keeper to
make a subsequent formal representation against the issue of a PCN.
2.22

Representations (formal challenge):

2.22.1 A formal challenge or representation can only be made after the NtO has
been sent to the registered keeper. There are a number of statutory and non
statutory grounds on which a representation can be made. These are also the
same grounds on which a Parking Adjudicator may consider an appeal
against the Council’s rejection of these initial representations.
2.22.2 The statutory grounds for representation against a PCN are as follows;
(a) that the recipient —
(i) was never the owner of the vehicle in question;
(ii) had ceased to be its owner before the date on which the
alleged contravention occurred; or
(iii) became its owner after that date;
(b) that the alleged contravention did not occur;
(c) that the vehicle had been permitted to remain at rest in the parking
place by a person who was in control of the vehicle without the consent
of the owner;
(d) that the relevant designation order is invalid;
(e) that the recipient is a vehicle-hire firm and —
(i) the vehicle in question was at the material time hired from
that firm under a vehicle hiring agreement; and

Page 300

(ii) the person hiring it had signed a statement of liability
acknowledging his liability in respect of any PCN fixed to the
vehicle during the currency of the hiring agreement;
(f) that the penalty charge exceeded the amount applicable in the
circumstances of the case;
(g) that there has been a procedural impropriety on behalf of the authority;
(h) In the case where a PCN was served by post on the basis that a CEO
was prevented by someone from fixing it to the vehicle concerned or
handing it to the owner or person in charge of the vehicle that the CEO
had not been so prevented; or
(i) The NtO should not have been served because the PCN had already
been paid.
2.22.3 In addition to the statutory grounds for appeal the Council is also obliged to
consider any non statutory or mitigating circumstances. The owner/keeper is
required to give full details and supporting evidence of any such
circumstances.
2.22.4 If a representation is rejected the Council will issue a formal Notice of
Rejection (NoR), this will also detail the reasons for the decision. The Council
will also state the amount outstanding and allow a further period of 28 days in
which to pay. Guidance and an application form detailing how to further
appeal to the Traffic Penalty Tribunal are sent out with the NoR.
2.22.5 Further details on grounds for appeal are given in section 4.27 below.
Representations made outside the period of 28 days beginning with the date
on which the PCN is served, may be disregarded; however, the Council will
make allowance in exceptional circumstances.
2.23

Appeals to the Traffic Penalty Tribunal

2.23.1 The Traffic Penalty Tribunal (TPT) is the independent tribunal set up to
consider appeals by motorists and vehicle owners whose vehicles have been
issued with a PCN, and whose representations have been refused by the
Council. It is free for motorists to use the TPT and cases are considered by
Parking Adjudicators, who are specialist impartial lawyers appointed by the
tribunal service.

2.23.2 When the TPT receives a Notice of Appeal they will notify the Council to
submit its evidence to the adjudicator within a period of 21 days. The
appellant can choose to have the appeal considered in a number of different
manners.

Page 301

2.24

Postal Hearings - The Adjudicator will consider the appeal based solely on
the written evidence the appellant and the Council have supplied. A written
decision will be sent to both parties, normally within a week of the case being
decided.

2.25

Personal Hearings- An appellant may choose to attend in person and have
their appeal heard in any of a number of locations listed on the Notice of
Appeal form. Typically Wirral hearings are held in Liverpool.

2.25.3 Although a formal process, personal hearings are undertaken in a relatively
informal manner to put the appellant at ease. Those attending normally
include the Adjudicator, the appellant and the Council representative. The
appellant will have the opportunity to put his case to the Adjudicator and to
clarify or answer any questions put to them. Although those attending are not
required to give their evidence under oath, all parties are reminded of their
duty to tell the truth.
2.25.4 The Adjudicator will normally give their decision at the end of the hearing,
which will be confirmed in writing to both the appellant and the Council. In all
cases the adjudicator’s decision is binding on both the appellant and the
Council.
2.25.5 In exceptional circumstances, the adjudicator may refer a case back to the
Council for reconsideration. These cases are directed to the Chief Executive
and must not be dealt with by the team who considered the original
representations. If the Council does not accept an adjudicator’s
recommendation it must notify the adjudicator and the appellant of the
reasons for its decision before issuing a charge certificate.
2.25.6 If the Council accepts the recommendation of the adjudicator it must cancel
the NtO and refund any sums already paid.
2.25.7 Although a Parking Adjudicator has powers to award costs against either
party, this is unusual. Costs will only be awarded if in the opinion of the
Parking Adjudicator either party has behaved in a frivolous, vexatious or
wholly unreasonable manner. Costs are normally limited to out of pocket
expenses such as postage and stationary costs.
2.26

Telephone Hearings

2.26.1 Telephone hearings follow a similar process as personal hearing except that
they take place by telephone using a conference call facility. They have the
benefit that the appellant can make a personal representation without the
need to travel to and from a hearing venue.
2.26

Appeal grounds and decisions

2.26.1 This following section covers the grounds for appeal and the framework for
decision making when considering these. It provides advice on dealing with

Page 302

mitigating circumstances for a range of scenarios. It also recognises that each
case is different and that sometimes situations are beyond the control of the
motorist. The list cannot provide guidance on every possible scenario and is
therefore not exhaustive.
2.26.2 It is the responsibility of the person making the representation to support their
claim. The Council will not normally engage in evidence gathering on behalf
of the person who is appealing.
2.27

Statutory Grounds for Appeal:

2.27.1 There are a number of statutory grounds on which a motorist can appeal. If
proved the appeal should be allowed and the PCN cancelled. Such grounds
include:
2.29

Claims that the contravention did not occur:

2.29.1 If proved this would mean that the PCN was issued incorrectly because no
parking contravention took place. Examples could include:
a) The motorist was loading or unloading at a time when it is allowed but
the CEO did not notice this.
Representations should be accepted if it can be shown that the goods
being delivered were heavy, bulky or so numerous that it would be
impractical to legally park elsewhere. Loading should be taking place
close to the premises concerned and be timely, i.e. not spread out over an
unreasonably long period of time. However, where the Traffic Regulation
Order specifically prohibits loading, such as taxi ranks and bus stop
clearways or in car parks where a valid ticket has not been purchased,
then the PCN is unlikely to be cancelled.
b) The motorist had a permit or ticket but the CEO did not see it.
If a valid permit or P&D ticket is produced and the CEO confirms that a
permit or ticket was in evidence but could not be clearly seen; for example
details obscured by wiper blade; then representations would normally be
accepted. However, appellants should note that this reason will only be
accepted if it is the first such representation on these grounds from that
person. Repeat claims for subsequent PCN’s for the same contravention
are unlikely to be cancelled.
c) The motorist had a disabled badge on display but the CEO did not
see it.
As with P&D parking tickets, it is the motorist’s duty to ensure that
disabled badges are clearly displayed so that the expiry date and serial
number are clearly visible. However, if a valid disabled persons badge is
provided and it is a first occasion for that contravention then
representations would normally be accepted even if the disabled badge
was not correctly displayed at the time the PCN was issued. Repeat

Page 303

claims for subsequent PCN’s for failing to display or correctly display a
disabled persons badge are unlikely to be cancelled.
d) Claims the signs / markings were not in the correct position or had
been damaged or were not visible.
If, following investigation, a significant or material error is found with the
signs, lines or the traffic regulation then representations would normally be
accepted. In such cases action will also be taken to prevent further PCN’s
being issued in those circumstances and to rectify the error. Partially worn
lines, utility gaps or minor departures such as missing end bars will be
considered on a case by case basis but will not normally be accepted if
the purpose and intent of the lines is obvious to a motorist acting in a
reasonable manner.
e) The date or registration number on the PCN is incorrect.
If it can be shown that the date or registration number is incorrect the
appeal will be allowed.
f) A PCN was never served on the vehicle.
Occasionally a PCN may be removed from a vehicle either by a third party
or by adverse weather conditions. If the CEO has photographic evidence
to show the PCN was originally served correctly and/or where evidence
supports the claim that the PCN was removed, the motorist will normally
be given a further opportunity to pay the PCN at the discounted rate.
Similar repeat claims for subsequent PCN’s are unlikely to result in the
discount being re-offered.
g) Claims that the adjacent pay and display machine was not working.
Claims of this nature will be checked against service records for the
relevant machine and any complaints or enquires received. If validated the
appeal will be allowed, however, if there is another nearby ticket machine
which could have been used then the representation may not be allowed.
h) The motorist was carrying out building works nearby and had a
valid dispensation issued by Streetscene.
As with other tickets and disabled badges, proof of a valid dispensation
that matches the details of the vehicle is likely to result in the
representations being accepted for a first offence for this contravention.
Repeat claims for subsequent PCN’s for the same contravention are
unlikely to be cancelled.
2.30

Vehicle Ownership:
a) The recipient has never been the owner of the vehicle in question

Page 304

Representations will be accepted if the DVLA confirms that the motorist
was not the registered keeper at the time of the contravention.
b) The recipient had ceased to be the owner before the date of the
contravention
Representations will be accepted if the registered keeper is able to
provide proof that the vehicle was sold or otherwise disposed of before the
date of the contravention. Accepted documentation could include a bill of
sale, registration or insurance documents or a letter from the DVLA. The
registered keeper would be expected to provide details of the new owner,
to whom a new NtO may be sent.
c) The recipient had become the owner after the date of the
contravention
Similarly, representations are likely to be accepted if the current registered
keeper is able to provide proof that the vehicle was purchased after the
date of the contravention. Such documentation could include an invoice,
registration or insurance documents or a letter from the DVLA. The new
owner should be able to provide details of the previous owner to whom, a
new NtO may be sent.
2.31

Vehicle Taken Without Consent:
Claims that the vehicle had been left by a person who was in control
of the vehicle without the consent of the owner
Representations on these grounds should be accompanied with a valid
police crime report reference number and will normally be accepted. It is
the vehicle keeper’s responsibility to control use of a vehicle and claims
that an unknown family member or friend had left the vehicle will not
normally be accepted unless there is evidence to supporting the matter
being reported to the police at the time of the incident.

2.32

Recipient is a Vehicle-Hire Firm and;
(i) the vehicle in question was at the material time hired from that
firm under a vehicle hiring agreement; and
(ii) the person hiring it had signed a statement of liability
acknowledging his liability in respect of any PCN fixed to the vehicle
during the currency of the hiring agreement;
Representations will be accepted if the hire company can provide proof
that the vehicle was hired at the time of the contravention and the
company can provide the full name and address of the person who hired
the vehicle. In these instances, a new NtO will be sent to the person
named by the hire company.

2.33

The Traffic Regulation Order was Invalid

Page 305

Claims made on these grounds are infrequent and are usually concerned
with the correct legal procedure for the making of the TRO.
Representations will be allowed if it can be proven that the process for
making the traffic order or the content of the order was flawed in some
way.
2.34

Non-Statutory Grounds for appeal – Mitigation and Discretion
There are no statutory grounds for appeal where the recipient
acknowledges that a contravention has occurred but argues that
extenuating circumstances apply, however, best practice and guidance
indicates that Councils should still consider such appeals.

2.36

A schedule of the more common circumstances encountered by motorists
and/or raised in appeals, together with information and guidance on how the
Council will consider each, is contained within Appendix D to the report.

3.0

RELEVANT RISKS

3.1

Failure to review regularly and publish policies on parking enforcement would
be contrary to the statutory guidance issued by the Secretary of State.

3.2

In order to ensure that the service continues to deliver Council aims and
objectives a regular review of the policy is required. It is also a means of
demonstrating accountability and transparency in how the service is
delivered.

4.0

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

4.1

None available.

5.0

CONSULTATION

5.1

No consultation was undertaken for the production of this report.

6.0

IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS

6.1

There are no specific implications under this heading.

7.0

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS

7.1

There are no financial implications arising out of this report. The report
reviews and updates existing policies. The service is managed so it remains
cost neutral to the Authority.

7.2

The policies contained in the report are implemented by existing staffing and
contracted partners as part of their normal duties.

8.0

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

8.1

There are no implications under this heading.

Page 306

9.0

EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

9.1

Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to
equality?
(a)
Yes and impact review is attached – http://www.wirral.gov.uk/myservices/community-and-living/equality-diversity-cohesion/equality-impactassessments/eias-2010/technical-services-0

10.0

CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS

10.1

There are no specific implications under this heading; however, effective
control of parking can have an impact in reducing the effects of transport on
the environment.

11.0

PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS

11.1

There are no implications under this heading.

12.0

RECOMMENDATION/S

12.1

It is recommended that Cabinet approve the procedures and policies as set
out in the Report. Cabinet are also requested to approve the publication of the
details of the report on the Council’s website.

13.0

REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

13.1

The Council is required to produce and publish its policies and strategies on
parking and enforcement to comply with the statutory guidance relating to
Part 6 of the TMA 2004, and to carry out regular reviews of those policies and
strategies.

REPORT AUTHOR:

Steve Atkins
Parking Services Manager
telephone: 0151 606 2270
email: steveatkins@wirral.gov.uk

APPENDICES
APPENDIX A APPENDIX B APPENDIX C APPENDIX D -

Contravention Codes, Observation Periods and Penalty
Charge Amounts
Conventionally Served PCN - Flowchart
Postal Served PCN – Flowchart
Schedule of circumstances

REFERENCE MATERIAL
Statistical information contained within this report has been obtained from the SiDem Debt Management system used by the Council to manage and administer
parking enforcement cases. Further information can be obtained by contacting the
Parking Services Team.

Page 307

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting

Date

Cabinet report Traffic Management Act 2004 - Interim 13 March 2008
Parking Strategy
Cabinet report Annual Report on Parking Enforcement

3 February 2011

Cabinet report Annual Report on Parking Enforcement

2 February 2012

Page 308

APPENDIX A

CONTRAVENTION CODES, OBSERVATION PERIOD AND PENALTY CHARGE RATE
Code

Description

Current Observation
Period

Penalty
Charge Rate

3 minutes
instant

£70
£70

5 mins (instant if more
than 5 mins expired)
5 minutes
instant
5 minutes

£50
£50
£50
£70

5 minutes
instant

£70
£50

5 minutes
instant
instant

£70
£70
£50

5 minutes
instant
5 minutes
instant

£70
£50
£70
£70

instant
15 minutes
instant

£70
£50
£70

instant
instant
instant
instant
instant
5 minutes

£70
£70
£70
£70
£70
£70

instant

£70

instant

£70

instant

£70

instant
instant

£50
£70

15 minutes
instant
5 mins (instant if more
than 5 mins expired)
5 minutes

£50
£70
£50

instant
instant
instant

£70
£50
£70

instant

£70

instant
instant
instant
instant

£50
£70
£70
£50

ON STREET
1
2
5
6
7
12

16
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
30
40
42
45
46
47
48
61
62
99
70
73
74
80
81
82
83
85
86
87
89
90
91
92
95

Parked in a restricted street during prescribed hours
Parked or loading/unloading in a restricted street where waiting and
loading/unloading restrictions are in force
Parked after the expiry of paid for time
Parked without clearly displaying a valid pay & display ticket or voucher
Parked with payment made to extend the stay beyond initial time
Parked in a residents' or shared use parking place or zone without
clearly displaying either a permit or voucher or pay and display ticket
issued for that place
Parked in a permit space without displaying a valid permit
Parked in a residents' or shared use parking place or zone displaying an
invalid permit, an invalid voucher or an invalid pay and display ticket
Parked in a loading gap marked by a yellow line
Parked in a suspended bay/space or part of bay/space
Re-parked in the same parking place or zone within specified no return
period
Parked in a parking place or area not designated for that class of vehicle
Not parked correctly within the markings of the bay or space
Parked in a loading place during restricted hours without loading
Parked more than 50 cm from the edge of the carriageway and not
within a designated parking place
Parked adjacent to a dropped footway
Parked for longer than permitted
Parked in a designated disabled person's parking place without
displaying a valid disabled person's badge in the prescribed manner
Parked in a parking place designated for police vehicles
Parked on a taxi rank
Stopped where prohibited (urban clearway)
Stopped on a restricted bus stop/stand
Stopped in a restricted area outside a school
A heavy commercial vehicle wholly or partly parked on a footway, verge
or land between two carriageways
Parked with one or more wheels on or over a footpath or any part of a
road other than a carriageway
Stopped on a pedestrian crossing or crossing area marked by zig-zags
OFF STREET
Parked in a loading area during restricted hours without reasonable
excuse
Parked without payment of the parking charge
Using a vehicle in a parking place in connection with the sale or offering
or exposing for sale of goods when prohibited
Parked for longer than the maximum period permitted
Parked in a restricted area in a car park
Parked after the expiry of paid for time
Parked in a car park without clearly displaying a valid pay and display
ticket or voucher or parking clock
Parked in a permit bay without clearly displaying a valid permit
Parked beyond the bay markings
Parked in a designated disabled person's parking place without
displaying a valid disabled person's badge in the prescribed manner
Vehicle parked exceeds maximum weight or height or length permitted
in the area
Re-parked within time limit for no return period
Parked in a car park or area not designated for that class of vehicle
Parked causing an obstruction
Parked in a parking place for a purpose other than the designated
purpose for the parking place

Instant - indicates that a nil observation period applies and a penalty notice will be issued instantly.

Page 309

£50

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 310

Page 311

Page 312

APPENDIX D - PARKING ENFORCEMENT POLICY
THE FOLLOWING SECTIONS, ARRANGED IN ALPHABETICAL ORDER, DETAILS
SOME OF THE MORE COMMON CIRCUMSTANCES ENCOUNTERED BY MOTORIST
AND/OR RAISED IN APPEALS, TOGETHER GUIDANCE ON HOW EACH IS
CONSIDERED:
1.0

Bank holidays:

1.1

Parking and waiting restrictions apply on all days including bank holidays unless the
associated signage indicates otherwise. Bank Holiday enforcement is usually
reduced and concentrated in town centres or known problem areas.

2.0

Bank visits:

2.1

Appeals from individuals or companies made on the basis of collecting or delivering
money from a bank will not normally be accepted as a reason for cancellation.
Motorists should contact their bank or a cash in transit company about future security
arrangements.

2.2

There is an exemption that applies to security or bullion vehicles whilst
loading/unloading large quantities cash and coins etc.

3.0

Blocked access:

3.1

An obstructed or blocked access to a private car park or property is not a valid
reason to park on adjacent parking restrictions. Appeals on this basis will not be
allowed. An exception to this would apply when a driver has to collect a key to unlock
a gate or barrier to gain access proving this does not take an unreasonably long
period of time.

3.2

In some circumstance the Council can take action against vehicles that are parked
adjacent to a dropped footway crossing without the permission of the owner of the
property to which the crossing provides access. See section on Double parking and
dropped kerbs for further details.

3.3

Where restrictions are in force a PCN may be issued to a vehicle if it is parked in
contravention of the restriction.

3.4

Where access to/from a property is being blocked and no parking restriction are in
place the Police may in some circumstances be able to deal with the matter as an
obstruction offence.

4.0

Broken down vehicles: (See also Vandalised Vehicles)

4.1

Appeals relating to a vehicle breakdown will normally be accepted if they appear to
be unavoidable and, if supporting evidence in the form of one or more of the
following is produced:
• Dated garage receipt, on headed paper, properly completed and relating to
repair of a relevant fault, within a reasonable time of the contravention,

Page 313

• Till receipt for purchase of relevant spare parts purchased on or soon after the
date of contravention,
• Confirmatory letter from the RAC, AA or other similar breakdown/motoring
organisation,
4.2

Written confirmation from the CEO that the vehicle appeared to be broken down. In
these circumstances the CEO should give due consideration to issuing a PCN in the
first place.

4.3

Each case will be considered upon its own merits, however, where records show that
a driver has previously claimed vehicle breakdown and it is suspected that this is
being used as a means of avoiding liability for PCN’s then appeals on these grounds
may not be accepted unless further substantiated proof is provided.

4.4

Notes left in windscreens stating that “the vehicle has broken down”, will not usually
be accepted as a sole reason for not issuing a PCN.

5.0

Builders / tradesmen:

5.1

In Residential Parking Zones: Trade related vehicles are not exempt from parking
restrictions and when parked within a controlled resident zone must display either a
valid Visitor’s Parking Permit (obtainable from the resident) or a Parking
Dispensation (if applicable, obtainable from Streetscene).

5.2

In Yellow Line Restrictions: Exemptions apply whilst loading /unloading of tools and
materials is taking place but at all other times the vehicle must be moved to an area
where parking is permitted.

6.0

Bus stops:

6.1

A restricted bus stop will be indicated with yellow lines and a time plate showing the
hours of operation. A PCN may be issued to any vehicle other than a bus waiting in a
restricted bus stop.

7.0

Care organisations:

7.1

In Residential Parking Zones: The Council issues dispensations allowing carers to
park within Residential Parking Zones whilst attending residents. Dispensations are
issued upon application, and must be supported by an official letter from the care
organisation or, in the case of a private carer (relative etc), confirmation from the
resident’s GP that he/she is in need of regular, permanent care within their home.
Suspected abuse will be investigated and permits may be withdrawn.

7.2

In Council Car Parks: Dispensations are not valid in Council car parks.

7.3

Yellow Lines: Dispensations do not allow carers to park on yellow line restrictions
and will not be issued for this purpose.

8.0

Children / elderly people:

8.1

Appeals on the basis of delays caused by young children or elderly people will not
normally be accepted. It is the responsible adult’s duty to ensure that sufficient

Page 314

allowance is made at the time of parking to accommodate these largely foreseeable
delays (see also Emergencies below).
8.2

PCN’s issued whilst children are being dropped-off or collected from schools will not
normally be cancelled unless the correct observation period was not allowed by the
CEO.

9.0

Council officers and members on duty:

9.1

Council officers and elected members are expected to fully comply with parking
regulations and will be issued with a PCN if a contravention occurs:

9.2

In Council Car Parks: Staff and members are not exempt and must comply with any
restrictions in force e.g. by purchasing a pay and display ticket and claiming back if
appropriate.

9.3

In Residential Parking Zones: a valid visitor’s permit or parking dispensation,
obtainable from Streetscene must be displayed.

9.4

Yellow Lines: Dispensation will not be given to allow staff or members to park on
yellow lines.

9.5

Appeals for Cancellation of PCN: These must be in writing and will only be supported
if relevant valid grounds can be proven. All staff appeals are independently audited
by the Head of Service.

10.0

Controlled Parking Zones:

10.1

Much of Birkenhead town centre area is largely defined within a controlled parking
zone (CPZ). All entry and exit points to the CPZ are signed and provide details of the
blanket waiting restriction which applies, as indicated by the single yellow lines,
throughout the area. There is no requirement for time plates within the zone to inform
of the restrictions that apply unless the local restrictions differ from the blanket
restrictions that are shown on the entry zone signs.

11.0

Delays:

11.1

Appeals on the basis of delays due to queues at shops, banks, leisure centres etc,
meetings taking longer than expected, caught up in crowds etc, will not normally be
allowed. It is the motorist’s responsibility to make sufficient allowance for these
largely foreseeable delays at the time of parking (see also Emergencies below).

12.0

Dental / doctor’s appointments:

12.1

Appeals on the basis of delays relating to medical treatment will only be considered if
it can be shown that the delays were significantly longer than the normal delays
experienced whilst attending such appointments. Claims should be supported in
writing from the relevant medical practitioner.

13.0

Description of vehicle incorrect:

Page 315

13.1

During the PCN issuing process a record is made of the make, colour and
registration number of the vehicle, which will appear on the PCN. Other details such
as tax disc number and positions of tyre valves may also be recorded.

13.2

Incorrect colour: PCN are issued in a variety of weather and lighting conditions and
some paint finishes vary significantly with angle and light. Colours such as silvers,
greys and blue etc may be easily mistaken. Where there is a close relationship
between the colours then the PCN will normally be pursued. For widely differing
colours i.e. a blue car recorded as red car which cannot easily be explained by the
above greater consideration will be given to cancellation of the PCN. If all other
details are correct this may, however, indicate a re-spray not advised to DVLA.

13.3

Incorrect make: Although many manufacturers produce different models that look
very similar it would be difficult to enforce a PCN issued to a Vauxhall which turned
out to be a Ford, although an exception may a modified or de-badged vehicle. In
most cases serious consideration will be given to cancelling the PCN.

13.4

Tax Disc Number: All tax disc numbers are unique; if the number recorded by the
CEO on the vehicle at the time of issue matches the DVLA records the Council will
usually pursue the PCN irrespective of any errors regarding colour or make.

14.0

Blue Badge Concession:

14.1

Blue badges must only be used when the vehicle is being used to transport a
disabled person either as a driver or as a passenger. It is not permitted to use the
badge for any other purpose e.g., shopping for a disabled person when they,
themselves, are not being transported in the vehicle. Full guidance on the use of a
Blue Badge, is provided by the Department for Transport in its booklet which is
issued to all new Blue Badge holders.

14.2

Blue badges must be clearly and properly displayed whilst the vehicle is parked, with
the expiry date and serial number visible. The associated time disc/clock should also
be clearly displayed and correctly set where a time limit or time restriction is in place.

14.3

Failure to adhere to the rules may result in a PCN being issued for contravention of
the prevailing parking restriction. When considering blue badge appeals relating to
failure to correctly display a disabled badge (and/or clock) an appeal will normally be
allowed upon proof of the existence of a valid blue badge. The letter of cancellation
sent to the person making the representation will contain information on how to
correctly display and avoid receiving a PCN in the future; it will also state that a
lenient approach may not be taken in any future cases.

14.4

When a Disabled Badge is clearly and properly displayed a motorist may park:
On Street, in
• Limited waiting bays, for any length of time
• On Street pay and display bays: free of charge without time limit
• On Street residents only parking bays: free of charge without time limit
• On Street Disabled Parking Bays: check accompanying time plate for any time
limits
• Yellow Lines: For a period not exceeding 3 hours

Page 316

Off Street, in
• Council Car Parks: In accordance with details provided on the car park
information boards. Vehicles must park within the bays provided, but are not
restricted to those dedicated for blue badge holders. Blue Badges cannot be
used on double yellow lines or hatched areas within a Car Park.
14.5

Disabled Badge Holders are not allowed to park in any street or area where a
loading restriction is in place – these are marked with kerb blips or kerb markings.

14.6

Disabled Badge Holders are not allowed to park in any area specifically reserved for
other vehicles or purpose i.e. Taxi Ranks, Bus Stops or Goods vehicle loading bays
etc. or in any area where they may cause an obstruction or danger to other road
users.

14.7

To benefit from the concession parking must always be in accordance with the rules
of the Blue Badge Scheme.

14.8

Civil Enforcement Officers have a right to ask to see and to inspect a Blue Badge.

15.0

Double parking and dropped kerbs:

15.1

The contravention of double parking is defined as when a vehicle parks on any part
of the carriageway of a road where no part of the vehicle is within 50 cm of the edge
of the carriageway.

15.2

The contravention of parking on a part of a road adjacent to a dropped or raised kerb
applies where a vehicle parks on the carriageway adjacent to a footway, cycle track
or verge where the footway, cycle track, verge or carriageway has been lowered or
raised for the purpose of –
• assisting pedestrians crossing the carriageway
• assisting cyclists entering or leaving the carriageway
• assisting vehicles entering or leaving the carriageway across the footway, cycle
track or verge.

15.3

The contravention does not apply where a vehicle is parked outside residential
premises by or with the consent (but not for reward) of the occupier of the premises.
This exception does not apply in the case of a shared driveway. Enforcement action
will not be taken where a vehicle is parked outside residential premises unless and
until the Council has been asked to do so by the occupier of the property.

15.4

The following exceptions to the double parked or parked adjacent to a dropped
footway contravention apply:
• vehicles parked wholly within a designated parking place or any other part of
the carriageway where parking is specifically authorised
• vehicles used by the fire, ambulance or police services
• loading and unloading
• vehicles used for waste collection, building works or road works.

16.0

Drink driving or other arrest:

Page 317

16.1

If the driver of a vehicle has been arrested or otherwise detained and, as a direct
result, a contravention of a parking restriction occurs, any resultant PCN will be
enforced unless;
The driver can provide proof, preferably in writing, confirming date, time and
evidence of arrest including custody number, officer and Police Station involved.

17.0

Dropping off and picking up passengers:

17.1

It is permitted to stop in restricted lengths of street to drop off and collect passengers
except when the following restrictions apply; designated clearways, zigzags (schools
and pedestrian crossings) and “no loading” restrictions. Parking to await a collection
is not permitted. Any appeals considered will take into account factors such as
elderly passengers, disabled persons, young children or large amounts of luggage
similarly Hackney Carriages or Private Hire Vehicles will be allowed additional time
to announce their arrival and accept payment.

18.0

Emergencies:

18.1

An emergency is typically a serious unplanned and unforeseen situation that results
in a contravention occurring.
The most common are accidents or medical
emergencies requiring treatment. Appeals will normally be allowed provided
independent supporting evidence is made available.

19.0

Emergency call out - Plumbers, electricians, gas fitters:

19.1

Parking to attend an emergency will normally be considered justification to cancel a
PCN, however, only during the period which is required to make the premises safe
i.e. turn off the main supply. During any subsequent repairs or planned work the
vehicle should be parked within a permitted parking place or with a relevant
dispensation displayed.

20.0

Emergency duties:

20.1

Doctors, nurses, midwives and first responders engaged on emergency duties
should, wherever possible, park legally as this is the safest for all concerned.
Appeals will normally be allowed provided supporting evidence is made available.

20.2

Regular or planned visits are not considered an emergency.

21.0

Estate agents:

21.1

Estate agents visiting a client’s property within a residential parking zone should
either display a valid Visitors or Business/Property Owner Permit if available.

21.2

Estate agents are not exempt from parking restrictions.

22.0

Footway parking:

22.1

Typically waiting and loading restrictions apply to the whole width of the highway,
including any footways and verges; consequently footway/verge parking will be
enforced where a TRO is in place in a street. Additionally, TRO’s can also be
introduced solely to preventing footway/verge parking and there are several locations
across the Borough where this type of order exists. In the absence of a TRO it is

Page 318

much more difficult to enforce, however, the Police may be able to issue a fixed
penalty notice for obstruction in certain circumstances.
22.2

The Highway Code also states that drivers should not park partially or wholly in the
pavement unless signs permit it.

23.0

Funerals, weddings and civil partnerships:

23.1

Vehicles actively involved in a funeral, wedding or civil partnership will not be issued
with a PCN.

23.2

However, vehicles belonging to mourners and wedding or civil partnership guests are
not exempt and must comply with any restrictions in force. In some location parking
dispensation may be available via Streetscene.

24.0

Garages - PCN issued whilst in for repair:

24.1

Although it would be expected that a garage would accept responsible for any PCN
that incurred in relation to a customers car whilst in their custody, the Council has no
powers to enforce payments from them. Ultimately the responsibility for the PCN
rests with the registered keeper of the vehicle and it is they who would have to seek
to recover the costs of the PCN from the garage.

25.0

Glaziers:

25.1

Appeals relating to glazier company vehicles when parked close to the location of an
emergency repair would normally be allowed provided evidence in the form of
documentation or CEO’s notes, confirmed that such activity was taking place at the
time of the issue of the PCN.

25.2

PCN’s issued to vehicles not required for delivery of materials or tools will not be
cancelled

26.0

Government department vehicles:

26.1

There are no automatic exemptions for government department vehicles.

26.2

Appeals on the basis of vehicles being involved in activities such as surveillance
must be supported in writing from a senior manager on headed notepaper.
Wherever possible Government Agencies should liaise in advance with the Council.

27.0

Hackney carriages / private hire vehicles:

27.1

Hackney Carriages and Private Hire Vehicles (PHVs), like other vehicles, may stop
on restrictions to allow passengers to board or alight for as long as is reasonably
necessary for the purpose. If a licensed Hackney Carriage or PHV is left unattended
whilst, for example, assisting passengers into premises it may be issued with a PCN.

27.2

Appeals on this basis, especially those involving elderly, infirm or disabled
passengers should include appropriate evidence.

28.0

Hiring agreement:

Page 319

28.1

Responsibility for a PCN issued during a period of hire, lies with the hirer of the
vehicle at the time.

28.2

The Hire Company must make formal representation to the Council and provide a
copy of the hire agreement.

28.3

The agreement must clearly state the name and address of the hirer, the start and
finish dates for the hire period and the hirer’s signature. It must also contain a clause
regarding the hirer’s liability for any PCN’s incurred during the hire period. Following
receipt of the above a new NtO will normally be issued to the hirer. If the above
information is not provided by the hire company or is not relevant to the date of the
offence then the PCN will continue to be enforced against them.

Intervention in challenge and representation processes by members and other
officers:
28.4

The procedures and policy for dealing with challenges and representations against
the issue of PCN’s are as set out in this report and legislation. The procedures
include the ultimate right of all motorists to refer the matter to an independent
adjudicator through the TPT.

28.5

To preserve the integrity of these procedures they shall be undertaken by trained
staff within Parking Services and should not be subject to external pressure by either
members of the Council or other senior officers, designed to influence a decision, by
virtue of their position alone.

29.0

Keeper’s liability:

29.1

Legislation states that a PCN “shall be payable by the person who was the owner of
the vehicle involved in the contravention at the material time”. This is deemed to be
registered keeper of the vehicle, as per records held at the Driver and Vehicle
Licensing Agency (DVLA). If at the time of the contravention the keeper was not the
driver of the vehicle, then it is their responsibility to pay the PCN and seek
recompense from the driver.

30.0

Loading / unloading:

30.1

Vehicles are permitted to remain at rest in contravention of waiting restrictions,
including resident parking zones, whilst carrying out activities of loading or unloading
provided that:

30.2

Loading activity involving the vehicle is observed by the CEO. The observation
period shall be for at least three minutes for private motor cars and a PCN shall only
be issued if no activity is seen during this period.

30.3

In the case of goods vehicles a longer observation period, up to a maximum of 20
minutes will normally be allowed. This is to allow the driver to complete delivery
paperwork and to take account of the longer time needed to unload/stack larger
volumes of goods.

30.4

Appeals on the basis of loading must include supporting evidence to explain why no
activity was observed.

Page 320

31.0

Location of contravention – incorrect:

31.1

If it can be proven that the location stated on the PCN is incorrect then the PCN will
be cancelled.

32.0

Lost keys:

32.1

Appeals on the basis of car keys being lost, stolen or locked in a car which in turn
resulted in a contravention occurring will be considered favourably providing
supporting evidence is available for example from the police or a motoring
organisation.

32.2

The following will also be taken into account:
• If the vehicle was parked in a pay and display car park, did the loss of the keys
prevent purchase of additional parking time?
• If the vehicle was parked on a yellow line, should it have been parked there in
the first place?

33.0

Mis-spelling of keeper’s name:

33.1

The mis-spelling of the keeper’s name and/or address on the NtO does not invalidate
it or discharge the liability of the person receiving it. It is the responsibility of the
actual keeper of the vehicle to deal with the matter even if their name or address is
misspelt.

33.2

Names and addresses are, in most cases, obtained from the DVLA and these details
are usually supplied by the keepers themselves. It is also the keeper’s responsibility
to check and correct any mistakes in the vehicle keeper documents when they
receive them.

33.3

If a mis-spelling is discovered the case records will be updated immediately to
ensure that future letters and notices are sent out correctly.

34.0

Notes in a vehicle:

34.1

In most instances a PCN will be issued even if a note is displayed in the windscreen
of a vehicle, unless there is some other obvious or supporting evidence.

35.0

Parked beyond bay markings:

35.1

Motorists are required to park their vehicle wholly within a designated parking place
or any other part of the carriageway where parking is specifically authorised e.g. on
and off street pay and display bays, residents’ bays and limited waiting bays. If any
of the vehicles wheels are outside or overhanging the bay and the Council considers
that a significant or sufficient part of the vehicle is beyond the bay markings then a
Penalty Charge Notice may be issued.

36.0

Pay and display – did not realise it was a P&D area:

36.1

Appeals based upon not seeing relevant signs or pay and display machines will not
be allowed unless signs are missing or obstructed such that they would not be seen
by a person acting reasonably.

Page 321

37.0

Pay and display machines – out of order:

37.1

Claims of this nature will be checked against service records for the relevant
machine and any complaints or enquires received. If validated the appeal will be
allowed, however, if there was another nearby ticket machine and evidence confirms
that other users had been able to purchase tickets around the same time then the
representation is unlikely to be allowed.

38.0

Pay and display – gone to meter or for change:

38.1

Motorists are expected to arrive at their parking destination with sufficient means to
pay any necessary parking charges. Appeals based upon the PCN being issued
whilst going for change or to the meter will not usually be allowed. A 5 minute
observation period is always allowed prior to issuing a PCN for not displaying a
ticket, this is considered sufficient to obtain change or buy a ticket, additionally the
CEO must also check whether there is anyone purchasing a ticket at any machine
within eyesight or appears to be making their way back to the vehicle. Thus,
someone who parks without displaying a ticket will have had at least 5 minutes
formal observation in addition to any period of time before the vehicle was observed
by the CEO.

39.0

Pay and display – wrong machine:

39.1

Pay and display tickets are not transferable between locations and are only valid for
the car park or zone in which they were purchased. This is because different tariff
structures exist in different areas. However, in circumstances where a higher value
ticket is still time valid a more lenient approach may be taken.

40.0

Pay and display tickets:

40.1

Pay and Display car parks and streets require a ticket to be purchased at the time of
parking for the length of time required. All tickets show the expiry date and time on
them along with the fee paid and the machine number. The applicable Parking
Charges are displayed either on the machine or on an adjacent notice board.

40.2

Pay and Display Tickets must be clearly displayed whilst the vehicle is parked, face
up showing the date/expiry time etc. The ticket must be valid for the location and the
date and time during which the vehicle is parked.

40.3

PCN’s may be issued for:
• Failing to display a valid ticket; meter feeding (purchasing additional time in an
attempt to remain in the same parking place beyond the maximum time
permitted) or Displaying a ticket that has expired.
• Appeals based upon a valid P&D ticket being produced and/or if the CEO
confirms that a ticket was in evidence but could not be clearly seen, for
example details obscured by wiper blade, would normally be accepted.
However, appellants should note that this reason will only be accepted if it is
the first such representation on these grounds from that person. Repeat claims
for subsequent PCN’s for the same contravention are unlikely to be cancelled.

Page 322

41.0

Pay and display tickets – “Free after Three” and similar schemes

41.1

The Council may operate a number of parking concession schemes such as ‘Free
after Three’ which may allow parking at a discount rate or without charge. Any
specific rules of parking will be clearly displayed in the parking area, including the
need to obtain a ticket, if appropriate. Ticket must be displayed and will be enforced
in the same manner as full price tickets.

42.0

Penalty charge notice – discount period:

42.1

If a PCN is paid within 14 days of issue the amount of the penalty is discounted by
50%.

42.2

If a challenge is received from the keeper within 14 days of issue the discount period
is automatically extended pending the Council’s decision. If the challenge is
subsequently rejected a further 14 days discount period will begin from the date of
the notice of rejection. This information is included within the notice.

42.3

If a challenge is received later than the 14 day discount period the discount period
will not be extended and the full amount must be paid in the event of the challenge
being rejected.

42.4

If an NtO is sent to the keeper who is subsequently able to demonstrate that the
PCN was not received at the time of the contravention, payment at the discounted
amount will normally be accepted if paid within 14 days.

43.0

Penalty charge notice, early issue of:

43.1

If a motorists claims that a PCN was issued before the expiry of the requisite
observation period, we will investigate fully as these periods are usually set within
the hardware and software and cannot be easily overridden.

44.0

Permits - residents / visitor permits:

44.1

Resident parking permits must be clearly displayed on the windscreen of the vehicle.
Permits are only valid in the zone indicated, for the vehicle to which they are issued
and until the expiry date, if indicated.

44.2

Visitor’s permits are issued to residents for use by visitors to their homes and must
be clearly displayed on the windscreen of the vehicle.

44.3

Vehicles parked in resident only parking schemes without a valid resident/visitor
permit may be issued with a PCN. When considering appeals if a valid permit is
produced and/or the CEO confirms that a permit was in evidence but could not be
clearly seen, for example details obscured by wiper blade, then representations
would normally be accepted. However, appellants should note that this reason will
only be accepted if it is the first such representation on these grounds from that
person. Repeat claims for subsequent PCN’s for the same contravention are unlikely
to be cancelled.

44.4

A PCN may be issued if a permit is displayed for the wrong zone, on another vehicle
(in the case of a residents permit) or after its expiry date.

Page 323

45.0

Police officers on duty:

45.1

PCN’s should not be issued to marked police vehicles when on official duty.

45.2

Requests for cancellation of any PCN issued to an unmarked police vehicle must be
made by the Area Inspector or equivalent. It should contain confirmation that the
vehicle was being used on official business and why it was necessary to park at that
location.

45.3

PCN’s issued to an unmarked police vehicle which is regularly parked outside a
police station will not automatically be cancelled.

46.0

Police officer gave permission to park:

46.1

Appeals on this basis will only be allowed where details of the authorising Police
officer are provided and the information can be confirmed.

47.0

Pregnant mothers with young children:

47.1

Generally pregnancy is not considered to be a disability, and not subject to the Blue
Badge scheme concessions. Delays caused by pregnancy or young children will not
normally lead to the cancellation of a PCN, as they can be expected and therefore
anticipated.

47.2

However, this is obviously a sensitive area and each case should be treated on its
merits, i.e. if the delay was short or was caused by a minor medical emergency, child
being sick or expectant mother feeling unwell, then leniency may be shown.

47.3

If the delay appears to be a result of not making allowance of the demands of
dealing with young children or her own condition, which could reasonably be
anticipated, then the PCN should be enforced.

48.0

Private or un-adopted highway:

48.1

Although the vast majority of TRO’s within the Borough apply to the adopted
highway, TRO’s may also be applied to areas of highway that are not adopted but to
which the public have access to, by right or tolerance. A PCN issued on highway that
is not adopted would not normally be cancelled for that reason alone.

49.0

Road signs / markings – missing, worn, obscured or broken:

49.1

Lines and marking should clearly indicate the restrictions in force; however, they do
not need to be in a perfect condition. The test is whether a motorist acting
reasonably would be aware of the presence and intent of the marking.

49.2

A partly worn line, utility gap or missing end bar will not normally be accepted as a
reason for cancellation. However, this will sometimes depend on the position of the
vehicle in relation to markings.

49.3

If signs or marking as confirmed as missing or defective the PCN should be
cancelled.

50.0

Obscured signs:

Page 324

50.1

Information signs accompanying waiting and loading restrictions must be clearly
visible at all times. If it is claimed that a sign was obscured and could not be read
(graffiti, weather or overhanging trees etc.) the sign should be inspected as soon as
practicable and remedial action taken. If the claim is proved to be correct the PCN
should be cancelled.

50.2

If the sign can be easily read then the PCN should be enforced.

51.0

Missing signs:

51.1

If a sign is claimed to be missing it should be inspected as soon as practicable and, if
confirmed, arrangements made for its replacement. Where a sign is missing and the
driver would not have been aware of the restriction because of the missing sign then
the PCN should be cancelled. Consideration will be given to the position of the
vehicle in relation to other visible signs and a PCN may not be cancelled if the driver
parked near to or had driven passed a clearly visible sign.

52.0

Royal mail and universal service provider vehicles:

52.1

Vehicles being used for the collection or delivery of postal packets are exempt from
no waiting restrictions (but not no-stopping restrictions) as long as they are actively
involved in such activity. Vehicles parked for long periods with no activity observed
are subject to the same restrictions as ordinary motorists and a PCN may be issued.
Cancellation of a PCN will only be considered if written confirmation is received from
the area manager that the vehicle was actively involved in the collection / delivery of
mail.

53.0

School restrictions:

53.1

Zig-zag markings outside of schools if accompanied by a regulatory sign/plate
delineate a School Keep clear Order. They are installed for the protection of the
children and such orders specifically prohibit vehicles from stopping on the zig-zag
markings at school entrance points. The Council is committed to working with
schools to reduce accidents and in support of this School Keep Clear markings are
robustly enforced. Due to the nature of this type of parking contravention, which
generally involves a driver stopping for a short period of time to drop off or collect a
passenger, it is difficult to enforce by conventional enforcement. Therefore, this type
of restriction is predominately enforced by the use of a mobile CCTV vehicle (an
approved device). A rolling programme of enforcement around schools is in place
and co-ordinated by the Council’s Road Safety unit.

54.0

Time/date, calibration of hand held computers and pay and display machines:

54.1

Prior to commencement of each shift the CEO’s shall check the calibration of their
hand held computers to ensure that they reflect the correct time and date.

54.2

Pay and Display machines are checked daily for any visual defects. Before patrolling
a pay and display area, the CEO will check the machine to see that the clock and
display is working correctly and there are no coin jams in the coin slot. All Pay and
Display machines are remotely monitored by computer systems and many faults are
automatically reported to the Council’s machine maintenance team for logging and

Page 325

action. The computer system retains detailed information including logs of faults and
all transactions.
55.0

Unauthorised movement of a vehicle:

55.1

Movement of any vehicle by the Police is considered to be authorised.

55.2

Unless there is clear evidence that an unauthorised person has moved a vehicle
then all PCN’s should be enforced.

55.3

Claims that a vehicle was stolen and left in contravention will be considered provided
a relevant crime report number is provided.

55.4

Claims of unauthorised use by another family member or a friend will not normally
result in the PCN being cancelled unless it can be proven that the matter had been
reported to the Police at the time the vehicle was taken.

56.0

Uniforms – civil enforcement officers:

56.1

CEO’s must wear a uniform determined by the enforcement authority and in
accordance with statutory guidelines.

56.2

The uniform should show:
• the wearer is engaged in parking enforcement
• the name of the Local Authority on whose behalf the CEO is acting
• a personalised number to identify the CEO

57.0

Vandalised vehicle:

57.1

When a vehicle has been damaged or vandalised to an extent that prevents it from
being safely moved a PCN may be cancelled provided supporting evidence is
produced such as:
• A Police crime number.
• A relevant Motoring Organization / Garage Service receipt.

57.2

Failure to provide supporting evidence or the absence of a relevant CEO observation
may lead to the PCN being enforced.

58.0

Vehicles left unattended to gain access:

58.1

When a vehicle is left in contravention adjacent to an access point whilst a driver
collects a key to gain access to a property, it is expected that this should take no
longer than three minutes and will be catered for by the standard three minutes
observation period.

58.2

Vehicles should not be left for longer periods or in contravention of no stopping
orders or loading restriction. However, each case will be considered on its merits and
extenuating circumstances will be taken into account.

59.0

Vehicle not at scene:

Page 326

59.1

Where a vehicle keeper receives an NtO and claims that his/her vehicle was not
parked in the area at the time, we will seek further proof from the keeper to confirm
the identity of the registered vehicle against the details of the vehicle observed. In
particular we will request details of the tax disc serial number, as these are all
unique.

59.2

If the details match the records held by the Council then the PCN will normally be
enforced. If they do not then the PCN may be cancelled and if appropriate details
passed to the Police.

Page 327

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 328

Agenda Item 18
WIRRAL COUNCIL
CABINET
15 MARCH 2012

WARD/S AFFECTED:

BROMBOROUGH STATION FOOTBRIDGE
PARAPET REPLACEMENT – CONTRACT
VARIATION
EASTHAM, CLATTERBRIDGE

REPORT OF:

DIRECTOR OF TECHNICAL SERVICES

RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO

COUNCILLOR
DAVE
MITCHELL,
STREETSCENE & TRANSPORT SERVICES

SUBJECT:

HOLDER:
KEY DECISION?

NO

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.1 The purpose of this report is to inform Members pursuant to Contract Procedure Rule
16.1.2 that the contract to replace the parapets of Bromborough Station Footbridge
has been varied for technical reasons, to ensure the successful delivery of the
contract, which has by consequence increased the cost of the contract by more than
10%.
1.2 The works described in this report promote the Council’s Corporate Priorities by
contributing to the goal to “have a safe and well-maintained highway network for all
users”.
1.3 The Council has a statutory duty to maintain the highway network.
2.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES
2.1 Bromborough Station Footbridge is a Council-owned highway structure carrying the
southern footway of Allport Road, across the electrified Liverpool/Chester railway line,
adjacent to Bromborough Station. Replacement of the parapets on the footbridge,
using galvanised steel components in place of the sub-standard timber and glassreinforced plastic, was recommended in a report prepared by the Council’s consultant,
Capita Symonds, in April 2009. The works were subsequently included in the LTP
Highways Capital programme for 2011/12.
2.2 A tender for the works from DCT Civil Engineering Ltd in the sum of £71,991.30 was
received on 12 September 2011. The tender was recommended for acceptance by
the Council’s consultant, Atkins Ltd, who had been appointed as Project Manager.
The tender was accepted under delegated authority by The Director of Technical
Services and this was subsequently reported to the Sustainable Communities
Overview and Scrutiny Committee pursuant to Contract Procedure Rule 14.1.5 on 30
January 2012.
2.3 In order for the works to be undertaken it was necessary for the Council to reserve a
number of rail possessions with Network Rail under separate agreement, which was

Page 329

based on nationally agreed terms. The track possession dates and times were
included in the Council’s contract with DCT Civil Engineering Ltd. However, Network
Rail give no guarantee regarding the duration of possessions in their agreements,
hence any consequential delay implications are borne by the employer. During the
course of the works the actual working time allowed by Network Rail within each night
time possession averaged 4.5 hours against an indicative 6 hours. This resulted in
the contractor requiring one more possession than planned to complete the works and
thus a legitimate time-related cost and expense payment was due to the contractor.
2.4 The contract required that accurate site measurements be taken by the contractor in
order that the new parapets could be manufactured to exactly fit the existing bridge
structure. However, for technical reasons relating to the differences in the fixing
arrangements of the old and new parapets, it proved difficult to record accurate
measurements and some re-working of the new steel components was required, for
which the Project Manager agreed the contractor was entitled to be compensated.
2.5 Shortly after commencement of the site works on 24 October 2011, Merseyrail, who
manage the Station building, requested that the Project Manager instruct the
contractor to provide a temporary pedestrian crossing to substitute, at a different
location, the permanent pedestrian crossing which had needed to be closed to
facilitate the contractor’s traffic management proposals.
2.6 A number of minor works variation instructions were issued by the Project Manager,
including sealing of the bridge deck expansion joints and the application of anti-skid
treatment on the sloping section of the footbridge surface. These instructions were
issued following consideration by Council officers following various enquiries received
from local Council Members and the public, and are considered to have contributed to
a safer finished scheme.
2.7 The cumulative effect of the contract compensation events described in paragraphs
2.3 to 2.6 above is that the final payment due to DCT Civil Engineering Ltd is expected
to amount to £109,051.90, which represents an increase of £37,060.70, or
approximately 51%, on the tender sum.

3.0 RELEVANT RISKS
3.1 There are no risks arising from this report. The financial implications are discussed at
section 7 below.
4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED
4.1 The parapet replacement option selected, using 1.5m high galvanised steel parapets
fabricated off site and fitted to the bridge during rail possessions, was recommended
in a feasibility report prepared by Capita Symonds in April 2009.
4.2 Other options considered in the Capita Symonds report but rejected on cost, safety or
technical grounds included: like-for-like replacement; replacement with 1.1m high steel
parapets; replacement with reinforced concrete parapets.

Page 330

5.0 CONSULTATION
5.1 Network Rail and Merseyrail were consulted during the works design and construction
process.

6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS
6.1 There are no implications for voluntary, community or faith groups arising from this
report.
7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS
7.1 The tender sum submitted by DCT Civil Engineering Ltd and the initial contract sum
were significantly lower than the next lowest tender and the Project Manager’s
estimate for the works. An employer’s risk allowance was set aside in the budget to
cover compensation events. The final invoice from Network Rail was lower than their
initial estimate. Consequently, despite the contract cost increases reported at
paragraph 2.7 above, the overall project cost is within the budgeted allowance
provided for in the 2011/12 LTP Highways Capital Programme.
7.2 There are no IT or staffing implications arising from this report.
7.3 The Council’s highway asset has been improved as a consequence of the works.
8.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
8.1 There are no legal implications arising from this report.

9.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS
9.1 Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to equality?
No because there is no relevance to equality.
10.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS
10.1 There are no carbon or other environmental implications arising from this report.

11.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS
11.1 Planning consent was not required for the works.
11.2 As a result of the works the footbridge is now safer for use by the community.

12.0 RECOMMENDATION
12.1 That Members note the content of this report.
13.0 REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION
13.1 Contract Procedure Rule 16.1.2.

Page 331

REPORT AUTHOR:

Simon Fox
Design Consultancy Manager
telephone: (0151) 606 2334
email: simonfox@wirral.gov.uk

APPENDICES
None

REFERENCE MATERIAL
Bromborough Station Footbridge Structure No.38 Parapet replacement and Footway
Resurfacing Feasibility Report, Capita Symonds, April 2009
Wirral Council Bromborough Bridge Parapet Replacement Tender Appraisal, Ref
5101599/GJC/001, Atkins Ltd, September 2011

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting

Date

Sustainable Communities Overview & Scrutiny 30 January 2012
Committee

Page 332

Agenda Item 19
WIRRAL COUNCIL
CABINET – 15 MARCH 2012
SUBJECT:

OU SUPPORT FOR WIRRAL’S COASTAL
RESORT TOWNS

WARD/S AFFECTED:

NEW BRIGHTON

REPORT OF:

ACTING DIRECTOR OF REGENERATION,
HOUSING & PLANNING

RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO

REGENERATION AND PLANNING

HOLDER:

STRATEGY

KEY DECISION

NO

1.0

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1

Members at the Cabinet meeting on January 12, 2012 deferred a decision on
this report for further discussions with the project applicant following a
representation made to Cabinet by Councillor Glasman on behalf of the
project applicants. This report updates Members on those further discussions
held with the applicant for the grant (Wellington Rd Conservation Area
Society) in respect of their Tidal Pool proposal.

1.2

This report summarises the outcome of the discussions and seeks Members
views as to how they wish to proceed. It remains the view of Officers that the
tidal pool project cannot be implemented at this time for the reasons that were
set out in the last report. However, during the course of the further
discussions with the applicant it has been requested by them that the grant
money could be used to fund a feasibility study for the Tidal Pool project
which would enable the current issues relating to the project to be fully
investigated. The applicant has been advised that whilst funding a feasibility
study is possible from the grant funding, it does not deliver a project at this
time which will support the economic regeneration of New Brighton whereas
the Crows Nest project will deliver something now for the grant funding.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION/S

2.1

Members are requested to consider the two options presented within the
report and give their view as to which option they wish to support, in allocating
the £10,650 of resources provide by Department of Communities and Local
Government (DCLG) through its Coastal Town’s initiative.

3.0

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

3.1

At the meeting of Cabinet on 12 January 2012, Councillor Glasman tabled a
response by the Wellington Rd Conservation Area Society to the key risks
raised by Council Officers within the Cabinet report. A copy of this note is
attached at Appendix 1

Page 333

3.2

Mindful of the comments raised within this note, Members deferred a decision
until the next meeting of Cabinet, to enable Officers to discuss these matters
further with the applicant - [minute 258 refers]. Unfortunately it wasn’t possible
to bring the report to the next meeting, hence the slight delay in the report
returning to Cabinet.

3.3

The meeting with the Wellington Rd Conservation Area Society was held on
19th January and a constructive discussion took place about the Tidal Pool
project. Officers are still of the view that the Tidal Pool project involves
significant risks for the Council and cannot proceed at this time due to
financial, liability and health and safety concerns. However, it was suggested
at the meeting that a feasibility study needed to be undertaken in relation to
the project which would address in detail all of the areas of concern that had
been raised. It should not be assumed that a feasibility study will remove all of
the risks of this project, nor will it address issues such as the source for ongoing revenue funding but it will have the effect of quantifying the risks and
costs and this then may provide a basis for the project to be considered
further, either by the Council or external funders. The applicant is asking
Cabinet to consider funding this feasibility study

4.0

BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES

4.1

At the meeting of Cabinet on 14 April 2011 [minute 371 refers], Members
agreed that those projects ranked the highest by the Wallasey and New
Brighton Area Forum, be allocated a share of the £100,000 grant available to
stimulate economic regeneration in New Brighton.

4.2

This report also highlighted [paragraph 5.5 refers] Officer’s concerns at that
time regarding one proposal in particular, The Tidal Pool project and that
detailed discussions be held with the applicant, the Wellington Rd
Conservation Area Society in a bid to resolve the risks identified in
implementing the project. Members were further advised that in the event that
the risks were prohibitive then the Wallasey Sea Cadets project, Crow’s Nest
as the next highest ranked project on the list of projects should be awarded
the funds instead.

5.0

TIDAL POOL PROJECT

5.1

This Tidal Pool proposal proposes to bring back into use the tidal pool on
New Brighton beach, at the bottom of Victoria Rd as a paddling pool. This
would encompass the rebuilding of the existing walls that were damaged over
forty years ago with the £10,650 grant award earmarked exclusively for this
activity.

5.2

Officers have met with the applicant, the Wellington Rd Conservation Area
Society on a number of occasions over the last six months and offered
professional assistance in terms of the Council’s concerns regarding the
proposal. Essentially these concerns can be summarised as follows:
•

The sum applied for is insufficient to cover all costs associated with
the project as proposed;

Page 334

•
•

•

•

5.3

Following the meeting of Cabinet on 12 January, Officers have held further
detailed discussions with the applicant. The concerns previously identified by
Officers were not changed by the meeting but it was discussed that if this
project was to be considered further either by the Council or future external
funders then a detailed feasibility study would be required. This study would
need to include the following activities:
•

•

•
•

•
•

•

•

•
5.4

The specification proposed for the works is not sufficiently robust to
meet the Council’s requirements;
There is additional uncertainty about the overall cost, because the
sole estimate provided was from a contractor who is not on the
Council’s approved list;
The project would leave the Council with a significant ongoing
liability for maintaining the pool whether it operates for the whole
year or only for several months of the year;
To avoid accidents and protect the Council from legal liability, there
would be a need to have an effective inspection regime in place.
This would incur further ongoing costs.

A detailed structural inspection to determine the detailed condition
of the tidal pool perimeter wall, dividing wall and ancillary
structures;
Investigate cost and recommend as necessary requirements for
further investigative works such as core samples in order to confirm
the water retaining properties of the existing structure;
Production of an inspection report;
Produce a schedule of remedial and / or reconstruction works
required to bring the structure in to re-use, including arrangements
to allow for draining of the pool;
Costing of all elements identified in the repair schedule;
Risk assessment of all Health and Safety issues around bringing
the pool into re-use including identification of liabilities and issues
which may affect scheme progression;
Identification of all necessary licenses and permissions which
would be required to undertake the works, giving an indication of
the timescales and costs required to obtain these permissions;
Identification of the Net Present Value of future maintenance costs
over the next 100 years for the Tidal Pool using appropriate
discount rates and following HM Treasury “Green Book” principles;
Desk top analysis of potential funding sources.

To secure this feasibility study it will be necessary to produce a detailed brief.
The applicant does not have the resources to fund this or the required
expertise to undertake it. A request has been made by the applicant to the
Director of Technical Services to undertake this work related to the brief, to
help with the identification of potential consultants who could undertake this
work and to assist the applicant with analysing the tenders once they have
been submitted. These costs along with the cost of the feasibility study could
be funded from the grant sum available. Based on similar commissions
awarded by the Department of Technical Services, Officers believe that this
could be achieved at a cost of approximately £6,000.

Page 335

5.5

The Wellington Rd Conservation Area Society has expressed the aspiration
that in time they may be able to access external funding to cover the capital
costs of this project. However, at this time there are no identified sources of
funding and if any do become available they are likely to be financial
limitations and a very competitive environment in which to secure them. It is
also unlikely that external grant funding will pay for on-going revenue costs for
the project and this is likely to remain a financial challenge presented by this
project which the Council may be asked to fund.

5.6

Members will be aware that the Tidal Pool proposal proved to be the most
popular at the participatory budgeting event in New Brighton in March 2011
and there still appears to be strong community support for the proposal

6.0

CROWS NEST POJECT

6.1

The Wallasey Sea Cadets project is seeking funding for internal building
works to create an additional classroom in the current headquarters in St
James Hall, Victoria Rd, New Brighton. At the time of their application in
March 2011 a sum of £18,576 was sought. This was based on estimates
provided by a local contractor who has since gone out of business. In the
meantime however, they have now revisited the costs and been quoted
estimates of circa £16,000 - £17,000 to undertake the works.

6.2

If Members were minded to allocate the £10,650 award to the Crows Nest
project then this would leave a shortfall in funding for their project. However
the Sea Cadets propose that this shortfall will be met through their reserves
or fundraising activity during the year (typically this equates to £7,000 -£8,000
per annum). Alternatively they could look to deliver the project on a phased
basis.

7.0

RELEVANT RISKS

7.1

Council Officers identified the risks in relation to the Tidal pool project in the
previous report to Cabinet.

7.2

Following the meeting with the Wellington Rd Conservation Area Society on
19 January these risks have now been further investigated and it is the view
of Officers that they remain the same. The feasibility study will enable the
development of a specification for the works and better quantification of the
risks. This of course, will be required if the project is to be considered further.
However, the feasibility study will not guarantee the delivery of the project.

7.3

Whilst the applicant has indicated they would seek external funding from
grant sources or sponsorship for the project, it is still the case that there are
no identified funding sources for this project.

7.4

To avoid accidents and protect the Council from legal liability, there would be
a need to have an effective inspection regime in place. The applicant has
indicated that this risk could be mitigated in that a Friends Group could be
formed to take on responsibility for the weekly inspection regime. However, at
this time there is no Friends Group in place, although discussions may have

Page 336

commenced on this and it is still not clear if such an arrangement when
finalized would in fact meet the Council’s stringent health and safety
requirements.
7.5

Furthermore as the Council would have to maintain the facility in perpetuity,
Officers have undertaken a detailed examination of all lifetime (100 year)
maintenance costs. This includes a partial re-build after 10 years, penstock
valve replacement after 20 years and a complete rebuild after 40 years. Using
recognised Treasury guidelines, Officers believe that a sum of circa £350,000
would now need to be found by the Council to provide the necessary budget
to undertake maintenance and inspections over the next 100 years. No
budgetary provision currently exists for ongoing maintenance responsibilities.

7.6

To deliver the Crows Nest project, the Sea cadets will need to raise their own
funding. Whilst this is a risk for the project, previous figures of their fund
raising activity support the view that they can achieve this and that the project
can be implemented as proposed. If the fund raising takes some time then it
is possible for the project to be phased in terms of it’s implementation. This
project though would not present any on-going liabilities for the Council.

8.0

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

8.1

Mindful of the issues and risks identified in this report in relation to both
proposals, Members views are sought as to which of the following options
they believe would present the most cost effective way of allocating the
resources in question:
Option 1
That the resources be allocated to the Wellington Rd Conservation Area
Society’s Tidal Pool proposal and used as a contribution towards a feasibility
study.
Option 2
That the resources identified be offered to Wallasey Sea Cadets for their
Crows Nest proposal, on the understanding that the funding shortfall be met
from their reserves and or fundraising activities.

9.0

CONSULTATION

9.1

The Participatory Budgeting approach taken to evaluate the proposals
originally embodies community consultation, enabling neighbourhoods to play
an active role in determining the targeting of the resources in question.

9.2

Through this process there was greatest community support for the Tidal Pool
project. If Members are minded that the risks are too significant to continue
with this proposal then the money can continue to be used for the benefit of
the community in New Brighton, by awarding it to the Wallasey Sea Cadets’
Crows Nest project instead.

Page 337

10.0

IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS

10.1

Both projects referred to in the report are likely to impact on groups from the
voluntary, community and faith sector, which will be able to access the
improved facilities in New Brighton.

11.0

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS

11.1

There are no staffing implications arising from this report. The initiative as a
whole will continue to be managed by Officers from the Regeneration,
Housing and Planning Department from existing resources.

11.2

However, if Members are minded to approve the feasibility study option and
the request from the applicant for support from the Technical Services
Department (as set out in paragraph 5.4 of this report) then a consultant will
need to be engaged. The costs of the study and the consultant can be funded
from the grant funding.

11.3

Given the “one off” nature of the Coastal Town’s resources in question, it will
be made clear in the Funding Agreement with the successful applicant that
there is no further guaranteed funding available from the Council to sustain
the project beyond the grant awarded to it.

11.4

However if Members were mindful to support the Tidal Pool proposal then this
would leave the Council exposed to ongoing revenue commitments for which
budgetary provision will be required – see Section 7 above. The extent of
such commitments would need to be the subject of a separate report to
Members once the study and its finding were concluded.

12.0

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS

12.1 There are no immediate legal implications arising from this report. However if
the Council were to proceed with the Tidal Pool proposal and the amenity
formally adopted by the Council over time, then the authority could be
exposed to future claims that it would have to contest through the courts.
13.0

EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

13.1

Implementation of successful project proposals is likely to bring about equal
opportunities improvements and benefits.

13.2

An Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) was carried out in March 2010 in
respect of the Area Forum’s funding process (‘You Decide’).

14.0

CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS

14.1

There are no direct carbon reduction implications arising from this report.

15.0

PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS

15.1

There are no immediate planning and community safety implications arising
from this report. Planning consent for both of the proposals identified within

Page 338

the report may be required and will be addressed as appropriate through the
planning process.

REPORT AUTHOR:

Neil Mitchell
Project Manager
telephone: (0151 691 8423)
e-mail: neilmitchell@wirral.gov.uk

APPENDICES
There is one appendix attached to this report.
REFERENCE MATERIAL
Background papers and information used in the preparation of this report are held by
the Regeneration Team within the Department of Regeneration, Housing and
Planning.
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting
Cabinet – Support for Wirral’s Coastal Resort Towns

Date
4 November 2010

Cabinet – Support for Wirral’s Coastal Resort Towns

14 April 2011

Cabinet – Support for Wirral’s Coastal Resort Towns

12 January 2012

Page 339

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 340

Appendix 1
TIDAL PADDLING POOL NEW BRIGHTON
RESPONSE TO CABINET REPORT 12 JANUARY 2012
I’m presenting this report as Ward Councillor on behalf of residents in
New Brighton Ward.
This project proved to be the most popular of the applications put to
the public at the March 2011 New Brighton / Wallasey Area Forum. In
general, many of the public would like to see this amenity brought
back into use. It is an attractive proposition for a number of reasons:
• It is free to use
• It is family friendly – for young and old alike
• It offers opportunities to paddle/swim safely for children, model
boating and tidal pool fishing for rock-pool wildlife.
A number of reasons have been given in the Report to support the
recommendation of Officers that the £10,650 funding now be
transferred to the Sea Cadets ‘Crow’s Nest’ project. The applicant
would like to respond to these as follows:
1 Two quotes for a structural survey were obtained from experienced
coastal engineers, one of whom has contracted to work with the
Council – the applicant has approached the Council’s Coastal
Engineers to ascertain the specific requirements for this but the
information has been refused on the basis that this would be the
responsibility of the firms quoting. In addition the applicant is willing to
pay the cost of a survey, both of those obtained being substantially
less than £1000. Therefore, this would not be reducing the funding
allocation for the remedial works. By declining to give the applicant
the necessary information, the Technical Services staff have
effectively prevented the applicant from making further progress on
the scheme. The applicant is disappointed that only one meeting with
the technical staff took place.
2 The applicant has received advice from the Council’s Planning Dept
that Planning permission for repairs to the wall would not be required

Page 341

unless a Penstock Valve (to drain the pool) were to be installed. Due
to the shape in cross-section of the wall, a Penstock Valve would be
unsuitable for this task. However, an alternative much cheaper valve
through the wall would be equally effective and achieve the same
result.
3 Design Management fees would not be required if the work was
carried out within 30 days of commencement and less than 5 men
were to be employed on the task.
4 The MMO Licence would cost £450 for the scheme at this value.
5 Therefore the applicant believes the £3000 figure to cover the
above to be over – stated.
6 While details are not yet available, HM Treasury has announced a
significant sum of money to fund a Coastal Communities Fund which
the applicant could apply for and is in the process of identifying other
sources of funding.
7 The Health and Safety issues associated with this project are
similar to the hazards any member of the public may experience
when walking / paddling on the beach. In 2004, Timothy Walker the
HSE’s Director General said: “HSE has no wish to curtail the use of
tidal pools….(which) offer great benefit to coastal communities by
providing a good alternative to swimming in the open sea”.
In 2006, Bill Callaghan the Chair of the Health and Safety
Commission (HSC) accused public servants of pedantry saying, “If
you’re using Health and Safety to stop everyday activities get a life
and let others get on with theirs”.
Blue Book guidelines no longer apply to pools/lakes/rivers where
‘operators’ do not actively ‘encourage’ swimming. (See www. Riverswimming.co.uk/hse.htm for case law on the meaning of encourage).
8 The Report quotes a figure of £9000 pa to maintain the facility with
daily inspections with a total 100 year figure of £350,000 for
maintenance and inspections.
The applicants have suggested that the pool only be operational
during the summer months, June, July and August thus reducing this
figure to less than £3000 pa. With the assistance of a ‘Friends’ Group

Page 342

– there is already support from volunteers for this – this figure could
be further reduced. The £350,000 figure includes 20 year
replacement of Penstock Valves, which as previously stated above
are unsuitable because of the profile of the wall and a cheaper,
equally effective alternative is available.
The applicants suggest £350,000 is a grossly over-stated figure for
maintenance and query why 100 years is the time scale chosen to
illustrate the issue. While acknowledging there is uncertainty about
the future costs of the whole of the Tidal Pool, the applicant believes
there are good prospects of sourcing funding for this project in the
future. The applicant understands the need for an effective inspection
regime and overall responsibility for maintenance would fall to the
Council but believes there is enough good will within the Community
to support the scheme and wants to secure the money for the
seaside regeneration of New Brighton.
Before making its decision, Cabinet may wish to consider this
£10,650 is Central Government funding and that the money was
allocated by Public Participatory vote.
As a Party, Labour has traditionally represented the less well-off in
Society and at a time of economic difficulty, the tidal paddling pool
represents a free recreational resource for the people of Wirral and
beyond.
If finally, Cabinet does decide to reallocate the grant money to Sea
Cadets, the applicants would be grateful for Officer assistance to
identify and make application for alternative sources of funding and
technical information to put together an application for funds to cover
the regeneration of the pool to Council specifications.

Page 343

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 344

Agenda Item 20
WIRRAL COUNCIL
CABINET 15 MARCH 2012
SUBJECT:

PORTAS PILOTS BID FUNDING

WARD/S AFFECTED:

ALL

REPORT OF:

ACTING DIRECTOR OF REGENERATION,
HOUSING AND PLANNING

RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO

REGENERATION AND PLANNING

HOLDER:

STRATEGY

KEY DECISION?

YES

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.1 In 2011 Mary Portas was commissioned by Government to undertake an independent
review of high streets. In December 2011 - The Portas Review was published with a
number of recommendations, one of which was to create a series of Town Teams for
retail areas.
1.2 On 4th February 2012 Government announced ‘Portas Pilots - Prospectus: an
invitation to become a Town Team’ to co-ordinate innovative approaches to the issues
raised in the Portas Review. The Government is inviting bids into a £1 million fund, to
become a Town Team, from all areas of the country. The Government will select
twelve pilots with up to £100,000 funding available for each.
1.3 The bids must be submitted in a partnership approach between retailers, landlords,
local community, Local Authority and partners. The Local Authority must agree to be
the accountable body for the fund and also submit a statement that the project will
secure value for money for tax payers.
1.4 The Council has received a number of draft bids from local groups. A summary of the
draft bids is included in the report (Section 2).
1.5 Cabinet is asked to agree the principle of the Local Authority acting as the
Accountable Body for any funding which may be granted, if any of the bids are
successful, for up to £100,000 per bid.
1.6 Cabinet is asked to agree that due to the very tight timescale for the bids; that the
Acting Director of Regeneration, Housing and Planning in consultation with the Leader
of the Council/ Portfolio Holder, be authorised to finalise the statements on securing
value for money for taxpayers in the use of the grant to accompany final bids for
submission to Government on 30th March 2012. This is to allow the groups as much
time as possible to finalise their bids (including producing a video), within the
framework of their draft bids outlined below, before submission to Government.
1.7 That the Cabinet agree that should any further bids be submitted to the Council prior
to 30th March deadline, the Acting Director of Regeneration, Housing and Planning, in
consultation with the Cabinet Portfolio holder/Leader, be authorised to finalise any

Page 345

additional statements on securing value for money for taxpayers in the use of the
grant.
2.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES
2.1 As part of the Government’s initiative to save our high streets, Mary Portas was
commissioned to undertake a review of our high streets in 2011. In December 2011
Mary Portas published ‘The Portas Review - an independent review into the future of
our high streets’. This set out 28 recommendations for overhauling our high streets,
one of which was to create “Town Teams”, described as a “visionary, strategic and
strong operational management team for high streets”.
2.2 On 4th February 2012 Government announced the ‘Portas Pilots – Prospectus: an
invitation to become a Town Team’ which is inviting bids from groups across the
Country to become a Town Team. These must be submitted to Government by 30th
March 2012. The Government will support twelve pilots across the Country with up to
£100,000 available for each, dependant on the amount sought and Government’s
assessment of the bid.
2.3 The bids are to be submitted in a ‘Town Team’ approach with retailers, traders,
landlords, the local authority, local community and other partners working together.
Applications will only be considered from either local partnerships or a consortium with
a single lead bidder. The prospectus states that the Local Authority (i.e. Wirral
Council) will need to be the accountable body for the funding (which will be paid
through s31 unringfenced revenue grant) and any application must be accompanied
by a letter confirming that the Local Authority has agreed to be the Accountable Body,
along with a statement from the Council on securing value for money for tax payers in
the use of the grant.
2.4 The prospectus states that a selection of pilots will be chosen by Government based
on the following criteria:
•

•

•

•

Mix – a selection which is representative from high streets, town centres, small
parades, market towns, villages, larger towns, coastal towns and suburban areas.
Also a good geographical spread of areas, as well as areas with both high and low
average incomes and high and low shop vacancy rates.
Strong Leadership – pilot areas with a transformational vision for their high streets
and the backing to make it into a reality. The lead partner should be able to clearly
articulate this vision.
Commitment – maximum commitment to the Town Team approach amongst
retailers, landlords, the local authority and local community. This could be shown
through businesses match funding investment or a high proportion of landlords and
businesses becoming part of the town team.
Potential for improvement – resources will be allocated on a value for money basis.
The area must be able to demonstrate potential for improvement. Bids must provide
current vacancy rates in the high street and any other information which can
demonstrate need and potential.
The pilots will be selected to achieve sufficient diversity to understand the
effectiveness of the town team approach, although bids to not have to be restricted to
testing proposals in the Portas review.

Page 346

2.5 Bids have to be submitted on the supplied application form and be accompanied by a
short video submission setting out why their pilot should be chosen. The application
form requires that it is clear:
• Who will lead the pilot
• Which local authority will be the Accountable Body (confirmation letter from the local
authority and an accompanying statement on securing value for money for tax
payers in use of the grant)
• How the partnership proposes to use the grant
• An outline of the key priorities for the pilot
• How the pilot meets the criteria, demonstrates its suitability for funding and meets
the need for additional impact
• How the pilot will deliver transparency in the use of grant.
2.6 Officers have already been working with known local trader groups as part of the ongoing work on the Action Plans following the Town, District and Local Centre study
and delivery framework (Cabinet 21st July 2011, minute 75 refers). Officers circulated
the Portas Prospectus to all local Members, existing trader groups of which officers
are aware, and other relevant organisations, as well as using the Invest Wirral
Business network. The information was also advertised on the Council’s website and
via social media.
2.7 The Council has received details of five potential draft bids from:
•
•
•
•
•

Liscard
New Ferry
Hoylake
New Brighton
Moreton

2.8 The Council has been supporting organisations to develop their bids and encourage
them to work together in line with the Town Team approach. A summary of the five
potential bids developed to date is set out below:
2.9 Hoylake Village Life Community Interest Company – Bidding for up to £100,000.
The Town Team are looking to continue to generate new ideas and innovation with the
local community. A wide range of partners and organisations have shown support for
the Town Team approach such as traders, communities groups and organisations.
2.10 The vision for Hoylake is to create high street which will be vibrant and thriving with a
mix of uses and businesses alike, which will attract new business to grow and expand
with independent, individual retailers which attract a wide range of the community to
be involved. Also to celebrate the heritage and history of the area and the existing
cultural and art offer. The innovative approaches for the bid will include things such as
community forums, developing a volunteer network, marketing Hoylake, providing
business support, building on the neighbourhood plan status for the vision for the
area, exploring opportunities for youth initiatives, family facilities, markets, shop front
improvements etc.

Page 347

2.11 New Ferry Regeneration Action Group (NFRAG) – Bidding for up to £100,000. The
Town Team approach has a wide range of partner support for the approach going
forward including the farmers market, traders and community groups.
2.12 The vision for New Ferry is to build on the pride and heart of the centre, to create a
sustainable future, at the hub of the community. New Ferry Town Team wants to build
on the existing innovative ideas in the centre such as the successful farmers’ market
and use a partnership approach to make it easier to do business on the high street
and nurture start-up businesses. Potential to pilot Retail Business Incubator space,
utilising empty properties, with a champion for the centre to provide assistance and
expertise. They also wish to look at skill and training opportunities to link to this
approach.
2.13 Moreton Cross Town Team (Leasowe Development Trust) – Bidding for up to
£100,000. The approach has support from a number of partners including community
groups, RSL’s and Community Trusts.
2.14 The vision and approach for Moreton is to use innovative technology and software to
establish and support a local traders association. The strategy will create a unique
approach between traders and residents, the idea being that it creates a social
cohesion between the communities and traders by using an innovative way to earn
and learn. The software provided an on-line village where members can present and
find offers of good, service skills, courses, projects and media productions. As they do
this their choices are rewarded in an alternative ‘debt free’ currency called ‘L’ for
Local, Loyalty, Life long learning, Leisure and Liquidity. The ‘L’ is used alongside the
£ sterling as discounts to attract customers into the shops that accept it in the town.
To generate their currency residents use this system to exchange skills and talents in
their own communities.
2.15 New Brighton Community Partnership – bidding for up to £100,000. The Town
Team has a range of partners and organisations who support the approach of the
team including trader groups, communities and other organisations.
2.16 The Vision for Victoria Road is part of the overall strategy for the regeneration of New
Brighton. The aspiration for the road is to become a hub activity with an emphasis on
leisure and entertainment. Potential opportunities to look at a ‘Town Square’ concept
which could be used for a variety of public uses and would provide a focal point for
visitors and families. Also the opportunity to look at reactivating Victoria Parade as a
creative quarter with sporting activities, public events etc. All of these innovative
approaches will be used to create a sense of place, ownership, pride and identity to
the centre. These will be driven by the Town Team to create the right environment
and business creation for the centre through some capital works and collaborative
partnership working.
2.17 Liscard Town Team – up to £100,000. The Town Team is drawn from the Central
Liscard Area Residents’ Association (which is developing a Neighbourhood Plan for
Liscard under the Government’s Front Runner pilot project) and Liscard Traders,
which includes the major commercial landlord, the operator of the Cherry Tree Centre.
The proposal therefore co-ordinates action within and around Liscard’s main shopping
area. A series of innovative approaches to revitalising the retail area are proposed,

Page 348

bringing in new uses but reflecting the need to protect the amenities of residents in the
area immediately around the centre.
2.18 Members will be aware that Cabinet (21st February 2012, minute 317 refers) agreed to
a budget element of £500,000 in 2012/13 towards work with local Trader groups to
revitalise Wirral’s shopping areas. Bids for this Council funding will work alongside
and be complementary to any Portas Pilot bids that might be successful.
3.0 RELEVANT RISKS
3.1 The principal risk for the pilot proposals is that the bids for the ‘Portas Pilots’ Town
Teams funding is rejected by Government, due to over-subscription or that the pilots
submitted are not seen by Government as fulfilling their criteria.
3.2 The Council’s financial liability should be restricted at this stage to the potential
£100,000 per pilot which will only be payable to the Council from Government if the
pilot proposals are approved by Government. If the pilots are not taken forward by
Government than there is no liability on the Council for the funding.
4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED
4.1 No other options have been considered, as this report sets out a response to
proposals that have been called for by Government and responded to by local
organisations, as called for in its Portas Pilots – Prospectus: an invitation to become a
Town Team’.

5.0 CONSULTATION
5.1 If Members wish to support the submission of the six bids for the ‘Portas Pilots’ to
Government, officers will work with the groups to develop their proposals. This will
include facilitating consultation with local people and organisations. Appropriate
targeted support will be provided as appropriate to ensure engagement with the widest
possible number of local residents through the existing communication mechanisms.

6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS
6.1 The development of the pilot proposals if successful, may require additional skills and
expertise that may be lacking in some organisations. Whilst some organisations may
have the necessary skills and experience some may need support and may not have
the resources to ‘buy in’ those skills.

7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS
7.1 In accordance with the criteria set out in the Portas Pilots, the Local Authority must
agree to be the Accountable Body for the funding for the bids. Funding for successful
bids will be paid through s31 unringfenced revenue grant. The Local Authority must
also provide an accompanying statement on securing value for money for the
taxpayers in the use of the grant. The Local Authority must prepare and submit a
letter and accompanying statement which will be submitted to Government with each
bid going forward.

Page 349

7.2 As the Council is to be the accountable body for this project, consideration will need to
be given to the staffing implications of managing the pilot proposals so as to ensure
that the Council’s procedures for effective financial management are complied with.
7.3 At this stage there are no IT or asset management implications. If submissions
propose individual projects with additional implications, these will be reported to
Members as appropriate.

8.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
8.1 The Council will be the accountable body for the funding and will have to submit a
supporting letter on how the pilot project submission secures value for money for the
tax payer. Advice from The Department of Communities and Local Government
states that the Council will have to accept and allocate the funding in line with local
accounting practices.
8.2 A funding agreement will have to be entered into by the Council with each successful
Portas Pilot project, setting out that the project funding will be managed in accordance
with the Council’s procurement and accounting practices.

9.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS
9.1 Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to equality?
(a) Yes and impact review is attached – (insert appropriate hyperlink).

http://www.wirral.gov.uk/my-services/community-and-living/equality-diversitycohesion/equality-impact-assessments/eias-2010-0

10.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS
10.1 The Town Team plans must be in conformity with national policy in terms of
sustainable development.

11.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS
11.1 The proposals for Town Team bids may involve the need for planning applications for
change of use to any buildings which are proposed to be used, dependant on the use
classification.

12.0 RECOMMENDATIONS
12.1 (1) That Cabinet endorses the submission of the five ‘Portas Pilot’ bids to the
Department of Communities and Local Government to Government on 30th March
2012.

Page 350

(2) That Cabinet agree to the Acting Director of Regeneration, Housing and Planning,
in consultation with the Cabinet Portfolio holder to have delegated authority to agree
the submission of the final bids to Government, within the framework of the draft bids
summarised in this report (section 2).
(3) That Cabinet agrees that the Local Authority will be the Accountable Body for the
funding of up to £100,000 for each bid, if successful and the money be allocated in
line with the Council’s accounting policies.
(4) That Cabinet agrees to the Acting Director of Regeneration, Housing and Planning,
in consultation with the Cabinet Portfolio holder preparing a statement for submission
to CLG which states that the Council will secure value for money for the tax payer in
the use of the grant.
(5) That the Cabinet agree that should any further bids be submitted to the Council
prior to 30th March deadline, the Acting Director of Regeneration, Housing and
Planning, in consultation with the Cabinet Portfolio holder/Leader, be authorised to
finalise any additional statements on securing value for money for taxpayers in the use
of the grant.
13.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS
13.1 (1) To allow the 5 bids from the various organisations set out in Section 2.0 of this
report to be submitted to the Department of Communities and Local Government.
(2) That a very tight timescale has been put in place for the draft bids to be prepared
in order for officers to report the details of this initiative to Cabinet. Allowing delegated
authority to the Acting Director of Regeneration, Housing and Planning will allow Town
Teams to continue working on the details of their bids, inline with the framework
submitted with their draft bids.
(3) The ‘Portas Pilot’ stipulates that the Local Authority must be the accountable body
for any bids submitted to the Department of Communities and Local Government.
(4) To allow the appropriate supporting statement to be submitted with the bids in
order for the submission to meet the criteria set out in the ‘Portas Pilot Prospectus’.
(5) To allow any additional bids brought to the Council’s attention after this Cabinet, to
be considered by CLG in line with the timescale set out in the Portas Pilots.
REPORT AUTHOR:

Hayley Crook
Investment Strategy
telephone: (0151) 691 8297
email: hayleycrook@wirral.gov.uk

APPENDICES
None
REFERENCE MATERIAL

Page 351

Portas Pilots: Prospectus - an invitation to become a Town Team
http://www.communities.gov.uk/publications/regeneration/portaspilotsprospectus

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting

Date

Page 352

Agenda Item 21
WIRRAL COUNCIL
CABINET
15 MARCH 2012
SUBJECT:

HCA FUNDING FOR HOUSED SCHEME
2012-2013

WARD/S AFFECTED:

BIRKENHEAD & TRANMERE
BIDSTON & ST JAMES
LISCARD

REPORT OF:

KEVIN ADDERLEY
HOUSING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY

RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO
HOLDER:
KEY DECISION?

NO

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.1 This report advises Members that the Council has been successful in attracting
Homes and Communities Agency funding to enable 10 long-term empty properties in
the Borough to be brought back into use as much needed affordable housing and sold
through the Councils HOUSED Programme. The Funding will be matched by £60,000
New Homes Bonus funding agreed by Cabinet in July 2011.
1.2 Members are also asked to approve the allocation of up to £380,000 funding from the
former HMRI programme which members have previously agreed (Cabinet Report on
Housing Market Renewal End of Year Report 13th October 2011) to use for Wallasey
based Housing Market Renewal (HMR) projects. This funding will specifically refurbish
and bring back into use properties at 85-89 King Street. These are 3 long term empty
properties which are currently causing blight in the neighbourhood. The targeted use
of the Wallasey funding to 85-89 King Street would provide upon change of use 9
units of accommodation to help meet housing need in the area.
2.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES
2.1 The properties were originally acquired as strategic acquisitions in connection with the
former Housing Market Renewal Initiative (HMRI). All were vacant at the time of
purchase and located within or close to ongoing HMRI regeneration initiatives.
Acquiring these long term vacant properties allowed the Council to have control over
the future of these housing units, ensuring that any intervention supported the
regeneration activities in the area. Following the premature end to the HMRI these
properties have remained vacant and in Council ownership.
2.2 The HOUSED Scheme involves the Council purchasing, improving and selling empty
properties to eligible owner occupiers and first time buyers, as affordable and decent
homes. Properties are improved to a high standard and sold at a 10% discount off the
market value; to support people in accessing home ownership through offering

Page 353

affordable homes. Since 2007 the HOUSED Scheme has acquired and refurbished
13 long term vacant properties in some of the most depressed housing markets in the
Borough. This latest phase of the Scheme will deliver 10 refurbished properties some
of which lie within the Neighbourhood Facelift Scheme in Craven & Paterson Street in
Birkenhead; therefore further protecting and supporting the investment already
provided in this neighbourhood through the Council’s Housing Regeneration
Programme.
2.3

Any opportunities to provide added value to this scheme will be explored and applied
if appropriate; specifically around employment, training and apprenticeships. As the
Council’s Build Wirral Scheme was originally set up for large construction projects (1
million plus) it is not suitable for this HOUSED tender however the main principles may
be applied to smaller projects if appropriate. Consideration will be given to work
experience opportunities, apprentices/trainee positions whilst on site or facilitate job
vacancies being sourced through local unemployed people for the duration of the
scheme. This would contribute to a number of Corporate priorities for the Council and
could contribute to an increased supply resulting in future New Homes Bonus income
awards for the Council

2.4 Seven of the 10 HOUSED properties are pre 1919 1&2 bed, brick built terraced stock
some of which are in the Craven/Paterson St Neighbourhood Group Repair Scheme in
Central Birkenhead and the rest in North Birkenhead. The remaining three units are 3
storey mixed use properties forming part of a pre 1919 terraced block located in a
prominent position on an arterial route in King Street, Wallasey. If the change of use
for the units are approved this will enable 9 units of accommodation to be delivered to
meet local housing needs.
3.0 RELEVANT RISKS
3.1 Failure to refurbish these properties would present a high risk that the Council would
have difficulty disposing of them in their current condition at a value sufficient to meet
the HCA HMR Transition Funding Requirements which demands a capital receipt of
almost £500,000 for all 10 properties. It has been previously agreed by Cabinet on
21st July 2011 that this capital receipt will contribute towards completing outstanding
acquisitions from the HMRI Programme to assist the remaining residents in areas
subject to significant acquisition and clearance.
3.2 There is also a small risk associated with the sale of fully refurbished properties if the
housing market declines further and the receipts are likely to fall below expectations.
The properties will be re-valued on completion of the work and a view taken on the
timing of the properties sales in order to secure a maximum return to the Council, but
with a view to ensuring that the properties are re-occupied as soon as possible.
4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED
4.1 The option of selling these properties on the open market in their current condition
was considered, but due to their poor condition, and the need to generate a capital
receipt from the sale of the properties of around £0.5m to match fund the HCA’s
Transition Funding announced in November 2011, this option was not considered
viable. It was predicted that the Council would get a poor return in the current
financial climate, or could fail to attract any interest at all.

Page 354

5.0 CONSULTATION
5.1 Consultation has taken place with both the Homes and Communities Agency and
Communities for Local Government over HMR Transition and the Affordable Homes
Programme Framework. There is expectation from both Government agencies that
New Homes Bonus will be utilised to support the transition in HMR areas and support
the delivery of new supply, including tackling empty properties and delivering
affordable homes.
6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS
6.1 The proposals for the HOUSED Programme will potentially offer opportunities for work
to be undertaken by both voluntary and charitable status organisations.
7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS
7.1 The total funding for the project will be £218,000 from the HCA, £60,000 New Homes
Bonus and £380,000 carried forward from the HMR Programme.
7.2 The proposals outlined in Section 4 of this report will compliment the investment which
has already been undertaken as part of the Housing Market Renewal Programme and
will enable some schemes to be completed. The sale of the seven properties under
the HOUSED Programme will result in approximately a £0.5m capital receipt which it
is intended will be recycled and used to support future clearance and redevelopment
activity.
7.3 The proposals identified in this report will be carried out utilising existing staff that
have the experience to successfully deliver these programmes.
8.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
8.1 There are no legal implications arising from this report with the exception of
conveyancing service required to sell the properties to first time buyers.
9.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS
9.1 Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to equality?
9.2 No because of another reason.
9.3 This report supports the re-occupation of empty properties and the regenerating areas
of low demand and supporting the site assembly for affordable homes which are key
elements to be addressed as part of the Housing Strategy Statement 2011-2026 and
an Equality Impact Assessment has been completed in respect of this Strategy.
10.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS
10.1 The proposals outlined within this report look to improve standards within empty
properties and tackle poor quality housing and enable new housing supply to be
delivered. Properties will be refurbished to a standard that will improve the energy
rating of properties and reduce carbon usage.

Page 355

11.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS
11.1 The National advice in Planning Policy Statement 3 is that in determining planning
applications, Local Planning Authorities should have regard to ensuring developments
achieve a good mix of housing reflecting the accommodation requirements of specific
groups, in particular families and older people and the need to ensure that the
proposed development is in line with planning for housing objectives, reflecting the
need and demand for housing in, and the spatial vision for, the area and does not
undermine wider policy objectives e.g. addressing housing market renewal issues.
Although the adopted Strategic Housing Market Assessment identifies a significant
need for new market and affordable housing, it is clear that the recent severe
deterioration in the housing market has reduced the effective need for new house
building, particularly of smaller units, which are making a major contribution to the
increasing number of long-term vacant properties. Monitoring of the use of this supply
and the impact on existing residents (particularly those vulnerable to homelessness)
will be needed to ensure that the most effective use is made of the housing stock.
11.2 The reuse of empty dwellings reduces the need for new build development, making
more effective use of the Borough’s existing stock and assists in achieving national
objectives for the reuse of previously developed land and buildings. The Council has
a requirement that 80% of new house building should be on previously developed land
(Policy L4 of the North West of England Plan, Regional Spatial Strategy to 2021) and
a requirement to reduce vacancy rates to 3% (Policy L3). Nationally, the Homes and
Communities Agency is promoting a series of initiatives to offer support to existing
homeowners and encourage the re-use of existing dwellings, thus making more
effective use of the existing housing stock and protecting the most vulnerable
homeowners.
11.3 Planning permission will be required in relation to the proposed change of use of the
King Street Units.
11.4 The successful delivery of the HOUSED Scheme and wider Empty Property Strategy
will assist in bringing vacant dwellings back into use thus gradually improving
neighbourhood amenity and management of living accommodation, thus playing a
significant part in improving standards across various housing sectors including the
improvement of security and safety and better management of behaviour in and
around such properties

12.0 RECOMMENDATION/S
12.1 That members note the award of £218,000 from the HCA and agree to match this
funding with up to £380,000 carried over from HMR which together with £60,000
already approved from New Homes Bonus, will make a total scheme pot of £658,000
to deliver up to 16 units of accommodation.
13.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S
13.1 This funding will refurbish 10 long term empty properties that were acquired with HMR
Funding, but unfortunately have remained empty and untouched (except for some
external group repair improvements to the Craven/Paterson properties) as HMR
funding was withdrawn in March 2011. The initiative will provide much needed
affordable homes, support the local housing market, help to provide employment and

Page 356

training opportunities to local people as well as improving the attractiveness of the
local environment and eliminating all of the problems associated with long term empty
properties such as visual blight and anti-social behaviour. As well as protecting the
investment already made in the Craven/Paterson Street Facelift Scheme.

REPORT AUTHOR:

(Emma Foley)
(Private Sector Housing Manager)
telephone: (0151 691 8155)
email: emmafoley@wirral.gov.uk

APPENDICES
None
REFERENCE MATERIAL
New Homes Bonus Allocation Letter from Communities and Local Government

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting

Date

Cabinet – New Homes Bonus Allocation 2011/12

21st July 201113th

Cabinet

–

Wirral’s

Housing

market

Renewal October 2011

Programme End of Year Report and Housing
Investment Programme 2011/12

Page 357

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 358

Agenda Item 22
WIRRAL COUNCIL
CABINET
15TH MARCH 2012
SUBJECT:

VIREMENT

FROM

REGENERATION

HOUSING AND PLANNING BUDGET TO
ADULT SOCIAL SERVICES
WARD/S AFFECTED:

BOROUGH WIDE

REPORT OF:

KEVIN ADDERLEY
ACTING DIRECTOR OF REGENERATION,
HOUSING AND PLANNING

RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO

HOUSING

HOLDER:
KEY DECISION

YES

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.1 This report seeks Cabinet approval to request council to make a virement from the
Regeneration , Housing and Planning budget to the Department of Adult Social
Services for supported living services in Birkenhead, West Wirral and Wallasey, for
the period July 2011 to March 2012. The full details of the value of the virement are
listed in the appendix.
1.2 It is also recommended that a further report will be provided to Cabinet regarding the
options for delivering housing related support and ongoing funding arrangements for
learning disabled clients jointly funded by Adult Social Services and Regeneration
Housing and Planning.

2.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES
2.1 Supporting People funding is a key resource for ensuring that people with housing
support needs are appropriately supported to maintain their tenancies and to achieve
high levels of independence. There is some overlap with DASS in relation to the
support of vulnerable people who hold a tenancy, and also have social care support
needs. Whilst Supporting People is not a statutory duty, investment in preventative
services supporting independence delivers cost benefits to the Council and to other
statutory services
2.2 Supporting People funding was previously ring-fenced and the criteria for its use was
clearly laid out by the Office of the Deputy Prime Minister, as was the structure for
Commissioning and contracting for Supporting People. The ring fence has now been
lifted, however the Council must ensure that vulnerable people with housing support
needs continue to be able to access appropriate support.

Page 359

2.3 An issue has emerged in relation to services that were subject to a Service Level
Agreement between Adult Social Services and Regeneration, Housing and Planning.
Adult Social Services outsourced these services bringing the previous Service Level
Agreement for in house services to an end. Regeneration, Housing and Planning
were advised that the cost and function of the outsourced services would not include
Supporting People funding, however this now appears to be incorrect. Providers have
continued to provide housing related support to individuals. It is proposed that the
Council should honour the value of the original Service Level Agreement in order to
meet its financial obligations on behalf of the individuals supported. Contract review
will ensure that from April 2012 appropriate contracts will be in place and agreed
directly with the providers in respect of the individuals affected.
2.4 A virement from Regeneration, Housing and Planning to Department of Adult Social
Services in order to make the appropriate payment would be in the interests of the
Council as a whole, whilst continuing to protect vulnerable individuals, with learning
disabilities, within the services.
2.5 On 9th December 2010 Adult Social Services reported to Cabinet (report entitled:
Transformation of Adults Social Services Contracts for Personal Support services) the
intention to tender for the provision of Personal care services, including those
delivered in-house by the Department.
2.6 The Acting Director of Regeneration, Housing and Planning was informed that
Supporting People funding would not form part of the tender as no agreement had
been reached regarding the use of this funding stream in personal budgets. The
Supporting People team had not been involved in the decision to outsource nor in the
development of the service specification (that was tendered on the 15th January 2011)
and subsequently, had not been involved in the selection process.
2.7 A series of meetings were held with Adult Social Services between April and
September 2011, however, it was agreed that Supporting People would enter into
contracts with providers once Adult Social Services had concluded reviews of jointly
funded Learning Disabilities service users (as reported to Cabinet on the 14th April
2011 &13th October 2011).
2.8 Following Cabinet approval Adult Social Services invited expressions of interest from
a select list of Accredited Providers. Adult Social Services supported service users to
enter into contracts with the selected supported living providers, effective from July
2011 and for one service, from 1st September 2011. Unfortunately, contrary to agreed
understanding, Adult Social Services included Housing Support resources in people’s
personal budgets; in effect Supporting People hours and funding were included.
Whilst there is no additional cost to the Council, this was against previous advice.
2.9 The advice of the Director of Law, HR and Asset Management, is that the most
appropriate action to take at this time would be for the acting Director of Regeneration,
Housing and Planning to honour the position as agreed by Adult Social Services on
behalf of the Council. It is proposed therefore that the Director of Finance is
authorised to undertake a virement from the Department of Regeneration, Housing
and Planning to Adult Social Services. This virement would transfer funding equivalent
to the value of the Service Level Agreement for housing related support delivered to

Page 360

the clients from the date of the outsourcing (being 1st July 2011) to such time as
Supporting People contracts can be entered in to with the providers.
2.10 In order to ensure effective use of the council’s resources and continuous delivery of
services to vulnerable clients, it has become necessary for Supporting People to
consider the issuing of contracts to new providers without having had the opportunity
to conduct a tendering exercise and select the provider. However, the providers have
been selected from the Adult Social Services approved accredited provider list and
were chosen by the service users.
2.11 The contract volume and values will be based on Adult Social Services re-assessment
of need of the individuals. It is anticipated that the value of the contracts will be less
than the Supporting People contribution toward the services previously funded through
the Service Level Agreement with Adult Social Services.
2.12 Having identified that there was an issue officers from Regeneration, Housing and
Planning and Adult Social Services are now working closely in partnership and have
commenced dialogue with the providers to ensure that contracts can be mutually
agreed and that there is no disruption or impact to service delivery for the clients.
2.13 The position regarding the current Support People negotiations for all learning
disabilities services (funded either solely or jointly) will be the subject of a further
report to members. A number of new contracts will be issued but it is anticipated that
further contract extensions will be required for services in order to allow for all clients
assessments to be completed by Adult Social Care.
3.0 RELEVANT RISKS
3.1 Individuals with learning disabilities could possibly be sued for breach of contract if
funding is not paid in full to providers of support/care services.
3.2 Further financial pressures being placed on Adult Social Services budget.
3.3 Close working relationships must be maintained in order to achieve greater alignment
and to ensure that separate contracting mechanisms do not lead to further poor
communication in the future.
4.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED
4.1 No other viable options are available.
5.0 CONSULTATION
5.1 The consultation process leading to the decision to outsource services was detailed in
the Cabinet report of 9th December 2010.
6.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS
6.1 One of the providers awarded an agreement for the delivery of supported living
services is a Wirral based voluntary organisation. This organisation is reliant on
appropriate funding for the service delivery in order to remain financially viable.

Page 361

7.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS
7.1 The virement of £632,928 as detailed in the Appendix to this report will be met within
existing Council resources.
8.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
8.1 Contract obligations must be met in order to ensure that vulnerable people are not in
breach of contract.
9.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS
9.1 Has the potential impact of your proposal(s) been reviewed with regard to equality?
(c) No because of another reason which is
No because there will be no direct change to the clients in the service as a result of
the virement which is the subject of this report.
10.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS
10.1 There are no Carbon reduction implications arising from this report.
11.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS
11.1 There are no Planning or Community Safety implications arising from this report.
12.0 RECOMMENDATION/S
12.1 That Cabinet approves referral to Council for a virement of budget from Regeneration,
Housing and Planning to Adult Social Services.
12.2 That Cabinet endorses the recommendation of the Acting Director of Regeneration,
Housing and Planning to conduct a review into options for delivering housing related
support and ongoing funding arrangements for services for clients with learning
disabilities
13.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION/S
13.1 The virement will be in the interests of the Council as a whole (for the reasons set out
in the report).
13.2 This action will ensure that the Council continues to protect vulnerable individuals, with
learning disabilities, within their accommodation and funds and preserves their agreed
packages of care and support at their assessed level.
REPORT AUTHOR:

Sheila Jacobs
Principal Manager, Supported & Special Needs Housing
Section
telephone: (0151) 691 8345
email: sheilajacobs@wirral.gov.uk

Page 362

APPENDIX
Details of Service Areas and proposed virement
REFERENCE MATERIAL
Report of the Interim Director of Adult Social Services: Transformation of Adult Social
Services Contracts for personal support, 9th December 2010
Report of Interim Director of Corporate Services: Supporting People Contracts, 14th April
2011
Report of Interim Director of Corporate Services: Supporting People Contracts, 13th
October 2011
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting

Date

Cabinet

9th December 2010
14th April 2011
13th October 2011

Page 363

APPENDIX
Details of Service Areas and proposed virement

Service Area
West Wirral
Birkenhead Area
Wallasey Area
Livingstone Gardens

Period of Virement

Number of
Months
March 9 Months

1st July 2011 – 31st
2012
1st July 2011 – 31st March 9 Months
2012
1st September 2011 – 31st 7 Months
March 2012
1st July 2011 – 31st March 9 Months
2012
Total value of proposed virement

Page 364

Value
£142,857
£199,528
£142,239
£148,304
£632,928

Agenda Item 23
WIRRAL COUNCIL
CABINET
15 MARCH 2012
SUBJECT:

VOLUNTARY SECTOR CONTRACTS:
VOLUNTARY COMMUNITY FAITH SECTOR
SUPPORT AND GENERAL ADVICE SERVICE

WARD/S AFFECTED:

ALL

REPORT OF:

CHIEF EXECUTIVE

RESPONSIBLE PORTFOLIO

COUNCILLOR IAN LEWIS

HOLDER:
KEY DECISION?

YES

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.1 This report seeks Cabinet approval to award two contracts: Voluntary, Community and
Faith Sector Support and General Advice Service. This follows a full tender process
conducted in accordance with European Procurement Legislation. It is proposed that
the contracts are awarded to the most economically advantageous tender
1.2 Tender details are provided in the Appendices to this paper which are not for
publication by virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local
Government Act 1972.
2.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES
2.1 Following a review of Voluntary Sector Contracts commissioned by the
Communications and Community Engagement section the decision was taken to
tender the contracts for the Voluntary Community Faith Sector Support Service and
General Advice Service. Voluntary, Community and Faith (VCF) Sector Support is
currently delivered by Voluntary Community Action Wirral (VCAW) and General
Advice Service is delivered by Wirral Citizens Advice Bureau (CAB). These grants
terminate on March 31st 2012.
3.0

SERVICES

3.1 The Voluntary Community and Faith (VCF) Sector Support Contract will provide
specialist support services to the VCF sector in Wirral. The service will support groups
to engage in activities that will improve their neighbourhoods, deliver services to meet
the needs of Wirral residents and take a more active role in design and delivery of
local services.
The service provider will actively engage with underrepresented groups and ensure
that they have an opportunity to develop and contribute to service delivery in Wirral.

Page 365

3.2

The General Advice Contract will provide a free and independent information and
advice service open to all Wirral residents but specifically targeted towards meeting
the needs of families living in poverty. The service will be responsive to those in
greatest need, providing a package of information, advice and support in relation to
welfare and benefits, debt and financial management, employment and housing.

3.3

The total value of the VCF support contract is £306,000 for a period of three years
and the total value of the General Advice contract is £780,000 for a period of three
years.

4.0

PROCUREMENT PROCESS

4.1

In accordance with the Council’s Contract Procedure Rules, Financial Procedures
and European Procurement Rules a full tendering process has been undertaken via
the Council’s e-tendering portal, The Chest.

4.2

For the VCF Sector Support Tender 159 expressions of interest were initially
received and 8 completed tenders were submitted.

4.3

102 expressions of interest were received for the General Advice Service tender with
6 submissions received, indicating a highly competitive market in these service
areas.

4.4

The tender evaluation panel, comprising officers from the Communications and
Community Engagement section and the Corporate Procurement Unit, applied a
cost/quality evaluation model based on 40% price and 60% quality to determine the
most economically advantageous tender as set out in the exempt appendix.

5.0 RELEVANT RISKS
5.1 A risk would be the contract holders being unable to fulfil the contracts due to financial
instability. Experian risk reports of financial stability were commissioned for the
suppliers of both contracts that scored the highest in the evaluation. The report
revealed the suppliers as being low risk for financial instability.
6.0 OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED
6.1 To continue the existing service without tendering. This option was not considered as
the Council is committed to reviewing VCF service provision and wishes to move from
service level agreements to outcome based contracts to open up this market to
competition, ensure compliance with procurement rules and to ensure best value from
the service received.

7.0 CONSULTATION
7.1 Consultation with the Voluntary Community Faith Sector took place via on-line survey,
focus groups, and one-one telephone interviews with VCF organisations and
discussions with VCF infrastructure providers in Wirral. The online survey was

Page 366

disseminated through a Wirral Council database and VCAW’s database. VCAW and
Wirral CVS were informed of the tendering opportunity and distributed it through their
networks. An advertisement was placed in the Wirral Globe for both tender
opportunities.
Consultation for the General Advice tender took place through discussions with the
current provider, a review of needs based on monitoring reports and discussions with
Knowsley Council who have undergone a commissioning process for their General
Advice Service. An on-line survey and focus groups with service users was not
deemed appropriate due to the variety of issues presented by service users. The
needs of families in poverty were incorporated into the specification in-line with the
Child Poverty strategy for Wirral.

8.0 IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS
8.1 The awarding of the Voluntary Community Faith Sector Service Contract will provide
continued support for the sector and increase the likelihood of small community
groups and residents associations being able to make a contribution to their
neighbourhoods
9.0 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS
9.1 The funds in relation to these contracts have been allocated from the Communication
and Community Engagement section budget

10.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
10.1 The process has followed Legal/Procurement requirements.

11.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS
11.1 E.I.A’s have not taken place as negative impacts were not identified during the review
process of the existing contracts, and the new contracts are a continuation of services.
The service specifications have been written to incorporate the needs of protected
groups.
.

12.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS
12.1 There are no carbon reduction implications
13.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS
13.1 There are no planning and community safety issues

14.0 RECOMMENDATION/S
14.1

That Cabinet approves the award of contracts for Voluntary, Community and Faith
Sector Support and General Advice Service to the highest scoring tender.

Page 367

14.2

The results of the evaluation are set out in the Appendix 1, 2 which is not for
publication as it contains commercially sensitive information.

15.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S
15.1 These two tenders performed best against the agreed evaluation criteria and therefore
the most economically advantageous. There is a need for both of these services.
REPORT AUTHOR

Nancy Kitch
Third Sector Development Officer
Telephone: (0151 691 8216)
Email: nancykitch@wirral.gov.uk

EXEMPT APPENDICES:
Voluntary Community Faith Sector Support Service Evaluation Appendix 1.
General Advice Service Evaluation Appendix 2.

REFERENCE MATERIAL
N/A
SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting

Date

Cabinet – item 42 Extension of Voluntary Sector 23 June 2011
Grants

Page 368

Agenda Item 24
WIRRAL COUNCIL
CABINET
15 MARCH 2012
SUBJECT:

NOCTORUM COMMUNITY CENTRE

WARD/S AFFECTED:

CLAUGHTON

REPORT OF:

DIRECTOR OF LAW, HR AND ASSET
MANAGEMENT

RESPONSIBLE

PORTFOLIO COUNCILLOR HARNEY

HOLDER:
KEY DECISION?

NO

1.0 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.1

This report seeks approval to a revised method of transferring Noctorum Community
Centre to Ridgeway High School as part of the Community Asset Transfer process.

1.2

The transfer is in support of the Council’s goal to reduce the running costs of the
Council by improving the efficiency and value for money of Council services whilst
reducing bureaucracy.

1.3

There will be a small saving in the Council’s budget as a consequence of this
proposal.

1.4

The grant funding is not a statutory duty.

2.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY ISSUES
2.1

Noctorum Community Centre is shown edged black on the attached plan. It is a
purpose built centre which is located in the grounds of Ridgeway High school and,
although self contained, is physically attached to the school building. The centre has
been operated by a group of volunteers who have developed a range of activities.

2.2

Ridgeway High School elected to become a Foundation school in 2009 which
required the Council to transfer the freehold interest to the school’s governing body.
Due to a number of complexities, the freehold transfer of the school has been
delayed and, more recently, the school has applied for Academy status which would
also require the transfer of ownership either by freehold transfer or a long lease.

2.3

Noctorum Community Centre was identified in the Council’s Strategic Asset Review
as a facility which should be transferred to community management, where the
community expressed an interest. After consultation, the existing users did not wish
to pursue a transfer in their own right, but supported a transfer proposal by
Ridgeway High School, which has aspirations to develop its community
engagement. Cabinet at its meeting of 17 March 2011 approved the transfer of
Noctorum Community Centre to the School in accordance with the Council’s
Community Asset Transfer policy, and also approved the allocation of £47,000 (ex

Page 369

VAT) for Capital works and one year’s revenue support in the sum of £42,000 from
the Community Fund.
2.4

In anticipation of the transfer of the centre, the capital works identified prior to
transfer have been undertaken and funded from the CYPD budget, to be recouped
from the Community Fund monies once a formal agreement has been reached. The
school has now become more involved in the running of the centre and is keen to
take it on fully, including the day to day running costs, but is unable to do so until it is
in receipt of the revenue support monies.

2.5

It was anticipated that the transfer of the Community Centre could follow the pattern
of other transfers and be by way of a 99 year lease with a requirement for the school
to be responsible for maintenance and outgoings as well as the development of
community usage. Terms for the transfer were approved by Cabinet on that basis.
However, transfer of the centre in that manner would present a number of issues
relating to rights required for use of the centre and the reservation of rights which
would be needed if its operation as a community facility became impracticable at
some point in the future. This would require the return of a vacant facility to the
council which, due to its location in the school, would present a number of practical
and ownership issues. This situation becomes even more complex in light of the
application for Academy status. An alternative method is therefore proposed.

2.6

PROPOSED WAY FORWARD

2.7

Currently, the Council owns the freehold to both the Community Centre and the
school. The school is funded through the CYPD budget and the Community Centre
is funded from the Asset Management budget. The ownership of the school
premises will, in some form or other, transfer to the school, in a manner prescribed
by either its Foundation status or as a result of achieving Academy status. It is
proposed, in the meantime, that the centre be transferred from Asset Management
to CYPD, and that the monies expended by CYPD on capital works to the
Community Centre will be reimbursed from the Community Fund. The responsibility
for the day to day running of the facility will lie with the school, with the revenue
support from the Community Fund reimbursing the CYPD budget in the sum of
£42,000 who will then pass this on to the school.

2.8

Once the manner of transfer of the school either as a Foundation or Academy school
has been determined, the Community Centre can form part of the transfer to the
school, including a requirement that the school continues to use the centre for
community activities.

3.0 RELEVANT RISKS
3.1

Typical transfers using a specific lease for the building enable a degree of control
particularly in terms of use by the community. The transfer in the proposed manner
will rely on the school’s continuing desire to offer the premises for community use,
which will be difficult to enforce without a specific lease in place. However, even if
there were a formal lease in place there would still be severe doubts on the viability
of enforcement action given the location of the asset within school boundaries and
the fact that it is not capable of separate sale.

Page 370

3.2

It may be possible to achieve some monitoring of the level of community use by
virtue of the revenue budget being made available. Targets for community use for
which revenue support is provided can be requested by the Children and Young
Peoples Department.

4.0

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED

4.1

A number of ways of transferring the centre to the school have been considered,
however, due to its location in the school those alternatives would require complex
legal agreements for a property which has no obvious alternative use.

5.0

CONSULTATION

5.1

The school and the community centre users have been consulted on this proposal
and agree the proposed way forward.

6.0

IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS

6.1

Noctorum Community Centre is run by volunteers, whose support will continue to be
essential after transfer.

7.0

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS

7.1

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
Approval has been previously been given to support the transfer from the
Community Fund in the sum of £47,000 (ex VAT) plus fees and contingencies for
capital works and a one off payment of £42,000 for revenue support.

7.2

STAFFING IMPLICATIONS

7.2.1 There are no staffing implications arising directly from this report.
7.3

ASSET IMPLICATIONS

7.3.1 If the Council were to offer to sell the property with vacant possession, given its
location in the school, it is unlikely to attract any interest other than that associated
with school use.
8.0 LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
8.1

The legal implications are outlined in the body of the report. Pending any formal
transfer of the area to the school, the school will be deemed to have licence of this
area.

9.0 EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS
9.1 Has the potential impact of your proposal been reviewed with regard to equality?
(a) The equality impact assessment in respect of the Council’s Community Asset
Transfer Policy can be viewed by following the link –
www.wirral.gov.uk/downloads/2608

Page 371

10.0 CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS
10.1 There are no Carbon Reduction Implications arising directly from this report, although
the transfer of the school will result in a reduction in the Council’s carbon emissions.

11.0 PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS
11.1 There are no planning implications arising directly from this report.

12.0 RECOMMENDATION/S
12.1

That the Community Centre be included within Ridgeway High School and the
budget for the facility be moved from Law HR & Asset Management to Children and
Young People.

13.0 REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S
13.1 To simplify the process for transfer of the Community Centre in a manner consistent
with the school’s future status as either Foundation or Academy.
REPORT AUTHOR:

Steven McMorran
Valuer
telephone: 0151 666 3891
email: stevemcmorran@wirral.gov.uk

APPENDICES
A location plan is attached identifying the property.
REFERENCE MATERIAL
Reference has been made to the Council’s Community Asset Transfer Policy which can be
viewed through the Council’s website.

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting

Date

Cabinet – Transforming Wirral
Cabinet – Community Asset Transfer – Noctorum
Community Centre

15 January 2009
17 March 2011

Page 372

Noctorum Community Centre

Scale 1/1250
© Crown copyright and database rights 2011 Ordnance Survey 100019803
Centre = 328736 E 387621 N

Date 22/2/2012

Dept:
Section:

Page 373

Phone:
Fax:

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 374

Agenda Item 26
WIRRAL COUNCIL
CABINET
15 MARCH 2012

SUBJECT:

MASTERS IN BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION
(MBA) QUALIFICATION

WARD/S AFFECTED:

ALL

REPORT OF:

DIRECTOR

OF

LAW,

HR

AND

ASSET

MANAGEMENT
RESPONSIBLE

PORTFOLIO COUNCILLOR TOM HARNEY

HOLDER:
KEY DECISION?

YES

1.0

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.1

The purpose of this report is to seek approval from Cabinet to proceed with the
procurement tender process decision and renew the MBA programme contract
with effect from 2012.

1.2

By virtue of paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act
1972, the appendices to this report are exempt as they contain commercially
sensitive information.

2.0

RECOMMENDATION/S

2.1

It is recommended that Cabinet agree:
(i)

The award of the contract for the duration of the MBA programme (three
years) for a single cohort, with the option of an additional two cohorts.

(ii)

Agree the University of Chester as the contracted provider on the basis of
an objective assessment through the procurement process undertaken
between June and November 2011.

3.0

REASON/S FOR RECOMMENDATION/S

3.1

A procurement process consisted of post qualifying questionnaire (PQQ), invitation
to tender (ITT), Presentation and Site Visits. The evaluation was weighted 60 %
cost and 40% quality to ensure best value to the Council.

3.2

It is important Wirral Council has a programme of leadership development, in place
to build our capacity to deliver our objectives.

3.3

The relative value of the M.B.A. programme will be reviewed as part of our capacity
building and approach to Leadership as the Council develops its capacity building
and Improvement plan.

Page 375

4.0

CONTEXT

4.1

Wirral Council has a structured learning programme for employees and managers
in the form of:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Skills for Wirral employees programme.
Skills for Wirral managers programme.
Job specific learning and development opportunities of vocational and
academic nature e.g. NVQ’s, Professional Qualifications.
An academic learning programme for junior and middle managers through the
Institute of Leadership and Management (ILM) level three and five awards.
MBA programme for current / aspiring strategic managers and leaders.
Other bespoke learning and development opportunities as required.

4.2

The MBA Programme builds on the suite of learning and development
opportunities described above, in order to provide senior managers and leaders
with distinct development opportunities. The MBA is an academic taught
programme, the learning from which attendees can apply into the organisation
through workplace practice and improved performance.

5.0

BACKGROUND

5.1

Wirral Council is committed to ensuring that all employees, managers and leaders
in Wirral are skilled and resourced in order to meet current expectations placed
upon them by the organisation and our customers; as well as being equipped to
support and address future challenges. In line with this Wirral adopts a proactive
approach to workforce development and talent management. This is delivered
through building capacity at all levels of the organisation via a range of formal and
informal learning methods, both vocationally and academically driven.

5.2

In line with this requirement, Wirral introduced a new learning process for current
and aspiring strategic leaders and managers in 2006, in the form of the MBA
academic qualification programme, delivered by Chester University. To date three
cohorts of managers have undertaken the programme. Two cohorts have
completed the programme and cohort three is part way through year three, the
final year. This tender contract has now expired.

6.0.

PROGRAMME DESCRIPTION

6.1

Through attendance at university on a monthly basis, Wirral managers and
leaders:
•
•
•
•

Learn a range of models and theories that can be applied to workplace practice
e.g. stakeholder engagement.
Through production of assignments are encouraged to apply their learning, in a
workplace context, at a theoretical level.
Undertake a group project on a real life organisational issue, the learning from
which can be applied in practice.
Complete a dissertation on an issue linked to an organisational topic, again, the
learning from which can be applied in real terms.

Page 376

•
•

Are given opportunities to externalise their focus beyond the boundaries of
Wirral Council and its partners.
Challenge current ways of thinking within themselves as individuals and across
the organisation in order to generate new and creative opportunities and ideas.

7.0

PAST PROGRAMME FEEDBACK

7.1

The MBA programmes delivered under the previous tender contract have been
evaluated. This has concluded that attendance on the MBA programme has
resulted in both generic and specific improvements for the organisation as well as
individual delegates. 75% of people found undertaking the MBA very beneficial,
with the remaining 25% finding it somewhat beneficial.

7.1.1 Specific examples of organisational impact from the MBA include:
•

•

•

Using learning undertaken through the MBA, to support developments in the
topic of foster care recruitment and service reform for children with disability
services.
The MBA programme has provided skills to enable the identification of strategic
opportunities and the ability to link these to Corporate Objectives; as well as by
improving ability to undertake research and write bids to secure funding.
The projects carried out by delegates in Year 2 of the MBA and the Final Year
dissertations have resulted in the identification of potential savings and
improvements in a number of services e.g. The Fixed Assets Project, Budget
Management Training and The Use of Social Media.

7.1.2 In addition, generic feedback from delegates has included:
•
•
•
7.2

One of the most apparent benefits is the creation of internal networks of middle
managers which means there is greater corporate and departmental working.
I can see the wider dynamics of a, challenge or situation.
I have a better understanding of change management and applying change
management to service planning.

Attendance on the MBA programme supports talent management and succession
planning, within Wirral and across Local Authorities within the region; as well as
supporting managers and leaders to fulfil their current roles. Evaluation has
confirmed that a significant number of people have developed within their careers
following commencement of the MBA and continue to do so. 41.7% of people have
undertaken new responsibilities, 16.7% had a new job role and 8.3% of people
have been appointed to roles at a higher level. Feedback from delegates has
included:
•
•

Since my MBA I have taken on a new leadership role. I am confident in tackling
this role. Line manager feedback is positive.
The knowledge that you gain provides frameworks against which you can
analyse your situation and assists you to doing the right things on a day to day
basis. You also have a sounder basis for planning your continued development.

Page 377

8.0

NEW PROGRAMME IMPROVEMENTS

8.1

Access for the M.B.A programme will be through an assessment centre process for
undertaken in partnership with the chosen provider with a selection panel
comprising the Chief Executive, a Director, Head of HR/ OD and OD Manager.

8.2

Project and dissertation topics will be identified and approved by the organisation
prior to being undertaken by delegates. These will support organisational
development including change programmes and areas requiring research.

8.3

Following attendance on the programme; attendees will be required to support the
delivery of organisational change initiatives and development activities. Therefore
transferring their learning into practice and enhancing organisational capacity and
capability.

8.4

To improve the evaluation of the programme, benchmarking of performance
before, during and after the programme will be put I place.

8.5

The HR/OD Team will keep the programme under review, in terms of scale and
cost, when looking at the Council’s Leadership Strategy for the future.

9.0

THE TENDER PROCESS

9.1

In June 2011 Wirral Council commenced a new tender process to secure a new
MBA provider, as the original tender had expired.

9.2

The specification required the ratio of 60% cost, 40% quality.

9.3

Registrations of interest were requested from organisations based within a 40 mile
radius of Wallasey Town Hall, to ensure the investment made by Wirral Council
supported the economic regeneration of the local area and that attendance at the
University was accessible for employees.

9.4

Organisations were invited to submit a tender comprising two delivery options.
Option One – Taught Delivery at Wirral Council site.
Option Two – Taught Delivery at University site.

9.5

Organisations submitting tenders were asked to consider delivery and associated
costs for a single cohort consisting of a maximum of 25 people, lasting for a three
year term. In addition there is a potential of two additional cohort extensions built
into the specification, resulting in three cohorts in total. This means there is the
potential for 75 people to undertake the programme through this tender exercise.

9.6

Organisations included a three tier approach within their scope.

9.7.1 Tier One – People complete year one, achieve a post graduate certificate and
leave the programme at this stage.
9.7.2 Tier Two – People complete year two, achieve a post graduate diploma and leave
the programme at this stage.

Page 378

9.7.3 Tier Three – People complete the full programme and achieve an MBA
qualification.
9.7

Eight organisations submitted post qualifying questionnaires at the PQQ stage for
short listing.

9.8

Five organisations were short listed and invited to submit tenders in line with the
ITT.

9.9

Following analysis of the five tender submissions, site visits were undertaken at all
universities in August, 2011, in line with procurement requirements. These findings
were included in the final score as a percentage of the quality aspect.

9.10

A preferred provider was identified as an outcome of the procurement process.

10.0

COSTS
To date the MBA programme has been fully funded by the employing department.
Further consideration will be given to the future funding of the programme.

11.0

RELEVANT RISKS

11.1

The tender exercise has been thorough and took into account the need to consider
both cost and quality in the assessment process – the contract is time limited but
with the option to extend it. All of this should minimise the risk to the council. The
MBA Leadership Programme will enable the council to develop its senior staff and
aspiring senior staff to enable it to be robust in the future.

11.2

In order to ensure effective monitoring and evaluation, the tender specification
required a clear response on how this would be achieved.

12.0

OTHER OPTIONS CONSIDERED
Due to the cost of the contract over three years it was necessary to conduct a
tender exercise in accordance with the OJEU procedures. No other options were
considered however this programme itself forms part of a suite of options for
leadership development.

13.0

CONSULTATION
Not applicable

14.0

IMPLICATIONS FOR VOLUNTARY, COMMUNITY AND FAITH GROUPS

14.1

The nature of the contract will be one that allows Wirral Council to offer places to
partner organisations. This has previously been offered to Wirral NHS, who took
places on cohorts two and three of the last contract and further opportunities can
be explored.

15.0

.
RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS: FINANCIAL; IT; STAFFING; AND ASSETS

15.1

Pricing implications formed part of the tender assessment and was weighted 60%

Page 379

of the tender assessment. Only tenders containing proposals which fell below
£9,000 per delegate, per full MBA programme were considered for tender
evaluation.
15.2

The final overall cost per delegate will depend on the numbers signing up to each
cohort.

15.3

There is no budget at a corporate level for participation on the MBA programme as
delegates are funded directly from Departmental Budgets.

15.2

Senior and Chief Officers will support a small amount of programme delivery, by
facilitating sessions on a range of topics in order to demonstrate the application of
theory to practice within Wirral. An example of this is within the Finance Module,
delegates are briefed on the Council budget and funding streams.

15.3

No additional staff will be required to administer the delivery of the MBA – the
council has run a similar programme for over three years and the administration for
the programme will be conducted by the successful provider.

15.4

Time off for delegates to attend the programme and participate on supporting
project / group work will be required.

15.5

There are no IT implications arising from the tender process or award of this
contract.

16.0

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS
The Council will ensure that all relevant employment legislation is complied with
throughout the MBA procurement process.

17.0

EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS

17.1

The specification was devised using the council procurement template. Issues
relating to equality and diversity are covered in terms of the tender process and
how the contract will be delivered to ensure both statutory compliance and best
practice.

17.2

Accessibility to the programme will follow established training and development
procedures to ensure that the criteria set for the application process and selection
of attendees onto the MBA programme are clear and none discriminatory.

17.3

Equality Impact Assessment (EIA)
(a) Is an EIA required? Yes.
(b) If ‘yes’, has one been completed?

Yes

Law, Human Resources and Asset Management Equality Impact Assessments (post
2010) | WIRRAL Borough Council

Page 380

18.0

CARBON REDUCTION IMPLICATIONS
There are no carbon usage implications or other relevant environmental issues
arising from this report.

19.0

PLANNING AND COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS
There are no planning and community safety implications arising from this report.

REPORT AUTHOR:

Chris Hyams
Head of HR and OD
Department of Law HR and Asset Management
Telephone: (0151 691 8590)
Email: chrishyams@wirral.gov.uk

EXEMPT APPENDICES
Appendix One:

Costs

REFERENCE MATERIAL
There is no reference material for this report.

SUBJECT HISTORY (last 3 years)
Council Meeting

Date

Council Excellence Overview and Scrutiny Committee

17 November 2011

Council Excellence Overview and Scrutiny Meeting

15 September 2011

LSP Executive Board
‘Masters in Business Administration (MBA) Leadership
Programme Wirral Council and NHS Wirral.’

31 March 2010

Page 381

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 382

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 383

Agenda Item 29

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 384

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 385

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 386

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 387

Agenda Item 30

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 390

